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Special Note Regarding Forward-Looking Statements

Certain statements in this Annual Report are fodaAlaoking in nature as defined in the Private Siiesr
Litigation Reform Act of 1995. These statements] ather written and oral forwaldoking statements made by 1
Company from time to time, may relate to, amongnothings, such matters as planned and expecteatitap
increases and utilization; anticipated capital sigggy environmental matters; legal proceedingspexpe to, and
effects of hedging of, raw material and energy asid foreign currencies; global and regional egdagppolitical,
and business conditions; expectations, strategiesplans for individual assets and products, satgnas well as
for the whole Company; cash requirements and usagailable cash; financing plans; pension expenses
funding; anticipated restructuring, divestituredaonsolidation activities; cost reduction and colng¢fforts and
targets and integration of acquired businessesselplans and expectations are based upon certad@mlying
assumptions, and are in turn based upon intertisl@es and analyses of current market conditiosteends,
management plans and strategies, economic consligom other factors. Actual results could diffextemnially from
expectations expressed in the forward-looking statgs if one or more of the underlying assumpteoms
expectations proves to be inaccurate or is unegliZertain important factors that could causeaeasults to
differ materially from those in the forward-lookistatements are included with such forwhrdking statements a
in “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Finah€londition and Results of Operations — Forwaraing
Statements May Prove Inaccurate.”

Item 1. Business
Basis of Presentation

In this Annual Report on Form 10-K, the term “Cedae” refers to Celanese Corporation, a Delaware
corporation, and not its subsidiaries. The ternes‘@ompany,” “we,” “our” and “us” refer to Celaneaad its
subsidiaries on a consolidated basis. The termditase US” refers to our subsidiary, Celanese USirtgd LLC, a
Delaware limited liability company, formerly knovas BCP Crystal US Holdings Corp., a Delaware cafmn,
and not its subsidiaries. The term “Purchaser’reefe our subsidiary, Celanese Europe Holding Gr&bEb. KG,
formerly known as BCP Crystal Acquisition GmbH & GGG, a German limited partnership, and not its
subsidiaries, except where otherwise indicated.t&ha “Original Shareholders” refers, collectively,Blackstone
Capital Partners (Cayman) Ltd. 1, Blackstone Chpitatners (Cayman) Ltd. 2, Blackstone Capital iag
(Cayman) Ltd. 3 and BA Capital Investors Sidecand;lL.P. The term “Advisor” refers to Blackstone hd@ement
Partners, an affiliate of The Blackstone Group. Tren “CAG” refers to Celanese GmbH, formerly knoasm
Celanese AG, its consolidated subsidiaries, itscanmsolidated subsidiaries, ventures and otherstinvents. With
respect to shareholder and similar matters wheredahtext indicates, “CAG” only refers to Celan€sabH.

Overview

Celanese Corporation was formed in 2004 when thgir@at Shareholders purchased 84% of the ordinbaayes
of Celanese GmbH, formerly known as Celanese Adiversified German chemical company. Celanese
Corporation was incorporated in 2005 under the lafittbe state of Delaware and its shares are traddbe New
York Stock Exchange under the symbol “CE”. Durihg period from 2005-2007, Celanese Corporationtased
the remaining 16% interest in Celanese GmbH. ABaxfember 31, 2007, the Original Shareholders have n
remaining ownership interest in Celanese GmbH oiGampany. For further information, see Notes 2 &8do the
consolidated financial statements.

We are a leading global integrated producer of ¢baisiand advanced materials. We are one of théligor
largest producers of acetyl products, which arerinediate chemicals for nearly all major industréeswell as a
leading global producer of high performance engieé@olymers that are used in a variety of highteand-use
applications. As an industry leader, we hold gephieally balanced global positions and particigatdiversified
end-use markets. Our operations are primarily &gtat North America, Europe and Asia. We combine a
demonstrated track record of execution, strongoperénce built on shared principles and objectiaes, a clear
focus on growth and value creation.

Our large and diverse global customer base prignaohsists of major companies in a broad arrayadfistries.
For the year ended December 31, 2007, approximagsty of our net sales were to customers locatétbitth
America, 43% to customers in Europe and Africa 28% to customers in Asia and the rest of the world.




Market Industry

This document includes industry data and foredhstiswe have prepared based, in part, upon inddsiiey and
forecasts obtained from industry publications amdeys and internal company surveys. Third-partyustry
publications, surveys and forecasts generally $tatiethe information contained therein has bedaioed from
sources believed to be reliable. The statementwdety Celanese’s market position in this docunaeatbased on
information derived from th2006 Stanford Research Institute International CisairEconomics HandbogkCMAI
2004 World Methanol AnalysjsTecnon Orbichemcetic Acid and Vinyl Acetate World Suntbiyd quarter 2007
report and from Kline and Co.

Segment Overview

During 2007, we revised our reportable segmentsftect a change in how the Company is manageda. Thi
change was made to drive strategic growth anddopbusinesses with similar dynamics and growtrodppities.
We also changed our internal transfer pricing mathagy to generally reflect market-based pricingalihwe
believe will make our results more comparable topmer companies. The revised segments are Advanced
Engineered Materials, Consumer Specialties, InduSpecialties, Acetyl Intermediates and Otherivities. We
have restated our reportable segments for all pgoods presented to conform to the 2007 pregentdtor further
details on our business segments, see Note 2@ wotisolidated financial statements. The tablevbélostrates
each segment’s net sales to external custometBdgrear ended December 31, 2007, as well as egchent’s
major products and end-use markets.

Advanced
Engineered Materials Consumer Specialties  Industrial Specialties Acetyl Intermediates
2007 Net Sale§) $1,030 million $1,111 million $1,346 million $2,955 million

Key Products  Polyacetal products ¢ Acetate tow « Polyvinyl alcohol ¢ Acetic acid

(“POM”) Sunett® sweetener (“PVOH") Vinyl acetate
« Ultra-high molecula  Sorbates * Emulsions 1onomer “VAM")
weight polyethylene * Low-density Acetic anhydride
(“GUR") polyethylene resins Acetate esters
« Liquid crystal « Ethylene vinyl Carboxylic acids
polymers (Vectra) acetate (“EVA") Amines
« Polyphenylene resins and compounds Polyvinyl acetate
sulfide (“PPS”)
(Fortron)
 Polybutylene
terephthalate (“PBT")
 Polyester
engineering resins
« Long fiber
reinforced
thermoplastic:
Major End-Use Markets * Fuel system « Filter products « Paints  Paints
components * Beverages « Coatings « Coatings
» Conveyor belts « Confections » Adhesives * Adhesives

« Lubricants
» Detergents

« Battery separators
* Electronics

» Baked goods
* Pharmaceuticals

* Building products
* Glass fibers

* Seat belt * Textiles « Pharmaceuticals
mechanisms  Paper * Films
 Other automotive * Flexible packaging -« Textiles
« Appliances and e Lamination products ¢ Inks
electronics * Medical tubing « Plasticizers
« Filtrations « Automotive parts « Esters
« Coatings « Solvents
* Medical

e Telecommunication

(M Consolidated net sales of $6,444 million for tharyended December 31, 2007 also includes $2 mitlioret
sales from Other Activities, which is attributalddeour captive insurance companies. Acetyl Interiated’ net
sales exclude int-segment sales of $660 million for the year endeceDwer 31, 2007




Advanced Engineered Materials

Our Advanced Engineered Materials segment devefppsiuces and supplies a broad portfolio of high
performance technical polymers for applicationumoaotive and electronics products and in othesoorer and
industrial applications. Together with our strategffiliates, we are a leading participant in ttebgl technical
polymers business. The primary products of Advarieegineered Materials are POM and GUR. POM is used
broad range of products including automotive congmbs, electronics and appliances. GUR is usedtierya
separators, conveyor belts, filtration equipmeagtings and medical devices.

Consumer Specialties

Our Consumer Specialties segment consists of oatafe Products and Nutrinova businesses. Our Acetat
Products business primarily produces and supptietate tow and acetate flake, which is used imptbduction of
filter products. The successful completion of thguasition of Acetate Products Limited, a subsigiaf Corsadi
B.V., on January 31, 2007, further increases ooipgl position and enhances our ability to servecostomers. Our
Nutrinova business produces and sells SI1®, a high intensity sweetener, and food protectimedients, such as
sorbates, for the food, beverage and pharmacesitivdlistries.

Industrial Specialties

Our Industrial Specialties segment includes the [Bimns, PVOH and AT Plastics businesses. Our Eimgsi
business is a global leader which produces a lpoadlict portfolio, specializing in vinyl acetatdigliene
emulsions, and is a recognized leader in envirotaligrriendly low-volatile organic compounds tediagy. Also
a global leader, our PVOH business produces amslabroad portfolio of performance chemicals eagied to
meet specific customer requirements. Our emulsiosPVOH products are used in a wide array of agfidins
including paints and coatings, adhesives, buildng construction, glass fiber, textiles and pafi@rPlastics offers
a complete line of low-density polyethylene andcigléy, ethylene vinyl acetate resins and compou@ds
products are used in many applications includiagifile packaging, lamination products, hot meltesive, medice
tubing and automotive parts.

Acetyl Intermediates

Our Acetyl Intermediates segment produces and mgatetyl products, including acetic acid, VAMetc
anhydride and acetate esters. Acetic acid is arkeymediate chemical used in the production of VAdrified
terephthalic acid and acetic anhydride. VAM is g keermediate chemical used in emulsions, polyvaigohol,
and other acetyl derivatives. These products amergdly used as starting materials for coloraraints, adhesives,
coatings, medicines and more. Other chemicals mextlin this segment are organic solvents and irgdiates for
pharmaceutical, agricultural and chemical products.

Competitive Strengths

We benefit from a number of competitive strengthsluding the following:

Leading Market Positions

We believe that we are a leading global integratediucer of acetyls, cellulose acetate and vinydlsion
products. Advanced Engineered Materials and outuwes, Polyplastics Co. Ltd. (“Polyplastics”) andr&a
Engineering Plastics Co., Ltd. ("KEPCQ"), are leafproducers and suppliers of engineered polynmekirth
America, Europe and the Asia/Pacific region. Oadkrship positions are based on our large shaglbél
production capacity, operating efficiencies, pretary technology and competitive cost structuresuinmajor
products.

Proprietary Production Technology and Operating Eagiise

Our production of acetyl products employs induségding proprietary and licensed technologies pidiclg oul
proprietary AOPIus technology for the productioraoétic acid and VAntage and VAntage Plus vinytatee




monomer technology. AOPIlus enables plant capagibetincreased with minimal investment, while VAggaand
VAntage Plus enable significant increases in prtidacefficiencies, lower operating costs and ines=ain capacity
at ten to fifteen percent of the cost of buildingeav plant.

Low Cost Producer

Our competitive cost structures are based on ptamuand purchasing economies of scale, vertidabiration,
technical expertise and the use of advanced teopissl.

Global Reach

We operate thirty-six production facilities througtt the world. The ventures in which we participaperate
nine additional facilities. Our infrastructure oinufacturing plants, terminals and sales officesiges us with a
competitive advantage in anticipating and meetiegrteeds of our global and local customers in estiblished
and growing markets, while our geographic divers#yuces the potential impact of volatility in angividual
country or region. We have a strong, growing presen Asia, particularly in China, and we have dedi a strategy
to continue this growth. For more information retiag our financial information with respect to @eographic
areas, see Note 26 to the consolidated financ@#drsients.

Strategic Investments

Our strategic investments, including our ventuhesie enabled us to gain access, minimize costacrelerate
growth in new markets, while also generating sigaiit cash flow and earnings. Our equity investsianid cost
investments represent an important component ofjmwth strategy. See Note 9 to the consolidateahitial
statements and “Investments” commencing on pag Itém 1 for additional information on our equénd cost
investments.

Diversified Products and End-Use Markets

We offer our customers a broad range of producssvide variety of end-use markets. For example, we
participate in paints and coatings, textiles, auttive applications, consumer and medical applicatiperformance
industrial applications, filter media, paper andkzging, chemical additives, construction, consuamef industrial
adhesives, and food and beverage applications.product and market diversity reduces the poteitiphct of
volatility in any individual market segment.

Business Strategies
Our strategic foundation is based on the followfimgr pillars which are focused on increasing oprgatash
flows, improving profitability, delivering high retn on investments and creating shareholder value:

Focus

We participate in businesses where we have a sablaicompetitive advantage. We continue to opgnoizr
business portfolio in order to achieve market, ewst technology leadership while expanding our pebdix into
higher value-added products.

Investment

We leverage and build on advantaged positionsapi@nize our portfolio. In order to increase ounzetitive
advantage, we have invested in our core group sihksses through acquisitions in our Acetyls, Emosand
Acetate businesses; growth in Asia bolstered bynewr integrated chemical complex in Nanjing, Cherag new
applications of our advanced engineered polymerdumts.

Growth

We aggressively align with our customers and tivgrkets to capture growth. We are quickly expanifing
Asia, the fastest-growing region in the world, d@r to meet increasing demand for our productgpaks of our




growth strategy, we also continue to develop newdpcts and industry-leading production technolothes deliver
value-added solutions for our customers.

Redeployment

We divest non-core assets and revitalize underpaifg businesses. We have divested or exited bssise
where we no longer have a competitive advantageaMtecontinue to make key strategic decisiongvdalize
businesses that have significant potential for ompd performance and enhanced efficiency.

Underlying all of these strategies is a culturexdcution and productivity. We continually seek wéy reduce
costs, increase productivity and improve procedsrielogy. Our commitment to operational excelleiscan
integral part of our strategy to maintain our cxdtantage and productivity leadership.

Business Segments
ADVANCED ENGINEERED MATERIALS

The Advanced Engineered Materials segment devepopduces and supplies a broad portfolio of high-
performance technical polymers. See Item 1. BusiresSegment Overview for discussion of key prodacis
major end-use markets.

Advanced Engineered Materials’ technical polymergsenchemical and physical properties enabling them,
among other things, to withstand extreme tempegatuesist chemical reactions with solvents antstaind
fracturing or stretching. These products are usexdwide range of performance-demanding applicatinrthe
automotive and electronics sectors as well asharatonsumer and industrial goods. Demand for pigtiermance
polymers is expected to grow approximately 5% top@oyear.

Advanced Engineered Materials works in concert vtgtltustomers to enable innovations and develepaore
enhanced products. Advanced Engineered Materiaisés its efforts on developing new markets andicgtipns
for its product lines, often developing custom fatations to satisfy the technical and processiogirements of a
customers applications. For example, Advanced EngineeretéNéds has collaborated with fuel system supplie
develop an acetal copolymer with the chemical amgkict resistance necessary to withstand expostnat wiesel
fuels in the new generation of common rail diesgjiees. The product can also be used in autombielesender
units where it remains stable at the high operatngperatures present in direct-injection diesgiregs or meet the
requirements of the new generation of bio fuels.

Advanced Engineered Materials’ customer base cengisnarily of a large number of plastic moldensia
component suppliers, which are often the primapp$iars to original equipment manufacturers (“OEM”)
Advanced Engineered Materials works with these mrsldnd component suppliers as well as directlly thie
OEMs to develop and improve specialized applicatiamd systems.

Prices for most of these products, particularlycgdized product grades for targeted applicatigesierally
reflect the value added in complex polymer chemigirecision formulation and compounding, and tkiemsive
application development services provided. Theseiafized product lines are not susceptible toicgtbwings in
pricing.

Business Lines

POM is sold under the trademark Hostaform in aiaas but North America, where it is sold under the
trademark Celcon. Polyplastics and KEPCO are lepslippliers of POM and other engineering resirtén
Asia/Pacific region. POM is used for mechanicatpancluding door locks and seat belt mechanismayutomotive
applications and in electrical, consumer and médaipplications such as drug delivery systems amdsger large
appliances.

The primary raw material for POM is formaldehyddiet is manufactured from methanol. Advanced
Engineered Materials currently purchases formaldehg the United States from our Acetyl Intermeeadegment
and, in Europe, manufactures formaldehyde fromhmsed methanol.




GUR is an engineered material used in heavy-duiynaotive and industrial applications such as cétieba
separator panels and industrial conveyor beltajedisas in specialty medical and consumer apphbeceti such as
sports equipment and prostheses. GUR micro powdeleg are used for high-performance filters, memdsa
diagnostic devices, coatings and additives formfgriastics and elastomers. GUR fibers are also insgiabtective
ballistic applications.

Celstran and Compel are long fiber reinforced thogtastics, which impart extra strength and stiffnesaking
them more suitable for larger parts than conveafitimermoplastics.

Polyesters such as Celanex PBT, Vandar, a serieBBfpolyester blends and Riteflex, a thermoplastic
polyester elastomer, are used in a wide variegutdmotive, electrical and consumer applicatiomsluding ignitior
system parts, radiator grilles, electrical switGlaspliance and sensor housings, LEDs and techfitiests. Raw
materials for polyesters vary. Base monomers, asdfimethyl terephthalate and PTA, are widely add with
pricing dependent on broader polyester fiber arak@ging resins market conditions. Smaller volumecggty co-
monomers for these products are typically supdigad few companies.

Liquid crystal polymers (“LCP”), such as Vectragarsed in electrical and electronics applicatiord far
precision parts with thin walls and complex shamesn high-heat cookware application.

Fortron, a PPS product, is used in a wide variégutomotive and other applications, especiallysthmequiring
heat and/or chemical resistance, including fuelesysparts, radiator pipes and halogen lamp housargsoften
replaces metal in these demanding applicationserQtbssible application fields include non-wovédtrdtion
devices such as coal fired power plants. Fortrandaufactured by Fortron Industries LLC, AdvancegiBeered
Materials’ 50-50 venture with Kureha CorporationJapan.

Facilities

Advanced Engineered Materials has polymerizatiommounding and research and technology centers in
Germany, Brazil and the United States. On Nover@Be2006, Advanced Engineered Materials reached a
settlement with the Frankfurt, Germany, Airportr@port”) to relocate its Kelsterbach, Germany, business)vieg
several years of legal disputes related to thengdrirrankfurt airport expansion. The final settlatregreement was
signed on June 12, 2007. As a result of the sedtiépfdvanced Engineered Materials will transititsnoperations
from Kelsterbach to the Hoechst Industrial Parthim Rhine Main area by 2011. See Note 29 to thedlmlated
financial statements for further information.

Markets

The following table illustrates the destinatiortloé¢ net sales of the Advanced Engineered Matesegsnent by
geographic region for the years ended Decembe2®17, 2006 and 2005.

Net Sales to External Customers by Destination — Agnced Engineered Materials

Year Ended
December 31 December 31 December 31
2007 2006 2005
% of % of % of
$ Segmen $ Segmen $ Segmen
(In millions, except percentages
North America 38¢ 38% 311 34% 33¢ 38%
Europe/Africa 517 50% 50C 55% 46& 53%
Asia/Australia 88 8% 55 6% 44 5%
Rest of World 37 4% 49 5% 39 4%

Advanced Engineered Materials’ sales in the Asiamket are made mainly through its ventures, Po$fjas,
KEPCO and Fortron Industries, which are accountedifider the equity method and therefore not irexich
Advanced Engineered Materials’ consolidated nedssdf Advanced Engineered Materials’ portion af Hales
made by these ventures were included in the chasteg the percentage of sales sold in Asia/Austrabuld be
substantially higher. A number of Advanced Engieddviaterials’ POM customers, particularly in thelénce,




electrical components and certain sections of kbetrenics/telecommunications fields, have moveding and
molding operations to Asia, particularly southetnir@. To meet the expected increased demand imetisn,
Polyplastics, Mitsubishi Gas Chemical Company arad KEPCO agreed to form a venture which operavesrhl-
scale 60,000 metric ton POM facility in Nantong,ii@h

Advanced Engineered Materials’ principal customaesconsumer product manufacturers and suppligreto
automotive industries. These customers primariydpce engineered products, and Advanced Engindsaéstials
collaborates with its customers to assist in degualpand improving specialized applications andesys. Advance
Engineered Materials has long-standing relatiorsshiiph most of its major customers, but also usstilutors for
its major products, as well as a number of eleatrorarketplaces to reach a larger customer bagenbst of
Advanced Engineered Materialfgoduct lines, contracts with customers typicatiyd a term of one to two years
significant swing in the economic conditions of #re markets of Advanced Engineered Materials’qipi
customers could significantly affect the demandXdvanced Engineered Materials’ products.

Competition

Advanced Engineered Materials’ principal compestmclude BASF AG (“BASF”), E. I. DuPont de Nemours
and Company (“DuPont”), DSM N.V., Sabic InnovatRfastics and Solvay S.A. Smaller regional compegito
include Asahi Kasei Corporation, Mitsubishi Gas @feals, Inc., Chevron Phillips Chemical Companyy.l..
Braskem S.A., Lanxess AG, Teijin, Sumitomo, Inad dioray Industries Inc.

CONSUMER SPECIALTIES

The Consumer Specialties segment consists of oetafe Products and Nutrinova businesses. Our Acetat
Products business primarily produces and supptiegate tow and acetate flake, which is used iptbduction of
filter products. Our Nutrinova business produces sells Sunet?, a high intensity sweetener, and food protection
ingredients, such as sorbates, for the food, bgeesad pharmaceuticals industries. See Iltem 1nBssi—
Segment Overview for discussion of key productsraagbr end-use markets.

Business Lines

Acetate tow is used primarily in cigarette filte¥de produce acetate flake by processing wood pitlp acetic
anhydride. We purchase wood pulp that is made feforested trees from major suppliers and prodeedia
anhydride internally. The acetate flake is thethferr processed into acetate fiber in the form wivaband.
According to the 2006 Stanford Research Institaterhational Chemical Economics Handbook, we agentbrld’s
leading producer of acetate tow, including prodauctof our ventures in Asia.

Sales of acetate tow products amounted to appragimal%, 9% and 11% of our consolidated net salethe
years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005 ctasghe.

We have an approximate 30% interest in three matwiag ventures in China that produce acetatesfiakd
tow. Our partner in each of the ventures is a Glerstate-owned tobacco entity. Flake expansiorhindOwvas
completed in 2007. In addition, approximately 9%oof 2007 acetate tow sales were sold directlyHim&; the
largest single market for acetate tow in the woFlolw expansions at each of the ventures were cdatpie 2005.

Nutrinova'’s food ingredients business consistdeffroduction and sale of high intensity sweeteardsfood
protection ingredients, such as sorbic acid anbdages worldwide. Nutrinova’s food protection ingegds are
mainly used in foods, beverages and personal cadripts. The primary raw materials for these preglace ketene
and crotonaldehyde. Sorbates pricing is extrematgisive to demand and industry capacity and iseoessarily
dependent on the prices of raw materials.

Acesulfame potassium, a high intensity sweeteneketed under the trademark Surfeftis used in a variety
beverages, confections and dairy products througheuwvorld. Sunet® pricing for targeted applications reflects
value added by Nutrinova, through technical ses/med consistent product quality. Nutrinavatrategy is to be tt
most reliable and highest quality producer of ghrisduct, to develop new product applications angher into new
markets. Nutrinova maintains a strict patent erdorent strategy, which has resulted in favorableaugs in a
number of patent infringement matters in EuropetaedJnited States.




Facilities

Acetate Products has production sites in the Urtiades, Mexico, the United Kingdom and Belgiund an
participates in three manufacturing ventures im@hiWe shut down our Edmonton flake facility durthg second
quarter of 2007.

In January 2007, we acquired Acetate Products kninia manufacturer of cellulose acetate flake,andfilm,
located in the United Kingdom. See Note 5 to thesotidated financial statements for further infotio.

Nutrinova has production facilities in Germanyyasl as sales and distribution facilities in all joravorld
markets.

Markets

The following table illustrates the destinationtloé net sales of the Consumer Specialties segnyent b
geographic region for the years ended Decembe2@®17, 2006 and 2005.

Net Sales to External Customers by Destination — @aumer Specialties

Year Ended
December 31 December 31 December 31
2007 2006 2005
% of % of % of
$ Segmen $ Segmen $ Segmen
(In millions, except percentages
North America 19t 18% 19¢ 23% 184 22%
Europe/Africa 42€ 38% 24¢ 28% 28:Z 34%
Asia/Australia 43t 39% 39: 45% 3432 41%
Rest of World 55 5% 37 4% 29 3%

Sales in the acetate tow industry were princip@lthe major tobacco companies that account foajanity of
worldwide cigarette production. Our contracts withst of our customers are entered into on an arrasis.

Nutrinova directly markets Sunétprimarily to a limited number of large multinatidreand regional customers
in the beverage and food industry under long-temchannual contracts. Nutrinova markets food prasact
ingredients primarily through regional distributdossmall and medium sized customers and direltlyugh
regional sales offices to large multinational costos in the food industry.

Competition

Acetate Products’ principal competitors include d@hiChemical Industries Ltd. (“Daicel”), Eastmanddtical
Corporation (“Eastman”) and Rhodia S.A.

The principal competitors for Nutrinova’s Sun@gweetener are Holland Sweetener Company, The Nuéret
Company, Ajinomoto Co., Inc., Tate & Lyle PLC areveral Chinese manufacturers. In sorbates, Nutainov
competes with Nantong AA, Daicel, Yu Yao/Ningbo,n¢aeng AmeriPac and other Chinese manufacturers of
sorbates.

INDUSTRIAL SPECIALTIES

Our Industrial Specialties segment includes the [Bimis, PVOH and AT Plastics businesses. Our Eimigsi
business is a global leader which produces a hpoadlict portfolio, specializing in vinyl acetatéfgiene emulsion
and is the recognized leader in environmentallgritiy low-volatile organic compounds technology paint in
Europe. Also a global leader, our PVOH businessdlypres and sells a broad portfolio of performanc®RV
chemicals engineered to meet specific customelinagents. AT Plastics offers a complete line of{dansity
polyethylene and specialty, ethylene vinyl acetajgolymers. See Item 1. Business — Segment Ovelfaew
discussion of key products and major end-use market
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Business Lines

The products in our Emulsions business include entignal vinyl and acrylate based emulsions and-hig
pressure vinyl acetate ethylene emulsions. Emusima made from VAM, acrylate esters and styreetar@se
Emulsions is the leading producer of polyvinyl atetand vinyl acetate ethylene emulsions in Eurdpey are a
key component of water-based surface coatings,sadge non-woven textiles, glass fiber and oth@liegtions.

Sales from the Emulsions business amounted to gippately 14% of our consolidated net sales for ezfche
years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005 ctasghe.

PVOH is used in adhesives, building products, papatings, films and textiles. The primary raw mialeto
produce PVOH is VAM, while acetic acid is produ@da byproduct. Products are sold on a global basis aicdg
vary depending on industry segment and end-usécagiph. According to industry sources on PVOH,ave the
largest North American producer of PVOH and thedtfdrgest producer in the world.

AT Plastics produces EVA copolymers that are usgtié manufacture of hot melt adhesives, automotive
carpeting, lamination film products, flexible pagkag films, medical tubing and photovoltaic cel/A
copolymers are produced in high-pressure reaators éthylene and VAM.

Facilities

Emulsions has production sites in the United Staiasada, China, Spain, Sweden, Slovenia, the tnite
Kingdom, the Netherlands and Germany.

PVOH has production sites in the United States3ain along with sales and distribution facilitie€urope,
Asia and Latin America. We shutdown our Roussillerance facility during the fourth quarter of 2007.

AT Plastics has a production facility in Edmontéierta Canada.

Markets

The following table illustrates the destinationtioé net sales of the Industrial Specialties segmgteographi
region for years ended December 31, 2007, 200&26608.

Net Sales to External Customers by Destination — bustrial Specialties

Year Ended

December 31 December 31 December 31
2007 2006 2005
% of % of % of
$ Segmen $ Segmen $- Segmen
(In millions, except percentages

North America 58:¢ 43% 60t 47% 44¢€ 42%
Europe/Africa 674 50% 60C 47% 55¢ 53%
Asia/Australia 68 5% 58 5% 42 4%
Rest of World 21 2% 18 1% 14 1%

Emulsions are sold to a diverse group of regiondlraultinational customers. Customers for emulsames
manufacturers of water-based paints and coatimigsives, paper, building and construction produgéss fiber
and non-woven textiles.

PVOH is sold to a diverse group of regional andtmational customers mainly under mufgar contracts. Tt
customers of the PVOH business line are primarilyaged in the production of adhesives, paper, fibudding
products and textiles.

AT Plastics sells to a diverse group of regional emultinational customers. Customers for AT Plaséie
primarily engaged in the manufacture of adhesimatgmotive components, packaging materials, prediemand
solar energy products.
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Competition

Principal competitors in the Emulsions businestuihe Air Products, The Dow Chemical Company (“Dow”)
Rohm & Haas Company, BASF, Dairen, Wacker and sg¢wenaller regional manufacturers.

Principal competitors in the PVOH business inclédearay Co., Ltd., DuPont, Chang Chun Petrochen@ea
Ltd., The Nippon Synthetic Chemical Industry Cad.Lland several Chinese manufacturers.

Principal competitors for the AT Plastics EVA copokrs business include DuPont, ExxonMobil Chemical,
Arkema and other Asian manufacturers.

ACETYL INTERMEDIATES

Our Acetyl Intermediates segment produces and mgatetyl products, including acetic acid, VAMetc
anhydride and acetate esters. Other chemicals peddn this segment are organic solvents and irgdiaes for
pharmaceutical, agricultural and chemical produsée Item 1. Business Segment Overview for discussion of
products and major end-use markets.

Business Lines
Acetyls. The acetyls business line produces:

 Acetic acid, used to manufacture VAM, other acdsflivatives and various other end uses, includingfipd
terephthalic acid (“PTA”). We manufacture aceti@dor our own use, as well as for sale to thirdipa,
including other participants in the acetyl derivat business

« VAM, used in a variety of adhesives, paints, fillmgatings and textiles. We manufacture VAM for oun
use, as well as for sale to third parti

* Acetic anhydride, a raw material used in the préiducof cellulose acetate, detergents and pharntiaeds.
We manufacture acetic anhydride for our own useyedkas for sale to third parties; a

» Acetaldehyde, a major feedstock for the produatibpolyols. Acetaldehyde is also used in other niga
compounds such as pyridines, which are used icw@grial products

Acetic acid and VAM, our basic products, are digethpacted by the global supply/demand balancesémh
of the products and can be described as cyclicadiare. The principal raw materials in these potslare natural
gas and ethylene, which we purchase from numemmugass; carbon monoxide, which we purchase unaegr-lerm
contracts; methanol, which we purchase under leng-tind short-term contracts; and butane, whicpuvehase
from one supplier and can also obtain from otherses. All these raw materials, except carbon miolepare
commodities available from a wide variety of sostce

Our production of acetyl products employs leadingppietary and licensed technologies, including our
proprietary AOPIlus technology for the productioraogtic acid and VAntage and VAntage Plus vinykaige
monomer technology.

Solvents and DerivativesThe solvents and derivatives business line preslacvariety of solvents,
formaldehyde and other chemicals, which in turnuemed in the manufacture of paints, coatings, adgégsind othe
products.

Many solvents and derivatives products are derfk@u our production of acetic acid. Primary produate:

» Ethyl acetate, an acetate ester that is a sohssut in coatings, inks and adhesives and in the faetuue of
photographic films and coated pape

« Butyl acetate, an acetate ester that is a solsad in inks, pharmaceuticals and perfu

« Methyl ethyl ketone, a solvent used in the productf printing inks and magnetic tap:
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Formaldehyde and formaldehyde derivative produetsarivatives of methanol and are made up of the
following products:

« Formaldehyde, paraformaldehyde, and formcels anespily used to produce adhesive resins for plywood
particle board, coatings, POM engineering resirisanompound used in making polyurethe

« Amines such as methyl amines, monisopropynol amanesbutyl amines are used in agrochemicals,
herbicides and the treatment of rubber and watet

» Special solvents, such as crotonaldehyde, whiclused by the Nutrinova business line for the prtidnaf
sorbates, as well as raw materials for the fragraamd food ingredients indust

Solvents and derivatives are commodity productsadtarized by cyclicality in pricing. The principaw
materials used in the solvents and derivativesiegsi line are acetic acid, various alcohols, methanopylene,
ethylene, and ammonia. We manufacture many of ttegenaterials for our own use as well as for saldhird
parties, including our competitors in the solveantsl derivatives business. We purchase propylenetiytene fron
a variety of sources. We manufacture acetaldehydirope for our own use, as well as for sale ital tharties.

Sales from the acetyls products line amounted pocgimately 34%, 33% and 32% of our consolidated ne
sales for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2aD8G05, respectively. Sales from the solventsdanivatives
products line amounted to approximately 12%, 13%h BP6 of our consolidated net sales for the yeadee
December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

Facilities

Acetyl Intermediates has production sites in th@&dhStates, China, Mexico, Singapore, Spain, Swede
Slovenia, the United Kingdom, the Netherlands, Eeasind Germany. We also participate in a ventu&aundi
Arabia that produces methanol and methyl tertiarybether (“MTBE"). Over the last few years, we have contir
to shift our production capacity to lower cost protion facilities while expanding in growth markegsich as Chin:

Markets

The following table illustrates net sales by destiion of the Acetyl Intermediates segment by geplg@regior
for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 ansl. 200

Net Sales to External Customers by Destination — Astyl Intermediates

Year Ended
December 31 December 31 December 31
2007 2006 2005
% of % of % of
$ Segmen $ Segmen $ Segmen
(In millions, except percentages
North America 68t 23% 68t 26% 771 31%
Europe/Africa 1,18: 40% 1,07¢ 40% 811 33%
Asia/Australia 94¢€ 32% 78¢ 2% 722 30%
Rest of World 141 5% 134 5% 147 6%

Acetyl Intermediates markets its products bothdliyeto customers and through distributors.

Acetic acid, VAM and acetic anhydride are globasibesses which have several large customers. Gnera
supply these global customers under multi-yearrectg. The customers of acetic acid, VAM and acatitydride
produce polymers used in water-based paints, agdggaper coatings, polyesters, film modifiergrpiaceuticals,
cellulose acetate and textiles. We have long-staniilationships with most of these customers.

Solvents and derivatives are sold to a diverseguoduwegional and multinational customers both undelti-
year contracts and on the basis of -standing relationships. The customers of solvantsderivatives are
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primarily engaged in the production of paints, augg and adhesives. We manufacture formaldehydeuioown
use as well as for sale to a few regional custorthatsinclude manufacturers in the wood products@remical
derivatives industries. The sale of formaldehydeaised on both long and short term agreementsieiyesolvents
and amines are sold globally to a wide varietyusftomers, primarily in the coatings and resinsthedspecialty
products industries. These products serve globgtetsin the synthetic lubricant, agrochemical beprocessing
and other specialty chemical areas.

Competition

Our principal competitors in the Acetyl Intermedisisegment include Air Products and Chemicals, Inc.
Atofina S.A., BASF, Borden Chemical, Inc., BritiBtetroleum PLC, Chang Chun Petrochemical Co., Didicel,
Dow, Eastman, DuPont, Lyondell Bassel Industrigpphin Gohsei, Perstorp Inc., Rohm & Haas Compaapgdu
Sopo Corporation (Group) Ltd., Showa Denko K.Kd &uraray Co. Ltd.

OTHER ACTIVITIES

Other Activities primarily consists of corporatenter costs, including financing and administratetivities
such as legal, accounting and treasury functiarierést income or expense associated with ourdingractivities,
and the captive insurance companies. Our two wimdlged captive insurance companies are a key coempanf
our global risk management program, as well asra faf self insurance for our property, liabilitycamworkers
compensation risks. The captive insurance compasses insurance policies to our subsidiaries twige
consistent coverage amid fluctuating costs in tiseriance market and to lower long-term insuransésduy
avoiding or reducing commercial carrier overhead gulatory fees. The captive insurance compasses
insurance policies and coordinate claims-handlargises with third-party service providers. Thejaie risk at
levels approved by management and obtain reinsarameerage from third parties to limit the net niskained. One
of the captive insurance companies also insurdainghird-party risks.

Investments

We have a significant portfolio of strategic invaesnts, including a number of ventures, in Asia,tNdémerice
and Europe. In aggregate, these strategic invessneajoy significant sales, earnings and cash fldle.have
entered into these strategic investments in omgain access to local markets, minimize costsaacdlerate grow
in areas we believe have significant future businesgential. See Note 9 to the consolidated firsrstatements for
additional information.

The table below represents our significant ventasesf December 31, 2007:

Name Location  Ownership Segmen Partner(s) Year Entered

Equity Investments

KEPCO South Korei 50% Advanced Engineert Mitsubishi Gas Chemical 199¢
Materials Company, Inc

Polyplastics Co., Ltd. Japan 45% Advanced Engineer: Daicel Chemical Industrir 1964
Materials Ltd.

Fortron Industries LLC us 50% Advanced Engineer: Kureha Corporation 199z
Materials

Cost Investments
National Methanol Co Saudi Arabi. 25% Acetyl Intermediates Saudi Basic Industries 1981
Corporation (“SABIC")/
CTE Petrochemical

Kunming Cellulose Fibers Co. Ltc China 30% Consumer Specialtir China Nationa 199:
Tobacco Corp

Nantong Cellulose Fibers Co. Lt China 31% Consumer Specialti China National 198¢
Tobacco Corp

Zhuhai Cellulose Fibers Co. Ltd. China 30% Consumer Specialti China National 199:

Tobacco Corp
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Major Equity Investments

Korea Engineering Plastics Co. LtdFounded in 1987, KEPCO is the leading producgrobfacetal in South
Korea. Mitsubishi owns the remaining 50% of KEP®&E&PCO operates a 55,000a annual capacity POM plant
Ulsan, South Korea and participates with Polyptastind Mitsubishi Gas Chemical Company Inc. in ddvscale
60,000 metric ton POM facility in Nantong, China.

Polyplastics Co., Ltd. Polyplastics is a leading supplier of enginegyadtics in the Asia-Pacific region.
Polyplastics’ principal production facilities ar@chted in Japan, Taiwan, Malaysia and China. Weae|
Polyplastics is the largest producer and markdt®QM in the Asia-Pacific region.

Fortron Industries LLC. Fortron Industries LLC is a leading global produof PPS. Production facilities are
located in Wilmington, North Carolina. We believertfon has the leading technology in linear polymer
applications.

Major Cost Investments

National Methanol Co. (Ibn Sina)With production facilities in Saudi Arabia, Nat@ Methanol Co.
represents approximately 2% of the world’s methgmotuction capacity and is the world’s eighth &sigproducer
of MTBE. Methanol and MTBE are key global commodityemical products. We indirectly own a 25% intenes
National Methanol Co., with the remainder held B\BBC (50%) and Texas Eastern Arabian Corporatiash
(25%). SABIC has responsibility for all product rketing.

China Acetate Products Venture$Ve hold approximately 30% ownership interest®43ibard representatio
in three separate Acetate Products productionientit China: the Nantong, Kunming and Zhuhai Gedla Fiber
Companies. In each instance, Chinese state-owrtiigg®control the remainder. The ventures fundestments
using operating cash flows.

These cost investments in which we own greater $h20% ownership interest are accounted for uridecost
method of accounting because we cannot exerciadisant influence, are not involved in the dayeay operation
and are unable to obtain timely financial inforratprepared in accordance with US generally acdegteounting
principles (“US GAAP”) from these entities.

Other Equity Investments

InfraServs. We hold ownership interests in several Infralgoups located in Germany. InfraServs own and
develop industrial parks and provide on-site gereard administrative support to tenants.

Other Investments

In March 2007, we entered into a strategic partipraith Accsys Technologies PLC (“Accsys”), ansl it
subsidiary, Titan Wood, to become the exclusivepiapof acetyl products to Titan Wood'’s technoldigpgnsees
for use in wood acetylation. In connection wittstpartnership, in May 2007, we acquired 8,115, 8&8es of
Accsys’ common stock representing approximatelp%4f the total voting shares of Accsys for €22l
($30 million). The investment is treated as an labde-for-sale security and is included as a corepbof current
Other assets on our consolidated balance shediio@ember 20, 2007, we, along with Accsys, annouticatiwe
agreed to amend our business arrangements satttatempany will have a nonexclusive “at-will” tiag and
supply relationship to give both companies gretaibility. As part of this amendment, we have #iglity to sell
our common stock ownership in Accsys through aridydlacement of our Accsys shares. As of Decerither
2007, we sold 1,238,016 shares of Accsys’ commacksior approximately €4 million ($6 million), whicresulted
in a gain of approximately $1 million. In Januag038, we sold an additional 1,375,573 shares of y&a@ommon
stock for approximately €3 million ($5 million).

Raw Materials and Energy

We purchase a variety of raw materials from souirc@sany countries for use in our production preess We
have a policy of maintaining, when available, nplétisources of supply for materials. However, sofmaur
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individual plants may have single sources of sufp@hsome of their raw materials, such as carbonagrie, steam
and acetaldehyde. Although we have been able @robufficient supplies of raw materials, there bamo
assurance that unforeseen developments will nettdur raw material supply. Even if we have midtigources of
supply for a raw material, there can be no asser#mat these sources can make up for the lossnafi@r supplier.
There cannot be any guarantee that profitability wat be affected should we be required to quadidigitional
sources of supply in the event of the loss of a sapplier. In addition, the price of raw materiasies, often
substantially, from year to year.

A substantial portion of our products and raw materare commodities whose prices fluctuate as atark
supply/demand fundamentals change. Our producdiaititfes rely largely on coal, fuel oil, naturaedgand
electricity for energy. Most of the raw materiats bur European operations are centrally purchbagealir
subsidiary, which also buys raw materials on bebfthird parties. We manage our exposure throbgtuse of
derivative instruments and forward purchase cotgrie commodity price hedging, entering into lalegm supply
agreements and multi-year purchasing and salesmagrgs. As of December 31, 2007, we did not hayeopan
commodity financial derivative contracts. See N@&esd 23 to the consolidated financial statemfemtadditional
information.

We also currently purchase and lease suppliesrausaprecious metals, such as rhodium, used afysts for
the manufacture of chemical products. With grondegnand for these precious metals, most notablyan t
automotive industry, the cost to purchase or I¢fasse precious metals has increased, caused lyytaghin
supply. For precious metals, the leases are dis&ibbetween a minimum of three lessors per proahutiare
divided into several contracts. Although we seeéffset increases in raw material prices with cgpmnding
increases in the prices of our products, we mayaable to do so, and there may be periods whenmoeduct
price increases lag behind raw material cost irsaga

Research and Development

All of our businesses conduct research and devedoparctivities to increase competitiveness. Ouimasses
are innovation-oriented and conduct research aneloiement activities to develop new, and optimizisténg,
production technologies, as well as to develop cencially viable new products and applications. Vuasider the
amount spent during each of the last three fiseatyon research and development activities talegquate to drive
our growth programs.

Intellectual Property

We attach great importance to patents, trademegisirights and product designs in order to proteict
investment in research and development, manufagtamnd marketing. Our policy is to seek the wigestsible
protection for significant product and process dgwments in our major markets. Patents may coveuymts,
processes, intermediate products and product Wseslso seek to register trademarks extensivetyrasans of
protecting the brand names of our products, whielmdb names become more important once the corrdsmpn
patents have expired. We protect our trademarksoigly against infringement and also seek to tegdesign
protection where appropriate.

In most industrial countries, patent protectiorsexfor new substances and formulations, as wétrasnique
applications and production processes. Howeveaveusiness in regions of the world where intellatproperty
protection may be limited and difficult to enfor&¥e maintain strict information security policiasdsprocedures
wherever we do business. Such information secpdtigies and procedures include data encryptionfrots over
the disclosure and safekeeping of confidentialrimiation, as well as employee awareness trainingebieer, we
monitor our competitors and vigorously challengteptiand trademark infringement. For example, Acety
Intermediates maintains a strict patent enforcersiategy, which has resulted in favorable outcomesnumber ¢
patent infringement matters in Europe, Asia andthited States. We are currently pursuing a nuroberatters
relating to the infringement of our acetic acidgras. Some of our earlier acetic acid patents edpir 2007; other
patent applications covering acetic acid are ptgspending.

Neither our business as a whole nor any parti@@gment is materially dependent upon any one péatic
patent, trademark, copyright or trade secret.
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Trademarks

AOPIlus™ , BuyTiconaDirecf™, CelaneX?, Celcon®, Celstrar®, Celvol®, Celvolit®, Compel®, Erkol®,
GUR®, Hostaform®, Impet®, Impet-HI®, Mowilith ® , Nutrinova®, Riteflex®, Sunett®, Vandar®, VAntage
™ Vectra®, Vectran®, Vinamul®, Elite®, Durosef and certain other products and services namedsin th
document are registered trademarks and servicesnoftke Company. Acetékis a registered trademark of Acetex
Corporation, a subsidiary of the Company. ForfPas a registered trademark of Fortron Industries La®@enture ¢
Celanese. Vectran is a registered trademark ofrigur@o., Ltd.

Environmental and Other Regulation

Matters pertaining to the environment are discugségm 1A. Risk Factors, Item 7. Managemsridiscussiol
and Analysis of Financial Condition and Result©gpkrations, and Notes 17 and 24 to the consolidatedcial
statements.

Employees

As of December 31, 2007, we had approximately 8gt@floyees worldwide from continuing operations,
compared to 8,900 as of December 31, 2006. Thiesepts a decrease of approximately 6%. The decreas
primarily relates to acquisitions and divestitudesing 2007. See Note 5 to the consolidated firerstatements for
additional information. The following table setstfothe approximate number of employees on a coimtinbasis as
of December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005.

Employees as of
December 31,
2007 2006 2005

North America 4,35( 4,70C 4,90
thereof USA 3,20C 3,30C 3,50¢
thereof Canad 25C 50C 60C
thereof Mexicc 90C 90C 80C

Europe 3,50C 3,90C 4,10¢
thereof German 1,70 2,60C 2,80(

Asia 50C 25C 20C

Rest of World 50 50 10C

Total Employees 8,40C 8,90C 9,30(

Many of our employees are unionized, particulamysiermany, Canada, Mexico, Brazil, Belgium and Eean
However, in the United States, less than one quafteur employees are unionized. Moreover, in Garynand
France, wages and general working conditions aemdhe subject of centrally negotiated collectiaegaining
agreements. Within the limits established by treggeements, our various subsidiaries negotiatettireith the
unions and other labor organizations, such as wsrkeuncils, representing the employees. Collechiargaining
agreements between the German chemical employssiasons and unions relating to remunerationcigify have
a term of one year, while in the United Statesraedlyear term for collective bargaining agreementgpical. We
offer comprehensive benefit plans for employeesthad families and believe our relations with eoydes are
satisfactory.

Backlog

We do not consider backlog to be a significantéattr of the level of future sales activity. In geal, we do
not manufacture our products against a backlogadrs. Production and inventory levels are basethetevel of
incoming orders as well as projections of futurmead. Therefore, we believe that backlog infornratsonot
material to understanding our overall businesssiraaild not be considered a reliable indicator afahility to
achieve any particular level of revenue or finahp&formance.
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Available Information — Securities and Exchange Commissior* SEC”) Filings and Corporate
Governance Materials

We make available free of charge, through our heewebsite (www.celanese.com), our annual reports
Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, curmemorts on Form 8-K and amendments to those refilatisor
furnished pursuant to Section 13(a) or 15(d) ofSkeurities Exchange Act of 1934, as soon as rehképn
practicable after electronically filing such magsvith, or furnishing it to, the SEC. The SEC mains an Internet
site that contains reports, proxy and informatitatesnents, and other information regarding issuecfijding
Celanese Corporation, that electronically file vitie SEC at http://www.sec.gov.

We also make available free of charge, throughrernet website, our Corporate Governance Guidslof
our Board of Directors and the charters of eacthefcommittees of the board. Such materials arealailable in
print upon the written request of any shareholdeZ¢lanese Corporation, 1601 West LBJ Freeway aBallexas,
75234-6034, Attention: Investor Relations.

Iltem 1A. Risk Factors

Many factors could have an effect on our financiahdition, cash flows and results of operations.ahée
subject to various risks resulting from changingmemic, environmental, political, industry, busis@sd financial
conditions. The factors described below representpoincipal risks.

Risks Related to Our Business

We are a company with operations around the worlitlaare exposed to general economic, political and
regulatory conditions and risks in the countries imhich we have significant operations.

We operate in the global market and have customerany countries. We have major facilities prirhari
located in North America, Europe and Asia, and hldrests in ventures that operate in Germanyn&hiapan,
South Korea and Saudi Arabia. Our principal custsnage similarly global in scope, and the priceswaf most
significant products are typically world marketqas. Consequently, our business and financialtsears affected,
directly and indirectly, by world economic, poldicand regulatory conditions.

Conditions such as the uncertainties associatddwat, terrorist activities, epidemics, pandemicpdiitical
instability in any of the countries in which we oate could affect us by causing delays or lossdisarsupply or
delivery of raw materials and products, as weihaseasing security costs, insurance premiums #mer @xpenses.
These conditions could also result in or lengtheanemic recession in the United States, Europea Aiselsewhert
Moreover, changes in laws or regulations, suchnaspected changes in regulatory requirements @mfuimport
or export licensing requirements), or changes énréporting requirements of the United States, Garor Europez
Union governmental agencies, could increase theofaoing business in these regions. Any of thasalitions
may have an effect on our business and financsallias a whole and may result in volatile curesmtt future
prices for our securities, including our stock.

In particular, we have invested significant resesrin China and other Asian countries. We antieiplaat this
region will experience significant growth in thensimg years; however, if this region’s growth isveér than we
anticipate, we may fail to realize the anticipabesefits associated with our investment there amdioancial
results may be adversely impacted.

The industries of many of our customers, particulaithe automotive, electrical, construction and té&
industries are cyclical in nature and sensitive ¢hanges in economic conditions. A downturn in oneraore of
these industries may result in a reduction in oup@rating margins or in operating losses.

Some of the markets in which our customers pasdteipsuch as the automotive, electrical, constrnaind
textile industries, are cyclical in nature, thusipg a risk to us which is beyond our control. Ehesarkets are
highly competitive, to a large extent driven by arsg markets, and may experience overcapacitgf alhich may
affect demand for and pricing of our products.
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We are subject to risks associated with the incemhsgolatility in the prices and availability of keyaw materials
and energy.

We purchase significant amounts of natural gag/etle, butane, methanol and propylene from thimtigesfor
use in our production of basic chemicals in thetpldatermediates segment, principally formaldehyaleetic acid
and VAM. We use a portion of our output of theseraicals, in turn, as inputs in the production otlar products
in all our segments. We also purchase significamdumnts of cellulose or wood pulp for use in ourdarction of
cellulose acetate in the Consumer Specialties segrfike price of many of these items is dependerihe
available supply of such item and may increaseifgigntly as a result of production disruptionsstrikes. For
example, the unplanned shutdown of our Clear Lak&as facility together with other tight supply ditrons
caused a shortage of acetic acid and increasattitteefor such product during 2007. In additiorices of natural
gas and oil increased dramatically in 2007 and Z606easons outside of our control.

We own or lease supplies of various precious mesalsh as rhodium, used as catalysts for the ptmoiuof
these chemicals. With growing demand for theseipusanetals, most notably in the automotive indystre cost t
purchase or lease these precious metals has irdrazmised by a shortage in supply.

We are exposed to any volatility in the prices of aw materials and energy. Although we have agesss
providing for the supply of natural gas, ethylemepylene, wood pulp, electricity, coal and fud) thie contractual
prices for these raw materials and energy vary widinket conditions and may be highly volatile. Bastwhich
have caused volatility in our raw material priceshe past and which may do so in the future irelud

« Shortages of raw materials due to increasing demreagd from growing uses or new us

» Capacity constraints, e.g., due to constructioaydelstrike action or involuntary shutdow
« The general level of business and economic acfigity

« The direct or indirect effect of governmental regidn.

If we are not able to fully offset the effects afler energy and raw material costs, or if suchrooxtities were
unavailable, it could have a significant adverdeatfon our financial results.

Failure to develop new products and production techogies or to implement productivity and cost
reduction initiatives successfully may harm our cpetitive position.

Our operating results, especially in our Consunparclties and Advanced Engineered Materials setgnen
depend significantly on the development of comnadirciviable new products, product grades and appbas, as
well as production technologies. If we are unsusftgsn developing new products, applications aratpction
processes in the future, our competitive positiot @perating results may be negatively affectekiewise, we have
undertaken and are continuing to undertake inigatin all segments to improve productivity and@@nance and
to generate cost savings. These initiatives maypeaaompleted or beneficial or the estimated cagngs from suc
activities may not be realized.

Environmental regulations and other obligations ring to environmental matters could subject us to
liability for fines, clean-ups and other damagegquire us to incur significant costs to modify oeperations
and increase our manufacturing and delivery costs.

Costs related to our compliance with environmelatak and regulations, and potential obligation$witspect
to contaminated sites may have a significant negathpact on our operating results. These includigations
related to sites currently or formerly owned ormped by us, or where waste from our operationsdisgsosed. We
also have obligations related to the indemnity egrent contained in the demerger and transfer agneteinetween
CAG and Hoechst, also referred to as the demeggeement, for environmental matters arising owtesfain
divestitures that took place prior to the demer§er “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Firzn
Condition and Results of Operations — Critical Aarting Policies and Estimates — Environmental Llibs”
and Notes 17 and 24 to the consolidated finantadémments.
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Our operations are subject to extensive internatjorational, state, local, and other supranatitavas and
regulations that govern environmental and healthsaiety matters, including the Comprehensive Bmvirental
Response, Compensation and Liability Act of 198D0HRCLA”") and the Resource Conservation and Reco&ety
of 1976 (“RCRA"). We incur substantial capital aother costs to comply with these requirements dfwolate
them, we can be held liable for substantial fined ether sanctions, including limitations on ouergions as a
result of changes to or revocations of environmigrgamits involved. Stricter environmental, safatyd health laws
regulations and enforcement policies could resudiuibstantial costs and liabilities to us or lifiditas on our
operations and could subject our handling, manufacuse, reuse or disposal of substances or aotkito more
rigorous scrutiny than at present. Consequentijmpti@nce with these laws and regulations couldltésu
significant capital expenditures as well as otlests and liabilities, which could cause our bussreasd operating
results to be less favorable than expected.

We are also involved in several claims, lawsuitd administrative proceedings relating to environtakn
matters. An adverse outcome in any of them maythegiyaaffect our earnings and cash flows in aipatar
reporting period.

Changes in environmental, health and safety regulat requirements could lead to a decrease in deméord
our products.

New or revised governmental regulations relatingdalth, safety and the environment may also atfentand
for our products.

Pursuant to the European Union regulation on RiskeAsment of Existing Chemicals, the European Giadsni
Bureau of the European Commission has been comdudsk assessments on approximately 140 major iciadsn
The chemicals being evaluated include VAM, whichpeeduce. These risk assessments entail a multegteocess
to determine the risk posed by manufacturing amdiliag the product. In the case of VAM, we expdet finalized
evaluation by mid 2008. We and other VAM produaaes participating in this evaluation process wighailed
scientific analyses. We cannot predict the outcomeffect of any final ruling.

In a separate process, in September 2007 the EWikgogroup on classification and labelling of darmges
substances under Directive 67/548/EEC agreed tAM $hould be classified in the EU as showing lirdividenc
of a carcinogenic effect (category 3 carcinogehjs Elassification and related labelling requiretrsrould apply
only to finished products that contain more thard@0 parts per million of free monomer.

Several studies have investigated possible linksdmn formaldehyde exposure and various end points
including leukemia. The International Agency forsRarch on Cancer or IARC reclassified formaldelfyola
Group 2A (probable human carcinogen) to Group békmhuman carcinogen) based on studies linking
formaldehyde exposure to nasopharyngeal cancareacancer in humans. IARC also concluded thaetiser
insufficient evidence for a causal association leetwleukemia and occupational exposure to formaltsh
although it also characterized evidence for suchsmociation as strong. The results of IARC’s newiéll be
examined by government agencies with responsiliditsetting worker and environmental exposuredsdiatis and
labeling requirements. We are a producer of foretayde and plastics derived from formaldehyde. Vée ar
participating together with other producers andsigethe evaluations of these findings. We cammetlict the final
effect of IARC’s reclassification.

The Registration, Evaluation, Authorization and tReson of Chemicals (“REACH”), a chemicals policy
became effective in the European Union on Jun®Q72REACH established a system to register antliatea
chemicals manufactured in, or imported to, the Baam Union. Additional testing, documentation asfl r
assessments of various chemicals will occur adtesshemical industry. Some chemical products nzeho be
taken off the market. As a result of REACH, we léeely to incur additional costs to test, documantl register
products used and/or manufactured by us. In addipiotential litigation arising from REACH may adsely affect
our operations and financial results by imposirgeotadditional costs on us andfestricting our ability to import ¢
export certain chemical products.

Other pending initiatives will potentially requitexicological testing and risk assessments of &waltiety of
chemicals, including chemicals used or producedsylhese initiatives include the Voluntary Chiluee
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Chemical Evaluation Program and High Productionuvied Chemical Initiative in the United States, adl a®
various European Commission programs, such asuhgpEan Environment and Health Strategy (“SCALE?").

The above-mentioned assessments in the UnitedsStatkEurope may result in heightened concernst dbeu
chemicals involved and additional requirements ¢p@iaced on the production, handling, labeling s af the
subject chemicals. Such concerns and additionaimr@ments could increase the cost incurred by ostoeners to
use our chemical products and otherwise limit the af these products, which could lead to a deerisademand
for these products. Such a decrease in demand Wkelgl have an adverse impact on our businessesults of
operations.

Our production facilities handle the processing sbme volatile and hazardous materials that subjestto
operating risks that could have a negative effeat@ur operating results.

Our operations are subject to operating risks asttwith chemical manufacturing, including thiated
storage and transportation of raw materials, prtsdad waste. These risks include, among othegshipipeline
and storage tank leaks and ruptures, explosion$irsdand discharges or releases of toxic or ltresr substances.

These operating risks can cause personal injuopgity damage and environmental contamination naawyl
result in the shutdown of affected facilities ahd tmposition of civil or criminal penalties. Theaurrence of any ¢
these events may disrupt production and have aimegsfect on the productivity and profitability a particular
manufacturing facility and our operating resultsl @ash flows.

Production at our manufacturing facilities could bdisrupted for a variety of reasons, which couldgwent us
from producing enough of our products to maintairuo sales and satisfy our customers’ demands.

A disruption in production at our manufacturingiféies could have a material adverse effect onlmsiness.
Disruptions could occur for many reasons, including natural disasters, weather, unplanned mairtee or other
manufacturing problems, disease, strikes, tranaportinterruption, government regulation or teigor. Alternative
facilities with sufficient capacity or capabilitiésay not be available, may cost substantially noon@ay take a
significant time to start production, each of whaduld negatively affect our business and finang@&aformance. If
one of our key manufacturing facilities is unaldeptoduce our products for an extended periodneé tiour sales
may be reduced by the shortfall caused by the plignu and we may not be able to meet our custonmeeds,
which could cause them to seek other suppliersekample, during 2007, production was disruptechfoextended
period of time at our Clear Lake, Texas facilitgttproduces primarily acetic acid and VAM. The dfgion was
caused by an unplanned outage of our acetic adidBetause of this disruption, the volumes of Aaetyl
Intermediates segment were lower than we had expgdot 2007 as we were unable to fully offset t |
production. Similar outages could occur in the fatirom unexpected disruptions at any of our othanufacturing
facilities of key products. Such outages could havadverse effect on our results of operatioristure reporting
periods.

We may experience unexpected difficulties in théoation of our Ticona operations from Kelsterbadb the
Rhine Main area, which may increase our costs, dethe transition or disrupt our ability to supplyus
customers.

We have agreed with Fraport to relocate our Kdisteln, Germany business, resolving several yedegaf
disputes related to the planned Frankfurt airpepaesion. As a result of the settlement, we wilhsition Ticona’s
operations from Kelsterbach to another locatio@@rmany by mid-2011. In July 2007, we announcetitea
would relocate the Kelsterbach, Germany businefisetéioechst Industrial Park in the Rhine Main at®zer a
five-year period, Fraport will pay Ticona a tot&k®70 million to offset the costs associated wiith transition of
the business from its current location and thewlk®f the Kelsterbach plant. While the settlensed related
payment amount are meant to be cost-neutral amdsept the actual amount we will require to sedesite, build
new production facilities, demolish old producti@acilities and transition business activities adaog to schedule
and without any disruptions to customer supplymay encounter unexpected costs or other difficultiering the
relocation process that bring the total costs efrtHocation to an amount greater than the compiengarovided
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by Fraport. The relocation of these facilities esg@nts a major logistical undertaking, and we neseh
underestimated the amount that will be requirechimy out every aspect of the relocation. We mag line services
of valuable experienced employees during the ttiansif they decide not to work at the new locatidhe
construction of the new facilities may not be coatglon time or may face cost overruns. If our codtating to the
relocation exceed the amount of payments from Ftagydf the relocation causes other unexpectetficdifies, our
expenses may increase or supplies to our custamerde disrupted.

If supply to our customers is disrupted for an egts period, this could negatively impact the rapah of this
business and result in the loss of customers. 8ffebts could have an adverse impact on our resfiliperations ii
future periods.

Recent federal regulations aimed at increasing satyuat certain chemical production plants and sitar
legislation that may be proposed in the future cdulf passed into law, require us to relocate cénta
manufacturing activities and require us to alter aliscontinue our production of certain chemical pdacts,
thereby increasing our operating costs and causemgadverse effect on our results of operations.

Regulations have recently been issued by the Dmpattof Homeland Security (‘DHS”) aimed at decregsi
the risk, and effects, of potential terrorist ataon chemical plants located within the Unitedé&taPursuant to
these regulations, these goals would be accomplishpart through the requirement that certain fpgbrity
facilities develop a prevention, preparedness,rasgonse plan after conducting a vulnerability sssent. In
addition, companies may be required to evaluat@dssibility of using less dangerous chemicalstandnologies
as part of their vulnerability assessments andeuéen plans and implementing feasible safer teldgies in order
to minimize potential damage to their facilitieerr a terrorist attack. We have registered certhouosites with
DHS in accordance with these regulations, howdVEIS has not yet completed its risk assessmentuosites and
until that is done we cannot state with certaihty tosts associated with any security plans thed Didy require.
These regulations may be revised further, and iaddit legislation may be proposed in the futurdhas topic. It is
possible that such future legislation could contaims that are more restrictive than what hasntgcbeen passed
and which would be more costly to us. We cannadlipteéhe final form of currently pending legislatiocor other
related legislation that may be passed and cariggamo assurance that such legislation will notehan adverse
effect on our results of operations in a futureoréipg period.

Our significant non-US operations expose us to giblexchange rate fluctuations that could adversétypact
our profitability.

We are exposed to market risk through commercidiferancial operations. Our market risk consisiagpally
of exposure to fluctuations in currency exchangessanterest rates and commodity prices. As welgona
significant portion of our operations outside theitdd States, fluctuations in currencies of otlmmtries, especial
the Euro, may materially affect our operating reswHor example, changes in currency exchange magsecrease
our profits in comparison to the profits of our quetitors on the same products sold in the sameetssnd
increase the cost of items required in our opematio

A substantial portion of our net sales is denongidan currencies other than the US dollar. In amsolidated
financial statements, we translate our local cuydimancial results into US dollars based on ageraxchange rat
prevailing during a reporting period or the exchangte at the end of that period. During times strangthening
US dollar, at a constant level of business, ouorteyl international sales, earnings, assets abitities will be
reduced because the local currency will transtatte fewer US dollars.

In addition to currency translation risks, we ineucurrency transaction risk whenever one of oeratng
subsidiaries enters into either a purchase ores $elnsaction using a currency different fromaperating
subsidiary’s functional currency. Given the vol&tibf exchange rates, we may not be able to manageurrency
transaction and translation risks effectively, anthtility in currency exchange rates may exposefimancial
condition or results of operations to a significadtlitional risk. Since a portion of our indebtesies and will be
denominated in currencies other than US dollaveeakening of the US dollar could make it more difft for us to
repay our indebtedness.
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We use financial instruments to hedge our expasufereign currency fluctuations, but we cannotrgngéee
that our hedging strategies will be effective. &alto effectively manage these risks could havaduerse impact
on our financial position, results of operations aash flows.

Significant changes in pension fund investment pemfnance or assumptions relating to pension costsyrhave
a material effect on the valuation of pension obditions, the funded status of pension plans, and @&nsion
cost.

The cost of our pension plans is incurred over lpagods of time and involve many uncertaintiesrayithose
periods of time. Our funding policy for pensionipdas to accumulate plan assets that, over theriomgwill
approximate the present value of projected benbfigations. Our pension cost is materially affedby the
discount rate used to measure pension obligatibaedevel of plan assets available to fund thodigations at the
measurement date and the expected long-term rageush on plan assets. Significant changes insitment
performance or a change in the portfolio mix ofésted assets can result in corresponding increasedecreases
the valuation of plan assets, particularly equétgwsities, or in a change of the expected ratetofin on plan assets.
A change in the discount rate would result in ai$icant increase or decrease in the valuationeoisgon
obligations, affecting the reported funded stafusus pension plans as well as the net periodisjmencost in the
following fiscal years. In recent years, an extehderation strategy in the asset portfolio has begrlemented to
minimize the influence of liability volatility dut interest rate movements. Similarly, change$fiénexpected return
on plan assets can result in significant changéiseimet periodic pension cost for subsequentlfisears. If the
value of our pension fund’s portfolio declines oed not perform as expected or if our experientle thie fund
leads us to change our assumptions regarding tfig fue may be required to contribute additionaiteqfo the
fund.

Our future success will depend in part on our alylito protect our intellectual property rights. Ounability to
enforce these rights could reduce our ability to m&ain our market position and our profit margins.

We attach great importance to patents, trademedksrights and product designs in order to prodect
investment in research and development, manufagtamnd marketing. Our policy is to seek the wigestsible
protection for significant product and process dgwments in our major markets. Patents may coveuymts,
processes, intermediate products and product Bsetection for individual products extends for vagyperiods in
accordance with the date of patent applicationdiland the legal life of patents in the variousrtoas. The
protection afforded, which may also vary from coyrid country, depends upon the type of patentisnstope of
coverage. As patents expire, the products and gsesadescribed and claimed in those patents begenesally
available for use by the public. We also seek gister trademarks extensively as a means of pintgtiie brand
names of our products, which brand names become mmportant once the corresponding patents havieeskOui
continued growth strategy may bring us to regidinthe world where intellectual property protectimay be limited
and difficult to enforce. If we are not successfuprotecting our trademark or patent rights, @wenues, results of
operations and cash flows may be adversely affected

Provisions in our second amended and restated fiegte of incorporation and second amended and setstl
bylaws, as well as any shareholders’ rights plamayrdiscourage a takeover attempt.

Provisions contained in our second amended andteglstertificate of incorporation and bylaws comlake it
more difficult for a third party to acquire us, evié doing so might be beneficial to our sharehadd®rovisions of
our second amended and restated certificate ofpocation and bylaws impose various procedurala@hdr
requirements, which could make it more difficult &hareholders to effect certain corporate actibosexample,
our second amended and restated certificate ofpocation authorizes our Board of Directors to dueiae the
rights, preferences, privileges and restrictionaroésued series of preferred stock, without artg wo action by our
shareholders. Thus, our Board of Directors canaisth and issue shares of preferred stock withngotir
conversion rights that could adversely affect theng or other rights of holders of our Series Anroon stock.
These rights may have the effect of delaying oemlgiy a change of control of our company. In a@ddita change
of control of our company may be delayed or detea®a result of our having three classes of dire¢each class
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elected for a three year term) or as a result pfstuareholders’ rights plan that our Board of Dioes may adopt.
These provisions could limit the price that cerfawestors might be willing to pay in the future &hares of our
Series A common stock.

Risks Related to the Acquisition of CAG

The amounts of the fair cash compensation and oéthuaranteed annual payment offered under the
domination and profit and loss transfer agreemefibpmination Agreement”) may be increased, which may
further reduce the funds the Purchaser can otherimake available to us.

Several minority shareholders of CAG have initiatpédcial award proceedings seeking the court’evewif
the amounts of the fair cash compensation andeofjttaranteed annual payment offered under the Catioin
Agreement. On March 14, 2005, the Frankfurt Distourt dismissed on grounds of inadmissibility thetions of
all minority shareholders regarding the initiatimithese special award proceedings. In January,288@rankfurt
Higher District Court ruled that the appeals weatmsible, and the proceedings will therefore qardi On
December 12, 2006, the Frankfurt District Court@pged an expert to help determine the value of CA&a resul
of these proceedings, the amounts of the fair casfpensation and of the guaranteed annual payroatd be
increased by the court, and the Purchaser woutddpgred to make such payments within two monther dlfie
publication of the court’s ruling. Any such increamay be substantial. All minority shareholders ldde entitled
to claim the respective higher amounts. This mayce the funds the Purchaser can make availabig amd,
accordingly, diminish our ability to make paymeatsour indebtedness. See Notes 2 and 24 to thelasted
financial statements for further information.

The Purchaser may be required to compensate CAGdonual losses, which may reduce the funds the
Purchaser can otherwise make available to us.

Under the Domination Agreement, the Purchasergsired, among other things, to compensate CAGrigr a
annual loss incurred, determined in accordance @éfman accounting requirements, by CAG at thecéide
fiscal year in which the loss was incurred. Thiigaiion to compensate CAG for annual losses vpiplg during the
entire term of the Domination Agreement. If CAGung losses during any period of the operative tafrthe
Domination Agreement and if such losses lead taratual loss of CAG at the end of any given fiseryduring
the term of the Domination Agreement, the Purchagiébe obligated to make a corresponding cashmgat to
CAG to the extent that the respective annual les®t fully compensated for by the dissolution affjp reserves
accrued at the level of CAG during the term of Breemination Agreement. The Purchaser may be ahledace or
avoid cash payments to CAG by off-setting againshdoss compensation claims by CAG any valuable
counterclaims against CAG that the Purchaser mag.Hfthe Purchaser is obligated to make cash eaysito
CAG to cover an annual loss, we may not have safftdunds to make payments on our indebtedness dwhe
and, unless the Purchaser is able to obtain funds & source other than annual profits of CAG,Rhechaser may
not be able to satisfy its obligation to fund ssblortfall. See Note 2 to the consolidated finansfatements.

We and two of our subsidiaries have taken on cemtabligations with respect to the Purchaser’s
obligation under the Domination Agreement and inmrmpany indebtedness to CAG, which may diminish our
ability to make payments on our indebtedness.

Our subsidiaries, Celanese International Holdingselmbourg S.a r.l. (“CIH"), formerly Celanese Caylu
Holdings Luxembourg S.C.A., and Celanese US, hack agreed to provide the Purchaser with finansmthat
the Purchaser is at all times in a position to detafy meet its obligations under, or in connectidth, the
Domination Agreement. In addition, Celanese hasantaed (i) that the Purchaser will meet its oliiggaunder the
Domination Agreement to compensate CAG for any ahloss incurred by CAG during the term of the Doation
Agreement; and (ii) the repayment of all existingercompany indebtedness of Celanese’s subsidiariés\G.
Further, under the terms of Celanasglarantee, in certain limited circumstances CAdy be entitled to require t
immediate repayment of some or all of the intercamypindebtedness owed by Celanese’s subsidiariéd . If
CIH and/orCelanese US are obligated to make payments unelieotiligations to the Purchaser or CAG, as the
may be, or if the intercompany indebtedness owdgiAG is accelerated, we may not have sufficientfufor
payments on our indebtedness when due.
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Risks Related to Our Indebtednes:

Our level of indebtedness could diminish our ahjlito raise additional capital to fund our operatisnlimit our
ability to react to changes in the economy or theemicals industry and prevent us from meeting olligpns
under our indebtedness.

Our total indebtedness is approximately $3.6 bilks of December 31, 2007.
Our debt could have important consequences, inojudi

« increasing vulnerability to general economic ardlistry conditions

* requiring a substantial portion of cash flow fropeeations to be dedicated to the payment of praicpd
interest on indebtedness, therefore reducing aiityae use our cash flow to fund operations, ¢alpi
expenditures and future business opportuni

» exposing us to the risk of increased interest rasesertain of our borrowings are at variable rafésterest;

« limiting our ability to obtain additional financinfigr working capital, capital expenditures, product
development, debt service requirements, acquisitéord general corporate or other purposes

« limiting our ability to adjust to changing marketnditions and placing us at a competitive disachgat
compared to our competitors who have less ¢

Our variable rate indebtedness subjects us to ietrate risk, which could cause our debt serviddigations to
increase significantly and affect our operating nelss.

Certain of our borrowings are at variable rategtarest and expose us to interest rate risk téfrast rates were
to increase, our debt service obligations on ouabée rate indebtedness would increase even ththegamount
borrowed remained the same. On April 2, 2007, twautgh certain of our subsidiaries, entered int@wa senior
credit agreement. The new senior credit agreenangists of $2,280 million of US dollar denominasedi
€400 million of Euro denominated term loans due 2@14650 million revolving credit facility termiriag in 2013
and a $228 million credit-linked revolving facilitgrminating in 2014. Borrowings under the new senredit
agreement bear interest at a variable interesbested on LIBOR (for US dollars) or EURIBOR (forrgs), as
applicable, or, for US dollar denominated loansarr@brtain circumstances, a base rate, in eachphasan
applicable margin. The applicable margin for threntéoans and any loans under the credit-linked Ixéng facility
is 1.75%, subject to potential reductions as defineghe new senior credit agreement. The termdaarder the new
senior credit agreement are subject to amortizatid¥o of the initial principal amount per annurayable
quarterly, commencing in July 2007. The remaininggpal amount of the term loans will be due orrihp, 2014.

If interest rates were to increase, our debt serofdigations on our variable rate indebtednesdavimgrease
even though the amount borrowed remains the samef Becember 31, 2007, we had approximately $#i8rh
€525 million and CNY1.2 billion of variable rate debf which $1.6 billion and €150 million is hedgedth interest
rate swaps, which leaves us approximately $692anjl€E375 million and CNY 1.2 billion of variableteadebt
subject to interest rate exposure. Accordingly¥aidcrease in interest rates would increase arinterkest expense
by approximately $14 million. There can be no aassoe that interest rates will not rise significpritl the future.
Such an increase could have an adverse impactrdatove results of operations and cash flows.

Despite our current debt levels, we and our subaitis may be able to incur substantially more debt.

We may be able to incur substantial additional nteéness in the future. The terms of our existielgtdio not
fully prohibit us from doing so. If new debt, indimg amounts available under our senior creditemgent, is added
to our current debt levels, the related risks @anow face could intensify. See “Management’s Déston and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Ggiems — Liquidity and Capital Resources — Liquydit-
Contractual Obligations.”
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We may not be able to generate sufficient cashaos/ie our indebtedness, and may be forced to tatker
actions to satisfy obligations under our indebtedise which may not be successful.

Our ability to satisfy our cash needs depends sh oa hand, receipt of additional capital, inclgdpossible
additional borrowings, and receipt of cash from suipsidiaries by way of distributions, advancesash payments.
See “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Firgu@ondition and Results of Operations — Liquicstyd
Capital Resources — Liquidity — Contractual Obligas.”

Our ability to make scheduled payments on or tmagfce our debt obligations depends on the findncia
condition and operating performance of our subsisawhich is subject to prevailing economic andhpetitive
conditions and to certain financial, business ahérfactors beyond our control. We may not be #&blmaintain a
level of cash flows from operating activities sciffint to permit us to pay the principal, premiufany, and interest
on our indebtedness.

If our cash flows and capital resources are insigffit to fund our debt service obligations, we rhayforced to
reduce or delay capital expenditures, sell assetk additional capital or restructure or refinaogeindebtedness.
These alternative measures may not be successfuhan not permit us to meet our scheduled debicerv
obligations. In the absence of such operating tesuld resources, we could face substantial lityuptioblems and
might be required to dispose of material assetgperations to meet our debt service and other atidigs. The
senior credit agreement governing our indebtedresgscts our ability to dispose of assets andtiegroceeds
from the disposition. We may not be able to consatenthose dispositions or to obtain the proceedshae coulc
realize from them and these proceeds may not hguatketo meet any debt service obligations then due

Restrictive covenants in our debt instruments mayit our ability to engage in certain transactiorend may
diminish our ability to make payments on our indeloiness.

The senior credit agreement governing our indelgeslicontains various covenants that limit our tgttidi
engage in specified types of transactions. Theravs contained in the senior credit agreement tiomi ability to,
among other things, incur additional indebtednpag,dividends on or make other distributions onepurchase
capital stock or make other restricted payment&eniavestments and sell certain assets.

In addition, the senior credit agreement contam&nants that require us to maintain a specifieantial ratio
if there is outstanding credit exposure under éwelving credit facility. Our ability to meet thofieancial ratios
and tests can be affected by events beyond ouratpahd we may not be able to meet those testh. & breach of
any of these covenants could result in a defawdeuthe senior credit agreement. Upon the occuerehan event ¢
default under the senior credit agreement, thedendould elect to declare all amounts outstandirdgr the senior
credit agreement to be immediately due and payatdeterminate all commitments to extend furtheditréf we
were unable to repay those amounts, the lendeer the senior credit agreement could proceed aghies
collateral granted to them to secure that indelesslnOur subsidiaries have pledged a significarigmoof our
assets as collateral under the senior credit agmeeitf the lenders under the senior credit agredmmecelerate the
repayment of borrowings, we may not have sufficesgets to repay amounts borrowed under the seneidit
agreement as well as their other indebtednesshvduiald have a material adverse effect on the vaflwair stock.

The terms of our senior credit agreement limit théility of BCP Crystal and its subsidiaries to pdividends o1
otherwise transfer their assets to us.

Our operations are conducted through our subsédiannd our ability to pay dividends is dependerthen
earnings and the distribution of funds from oursidiaries. However, the terms of our senior cragieement limit
the ability of BCP Crystal and its subsidiariep#y dividends or otherwise transfer their assetsstcAccordingly,
our ability to pay dividends on our stock is simidimited.

Iltem 1B. Unresolved Staff Commen

None.
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Item 2. Properties

Description of Property

As of December 31, 2007, we had numerous produetmhmanufacturing facilities throughout the wokide
also own or lease other properties, including efficiildings, warehouses, pipelines, research anelament
facilities and sales offices. We continuously rewand evaluate our facilities as a part of ourteyg to optimize
our business portfolio. The following table setdta list of our principal production and othecifdies throughout

the world as of December 31, 2007.

Site

Corporate Offices
Budapest, Hungar

Dallas, Texas, US;
Kronberg/Taunus, Germal
Mexico City, Mexico
Advanced Engineered Materials
Auburn Hills, Michigan, USA
Bishop, Texas, US/
Florence, Kentucky, US,
Kelsterbach, Germany

Oberhausen, Germal
Shelby, North Carolina, USA

Suzano, Brazi
Wilmington, North Carolina, USA

Winona, Minnesota, US,
Consumer Specialties
Lanaken, Belgiun

Narrows, Virginia, USA
Ocotlan, Jalisco, Mexic
Spondon, Derby, UKY)
Frankfurt am Main, Germany

Industrial Specialties
Boucherville, Quebec, Cana
Calvert City, Kentucky, US/
Enoree, South Carolina, USA

Leased/Owne

Leasec
Leasec
Leasec
Owned

Leasec

Owned

Owned

Venture owned by InfraServ
GmbH & Co. Kelsterbach
KG, in which CAG holds a
100.0% limited partnership
interest

Leasec

Owned

Owned

Venture owned by Fortron
Industries LLC, a non-
consolidated venture, in
which we have a 50% intere
except for adjacent
administrative office space
which is leased by the ventt
Owned

Owned

Owned

Owned

Owned

Venture owned by InfraServ
GmbH & Co. Hoechst KG, in
which CAG holds a 31.2%
limited partnership intere:

Owned

Leasec
Owned
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Products/Functions

Administrative offices
Corporate headquarte
Administrative offices
Administrative offices

Automotive Development Cent
POM (Celcon), GUR, Compoundir
Compounding

LFT (Celstran), POM (Hostaform),
Compounding

PE-UHMW (GUR)

LCP, PBT and PET (Celanex),
Compounding

Compounding

PPS (Fortron)

LFT (Celstran]

Tow

Tow, Flake

Tow, Flake

Tow, Flake and Film
Sorbates, Sunett

Conventional emulsior
PVOH

Conventional emulsions, Vinyl acetate
ethylene emulsion




Site

Frankfurt am Main, Germany

Geleen, Netherlanc
Guardo, Spail
Meredosia, lllinois, USA

Nanjing, Ching
Pasadena, Texas, U¢

Koper, Sloveni:
Tarragona, Spain

Perstorp, Sweden
Warrington, UK

Acetyl Intermediates
Bay City, Texas, USA

Bishop, Texas, US/
Cangrejera, Veracruz, Mexico

Clear Lake, Texas, US
Frankfurt am Main, Germany

Nanjing, Chine
Pampa, Texas, USA

Pardies, Franc
Roussillon, Franc
Jurong Island, Singapore

Shanghai, Chin
Tarragona, Spain

Leased/Owne

Venture owned by InfraServ
GmbH & Co. Hoechst KG, in
which CAG holds a 31.2%
limited partnership intere:
Owned

Owned

Owned

Leased

Leasec

Owned

Venture owned by Complejo
Industrial Tagsa AIE, in
which CAG holds a 15.0%
share

Owned

Owned

Leased

Owned
Owned

Owned

Venture owned by InfraServ
GmbH & Co. Hoechst KG, in
which CAG holds a 31.2%
Limited partnership intere:
Leasec

Owned

Owned
Leasec
Leased

Leasec

Venture owned by Complejo
Industrial Tagsa AlE, in
which CAG holds a 15.0%
share

@) Acquired in the January 2007 Acetate Products lechdcquisition

Products/Functions

Conventional emulsions, Vinyl acetate
ethylene emulsions

Vinyl acetate ethylene emulsio
PVOH, Polyvinyl acetat

Vinyl acetate ethylene emulsions,
Conventional emulsior

Vinyl acetate ethylene emulsions,
Conventional emulsior

PVOH

Conventional emulsior

Vinyl acetate ethylene emulsions,
Conventional emulsions, PVOH

Conventional emulsions, Vinyl acetate
ethylene emulsion
Conventional emulsions, Vinyl acetate
ethylene emulsion

Butyl acetate, Iso-butylacetate,
Propylacetate, VAM, Carboxylic acic
n/i- Butyraldehyde, Butyl alcohols,
Propionaldehyde, Propyl alcof
Formaldehyde, Polyol

Acetic anhydride, Acetone derivatives,
Ethyl acetate, VAM, Methyl amine
Acetic acid, VAM

Acetaldehyde, VAM, Butyl acetate

Acetic acid, Acetic anhydrid

Acetic acid, Acetic anhydride, Ethyl
acetate

Acetic acid, VAM

Acetic anhydride

Acetic acid, Butyl acetate, Ethyl
acetate, VAM

Acetic acid

VAM

Polyplastics has its principal production faciktie Japan, Taiwan and Malaysia. KEPCO has it<iméh
production facilities in South Korea. Our Acetytédrmediates segment has ventures with manufacttauilifies in
Saudi Arabia and Germany and our Consumer Spasaldgment has three ventures with productiontfasiin

China.
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We believe that our current facilities and thosewf consolidated subsidiaries are adequate to theet
requirements of our present and foreseeable fafoeeations. We continue to review our capacity ireguents as
part of our strategy to maximize our global mantifang efficiency.

For information on environmental issues associaii#ltl our properties, see “Business — Environmeatsl
Other Regulation” and “Management’s Discussion Andlysis of Financial Condition and Results of Cgiiems —
Liquidity and Capital Resources — Environmental tdeg.” Additional information with respect to ouroperty,
plant and equipment, and leases is contained ie\b@ and 22 to the consolidated financial statésnen

Item 3. Legal Proceeding:

We are involved in a number of legal proceedingaslits and claims incidental to the normal conddcur
business, relating to such matters as produclitigbantitrust, past waste disposal practices ieahelase of chemicals
into the environment. While it is impossible atsttime to determine with certainty the ultimateamme of these
proceedings, lawsuits and claims, we believe, bagdatie advice of legal counsel, that adequateigions have
been made and that the ultimate outcomes will agela material adverse effect on our financialtfmsi but may
have a material adverse effect on the results efatjpns or cash flows in any given accountingquerSee Note 24
to the consolidated financial statements for awdision of legal proceedings.

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a VVote of Security Hold¢

No matters were submitted to a vote of securitgéd during the fourth quarter of 2007.
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PART Il

Item 5. Market for the Registrar's Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters argslier Purchases of
Equity Securities

Market Information
Our Series A common stock has traded on the New $tock Exchange under the symbol “CE” since
January 21, 2005. The closing sale price of ouieS& common stock, as reported by the New Yorklsto

Exchange, on February 20, 2008 was $40.78. Thewoiy table sets forth the high and low intradagsgrices pe
share of our common stock, as reported by the Newk $tock Exchange, for the periods indicated.

Price Range
High Low

2007

Quarter ended March 31, 20 $32.00 $24.5(
Quarter ended June 30, 2C $39.4:  $30.5¢
Quarter ended September 30, 2! $42.4¢  $30.7(
Quarter ended December 31, 2( $44.77  $35.1¢
2006

Quarter ended March 31, 20 $22.0( $18.82
Quarter ended June 30, 2C $22.7¢  $18.5(
Quarter ended September 30, 2! $20.7C  $16.8(
Quarter ended December 31, 2( $26.37  $17.4%
Holders

No shares of CelaneseSeries B common stock are issued and outstan@ingt February 20, 2008, there w
76 holders of record of our Series A common stacki one holder of record of our perpetual prefestedk. By
including persons holding shares in broker accounter street names, however, we estimate ourtsbider base
to be approximately 46,500 as of February 20, 2008.

Dividend Policy

In July 2005, our Board of Directors adopted aqobf declaring, subject to legally available fupndsjuarterly
cash dividend on each share of our Series A constamk at an annual rate of $0.16 per share unigsBaard of
Directors, in its sole discretion, determines otfige. Pursuant to this policy, we paid quarterljidénds of $0.04
per share on February 1, 2007, May 1, 2007, Augu®007, November 1, 2007 and February 1, 2008samitar
quarterly dividends during each quarter of 2006 &hnual cash dividend declared and paid duringehes ended
December 31, 2007 and 2006 were approximately $ifiomand $26 million, respectively. Based on thember of
outstanding shares of our Series A common stoekattiicipated annual cash dividend in 2008 is apprately
$24 million. However, there is no assurance théicsent cash will be available in the future toypsuch dividend.
Further, such dividends payable to holders of @rieS A common stock cannot be declared or paicanrany
funds be set aside for the payment thereof, unlesisave paid or set aside funds for the paymeall @ccumulated
and unpaid dividends with respect to the sharesippreferred stock, as described below. Our Bo&firectors
may, at any time, modify or revoke our dividendipplon our Series A common stock.

We are required under the terms of the preferreckdb pay scheduled quarterly dividends, subje&egally
available funds. For so long as the preferred stenkains outstanding, (1) we will not declare, paget apart func
for the payment of any dividend or other distribatiwvith respect to any junior stock or parity stacid (2) neither
we, nor any of our subsidiaries, will, subject &stain exceptions, redeem, purchase or otherwigpeairgcfor
consideration junior stock or parity stock throwghinking fund or otherwise, in each case unlesbave paid or s
apart funds for the payment of all accumulatedamphid dividends with respect to the shares ofgoredl stock an
any parity stock for all preceding dividend perioBarsuant to this policy, we paid quarterly divide of
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$0.265625 on our 4.25% convertible perpetual prefestock on February 1, 2007, May 1, 2007, Augug007,
November 1, 2007 and February 1, 2008 and similartgrly dividends during each quarter of 2006. &hgcipate:
annual cash dividend is approximately $10 million.

The amount available to us to pay cash dividendssigicted by our senior credit agreement. Anyisieg to
declare and pay dividends in the future will be matlithe discretion of our Board of Directors arilfl depend on,
among other things, our results of operations, caghirements, financial condition, contractuatniegons and
other factors that our Board of Directors may deelavant.

Under Delaware law, our Board of Directors may dexldividends only to the extent of our “surplushich is
defined as total assets at fair market value miotas liabilities, minus statutory capital), ortifere is no surplus, o
of our net profits for the then current and/or intiag¢ely preceding fiscal years. The value of a ocapon’s assets
can be measured in a number of ways and may nessagly equal their book value. The value of @pital may
be adjusted from time to time by our Board of Dioes but in no event will be less than the aggregar value of
our issued stock. Our Board of Directors may bhsedetermination on our financial statements,iravi@uation of
our assets or another reasonable method. Our Bb&uectors will seek to assure itself that thatstory
requirements will be met before actually declariigdends. In future periods, our Board of Direstonay seek
opinions from outside valuation firms to the efféwt our solvency or assets are sufficient torajlayment of
dividends, and such opinions may not be forthcomiinge sought and were not able to obtain sucbgnion, we
likely would not be able to pay dividends. In adstit pursuant to the terms of our preferred staakare prohibited
from paying a dividend on our Series A common staless all payments due and payable under therpeefstoc
have been made.

Celanese Purchases of its Equity Securities

None.
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Performance Graph

The following Performance Graph and related infotima shall not be deemed “soliciting material” oo be
“filed” with the SEC, nor shall such information liecorporated by reference into any future filingder the
Securities Act of 1933 or Securities Exchange A&B84, each as amended, except to the extenivehapecifically

incorporate it by reference into such filing.

Comparison of Cumulative Total Return

Hﬁ;
- o

125% m e
_LL,_, L rwv"'f hﬁﬂ >

100 ¢;“*‘N'\ W-'... .-‘..--‘l

e v v v v ~ v

A

120E 5'20.'.'.’5 MBS 11498 1308 BR0E TaT SETT w207 12Eunr

|—CE SEP B0 5&P 500 Chemicals 54P 500 Specialty Chemicals |

This comparison is based on a return assuming Bl@8ted January 21, 2005 in Celanese Corporation
Common Stock and the S&P 500 Composite Index, & B0 Chemicals Index and the S&P Specialty Chalsic
Index, assuming the reinvestment of all divideddswary 21, 2005 is the date our Common Stock coroete

trading on the New York Stock Exchange.

Equity Compensation Plans

Securities Authorized for Issuance Under Equity Cpansation Plans

The following information is provided as of DecemBé&, 2007 with respect to equity compensationglan

Number of Securities to be
Issued upon Exercise of
Outstanding Options,

Weighted Average
Exercise Price of
Outstanding Options,

Plan Category Warrants and Rights Warrants and Rights
Equity compensation plans approved by security drst
Stock option: 8,125,12° $ 18.7:
Restricted stock uni 1,141,93i —
Equity compensation plans not approved by sechotglers — —
Total 9,267,06!

As of December 31, 2007, we have 950,557 shar8smdés A common stock available for future issuance

connection with the 2004 Stock Incentive Plan apedoby security holders.
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Recent Sales of Unregistered Securitie

In December 2007, we adopted a deferred compensaan whereby we offered certain of our senior
employees and directors the opportunity to defeoréion of their compensation in exchange for arfeitpayment
amount equal to their deferments plus or minusadteamounts based upon the market-performanceecifsgd
measurement funds selected by the participant.eTteferred compensation obligations may be coreider
securities of Celanese. Participants were requoedake deferral elections under the plan in De@r2b07, and
such deferrals will be withheld from their compeimaduring the year ending December 31, 2008. plda
became effective on January 1, 2008. We reliecherekemption from registration provided by Sec#¢) of the
Securities Act in making this offer to a selectigr@f employees, fewer than 35 of which were narrexited
investors under the rules promulgated by the Cosions

Item 6. Selected Financial Dat:

The balance sheet data shown below as of Decemb@087 and 2006, and the statements of operadioths
cash flow data for the years ended December 317,206 and 2005, all of which are set forth belawe, derived
from the consolidated financial statements incluelséwhere in this document and should be readnjuaction
with those financial statements and the notes thefde balance sheet data as of December 31, &tiDfhe
statements of operations and cash flow data fonitiee months ended December 31, 2004 and the thoaths
ended March 31, 2004 shown below was derived fran20606 Annual Report on Form 10-K filed with thEGon
February 21, 2007, adjusted for applicable disoamil operations. The statement of operations astdftav data
for the year ended December 31, 2003 and the akimeet data as of December 31, 2003 set forthvbbbve bee
derived from, and translated into US dollars basgdCAG's historical Euro audited financial statenseand the
underlying accounting records, adjusted for appliealiscontinued operations.

The balance sheet, statement of operations andfloaskata for periods prior to April 1, 2004 inettables
below represent the results of the Predecessochwhfers to CAG and its consolidated subsidiaiié& balance
sheet, statement of operations and cash flow dataefiods subsequent to April 1, 2004 in the tsiblelow
represent the results of the Successor, whichgéfeCelanese Corporation and its consolidateddiabies. The
results of the Successor are not comparable teethdts of the Predecessor due to the differenteeifvasis of
presentation of purchase accounting as compareidtirical cost. Furthermore, the Successor andPtedecessor
have different accounting policies with respeatdéctain matters.
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Nine Months Three Months

Ended Ended Year Ended
Year Ended December 31 December 31 March 31, December 31
2007 2006 2005 2004 2004 2003

(In $ millions, except per share and per share daje

Statement of Operations Data

Net sales 6,44¢ 577¢ 5,27( 3,20¢€ 1,05¢ 3,891
Other (charges) gains, r (58) (20 (62) (78) (28) 3
Operating profit 74¢ 62C 48€ 17 39 58
Earnings (loss) from continuing operations bef

tax and minority interes! 447 52¢€ 27¢€ (230) 62 137
Earnings (loss) from continuing operatic 33¢€ 31¢ 214 (292) 48 10t
Earnings from discontinued operatic 90 87 63 39 30 44
Cumulative effect of change in accounting

principle, net of income ta — — — — — (@D}
Net earnings (loss 42€ 40€ 277 (259 78 14¢
Earnings (loss) per share from continuing

operations— basic 2.11 1.9t 1.32 (2.99 0.97 2.1z
Earnings (loss) per share from continuing

operation— diluted 1.9¢ 1.8€ 1.2¢ (2.99) 0.97 2.12
Statement of Cash Flows Data:
Net cash provided by (used il
Operating activitie: 56€ 751 701 (62 (102 401
Investing activities 145 (268) (907) (1,81)) 91 (27%)
Financing activitie: (719 (108 (149 2,68¢ 43 (10€)
Balance Sheet Data (at the end of period
Trade working capite(®) 827 824 75¢ 742 68¢ 65¢
Total asset 8,05¢ 7,89t 7,44t 7,41( 6,61% 6,81¢
Total debt 3,55€ 3,49¢ 3,43i 3,381 587 637
Shareholder equity (deficit) 1,062 787 23t (112 2,622 2,582
Other Financial Data:
Depreciation and amortizatic 291 26¢ 267 16t 64 272
Capital expenditure® 30¢€ 244 202 134 29 177
Cash basis dividends paid per common s 0.1¢€ 0.1€  0.0¢ — — 0.4¢

@) Trade working capital is defined as trade accotetsivable from third parties and affiliates nettddwance
for doubtful accounts, plus inventories, less tradeounts payable to third parties and affilialeade working
capital is calculated in the table belc

December 31 March 31, December 31
2007 2006 2005 2004 2004 2003
(In $ millions)
Trade receivables, n 1,00¢ 1,001 91¢ 86¢€ 81C 76¢
Inventories 63€ 653 65C 60z 491 514
Trade payable (81€) (83() (811 (72¢) (612) (629
Trade working capite 827 824 758 742 68¢ 65¢

@ In the nine months ended December 31, 2004, CAGudetand paid a dividend 00£€.2 ($0.14) per share 1
the year ended December 31, 2003. Dividends paiktanese and its consolidated subsidiaries eliiina
consolidation

3 Amounts include accrued capital expenditures (sate R5). Amounts do not include capital expendiure
related to capital lease obligatiol
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Item 7. Managemen's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Conditionnal Results of Operations

In this Annual Report on Form 10-K, the term “Cedar” refers to Celanese Corporation, a Delaware
corporation, and not its subsidiaries. The terms tBompany,” “we,” “our” and “us” refer to Celaneseand its
subsidiaries on a consolidated basis. The term &@eke US'refers to our subsidiary Celanese US Holdings L&
Delaware limited liability company, formally knovas BCP Crystal US Holdings Corp., a Delaware cogimm,
and not its subsidiaries. The term “Purchaser” neféo our subsidiary, Celanese Europe Holding GnéBo. KG,
formerly known as BCP Crystal Acquisition GmbH & ®&, a German limited partnership, and not
subsidiaries, except where otherwise indicated.t€ha “Original Shareholders” refers, collectivelyo Blackstone
Capital Partners (Cayman) Ltd. 1, Blackstone Cdpfartners (Cayman) Ltd. 2, Blackstone Capital Pars
(Cayman) Ltd. 3 and BA Capital Investors SidecandilL.P. The term “Advisor” refers to Blackstone Magement
Partners, an affiliate of The Blackstone Gro

You should read the following discussion and anslgthe financial condition and the results obogtions
together with the consolidated financial statememid the accompanying notes to the consolidateohdimal
statements, which were prepared in accordance agtiounting principles generally accepted in thetgaiStates of
America (US GAAP").

Investors are cautioned that the forward-lookingtements contained in this section involve botk aisd
uncertainty. Several important factors could caastial results to differ materially from those ampiated by these
statements. Many of these statements are macroegomonature and are, therefore, beyond the cdrifo
management. See “Forward-Looking Statements Mayédhoaccurate” below.

Reconciliation of Non-US GAAP Measures: We belibaeusing non-US GAAP financial measures to
supplement US GAAP results is useful to investecailise such use provides a more complete undenstpofithe
factors and trends affecting the business othen tfiaclosing US GAAP results alone. In this regavd,disclose ne
debt, which is a non-US GAAP financial measure.deét is defined as total debt less cash and cgslvalents.
We use net debt to evaluate the capital structNeg.debt is not a substitute for any US GAAP firelmeasure. In
addition, calculations of net debt contained irstréport may not be consistent with that of ott@mpanies. The
most directly comparable financial measure presgmeaccordance with US GAAP in our financial stagants for
net debt is total debt. For a reconciliation of mietbt to total debt, see “Financial Highlights” tmel. For a
reconciliation of trade working capital to workirggpital components, see ltem 6. Selected Finabatd.

Forward-Looking Statements May Prove Inaccurate

Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financ@hdition and Results of Operations (“MD&A”) and eth
parts of this Annual Report contain certain forwbnoking statements and information relating taheg are based
on the beliefs of our management as well as assongpiade by, and information currently availalleus. When
used in this document, words such as “anticipdtlieve,” “estimate,” “expect,” “intend,” “plan”’d “project”
and similar expressions, as they relate to usrdeaded to identify forward-looking statements. 3dhetatements
reflect our current views with respect to futureets, are not guarantees of future performanceérsadive risks and
uncertainties that are difficult to predict. Furtheertain forward-looking statements are basedwgssumptions as
to future events that may not prove to be accukgassume no obligation to revise or update anyel-looking

statements for any reason, except as requiredaay la

See the Risk Factors section under Part 1, Iterfol A description of risk factors that could sigeahtly affect
our financial results. In addition, the followingctors could cause our actual results to differenty from those
results, performance or achievements that may peessed or implied by such forward-looking statetmiefhese
factors include, among other things:

« changes in general economic, business, politicdiragulatory conditions in the countries or regionghich
we operate

« the length and depth of product and industry bssirogcles particularly in the automotive, electrica
electronics and construction industri
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« changes in the price and availability of raw matisriparticularly changes in the demand for, supfiland
market prices of fuel oil, natural gas, coal, eleity and petrochemicals such as ethylene, propyknd
butane;

« the ability to pass increases in raw material jgrime to customers or otherwise improve marginguigino
price increases

« the ability to maintain plant utilization rates ammdmplement planned capacity additions and expass

« the ability to reduce production costs and imprpraductivity by implementing technological improvents
to existing plants

« increased price competition and the introductioonafipeting products by other compan
« changes in the degree of intellectual propertyathdr legal protection afforded to our produ

» compliance costs and potential disruption or ingetion of production due to accidents or other vedeen
events or delays in construction of faciliti

 potential liability for remedial actions under dkig or future environmental regulatior

« potential liability resulting from pending or futufitigation, or from changes in the laws, regulas or
policies of governments or other governmental & in the countries in which we opere

« changes in currency exchange rates and interest; iatc
 various other factors, both referenced and noteafsed in this documer

Many of these factors are macroeconomic in natnceaae, therefore, beyond our control. Should onmaare
of these risks or uncertainties materialize, ousthainderlying assumptions prove incorrect, outaktesults,
performance or achievements may vary materialljnftbose described in this Annual Report as antiegha
believed, estimated, expected, intended, planngdojected. We neither intend nor assume any didig@o update
these forward-looking statements, which speak aslgf their dates.

Overview

We are a leading global integrated producer of ¢balsiand advanced materials. We are one of théligor
largest producers of acetyl products, which arerinediate chemicals for nearly all major industréeswell as a
leading global producer of high performance engiee@olymers that are used in a variety of highueand-use
applications. As an industry leader, we hold gephially balanced global positions and particigatdiversified
end-use markets. Our operations are primarily &gtat North America, Europe and Asia. We combine a
demonstrated track record of execution, strongoperénce built on shared principles and objectiaes, a clear
focus on growth and value creation.

Sale of Oxo Products and Derivatives Businesses

In connection with our strategy to optimize ourtfalio and divest non-core operations, we annourwed
December 13, 2006 our agreement to sell our Adetgkmediates segment’s oxo products and derivative
businesses, including European Oxo GmbH (“EOXO0%50#0 venture between Celanese GmbH (formerly know
as Celanese AG) and Degussa AG (“Degussa”), to dtdweernational, for a purchase price of €480 iinill
($636 million) subject to final agreement adjusttseand the successful exercise of our option tolmase
Degussa’s 50% interest in EOXO. On February 23720 option was exercised and we acquired Degussa
interest in the venture for a purchase price of @80on ($39 million), in addition to €22 millio$29 million) paid
to extinguish EOXOQO’s debt upon closing of the tagt®on. We completed the sale of our oxo produets a
derivatives businesses, including the acquired B@étest in EOXO, on February 28, 2007. The tratisacesulted
in the recognition of a $47 million pre-tax gairhiah includes certain working capital and othewatipents, in
2007. The divestiture of the oxo products and @gives businesses has been accounted for as aftise
operation. See Note 5 to the consolidated finarst&kments for additional information.
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Sale of AT Plastic’ Films Business

On August 20, 2007, we sold our Films business DiPAastics, located in Edmonton and Westlock, Atiper
Canada, to British Polythene Industries PLC (“BR&1) $12 million. The Films business manufacturesdpicts for
the agricultural, horticultural and constructiodurstries. We recorded a loss on the sale of $7amitluring the yes
ended December 31, 2007. We maintained ownerskhipedPolymers business of AT Plastics, which cotveges
on the development and supply of specialty resmascmmpounds. AT Plastics is included in our Indakt
Specialties segment. We concluded that the saderoffilms business of AT Plastics is not a discorgd operation
due to the level of continuing cash flows betwdenFilms business and our AT Plastics’ Polymersnass
subsequent to the sale. Under the terms of théhpaecagreement, we entered into a two year salesragnt to
continue selling product to BPI through August 2009

Acquisition of Acetate Products Limited

On January 31, 2007, we completed the acquisitidheocellulose acetate flake, tow and film businek
Acetate Products Limited (“APL"), a subsidiary ofGadi B.V. The purchase price for the transactias
approximately £57 million ($112 million), in additi to direct acquisition costs of approximatelynfigtion
($7 million). As contemplated prior to the closiofjthe acquisition, we closed our tow producticantlat Little
Heath, United Kingdom during 2007.

Relocation of Ticona Plant in Kelsterbach

On November 29, 2006, we reached a settlementthatirrankfurt, Germany, Airport (“Fraport”) to relate
our Kelsterbach, Germany, business, resolving séyears of legal disputes related to the planrradiurt airport
expansion. The final settlement agreement was apgrby the Fraport supervisory board on May 8, 2804
extraordinary board meeting. The final settlemegmneament was signed on June 12, 2007. As a reshié o
settlement, we will transition Ticona’'s operatidram Kelsterbach to another location in Germanyrhgi-2011. In
July 2007, we announced that we would relocat&#isterbach, Germany, business to the Hoechst triduBark
in the Rhine Main area. Over a five-year perioggert will pay Ticona a total of €670 million tofsét the costs
associated with the transition of the business fitsraurrent location and the closure of the Kelsieh plant. The
payment amount was increased by €20 million to §6&illlon in consideration of our agreement to wagegtain
obligations of Fraport set forth in the settlemagteement. These obligations related to the hofriicona
employees in the event the Ticona Plant relocat¢aithe Rhine Main area.

Below is a summary of the cash flow activity anthficial statement impact associated with the Tiqbaiat
relocation:

Total From

Year Ended
December 31, Inception through
2007 2006 December 31, 20C

(In $ millions)

Proceeds received from Frap — 26 26
Costs expense 5 —@ 5
Costs capitalize 40 —@ 40

@ Amounts expensed and capitalized during the yede&December 31, 2006 were approximately $0.2amilli
and $0.3 million, respectivel

Expansion in China

The acetic acid facility located in our Nanjing,i@d complex has been running at full productioesatince
June 2007 and we commenced production of vinylaeemulsions at the complex during the fourth guanf
2007. Operations for five other plants at the campalre expected to begin by 2009.

The complex brings world-class scale to one siteHe production of acetic acid, vinyl acetate moro
(“VAM"), acetic anhydride, emulsions, Celstr@ong fiber-reinforced thermoplastic and UHMW-PE [U&"), an
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ultra-high molecular weight polyethylene. We beéidkie Nanjing complex will further enhance our dalitées to
better meet the growing needs of our customersmaber of industries across Asia.

Clear Lake, Texas Outage

In May 2007, we announced that we had an unplann&be at our Clear Lake, Texas acetic acid faciit
that time, we originally expected the outage to lewil the end of May. Upon restart of the fagiliadditional
operating issues were identified which necessitatedxtension of the outage for further, more esitenrepairs. In
July 2007, we announced that the further repairgwasuccessful on restart of the unit. All repaiese completed
in early August 2007 and normal production capa@gumed. During the fourth quarter of 2007, wereed
approximately $40 million of insurance recoveriemi our reinsurers in partial satisfaction of claithat we made
based on losses resulting from the outage.

Asset Sales

On July 31, 2007, we reached an agreement with@®&b& Brown, a worldwide investment firm, which
specializes in real estate and utilities developntersell our Pampa, Texas, facility. We will migiim our chemical
operations at the site until at least 2009. Progeeckived upon certain milestone events are tteseeferred
proceeds and included in long-term Other liab#itimtil the transaction is complete, as definethénsales
agreement.

In December 2007, we sold the assets at our EdmpAtberta, Canada facility to a real estate dgvetdor
approximately $35 million. As part of the agreemeve will retain certain environmental liabiliti@ssociated with
the site. We derecognized approximately $16 milbbasset retirement obligations which were tramstkto the
buyer. As a result of the sale, we recorded a gaapproximately $37 million for the year ended Baber 31,
2007.

Realignment of Business Segments

During 2007, we revised our reportable segmentsftect a change in how the Company is manageda. Thi
change was made to drive strategic growth anddomgbusinesses with similar dynamics and growtlodppities.
We also changed our internal transfer pricing mathagy to generally reflect market-based pricingalihwe
believe will make our results more comparable topmer companies. The revised segments are Advanced
Engineered Materials, Consumer Specialties, InduSpecialties, Acetyl Intermediates and Otherivities. We
have restated our reportable segments for all pgoods presented to conform to the year ende@ber 31,
2007 presentation. For further detail on the bissirsegments, see the “Summary by Business Segsemitin
below.

Financial Reporting Changes
See Note 4 to the consolidated financial statenfenisformation regarding financial reporting clgas and

recent accounting pronouncements.

Other Events In 2007

» The Squeeze-Out (as defined in Note 2 to the cafeet financial statements) was approved by the
affirmative vote of the majority of the votes castCAG’s annual general meeting in May 2006. As a red
the effective registration of the Squeeze-Out emdbmmercial register in Germany in December 20@6,
acquired the remaining 2% of CAG in January 2(

* We relocated the strategic management of the Atetigtmediates segment to Shanghai, Ct

* On April 2, 2007, we, through certain of our sulmigs, entered into a new senior credit agreenidrd.nev
senior credit agreement consists of $2,280 milibS dollar denominated and €400 million of Euro
denominated term loans due 2014, a $650 millioolkéng credit facility terminating in 2013 and a
$228 million cred-linked revolving facility terminating in 2014. Sedditional information, including tr
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repayment of certain debt outstanding prior to Apri2007, in Note 15 to the consolidated finanstatements

« On May 14, 2007, the Original Shareholders soldt ttenaining 22,106,597 shares of Series A common
stock in a registered public secondary offeringspant to the universal shelf registration staternant
Form S-3 filed with the Securities and Exchange @dssion (“SEC”) on May 9, 2006. As of December 31,
2007, the Original Shareholders have no remainugenship interest in our Compar

 During 2007, we repurchased 10,838,486 sharesdaippately $403 million) of our Series A common $toc
through various programs. We completed purchagiages under these programs during July 2007. See
additional information in Note 18 to the consolethfinancial statement

 In December 2007, we received a one time paymemgsiolution of commercial disputes with a venddmisT
payment is included as a component of Other (clsamgins, net for the year ended December 31, :
Financial Highlights

Year Ended December 31

2007 2006 2005
(In $ millions, except
percentages)
Statement of Operations Data
Net sales 6,44 5,77¢ 5,27(C
Gross profit 1,44t 1,30¢ 1,20¢
Selling, general and administrative exper (51€) (53€) (512
Other (charges) gains, r (58) (20 (62)
Operating profit 74¢ 62C 48€
Equity in net earnings of affiliate 82 76 51
Interest expens (262) (293) (28%)
Refinancing expenst (25€) D (102
Dividend income— cost investment 11€ 79 a0
Earnings from continuing operations before tax amdority interests 447 52€ 27€
Earnings from continuing operatio 33€ 31¢ 214
Earnings from discontinued operatic a0 87 63
Net earning: 42¢ 40¢€ 277
Other Data:
Depreciation and amortizatic 291 26¢ 267
Operating margii® 11.€%  10.7% 9.2%
Earnings from continuing operations before tax amdority interests as a percentage
of net sale! 6.€% 9.1% 5.2%

() Defined as operating profit divided by net sa
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As of December 31,
2007 2006
(In $ millions)

Balance Sheet Data:

Shor-term borrowings and current installments of I-term deb+— third party and affiliate 272 30¢
Plus: Lon¢-term deb 3,28¢  3,18¢
Total debt 3,55¢  3,49¢
Less: Cash and cash equivale 828 791
Net debt 2,731  2,70i

Summary of Consolidated Results for the Year Ende®ecember 31, 2007 compared with Year Ended
December 31, 2006

Net Sales

For the year ended December 31, 2007, net salesaised by 12% to $6,444 million compared to theesam
period in 2006 as increases in pricing and faverabkrency impacts more than offset lower overalimes.
Overall pricing increased 6% for the year endedebdwer 31, 2007 primarily driven by a tight globapply of
acetyl, PVOH and emulsion products, and higheraaedbw and flake prices. Overall volumes decre@8édor the
year ended December 31, 2007 compared to the samoel in 2006. Strong volume increases due to asme
market penetration from several of Advanced Engg®aterial’s key products and the successfutigtasf our
acetic acid unit in Nanjing, China helped to pdistiaffset the decreases in volumes in our Acetyéimediates and
Industrial Specialties segments resulting fromtémeporary unplanned outage of the acetic acidairour Clear
Lake, Texas facility. Favorable currency impactg®f (particularly related to the Euro) for the yeaded
December 31, 2007 also contributed to the increiasest sales. In addition, the acquisition of ARL2007
increased net sales by $227 million.

Gross Profit

Gross profit as a percentage of net sales remaatatively flat for the year ended December 31, 2(#?.4%)
compared to the same period in 2006 (22.7%). Tightdlecrease was primarily due to lower overaluutes and
higher energy and raw material costs more tharettiifg the higher overall prices and favorable ency impacts
(particularly related to the Euro).

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses

Selling, general and administrative expenses deetehy $20 million to $516 million for the year exdd
December 31, 2007 compared to the same perioddf. Zhe decrease was primarily due to the absence o
executive severance and legal costs associatedheitBqueeze-Out of $23 million and long-term inisenplan
expenses of $20 million, both recorded in 2006lirBglgeneral and administrative expenses alscedsed
$5 million due to lower stock -based compensatxpeases during the year ended December 31, 200arenhto
the same period in 2006. The decreases were padftdet by $15 million of additional expensesateld to finance
improvement initiatives and $6 million related e trevised deferred compensation plan expenses.
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Other (Charges) Gains, Ne¢
The components of Other (charges) gains, net foy#ars ended December 31, 2007 and 2006 werd@sst

Year Ended
December 31,
2007 2006
(In $ millions)
Employee termination benefi (32 12
Plant/office closure (11) 1
Deferred compensation triggered by Exit Ev (74) —
Insurance recoveries associated with plumbing ¢ 4 5
Insurance recoveries associated with Clear Lakead 40 —
Resolution of commercial disputes with a ven 31
Asset impairment®) 9) —
Ticona Kelsterbach plant relocati (5) —
Other @ &
Total Other (charges) gains, t _(58) (10

@ Included in this amount is $6 million of goodwithpairment (see Note 11 to the consolidated findncia
statements)

Other (charges) gains, net for employee termindigmefits and plant/office closures include chargésted to
our plan to simplify and optimize our Emulsions @&MOH businesses to become a leader in technologyy a
innovation and grow in both new and existing mask€&lther (charges) gains, net for employee terioindienefits
and plant/office closures as also includes charglesed to the sale of our Pampa, Texas, facilityaddition, we
recorded an impairment of long-lived assets of appnately $3 million during the year ended Decenmier2007.

In May 2007, as a result of the triggering of arnt BEvent, as defined in Note 21 to the consoliddieancial
statements, we expensed approximately $74 milkpnesenting deferred compensation plan paymenthédor
respective participants’ 2005 and 2006 contingentfits.

Operating Profit

Operating profit for the year ended December 30;730creased 21% to $748 million compared to $620om
for the same period in 2006 as higher raw matedats and an increase in Other (charges) gainsyaretmore tha
offset by increases in net sales and proceedsy/egt&iom an insurance recovery and a one time paymeeived.
During the fourth quarter of 2007, we recorded rasae recoveries of approximately $40 million frargroup of
reinsurers in partial satisfaction of claims th&t mvade based on losses resulting from the tempargianned
outage of the acetic acid unit at our Clear LalexaF facility. In addition, during the fourth quarbf 2007, we
received $31 million as a one time payment in nesmh of commercial disputes with a vendor. Alsolirded in
operating profit for the year ended December 30728 a $34 million gain related to the sale ofdlne Edmonton,
Alberta, Canada facility.

Equity in Net Earnings of Affiliates
Equity in net earnings of affiliates increased 8Pthie year ended December 31, 2007 compared &athe
period last year due primarily to improved perfono@ from our Infraserv affiliates.
Interest Expense and Refinancing Expenses

Interest expense decreased $31 million for the geded December 31, 2007 compared to the samelperio
2006. The decrease was primarily related to lowerést rates on the new senior credit agreemenpared to the
interest rates on the senior discount notes andrssubordinated notes, which were repaid in ApB07 in
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conjunction with the debt refinancing (see Notdd e consolidated financial statements for mofermation).
These decreases were partially offset by an inergaisiterest expense due to additional China filranactivities ir
2007.

In April 2007, we refinanced our outstanding depentering into a new senior credit agreement. Assalt of
the refinancing, we expensed $207 million of pramsipaid on early redemption of debt. In additior,expensed
$33 million of unamortized deferred financing ccaitsl premiums related to the former $2,454 milBenior credit
facility, senior discount notes and senior subatéd notes and $16 million of debt issuance anerag#financing
expenses. These amounts were recorded as a compbmeafinancing expenses in the consolidated istaie of
operations for the year ended December 31, 2007.

Income Taxes

Income tax expense decreased by $93 million to $dillbn for the year ended December 31, 2007. The
effective tax rate for continuing operations foe §fear ended December 31, 2007 was 25%, whiclkssthean the
combined US federal and state statutory rate of. 389 effective tax rate for 2007 was favorably acied by
(1) an increase in unrepatriated low-taxed earningjsiding tax holidays and (2) the tax benefiatetl to German
Tax Reform of $39 million recorded during the yeaded December 31, 2007. These benefits are padfédet by
the accounting treatment of recent tax law chang®&$exico. See Note 20 to the consolidated findrati@ements
for additional information.

Earnings (Loss) from Discontinued Operations

Earnings from discontinued operations primarihatelto Acetyl Intermediates’ sale of its oxo praguend
derivatives businesses in February 2007, its sbwhcf its Edmonton, Canada methanol operationmduhe
second quarter of 2007 and its Pentaerythritol (Y@erations, which were discontinued during thiedt quarter of
2006. As a result, revenues and expenses relatbdde businesses and operations are reflectedas@onent of
discontinued operations. See Note 5 to the corselitifinancial statements for the summary tabkaetesults of
operations for the discontinued operations.

Summary of Consolidated Results for the Year Ende®ecember 31, 2006 compared with Year Ended
December 31, 2005

Net Sales

For the year ended December 31, 2006, net salesaised by 10% to $5,778 million compared to theesam
period in 2005. An increase in pricing of 4% foe §ear ended December 31, 2006 driven by contistredg
demand for the majority of our products and higtaev material and energy costs contributed to thedavement in
net sales. Also, an increase in overall volume3%ffor the year ended December 31, 2006, driveaunyAdvancer
Engineered Materials and Consumer Specialties bssisegments, contributed to the increase in test. Sehe
volume increases are the results of increased mpeketration from several of Advanced Engineeredevals’
key products, an improved business environmentimfie, continued growth in Asia and continued gloimtnew
and existing applications from our Surféweetener. Additionally, net sales from Acetex ®4% million
contributed to the increase in net sales for tlae gaded December 31, 2006 as compared to $24idmull net
sales from Acetex for the same period in 2005. Abetex business was acquired in July 2005.

Gross Profit

Gross profit as a percentage of net sales remaatatively flat for the year ended December 31,82(P.7%)
compared to the same period in 2005 (22.9%). OMeigther raw material and energy costs were masfet by
higher volumes and pricing. Volumes increased fimhgproducts as acetyls, acetyl derivative prodycityacetal
products (“POM"), Vectra and GUR while overall pnig increased, driven by increases in acetyls aetyh
derivative products.
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Selling, General and Administrative Expens

Selling, general and administrative expenses isetdy $24 million to $536 million for the year ead
December 31, 2006 compared to the same periodds. Athe increase consists of stock-based compensati
expense of $20 million resulting from our adoptairStatement of Financial Accounting Standards ASH
No. 123(R) Share-Based PaymefiSFAS No 123(R)"), and $14 million related to dang-term incentive plan.
Additionally, the year ended December 31, 2006uidetl additional selling, general and administragixpenses
from the Acetex business, which was acquired ig 20D5, as well as costs related to executive seerand legal
costs associated with the Squeeze-Out of CAG shiatefs of $23 million. These expenses were mostiebby
ongoing cost savings initiatives from the Advan&sdjineered Materials and Consumer Specialties sagnaed
lower costs in 2006 resulting from the divestitaféhe Cyclo-olefine Copolymer business (“COC”) imess, which
occurred in 2005.

Other (Charges) Gains, Net
The components of Other (charges) gains, net foy#ars ended December 31, 2006 and 2005 werdl@sst

Year Ended

December 31,
2006 2005

(In $ millions)
Employee termination benefi (12 (18)
Plant/office closure 1 4)
Environmental related plant closui — 12
Insurance recoveries associated with plumbing ¢ 5 34
Asset impairment — (25)
Other @ (9
Total Other (charges) gains, t _ (10 _(67)

Other (charges) gains, net for the year ended Dieeefi, 2006 decreased $51 million compared taanee
period in 2005. The decrease was due to the absémewironmental related plant closures of $1diam| the
absence of asset impairment charges of $25 milétated to the divestiture of our COC businesstardabsence of
$35 million related to the termination of advisoomitoring services, all of which were recorded @02. The
decrease was partially offset by a reduction iniiasce recoveries associated with plumbing cas&2®million.

Operating Profit

Operating profit for the year ended December 30646creased 28% compared to the same period i5.200
This was principally driven by higher overall volemand pricing, lower Other (charges) gains, ndtpeoductivity
improvements. Also, the year ended December 316 B@fuded operating profit from Acetex of $5 nuolti, an
increase of $8 million compared to the same pan@D05.

Equity in Net Earnings of Affiliates

Equity in net earnings of affiliates increased 4i@%he year ended December 31, 2006 compared tsaine
period in 2005. The increase was primarily dueddittonal income of $8 million from the Infraserffihates,
$4 million from our Advanced Engineered Materidf#iates as well as the absence of a $10 milliossl from
Estech GmbH, recorded in 2005.

Interest Expense and Refinancing Expenses

Interest expense remained relatively flat for tharyended December 31, 2006 compared to the saind pe
2005.
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Refinancing expenses decreased to $1 million fery#ar ended December 31, 2006 from $102 millicthén
same period in 2005. The decrease was due to femed of $28 million related to accelerated amatitin of
deferred financing costs and $74 million relateéady redemption premiums associated with theéglagdemptior
of the senior subordinated notes, senior discoatgsnand floating rate term loan, both recorde20i05.

Income Taxes

Income tax expense increased by $179 million tdB$20lion for the year ended December 31, 2006. The
effective tax rate for 2006 was 39%, slightly higtiean the combined US federal and state statusdeyof 37%.
The effective tax rate was favorably impacted bgepatriated low-taxed earnings, primarily in Singiggp The
effective tax rate was unfavorably affected bydil/jJdends and other passive income inclusions ffomign
subsidiaries and equity investments, and (2) hitdeerates in certain foreign jurisdictions, prithatermany. The
effective rate reflects a partial benefit for tleearsal of valuation allowance on earnings in ti$edf $5 million.
Reversals of valuation allowance established abtiggnal acquisition of CAG shares (see Note tho
consolidated financial statements for additionfdrimation) resulting from positive earnings or a@age in
judgment regarding the realizability of the netetedd tax asset are primarily reflected as a réoluctf Goodwiill,
which amounted to $84 million in 2006.

Earnings (Loss) from Discontinued Operations

Earnings from discontinued operations primarihatelto Acetyl Intermediates’ sale of its oxo praguend
derivatives businesses in February 2007, its sbwhcf its Edmonton, Canada methanol operationmduhe
second quarter of 2007 and its PE operations, whiere discontinued during the third quarter of 2086 a result,
revenues and expenses related to these businessepeaxations are reflected as a component of dliseeed
operations.

44




Selected Data by Business Segme— Year Ended December 31, 2007 Compared with Year Eed
December 31, 2006 and Year Ended December 31, 2@@&mpared with Year Ended December 31, 2005

During the year ended December 31, 2007, we revigedeportable segments to reflect a change inthew
Company is managed. The revised segments are Aeddfriyineered Materials, Consumer Specialties,shnicl
Specialties, Acetyl Intermediates and Other Adegit

Year Ended December 31 Year Ended December 31

Change Change
2007 2006 in$ 2006 2005 in$
(In $ millions)

Net Sales
Advanced Engineered Materiz 1,03C 91t 11¢F 91t 887 28
Consumer Specialtie 1,111 87€ 23t 87€  83¢ 37
Industrial Specialtie 1,34€ 1,281 65 1,281 1,061 22C
Acetyl Intermediate 3,61t 3,351 264 3,351 2,911 44C
Other Activities 2 22 (20 22 32 (10
Inter-segment Elimination (66C) (667) 7 (667) (460 (207)
Total Net Sale: 6,44¢ 5,77¢  66€ 5,77¢ 5,27C  50¢
Other (Charges) Gains, Ne:
Advanced Engineered Materiz 4) 6 (10 6 8 2
Consumer Specialtie 4 — 4 — 9 9
Industrial Specialtie 23 @11 (12 (171) @) 4
Acetyl Intermediate 72 — 72 — 9 9
Other Activities (64) B) (59 B @ 39
Inter-segment Elimination (35) — (35) — — —
Total Other (Charges) Gains, M (58) (10) (48) (10) (61) 51
Operating Profit
Advanced Engineered Materiz 13z 14: (12) 14t 60 85
Consumer Specialtie 19¢  16& 34 165 12¢ 37
Industrial Specialtie 28 44 (16) 44 4 48
Acetyl Intermediate 61€  45€ 16C 45€  48€ (30
Other Activities (226) (190 (38 (190 (189 (6)
Total Operating Profi 748 62C 12¢ 62C  48€ 134
Earnings (Loss) from

Continuing Operations

Before Tax and Minority

Interests
Advanced Engineered Materit 18¢ 201 (12 201 11€ 85
Consumer Specialtie 23t 18t 50 18t 127 58
Industrial Specialtie 28 43 (15) 43 4 47
Acetyl Intermediate 694  51¢ 17t 51¢  55E (36)
Other Activities (699) (422) (277 (422) (51¢%) 96
Total Earnings from Continuing Operations Before &ad

Minority Interests 447  52¢€ (79) 52€ 27¢€ 25C
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Year Ended December 31 Year Ended December 31

Change Change
2007 2006 in$ 2006 2005 _in$
(In $ millions)

Depreciation & Amortization
Advanced Engineered Materiz 69 65 4 65 60 5
Consumer Specialtie 51 39 12 39 41 2
Industrial Specialtie 59 59 — 59 47 12
Acetyl Intermediate 10€ 101 5 101 11cC 9
Other Activities 6 5 1 5 9 4
Total Depreciation & Amortizatio 291  26¢ 22  26¢ 267 2

Factors Affecting Year Ended December 31, 2007 Segmt Net Sales Compared to Year Ended December 31,
2006

The charts below set forth the percentage incr@emease) in net sales attributable to each diitters
indicated in each of our business segments.

Volume Price Currency  Other Total

In percentages
Advanced Engineered Materit 9 (@D} 5 — 13
Consumer Specialtie 4) 4 1 26(b) 27
Industrial Specialtie 1) 2 5 1) © 5
Acetyl Intermediate (5) 9 4 — 8
Total Company @ 2 6 4 4 12

Factors Affecting Year Ended December 31, 2006 Segmt Net Sales Compared to Year Ended December 31,
2005

Volume Price  Currency  Other Total
In percentages

Advanced Engineered Materit 6 — Q) (2) @ 3
Consumer Specialtie 1 3 — — 4
Industrial Specialtie 1 3 1 166 21
Acetyl Intermediate 3 5 1 6 15
Total Company @) 3 4 1 2 10

@ Includes the effects of the captive insurance conigse

® Includes net sales from the APL acquisiti

© Includes loss of sales related to the AT Pla’ Films business
@ Includes loss of sales related to COC divesti

® Includes net sales from AT Plastic busint

®  Includes net sales from the Acetex busin
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Summary by Business Segment — Year Ended Decembetr, 2007 Compared with Year Ended December 31,

2006
Advanced Engineered Materials
Year Ended
December 31, Change
2007 2006 in$
In $ millions (except for percentages)
Net sales 1,03( 91t 11k
Net sales varianci
Volume 9%
Price (1)%
Currency 5%
Other 0%
Operating profit 13z 14t (12
Operating margil 12.% 15.8%
Other (charges) gains, r 4 6 (20
Earnings from continuing operations before tax amidority interests 18¢ 201 (12
Depreciation and amortizatic 69 65 4

Our Advanced Engineered Materials segment devetppsuces and supplies a broad portfolio of high
performance technical polymers for applicationumoaotive and electronics products and in othesoorer and
industrial applications, often replacing metal tasg. The primary products of Advanced Engineeretiekials are
POM and GUR. POM is used in a broad range of prisdacluding automotive components, electronics and
appliances. GUR is used in battery separators,ey@mbelts, filtration equipment, coatings and mabldevices.

Advanced Engineered Materials’ net sales incred884 to $1,030 million for the year ended Decemter 3
2007 compared to the same period in 2006 primdrily to volume growth in all major business lined tavorable
currency impacts of 5% (primarily related to the@partially offset by a slight decline in pricin@verall volume
for the year increased 9% principally driven byréased market penetration, successful implementafioew
projects and a continued strong business envirofrparticularly in Europe. Advanced Engineered Mate
experienced a slight decline in average pricingnarily driven by a larger mix of sales from loweiged products.

Operating profit decreased to $133 million for ylear ended December 31, 2007 compared to $14Hmflir
the same period in 2006 as higher volumes and &eicurrency impacts (particularly related to Eueo) were
more than offset by higher energy costs, incre@tbér (charges) gains, net and slightly lower ayenaricing.
Other (charges) gains, net increased primarilytdu&? million of deferred compensation plan experesed
$5 million of Kelsterbach plant relocation coststtbincurred in 2007.

Earnings from continuing operations before tax emgority interests decreased 6% to $189 milliontfar yeal
ended December 31, 2007 compared to the same per2@®6 primarily due to lower operating profits2007
driven by increased Other (charges) gains, neisasissed above.
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Consumer Specialtie

Year Ended
December 31, Change
2007 2006 in$
In $ millions (except for percentages
Net sales 1,111 87¢€ 23t
Net sales varianci
Volume (4)%
Price 4%
Currency 1%
Other 26%
Operating profit 19¢ 16& 34
Operating margil 17.% 18.8%
Other (charges) gains, r 4 — 4
Earnings from continuing operations before tax amdority interests 23t 18t 50
Depreciation and amortizatic 51 39 12

Our Consumer Specialties segment consists of oatade Products and Nutrinova businesses. Our Acetat
Products business primarily produces and supptiegate tow, which is used in the production ogfilproducts. We
also produce acetate flake which is processedsicetate fiber in the form of a tow band. The susftegompletion
of the acquisition of APL on January 31, 2007 fartimcreases our global position and enhanceshilitydo serve
our customers. Our Nutrinova business producesalisl Sunet® , a high intensity sweetener, and food protection
ingredients, such as sorbates, for the food, bgeesiad pharmaceuticals industries.

Consumer Specialties’ net sales increased 27%,id $Inillion for the year ended December 31, 2007
compared to the same period in 2006 primarily drikg additional net sales from the APL acquisittmmpleted o1
January 31, 2007. Net sales for APL were $227 onilduring the year ended December 31, 2007. Higtieing for
acetate tow and flake products, higher Subettreetener volumes and favorable currency impaetsi¢plarly
related to the Euro) for the Nutrinova business atmtributed to the overall increase in net satégher Sunet®
sweetener volumes reflected the continued growthedrglobal beverage and confectionary marketssd irecrease
were partially offset by lower acetate flake volmaad Nutrinova’s exit of non-core lower margirdgausiness
during the fourth quarter of 2006. The decreasgcatate flake volumes was due primarily to thetshiproduction
of acetate flake to our China ventures.

Operating profit increased $34 million for the yeaded December 31, 2007 compared to the samelperio
2006. Higher overall pricing more than offset ireses in raw material costs. Higher overall costewemarily du
to price increases in wood pulp, acetyls (usegasmaterials in acetate flake production) and aedtake as well
as expenses associated with the continued integrafiAPL. Other (charges) gains, net during tharynded
December 31, 2007 includes $3 million of deferrethpensation plan expenses, $5 million of otheruesiring
charges and insurance recoveries from a grouprgueers of approximately $5 million for partiakiséaction of the
losses resulting from the temporary unplanned @utdghe acetic acid unit at our Clear Lake, Teradity. Also
included in operating profit for the year ended &wber 31, 2007 is a $22 million gain related toghle of the our
Edmonton, Alberta, Canada facility.

Earnings from continuing operations before tax amdbority interests increased $50 million to $233liom for
the year ended December 31, 2007 compared to the geriod in 2006. The increase was driven prifigifey the
changes in operating profit discussed above andaease of $16 million in dividends received froor China
ventures during the year ended December 31, 20@paeed to the same period in 2006.

Depreciation and amortization increased $12 miltm$51 million for the year ended December 31,7200
compared to the same period in 2006 primarily drilkg the acquisition of APL in 2007.
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Industrial Specialties

Year Ended
December 31, Change
2007 2006 in$
In $ millions (except for percentages
Net sales 1,34¢ 1,281 65
Net sales varianci
Volume (1)%
Price 2%
Currency 5%
Other (1)%
Operating profit 28 44 (16)
Operating margil 2.1% 3.4%
Other (charges) gains, r (23 (11 12
Earnings from continuing operations before tax amdority interests 28 43 (15)
Depreciation and amortizatic 59 59 —

Our Industrial Specialties segment includes our Bions, PVOH and AT Plastics businesses. Our Emidsi
business is a global leader which produces a hpoadlict portfolio, specializing in vinyl acetatéfgiene emulsion
and is the recognized authority on low VOC (voatikrganic compounds), an environmentally-friendishinology.
Also a global leader, our PVOH business producessetis a broad portfolio of performance PVOH cheais
engineered to meet specific customer requireméntsemulsions and PVOH products are used in a widgy of
applications including paints and coatings, adtessibuilding and construction, glass fiber, testé@d paper. AT
Plastics offers a complete line of low-density mbhylene and specialty, ethylene vinyl acetate lyopers. AT
Plastics’ products are used in many applicationkuding flexible packaging films, lamination filnrgducts, hot
melt adhesives, medical tubing and automotive ¢argpe

Industrial Specialtieshet sales for the year ended December 31, 200&ased 5% to $1,346 million compal
to the same period in 2006 primarily driven by jmicincreases and favorable currency impacts (datly related
to the Euro) of 5% partially offset by a slight degse in volumes. Higher overall pricing, particiylan our
emulsions and PVOH products, was primarily due #okat tightness and increasing raw materials aoisish
allowed for upward movement in pricing across atlions. Lower volumes were primarily driven by tigit supply
of VAM, a major raw material used in the productafremulsions products. This was a result of tineprary
unplanned outage of the acetic acid unit at ouaQleke, Texas facility and other global planned anplanned
production outages in the chemical industry duthrgyear ended December 31, 2007. The increass safes was
partially offset by the absence of net sales froenAT Plastics’ Films business, which was divestedng the third
quarter of 2007.

Operating profit decreased $16 million to $28 raillifor the year ended December 31, 2007 compargz:to
same period in 2006. Higher prices and favorabieecay impacts (particularly related to the Eur@rgvmore than
offset by the increase in Other (charges) gainis,@her (charges) gains, net for the year endezeber 31, 2007
included $14 million of employee termination betef3 million for an impairment of long-lived assand
$5 million of accelerated depreciation expenseofarWarrington plant. These increases were a re$oltir plan to
simplify and optimize our Emulsions and PVOH busses to become a leader in technology and innevatid
grow in both new and existing markets. Other (ceaygains, net for the year ended December 31, 2807
included approximately $6 million of goodwill impaient. The increase in Other (charges) gains, astpartially
offset by insurance recoveries from a group ofgwiars of approximately $7 million for partial séiction of the
losses resulting from the temporary unplanned @utdghe acetic acid unit at our Clear Lake, Tdradity.
Additionally, operating profit decreased by appmately $7 million during the year ended December2BD7 as a
result of the loss on the divestiture of our ATS8Iles’ Films business.
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Earnings from continuing operations before tax amority interests decreased $15 million to $28iomil for
the year ended December 31, 2007 compared to e gariod in 2006 principally driven by lower opéng
profits.

Acetyl Intermediates

Year Ended
December 31, Change
2007 2006 in$
In $ millions (except for percentages)
Net sales 3,61t 3,351 264
Net sales varianct
Volume (5)%
Price 9%
Currency 1%
Other 0%
Operating profit 61€ 45¢€ 16C
Operating margil 17% 13.6%
Other (charges) gains, r 72 — 72
Earnings from continuing operations before tax amdority interests 694 51¢ 17t
Depreciation and amortizatic 10€ 101 5

Our Acetyl Intermediates segment produces and mgatetyl products, including acetic acid, VAMetc
anhydride and acetate esters. These products aeeallg used as starting materials for colorardnts, adhesives,
coatings, medicines and more. Other chemicals mextlin this segment are organic solvents and irgdiates for
pharmaceutical, agricultural and chemical products.

Acetyl Intermediates’ net sales for the year erdedember 31, 2007 increased 8% to $3,615 millionpared
to the same period in 2006 driven by pricing insesaand favorable currency impacts (particulalgteel to the
Euro) of 4% partially offset by lower volumes. Ttggupply of acetyl products caused by global plainensd
unplanned production outages in the industry agtéri methanol and ethylene prices were the drivittse price
increases. Lower volumes in 2007 were the resutiwér product availability due to the temporarplamned
outage of the acetic acid unit at our Clear LalexaF facility. However, the decrease in volumemftbe Clear
Lake, Texas facility was partially offset by theceassful startup of our acetic acid plant in Namji@hina and
externally procured product.

Operating profit increased to $616 million for §ear ended December 31, 2007 compared to $45@miti
the same period in 2006. Higher pricing, favoratlaency impacts (particularly related to Euro) and
improvement in Other (charges) gains, net weraglgroffset by higher raw material costs. Othdrdyes) gains,
net for the year ended December 31, 2007 includetiiffion of employee termination benefits and $iflion of
expenses related to accelerated depreciation expleoth associated with the pending sale of ourg@amexas
plant, and $10 million for deferred compensaticempxpenses. These charges were more than off$&lmillion
related to a one time payment received in resaiutfocommercial disputes with a vendor and insueaecoveries
from a group of reinsurers of approximately $28lionil for partial satisfaction of the losses resigtfrom the
temporary unplanned outage of the acetic acidatraur Clear Lake, Texas facility. Acetyl Intermaighis also
received $35 million of insurance recoveries froun captive insurance companies relating to theamed outage
of the acetic acid unit at our Clear Lake, Texadifg. This amount is included in Acetyl Intermetiés’ Other
(charges) gains, net but is properly eliminatediuinconsolidated statement of operations. Operatinit also
includes a gain on the sale of our Edmonton fgailft$12 million.

Earnings from continuing operations before tax amority interests increased $175 million to $69lion for
the year ended December 31, 2007 compared to the gariod in 2006 primarily driven by higher opergtprofit
and an increase in dividend income from our cogt$tments. Dividend income from our National Metilan
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Company cost investment increased $24 million duadreased earnings for the year ended Decemh@08Y
compared to the same period in 2006.

Other Activities

Other Activities primarily consists of corporatenter costs, including financing and administrathegivities,
and the captive insurance companies.

Net sales for Other Activities decreased to $2iamilfrom $22 million for the year ended Decembey 2107
compared to the same period in 2006. This decnsaseprincipally driven by the decrease in thirdtpaevenues
from our captive insurance companies.

Operating loss increased to $228 million for tharyended December 31, 2007 compared to $190 mitidime
same period in 2006. This increase was princighilyen by an increase in Other (charges) gainsmuoge than
offsetting a decrease in Selling, general and adtnative expenses. Other (charges) gains, ned¢@sed primarily
due to $59 million of deferred compensation plaste@xpensed in 2007. Selling, general and admatiigt
expenses decreased for the year ended Decemi@d® primarily due to the absence of executive issvee and
legal costs associated with the Squeeze-Out ofiii®n and long-term incentive plan expenses dd $llion
recorded in 2006.

Loss from continuing operations before tax and mifpanterests increased $277 million to $699 roifiifor the
year ended December 31, 2007 compared to the samnoel in 2006. The increase was primarily driverthoy
increase in operating loss discussed above an@higfinancing expenses incurred in 2007, partiatfget by lowe
interest expense. During the year ended Decemh&08¥, we incurred $256 million of refinancing exrges
associated with the April 2, 2007 debt refinancimgerest expense decreased $31 million duringyéae ended
December 31, 2007 compared to the same perioddf gmarily related to lower interest rates on tiegv senior
credit agreement compared to the interest ratésesenior discount notes and senior subordinategsnwhich
were repaid in April 2007 in conjunction with theld refinancing. In addition, during the year en@estember 31,
2007, we incurred approximately $26 million of maokmarket loss on the cross currency swap anéthe
denominated term loan that had been used as a lbédge net investment in our European subsidiaries

Summary by Business Segment — Year Ended Decembetr, 2006 Compared with Year Ended December 31,
2005

Advanced Engineered Materials

Year Ended
December 31, Change
2006 2005 in$
In $ millions (except for percentages)
Net sales 91t 887 28
Net sales varianci
Volume 6%
Price 0%
Currency (D)%
Other (2%
Operating profit 14t 60 85
Operating margil 15.8% 6.6%
Other (charges) gains, r 6 8 2
Earnings from continuing operations before tax amidority interests 201 11€ 85
Depreciation and amortizatic 65 60 5

Advanced Engineered Materials’ net sales incre8%do $915 million for the year ended DecemberZ2BD6
compared to the same period in 2005. The increashé year was primarily driven by 6% higher voksn
Volumes increased in all product lines due to iassal market penetration and a stronger busineg®ement in
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Europe. Improved volumes during 2006 were partiaffget by the absence of net sales from the CGtihbas,
which was divested in December 2005. During the gaded December 31, 2005, COC recorded approxiynate
$19 million in net sales.

Operating profit increased to $145 million for §ear ended December 31, 2006 compared to $60 mftiio
the same period in 2005 as improved net sales thareoffset higher raw material and energy coskso A
contributing to the increases are positive effércis the exit of the COC business (including a i in Other
(charges) gains, net due to the 2005 asset impairoharge of $25 million), productivity improvemsrénd lower
spending due to an organizational redesign. Dutiegyear ended December 31, 2005, COC recordegerating
loss of $69 million, including asset impairmentsntiened above.

Earnings from continuing operations before tax amabority interests increased 73% to $201 million tfee
year ended December 31, 2006 compared to the samoel in 2005. This increase is primarily due te thcrease
in operating profit. Equity in net earnings of affies increased $4 million for the year ended Dawer 31, 2006
compared to the same period in 2005.

Consumer Specialties

Year Ended
December 31, Change
2006 2005 in $
In $ millions (except for percentages
Net sales 87¢€ 83¢ 37
Net sales varianci
Volume 1%
Price 3%
Currency 0%
Other 0%
Operating profit 16& 12¢ 37
Operating margil 18.8% 15.2%
Other (charges) gains, r — 9 9
Earnings from continuing operations before tax amdority interests 18t 127 58
Depreciation and amortizatic 39 41 2

Consumer Specialties’ net sales for the year ebdm@mber 31, 2006 increased 4% to $876 million cen
to the same period in 2005 primarily driven by aiB#ease in pricing as higher overall pricinghee fAcetate
Products business more than offset the lower gifon Sunet® sweetener products. SunBgweetener pricing
declined on lower unit selling prices associateth\wigher volumes to Nutrinova’s major customergefll
volumes for Consumer Specialties increased sligiilyen by higher Suneftvolumes due to strong demand from
Nutrinove’s customers associated with new product launchegedl as the impact from the warmer than normal
temperatures in Europe and North America in 200@ ificrease in volumes was partially offset by loaeetate
tow volumes in the Acetate Products business, wiviete a result of shutting down our Canadian toanpland
lower sales to China, which was due to the expansi@ur China tow ventures.

Operating profit increased to $165 million for year ended December 31, 2006 compared to $12&mii
the same period in 2005. Higher overall pricinghie Acetate Products business, volume growth foe88
sweetener products and lower Other (charges) gagsnore than offset higher raw material costseloacetate
tow volumes and lower Sunétpricing. The lower Other (charges) gains, net waes grimarily to the absence of
$7 million of environmental related plant closumsts recorded in 2005.

Earnings from continuing operations before tax mmgority interests increased 46% to $185 million thee
year ended December 31, 2006 compared to the samoel in 2005. The increase is primarily due tchieic
operating profits as well as an increase of $1%aniin dividends from our China ventures receiuwe@006.
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Industrial Specialties

Year Ended
December 31, Change
2006 2005 in$
In $ millions (except for percentages
Net sales 1,281 1,061 22C
Net sales varianci
Volume 1%
Price 3%
Currency 1%
Other 16%
Operating profit (loss 44 4) 48
Operating margil 3.4% (0.9%
Other (charges) gains, r (12) (7 (O]
Earnings (loss) from continuing operations befaseand minority interes 43 (4) 47
Depreciation and amortizatic 59 47 12

Industrial Specialties’ net sales for the year endecember 31, 2006 increased 21% to $1,281 million
compared to the same period in 2005 primarily drilkg higher pricing and inclusion of sales from &ie Plastics
business. Net sales for AT Plastics increased 35 $2illion for the year ended December 31, 2006 ganad to
$112 million for the same period in 2005. The imsein AT Plastics net sales is primarily due tollayear of sales
activity in 2006 compared to five months of acthih 2005 as AT Plastics was acquired in July 2@zerall
pricing increased 3% driven by continued strong aleas for the majority of our products and incregsaw
material costs. Higher volumes and favorable cuiyempacts (particularly related to the Euro) atsatributed to
the overall increase in net sales.

Operating profit increased to $44 million for theay ended December 31, 2006 compared to an opelastia
of $4 million in the same period in 2005 as pricingreases and an increase in operating profit fileerAT Plastics
business more than offset raw material price irsgeaOperating profit from the AT Plastics busiriesseased
$17 million in 2006 compared to the same perio@0dA5 primarily due to a full year of sales activity2006
compared to five months of activity in 2005.

Earnings from continuing operations before tax amgority interests increased $47 million for theyended
December 31, 2006 compared to the same periodds gimarily due to the increase in operating profscussed
above.
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Acetyl Intermediate:

Year Ended
December 31, Change
2006 2005 in$
In $ millions (except for percentages
Net sales 3,351 2,911 44C
Net sales varianci
Volume 3%
Price 5%
Currency 1%
Other 6%
Operating profit 45¢€ 48€ (30
Operating margil 13.6% 16.7%
Other (charges) gains, r — 9 9
Earnings from continuing operations before tax amdority interests 51¢ 55& (36)
Depreciation and amortizatic 101 11C 9

Acetyl Intermediates’ net sales increased 15% {8%Bmillion for the year ended December 31, 2006
compared to the same period in 2005. Pricing irsmédor most products driven primarily by the atbtysiness
lines. Higher pricing was a result of continueesty demand for the majority of our products andhbigaw
material costs. Overall volumes increased 3% feryar ended December 31, 2006 compared to thezenoe in
2005 primarily due to increased demand in Asia. $édgs also increased due to $307 million of niesdaom
Acetex (excluding AT Plastics), which was acquiireduly 2005, an increase of $172 million comparethe same
period in 2005.

Operating profit decreased 6% to $456 million fue year ended December 31, 2006 compared to the sam
period in 2005 as higher raw material costs andrahgjas prices more than offset strong demandsubacetyl
products and lower Other (charges) gains, net.Idler Other (charges) gains, net was due to theramesof
$6 million of severance costs associated with theure of the Edmonton Methanol plant and $5 rmillas
environmental related plant closure costs, botbndsd in 2005.

Earnings from continuing operations before tax emgority interests decreased 6% to $519 milliontfar yeal
ended December 31, 2006 compared to the same pera@®5 primarily due to lower operating profitsddower
dividend income from our cost investments.

Other Activities

Net sales for Other Activities decreased to $22ionilfrom $32 million for the year ended Decembi&r 3006
compared to the same period in 2005 primarily duthé¢ absence of $8 million of net sales resultiog the sale ¢
PBI and Vectran product lines during the secondtquaf 2005.

Operating loss increased to $190 million for tharyended December 31, 2006 compared to a loss of
$184 million in the same period in 2005. The opegaloss increased during the year due to execsgwverance ar
legal costs of $23 million associated with the SqpeeOut of CAG shareholders, stock-based compensatpense
of $20 million resulting from our adoption of SFA®. 123(R) and $14 million related to our long-tamoentive
plan. The increase was partially offset by the absef $45 million of Other (charges) gains, néitesl to the 2005
advisor monitoring fee and the termination of adwisionitoring services agreement during the fitsrter of 2005.

Loss from continuing operations before tax and mipdnterests improved to a loss of $422 millioorh a los:
of $518 million for the year ended December 31,&60mpared to the same period in 2005 primarily tduee
decrease in refinancing expenses of $101 milli@wér refinancing expenses are due to the abser&28ahillion
related to accelerated amortization of deferredrfaing costs and $74 million related to early repison
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premiums associated with the partial redemptiothefsenior subordinated notes, senior discounsraotd floating
rate term loan, both recorded in 2005.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Our primary source of liquidity is cash generatexhf operations, available cash and cash equivaderts
dividends from our portfolio of strategic investnterin addition, we have availability under ourisermcredit
agreement to assist, if required, in meeting owking capital needs and other contractual obligetiaVe believe
we will have available resources to meet our liguicequirements, including debt service, for teemainder of
2008. If our cash flow from operations is insuféiat to fund our debt service and other obligatieressmay be
required to use other means available to us sugitesasing our borrowings, reducing or delayingitzd
expenditures, seeking additional capital or seetongstructure or refinance our indebtedness.&'ben be no
assurance, however, that we will continue to gererash flows at or above current levels or thatwliebe able to
maintain our ability to borrow under our revolvingedit facilities.

Cash Flows

Cash and cash equivalents as of December 31, 2865 $825 million, which was an increase of $34iomill
from December 31, 2006. Cash and cash equivalsrié@ecember 31, 2006 were $791 million, which waas
increase of $401 million from December 31, 200% Below for details on the change in cash and egslvalents
from December 31, 2006 to December 31, 2007 andiherge in cash and cash equivalents from Dece&iher
2005 to December 31, 2006.

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

Cash flow provided by operating activities decréasea cash inflow of $566 million in 2007 compateda
cash inflow of $751 million for the same period2@06. The decrease in operating cash flows wasapilyndue to
adjustments to cash for discontinued operationsaaridcrease in working capital, partially offsgtdn increase in
earnings from continuing operations. Adjustmentsash for discontinued operations of $84 milliolates
primarily to working capital changes of the oxo gwots and derivatives businesses and the shut dbour
Edmonton, Canada methanol facility during 2007 nifeys from continuing operations increased to $3@6on
during the year ended December 31, 2007 comparbdb8L9 million for the same period in 2006.

Cash provided by operating activities was $751iamilfor the year ended December 31, 2006 compaitbd w
$701 million for the same period in 2005. The ias@in operating cash flows was due primarily tinarease in
earnings from continuing operations partially offisg an increase in cash used from changes in tipgr@ssets and
liabilities. Earnings from continuing operationsiieased to $319 million for the year ended DecerBheR006
compared with $214 million for the same period @2. The changes in operating assets and liaBilitere driven
primarily by higher trade and other receivableseifby higher trade payables. The increase invablss is due to
higher net sales. The increase in trade payabbigeigo the timing of payments.

Net Cash Provided by/Used in Investing Activities

Net cash from investing activities improved to atcanflow of $143 million in 2007 compared to altasitflow
of $268 million in 2006. The increase in cash inflovas primarily due to the proceeds from the séleuo oxo
products and derivatives businesses partially blfgehe cash outflow for the APL acquisition. Adalinally, our
cash outflow for capital expenditures during tharyended December 31, 2007 was $44 million higherpared to
the same period in 2006. During the year ended mbee 31, 2006, we increased restricted cash byn§Hian
related to the anticipated payment to minority ehatders for their remaining CAG shares. Duringytbar ended
December 31, 2007, as a result of the completich@BSqueeze-Out (see Note 2 to the consolidateddial
statements) and the payment to minority sharehslidertheir remaining CAG shares, restricted castrehsed
$46 million.

Net cash from investing activities improved to alcautflow of $268 million in 2006 compared to alta
outflow of $907 million in 2005. The decrease isttautflow is primarily due to cash paid of $473lion for the
purchase of additional CAG shares in 2005, $216&anifor the purchase of Acetex in July 2005 an8&inillion
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for the purchase of Vinamul in February 2005. Thasereases were offset by the net effect of areaser in cash
paid for capital expenditures of $41 million, agnease in restricted cash of $42 million, a deeéaset proceeds
from the sale and purchase of marketable secudfi@d42 million, proceeds received for the Kelssatb plant
relocation of $26 million in 2006, the net effe¢taodecrease in investing cash used in discontiopedations of
$105 million, a decrease in fees associated wa2805 acquisitions of $29 million and a decreasbe proceeds
received from the sales of assets of $25 million.

Our cash outflow for capital expenditures were $&8fion, $244 million and $203 million for the yeaended
December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectivelyit@axpenditures were primarily related to majgplacements
of equipment, capacity expansions, major investmtnteduce future operating costs and environrhémalth anc
safety initiatives. Capital expenditures in 20000& and 2005 included costs for the expansion ofNaunjing,
China site into an integrated chemical complexhGasgflows for capital expenditures are expectedeo
approximately $300 million in 2008.

Net Cash Used in Financing Activities

Net cash from financing activities increased tashcoutflow of $714 million in 2007 compared tosslt
outflow of $108 million in the same period in 200ée decrease primarily relates to the repurchéshares of our
Series A common stock and the debt refinancingszaigsed in Notes 18 and 15 to the consolidateshdial
statements, respectively. This decrease was paiéet by $69 million of proceeds received fréine exercise of
stock options. Primarily as a result of the delihemcing, we incurred a net cash outflow of $11i8iom related to
repayments of our debt and approximately $240 anilfor various refinancing expenses during the yeaed
December 31, 2007. Furthermore, we paid a tot8468 million to repurchase shares of our Seriesiraon stoc
during the year ended December 31, 2007.

Net cash from financing activities decreased tashoutflow of $108 million in 2006 compared tosslt
outflow of $144 million in 2005. The cash outflow 2006 primarily relates to the $100 million equérd voluntary
prepayment of our senior term loan facility on Jisy 2006 as well as increased dividends paid orgeties A
common stock and our preferred stock of $15 millim2006. We commenced making common and prefeasH
dividends during the third quarter of 2005.

In addition, exchange rate effects on cash and egsivalents increased to a favorable currencycetie
$39 million in 2007 from a favorable currency effe€ $26 million in 2006. Exchange rate effectscaish and cash
equivalents increased to a favorable currency efe$26 million in 2006 from an unfavorable curcgreffect of
$98 million in 2005.

Liquidity
Our contractual obligations, commitments and debtise requirements over the next several years are
significant. As stated above, our primary sourcégefidity is cash generated from operations, aldéd cash and
cash equivalents and dividends from our portfofisteategic investments. In addition, we have alality under

our senior credit agreement to assist, if requiredjeeting our working capital needs and othetremtual
obligations.

On a stand alone basis, we have no material asthetisthan the stock of our subsidiaries and nepeddent
external operations of our own. As such, we gehevéll depend on the cash flow of our subsidiariesneet our
obligations under our preferred stock, our Seriemmon stock and our senior credit agreement.

Debt Refinancing

In March 2007, we announced a comprehensive redigition plan to refinance our debt and repurchase
outstanding shares of our Series A common stockA@it 2, 2007, we, through certain of our subsiitia, entered
into a new senior credit agreement. The new semeatit agreement consists of $2,280 million of WBad
denominated and €400 million of Euro denominatech t®ans due 2014, a $650 million revolving crddsdility
terminating in 2013 and a $228 million credit-lickeevolving facility terminating in 2014. Borrowiaginder the
new senior credit agreement bear interest at abarinterest rate based on LIBOR (for US dollarsfURIBOR
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(for Euros), as applicable, or, for US dollar deivaited loans under certain circumstances, a béseimeeach case
plus an applicable margin. The applicable margirttie term loans and any loans under the crediedmrevolving
facility is 1.75%, subject to potential reducticasdefined in the new senior credit agreement.t@itme loans under
the new senior credit agreement are subject totaration at 1% of the initial principal amount parnum, payable
quarterly commencing in July 2007. The remaininggpal amount of the term loans will be due on iRpy 2014.

Proceeds from the new senior credit agreementthiegevith available cash, were used to retire our
$2,454 million amended and restated (January 288%pr credit facilities, which consisted of $1,688lion in
term loans due 2011, a $600 million revolving créaiility terminating in 2009 and an approximag28 million
credit-linked revolving facility terminating in 200and to retire all of our Senior Subordinatedd$aind Senior
Discount Notes as discussed below.

On March 6, 2007, we commenced cash tender otfees Tender Offers”) with respect to any and alttoé
outstanding 10% senior discount notes due 2014Lar&¥6 senior discount notes due 2014 (the “Seniscddint
Note¢"), and any and all of the outstanding 9.625% sesitbordinated notes due 2014 and 10.375% senior
subordinated notes due 2014 (the “Senior Suborelinidbtes”). The Tender Offers expired on April Q02.
Substantially all of the Senior Discount Notes &sahior Subordinated Notes were tendered in coripmatith the
Tender Offers. The remaining outstanding Senioc@ist Notes and Senior Subordinated Notes not tedde
conjunction with the Tender Offers were redeemeday 2007 through optional redemption allowed ia th
indentures.

As a result of the refinancing, we incurred $207iam of premiums paid on early redemption of dethich is
included in Refinancing expenses on the accompagrgansolidated statements of operations for the geded
December 31, 2007. In addition, we expensed $3fBomibf unamortized deferred financing costs arehgums
related to the former $2,454 million senior crddldility, Senior Discount Notes and Senior Suboatia Notes and
$16 million of debt issuance and other refinan@rgenses.

In connection with the refinancing, we recordededefd financing costs of $39 million related to v senio
credit agreement, which are included in Idegn Other assets on the accompanying consolidetkece sheet as
December 31, 2007 and are being amortized oveetheof the new senior credit agreement. The dedefinancin
costs consist of $23 million of costs incurred ¢qu@re the new senior credit agreement and $16amitif debt issu
costs existing prior to the refinancing which westained and are being amortized over the terrheofiew senior
credit agreement. As a result of the refinancing,imecurred, for the period April 2007 to July 20@pproximately
$26 million of mark-to-market loss on the crossrency swap and the Euro denominated term loarhtmhbeen
used as a hedge of our net investment in our Earopebsidiaries. The loss is included in Otherrimegexpense),
net in the consolidated financial statements. Wegtated the net investment hedge as such durlpg007.

As of December 31, 2007, there were $129 milliofetirs of credit issued under the credit-linkedalving
facility and $99 million remained available for bowing. As of December 31, 2007, there were notanting
borrowings or letters of credit issued under thehang credit facility; accordingly, $650 millioremained availab
for borrowing.

As of December 31, 2007, we had total debt of #/B8lion and cash and cash equivalents of $825amilAs
of December 31, 2007, net debt (total debt lesk aad cash equivalents) increased to $2,731 miftimm
$2,707 million as of December 31, 2006. Increagewet debt during the year ended December 31, R@0ifded
capital expenditures of $288 million, foreign cuncg impacts of $91 million, additional capital leasbligations of
$76 million, purchases of treasury stock of $408iom, cash outflows of $240 million related to ireincing fees
paid on the April 2, 2007 debt refinancing and castilows of $269 million for acquisitions and redd fees
completed in 2007. These increases in net debt patally offset by cash flows from operations$&66 million,
proceeds received from the sale of businessessaatseof $715 million and proceeds received framksoption
exercises of $69 million.
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Commitments Relating to Share Capital

Holders of our preferred stock are entitled to ne&ewhen, as and if declared by our Board of Ooes; out of
funds legally available, cash dividends at the cit4.25% per annum (or $1.06 per share) of ligudtepreference,
payable quarterly in arrears commencing on May0D52 Dividends on the preferred stock are cumuadtiom the
date of initial issuance. As of December 31, 2@B&,dividend is expected to result in an annuahpeyt of
approximately $10 million. Accumulated but unpaididends accumulate at an annual rate of 4.25%.pféterred
stock is convertible, at the option of the holdgrany time into approximately 1.25 shares of anes A common
stock, subject to adjustments, per $25.00 liquistegireference of the preferred stock. For the yeaded
December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, we paid $10amjl610 million and $8 million, respectively, ofstedividend:
on our preferred stock. On January 4, 2008, weagedla $3 million cash dividend on our convertjdepetual
preferred stock, which was paid on February 1, 2008

In July 2005, our Board of Directors adopted aqobf declaring, subject to legally available fundsjuarterly
cash dividend on each share of our Series A constamk at an annual rate initially equal to appraadiety 1% of
the $16.00 initial public offering price per shafeour Series A common stock (or $0.16 per shanéss our Board
of Directors in its sole discretion determines otfise. For the years ended December 31, 2007, 200€005, we
paid $25 million, $26 million and $13 million, re=gively, in cash dividends on our Series A comrsimrtk. On
January 4, 2008, we declared a $6 million castddivil which was paid on February 1, 2008. Based thpon
number of outstanding shares as of December 37, 200 dividend is expected to result in an anpagiment of
approximately $24 million in 2008. However, thesend assurance that sufficient cash or surplusbeitivailable to
pay the remainder of the anticipated 2008 castiend.

Other Obligations

Contractual Debt and Cash ObligationsThe following table sets forth our fixed contraaitdebt and cash
obligations as of December 31, 2007.

Expiration per Period

Less Thar After 5

Fixed Contractual Debt and Cash Obligation Total 1 Year Years 2 & 3 Years 4 & £ Years
(In $ millions)

Term Loans Facility 2,85t 29 57 57 2,71
Interest Payments on De(D) 1,66z 242 45¢ 43¢ 52¢
Capital Lease Obligatior 11C 4 8 10 88
Other Debi@ 598 23¢ 77 60 217
Total Fixed Contractual Debt Obligatio 5,22( 514 59¢ 565  3,54:
Operating Lease 30z 64 85 62 92
Unconditional Purchase Obligatio 3,15¢ 74¢ 1,031 63€ 741
FIN 48 Obligations, Including Interest and Penal® 23¢ — — — 23€
Other Contractual Obligatior 44¢ 26( 81 49 58
Total Fixed Contractual Debt and Cash Obligati 9,36: 1,58¢ 1,79¢ 1,31 4,67

@) For future interest expense, we assumed no changwiable rates. See Note 15 to the consolidaneaEial
statements for the applicable interest re

@ Does not include a $2 million reduction due to jiase accounting

()  Due to uncertainties in the timing of the effectsattiement of tax positions with the respectiveng
authorities, we are unable to determine the tinoihgayments related to our Financial Accountingh8tads
Board (“FASB”) Interpretation No. 48,Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes, anrntetation of
FASB Statement No. 1(“FIN 48”) obligations, including interest and péties. These amounts are therefore
reflected in“ After 5 Year!".
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Other Debt. Other debt of $593 million is primarily made uffiged rate pollution control and industrial
revenue bonds, short-term borrowings from affilatempanies and other bank obligations.

Unconditional Purchase ObligationsUnconditional Purchase Obligations primarily irsé take or pay
contracts. We do not expect to incur any mateoissés under these contractual arrangements. ltcagdhese
contracts may include variable price components.

Other Contractual Obligations.Other Contractual Obligations primarily includesnmitted capital spending
and fines associated with the US antitrust settfgrdescribed in Note 24 to the consolidated finalnstatements.
Also included in Other Contractual Obligations 29 million fine from the European Commission tetato
antitrust matters in the sorbates industry, whichdnding an appeal. We are indemnified by a théirdy for 80% of
the expenses relating to these matters, whichtisaflected in the amount above.

As of December 31, 2007, we have contractual gteearand commitments as follows:

Expiration per Period

Less Thar After 5

Contractual Guarantees and Commitment Total 1 Year Years 2 & 3 Years 4 & £ Years
(In $ millions)

Financial Guarantee 34 7 16 11 —

Standby Letters of Crec 12¢ 12¢ — — —

Contractual Guarantees and Commitmt 162 13€ 16 11 —

We are secondarily liable under a lease agreemigichwve assigned to a third party. The lease expire
April 30, 2012. The lease liability for the perirdm January 1, 2008 to April 30, 2012 is estimdtetle
approximately $34 million.

Standby letters of credit of $129 million outstargias of December 31, 2007 are irrevocable obtigatof an
issuing bank that ensure payment to third partighé event that certain subsidiaries fail to panfn accordance
with specified contractual obligations. The lik@dd is remote that material payments will be rezpliiunder these
agreements. The stand-by letters of credit inchggroximately $33 million related to obligationsasiated with
the sorbates antitrust matters as described itQtreer Contractual Obligations” above.

Deferred Compensationin May 2007, the Original Shareholders sold themaining equity interest in our
Company (see Note 18 to the consolidated finastééments for additional information) triggeringixit Event,
as defined in Note 21 to the consolidated finanstiaiements. Cash compensation of approximatelyndifién,
representing the participants’ 2005 and 2006 cgetit benefits, was paid to the participants duttirgyear ended
December 31, 2007. See Note 21 to the consolidatadcial statements for additional information.

On April 2, 2007, certain participants in our deéek compensation plan elected to participate evésed
program, which includes both cash awards and o#stristock units. Under the revised program, ppius
relinquished their cash awards of up to $30 millioat would have contingently accrued from 2007200der the
original plan. See additional discussion of theged program in Note 21 to the consolidated finalnsatements.
Based on current participation in the revised progrthe awards, which will be expensed betweenl Rp&007 an
December 31, 2010, aggregate to approximately $fibmplus notional earnings. We expensed appratety
$6 million during the year ended December 31, 2@0ated to the revised program.

In December 2007, we adopted a deferred compengaan whereby we offered certain of our senior
employees and directors the opportunity to defeoréion of their compensation in exchange for arfeitpayment
amount equal to their deferments plus or minusageamounts based upon the market-performancecaffsgd
measurement funds selected by the participanticRemts were required to make deferral electiamden the plan
in December 2007, and such deferrals will be wilthfirmm their compensation during the year ending
December 31, 2008. This plan became effective Jsriy2008.

Long-Term Incentive Plan.On February 16, 2007, approximately $26 milliossvpaid to the long-term
incentive plan (“LTIP”) plan participants. Thereearo additional amounts due under the LTIP plas.$ate 21 to
the consolidated financial statements for additiamfarmation.
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Purchases of Treasury Stockn conjunction with the debt refinancing discubabove, we, through our
wholly-owned subsidiary Celanese International ktald Luxembourg S.a r.l. (“CIH"), repurchased
2,021,775 shares of our outstanding Series A constank in a modified “Dutch Auction” tender offenfn public
shareholders, which expired on April 3, 2007, piechase price of $30.50 per share. The total p@oe for these
shares was approximately $62 million. The numbeshaires purchased in the tender offer represepidxdmately
1.3% of our outstanding Series A common stock @t time. We also separately purchased, throughvbotly-
owned subsidiary CIH, 329,011 shares of our Sé&iesmmon stock at $30.50 per share from the investrfunds
associated with The Blackstone Group L.P. The fatiak paid for these shares was approximatelyrillion. The
number of shares purchased from Blackstone repes@pproximately 0.2% of our outstanding Seriefmon
stock at that time.

Additionally, on June 4, 2007, our Board of Dirastauthorized the repurchase of up to $330 milibaur
Series A common stock. During the year ended Deeedb, 2007, we repurchased 8,487,700 shares of our
Series A common stock at an average purchase @r688.88 per share for a total of approximatel@Ganillion
pursuant to this authorization. We completed refpasing shares under this authorization during 2007.

These purchases reduced the number of sharesrulitgfaand the repurchased shares may be usedfby us
compensation programs utilizing our stock and otlmeporate purposes. We account for treasury sisitlg the
cost method and include treasury stock as a conmpaf&hareholders’ equity.

On February 8, 2008, our Board of Directors auttestithe repurchase of up to $400 million of ourie3eA
common stock. The authorization gives managementetion in determining the conditions under wtsblares
may be repurchased. As of February 29, 2008, we tepwrchased 64,400 shares of our Series A constook at
an average purchase price of $39.86 per sharetfitaleof approximately $3 million in connectionttvithis
authorization.

Domination Agreement.The domination and profit and loss transfer ague# (the “Domination Agreement”)
was approved at the CAG extraordinary shareholdeegting on July 31, 2004. The Domination Agreement
between CAG and the Purchaser became effectivectob@r 1, 2004 and cannot be terminated by theh@ssar in
the ordinary course of business until SeptembefB09. Our subsidiaries, CIH, formerly Celanesel@aiioldings
Luxembourg S.C.A., and Celanese US, have eachdrgwovide the Purchaser with financing to stteag the
Purchaser’s ability to fulfill its obligations under in connection with, the Domination Agreemand to ensure
that the Purchaser will perform all of its obligats under, or in connection with, the Dominatiorréament when
such obligations become due, including, withoufitttion, the obligation to compensate CAG for atatigory
annual loss incurred by CAG during the term of Btwemination Agreement. If CIH and/or Celanese US are
obligated to make payments under such guarantesther security to the Purchaser, we may not haffeeient
funds for payments on our indebtedness when duéhde not had to compensate CAG for an annualtosmny
period during which the Domination Agreement hasrbi@ effect.

Squeeze-Out PaymenThe Squeeze-Out was registered in the commesgater in Germany on
December 22, 2006, after several lawsuits by mipnshareholders challenging the shareholders’ utisol
approving the Squeeze-Out were withdrawn pursueatdettlement agreement entered into betweentiffiain
shareholders, the Purchaser and CAG on the sam@daggregate purchase price of approximatelyrébiion
was paid to minority shareholders in January 2@0fam cash compensation for the acquisition ofrthleares in
CAG, excluding direct acquisition costs of approately €2 million. See Note 5 to the consolidatedficial
statements for additional information.

Pension and Other Postretirement Obligation®ur contributions for pension and postretirentmrtefits are
expected to be $40 million and $34 million, respedy, in 2008.

Other Matters
Plumbing Actions and Sorbates Litigation

We are involved in a number of legal proceeding$ @aims incidental to the normal conduct of ousibass.
For the year ended December 31, 2007, there w&en#ilon of cash inflows in connection with theuphbing
actions and sorbates litigation. For the year edlecember 31, 2006, there were $14 million of daibws in
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connection with the plumbing actions and sorbatiggtion. In February 2005, we settled with anuirsce carrier
and received cash proceeds of $44 million in M&@05 and in December 2005, we received $30 million
additional settlements. As of December 31, 200720886, there were reserves of $235 million and $2ilHon,
respectively, for these matters. In addition, weehi@ceivables from insurance companies and Hoemhis legal
successors, in connection with the plumbing antates matters of $137 million and $141 million &s o
December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively.

Although it is impossible at this time to determimi¢h certainty the ultimate outcome of these matteve
believe, based on the advice of legal counsel,atiatjuate provisions have been made and thattthratd outcom:
will not have a material adverse effect on ourfficial position, but could have a material adveffeceon our
results of operations or cash flows in any giveroaating period. See Note 24 to the consolidateanitial
statements for additional information.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We have not entered into any material off-balaf@etsarrangements.

Market Risks

Please see “Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosin@ut Market Risk” under Item 7A of this Form 10fd¢
additional information about our Market Risks.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

Our consolidated financial statements are baseatieaselection and application of significant acamm
policies. The preparation of consolidated finanstatements in conformity with US GAAP requires mgement to
make estimates and assumptions that affect thetegpamounts of assets and liabilities, disclosdrentingent
assets and liabilities at the date of the constitiéinancial statements and the reported amodnts/enues,
expenses and allocated charges during the repgéingd. Actual results could differ from thoseimsttes.
However, we are not currently aware of any reasigriddely events or circumstances that would resultnaterially
different results.

We believe the following accounting polices andneates are critical to understanding the finan@alorting
risks present in the current economic environmEnése matters, and the judgments and uncertaaffiesting
them, are also essential to understanding our tep@nd future operating results. See Note 3 tednsolidated
financial statements for a more comprehensive dson of our significant accounting policies.

Recoverability of Long-Lived Assets

Our business is capital intensive and has requined will continue to require, significant investmein
property, plant and equipment. As of December 80,/2and 2006, the carrying amount of property, tpdeual
equipment was $2,362 million and $2,155 milliorsgectively. Whenever events or circumstances change
assess the recoverability of property, plant andpgent to be held and used by a comparison ofdhegying
amount of an asset or group of assets to the fuetrendiscounted cash flows expected to be gertklnt the asset
or group of assets. If such assets are considemgaliied, the impairment recognized is measuredeaarmount by
which the carrying amount of the assets exceedfathealue of the assets.

We assess the recoverability of the carrying valusur goodwill and other indefinite-lived intangghbassets at
least annually or whenever events or changes éuitistances indicate that the carrying amount ofigidbor the
indefinite-lived intangible asset may not be fulcoverable. As of December 31, 2007 and 2006,age h
$1,291 million and $1,338 million, respectively,gdfodwill and other intangible assets, net.

As of December 31, 2007, there were no other sa@amif changes in the underlying business assungtion
circumstances that led us to believe goodwill migdate been impaired. We will continue to evalubterieed for
impairment if changes in circumstances or availaifiermation indicate that impairment may have ooed. We
perform the required impairment test at least alydaring the third quarter of our fiscal year mgiJune 30
balances unless circumstances dictate more fredesing.
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A prolonged general economic downturn and, speadifica continued downturn in the chemical industsy
well as other market factors could intensify contpt pricing pressure, create an imbalance of stigusupply and
demand, or otherwise diminish volumes or profitsclsevents, combined with changes in interest ratadd
adversely affect our estimates of future net cshisto be generated by our long-lived assets. €qunantly, it is
possible that our future operating results couldnagerially and adversely affected by additiongb@imment charge
related to the recoverability of our long-lived etss

Other (Charges) Gains, Net

Other (charges) gains, net include provisions éstructuring and other expenses and income incoutside
the normal ongoing course of operations. Restrirgjysrovisions represent costs related to severandether
benefit programs related to major activities unalezh to fundamentally redesign our operations dsageosts
incurred in connection with a decision to exit reirategic businesses. These measures are basedrah f
management decisions, establishment of agreeméhtshe employees’ representatives or individuakagents
with the affected employees as well as the puliimancement of the restructuring plan. The reledsdrves reflec
certain estimates, including those pertaining fmasation costs, settlements of contractual oblgetiand other
closure costs. We reassess the reserve requiretnargmplete each individual plan under our regtniieg progran
at the end of each reporting period. Actual expeéehas been and may continue to be different fhase
estimates. See Note 19 to the consolidated finhsizigements for additional information.

Environmental Liabilities

We recognize losses and accrue liabilities relatingnvironmental matters if available informatiodicates
that it is probable that a liability has been imedrand the amount of loss is reasonably estim&tegending on the
nature of the site, we accrue through fifteen yaamntess we have government orders or other agrgsrtteat exten
beyond fifteen years. If the event of loss is raithrobable nor reasonably estimable, but is reddgmpossible, we
provide appropriate disclosure in the notes tocthresolidated financial statements if the contingeaaconsidered
material. We estimate environmental liabilitiesaboase-by-case basis using the most current sthausilable
facts, existing technology, presently enacted lamd regulations and prior experience in remediation
contaminated sites. Recoveries of environmentdbdosm other parties are recorded as assets vile@mréceipt is
deemed probable. See also Note 17 to the consadidimtancial statements for additional information.

Asset Retirement Obligations

SFAS No. 143Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligatisaquires that the fair value of a liability for asse
retirement obligation be recognized in the perioavhich it is incurred and FASB Interpretation M3, Accounting
for Conditional Asset Retirement Obligatic— an interpretation of FASB Statement No. fpd8/ides guidelines as
to when a company is required to record a condiliasset retirement obligation. The liability isamared at the
discounted fair value and is adjusted to its presalue in subsequent periods as accretion expsmeeorded. The
corresponding asset retirement costs are capitiadiggart of the carrying amount of the related{tived asset and
depreciated over the asset’s remaining useful\life.have identified but not recognized asset mptng obligations
related to certain of our existing operating fdiei§. Examples of these types of obligations inelddmolition,
decommissioning, disposal and restoration actiitieegal obligations exist in connection with tle&nrement of
these assets upon closure of the facilities or ddyament of the existing operations. However, openatat these
facilities are expected to continue indefinitel\ddherefore a reasonable estimate of fair valuaatipe determined
at this time. We will continue to assess stratetfias may differ from past business decisions migarthe
continuing operation of existing facilities. Assetirement obligations will be recorded if thesatgtgies are
changed and probabilities of closure are assigmedisting facilities. If certain operating facidis were to close, tt
related asset retirement obligations could sigaiftty affect our results of operations and castdlo

Realization of Deferred Tax Assets

We regularly review our deferred tax assets foovecability and establish a valuation allowanceechiasn
historical taxable income, projected future taxabt®mme, applicable tax strategies, and the exgdaténg of the
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reversals of existing temporary differences. A asihn allowance is provided when it is more likéian not that
some portion or all of the deferred tax assetsmdtlbe realized. Such evaluations require sigaifienanagement
judgments. Valuation allowances have been estadighimarily on net operating loss carryforwardd ather
deferred tax assets in the US and Canada. See?Rdtethe consolidated financial statements foiitamil
information.

Tax Contingencies

We record accruals for taxes and associated ittéraismay become payable in future years as dt efsaudits
by tax authorities. Prior to 2007, we accrued &t ¢ontingencies when it is probable that a liabtth a taxing
authority had been incurred and the amount of tmtiegency could be reasonably estimated.

On January 1, 2007, we adopted the provisionsf48. FIN 48 clarifies the accounting for incomeds by
prescribing a minimum recognition threshold a taréfit is required to meet before being recogningte
financial statements. FIN 48 also provides guidanteerecognition, measurement, classificatiomrréadt and
penalties, accounting in interim periods, disclesamd transition.

Under FIN 48, tax benefits are recognized only witémore likely than not (likelihood of greatiéyan 50%),
based on technical merits, that the position vélslistained upon examination. Tax positions thait e more-
likely-thannot threshold are measured using a probability tejapproach as the largest amount of tax bethel
is greater than 50% likely of being realized upetilement. Whether the more-likely-than-not rectignithreshold
is met for a tax position is a matter of judgmess$dd on the individual facts and circumstancebatfiosition
evaluated in light of all available evidence. Sex#d\20 to the consolidated financial statementsdatitional
information.

Benefit Obligations

We have pension and other postretirement beneaiitsptovering substantially all employees who meet
eligibility requirements. With respect to its USadjfied defined benefit pension plan, minimum fumgli
requirements are determined by the Employee Retineimcome Security Act. Contributions to the vasgension
and other postretirement benefit plans are furdigrussed in Note 16 to the consolidated finanai@tements.
Benefits are generally based on years of servidéoacompensation. Various assumptions are usttkin
calculation of the actuarial valuation of the enygle benefit plans. These assumptions include thghtesl average
discount rate, rates of increase in compensatigideexpected lonterm rates of return on plan assets and incr
or trends in health care costs. In addition toabeve mentioned assumptions, actuarial consulte@subjective
factors such as withdrawal and mortality ratesstingate the projected benefit obligation. The atalassumptions
used may differ materially from actual results tmehanging market and economic conditions, higindower
withdrawal rates or longer or shorter life spanpaticipants. These differences may result irgaiicant impact tc
the amount of pension expense recorded in fututiegs

The amounts recognized in the consolidated findustd@ements related to pension and other postreéint
benefits are determined on an actuarial basisgAifstant assumption used in determining our pamnsixpense is
the expected long-term rate of return on plan asget of December 31, 2007 and 2006, we assumegdatted
long-term rate of return on plan assets of 8.5%HerUS qualified defined benefit pension plan,ckhiepresents
greater than 83% and 75% of pension plan assetbadnilities, respectively. On average, the acteslirn on plan
assets over the long-term (15 to 20 years) haseebeck9.0%. For the year ended December 31, 208T1)$h
qualified defined benefit pension plan assets &catarn was 100 basis points more than the exddotegterm rate
of return of plan assets. For the year ended Deeef3ih 2006, the actual return was 630 basis poiotg than the
expected long-term rate of return of plan assedseB on our investment strategy, we believe t868s a
reasonable long-term rate of return.

We estimate a 25 basis point decline in the expdotggterm rate of return for the US qualified definedhbfit
pension plan to increase pension expense by anaetl $6 million in 2007. Another estimate thaeef§ our
pension and other postretirement benefit expengeidiscount rate used in the annual actuarialatains of
pension and other postretirement benefit plan akibgs. At the end of each year, we determine pipecgriate
discount rate, used to determine the present wdlfigure cash flows currently expected to be regflito settle the
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pension and other postretirement benefit obligatidme discount rate is generally based on the yiel

corporate fixed-income securities. As of DecemiderZ®07, we increased the discount rate to 6.30% 5.88% as
of December 31, 2006 for the US plans. We estirtietea 50 basis point decline in our discount vatedecrease
our annual pension expenses by an estimated $ibmiéind increase our benefit obligations by apjnately

$150 million for our US pension plan. In additithe same basis point decline in our discount ralteaiso increase
our annual expenses and benefit obligations bytless$1 million and $9 million respectively, fouroUS
postretirement medical plans. We estimate that lbass point decline in the discount rate for tbe-t/S pension
and postretirement medical plans will increase jpenand other postretirement benefit annual expebgean
estimated $1 million and less than $1 million, exdjvely, and will increase our benefit obligatidns
approximately $36 million and $2 million, respeetiy.

Other postretirement benefit plans provide medical life insurance benefits to retirees who meaimuim
age and service requirements. The postretirememfibeost for the years ended December 31, 20006 2nd 200
includes $18 million, $21 million and $25 milliorespectively. The accrued post-retirement liabilys
$306 million and $343 million as of December 3102@nd 2006, respectively, and is included in Iterga Other
liabilities. The key determinants of the accumudatestretirement benefit obligation (“APBCdje the discount ra
and the healthcare cost trend rate. The healtloeaterend rate has a significant effect on themegp amounts of
APBO and related expense. For example, increasidgaeasing the healthcare cost trend rate byerentage
point in each year would result in the APBO as eE@mber 31, 2007, and the 2007 postretirement ibeost to
change by approximately $4 million and $1 millioespectively. See Note 16 to the consolidated &izn
statements for additional information.

Accounting for Commitments and Contingencies

We are subject to a number of legal proceedingssués, claims, and investigations, incidentalhe hormal
conduct of our business, relating to and inclugingduct liability, patent and intellectual propenrtpmmercial,
contract, antitrust, past waste disposal practiedsase of chemicals into the environment and eympént matters,
which are handled and defended in the ordinarysmaf business. We routinely assess the likelited@ihy advers
judgments or outcomes to these matters as wedirages of probable and reasonably estimable loRsesonabl
estimates involve judgments made by us after cenisig a broad range of information including: nictitions,
demands, settlements which have been receiveddn@gulatory authority or private party, estimgiesformed by
independent consultants and outside counsel, élailacts, identification of other potentially resysible parties
and their ability to contribute, as well as priaperience. A determination of the amount of lossticgency
required, if any, is assessed in accordance withSSRo. 5,Contingencies and Commitmerdsd recorded if
probable and estimable after careful analysis ofi éadividual matter. The required reserves maygkdn the
future due to new developments in each matter aratlditional information becomes available. SeesNedt to the
consolidated financial statements for further désgon of the outstanding commitments and continigsrend the
related impact on our financial position and resaoftoperations.

Business Combinations

Upon closing an acquisition, we estimate the falugs of assets and liabilities acquired as sogmaagicable.
Given the time it takes to obtain pertinent infotimia to finalize the acquired company’s balancessifeequently
with implications for the purchase price of the @isiion), then to adjust the acquired companysoaating
policies, procedures, books and records to oudstals, it is often several quarters before we ble ta finalize
those initial fair value estimates. Accordinglyisinot uncommon for the initial estimates to besagquently revised
within twelve months of an acquisition. The judgrisemade in determining the estimated fair valuéggassl to eac
class of assets acquired and liabilities assunsedietl as asset lives, can materially impact osults of operations.
See Note 5 to the consolidated financial statemfentsdditional information.

Captive Insurance Companies

We have two wholly owned insurance companies (@eptives”) that are used as a form of self insugdnc
property, liability and workers compensation riskse of the Captives also insures certain thirdypésks. The
liabilities recorded by the Captives relate to ésémated risk of loss which is based on our esémand actuarial
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valuations, and unearned premiums, which reprekengortion of the thirgharty premiums written applicable to !
unexpired terms of the policies in-force. Liabd#iare recognized for known claims when sufficiefdrmation has
been developed to indicate involvement of a spepifilicy and we can reasonably estimate its lighiln addition,
liabilities have been established to cover add#ti@xposure on both known and unasserted claintgn&es of the
liabilities are reviewed and updated regularlys Ipossible that actual results could differ sigpaifitly from the
recorded liabilities. Premiums written are recogdias revenue based on the terms of the policastalization of
the Captives is determined by regulatory guidelines

The Captives enter into reinsurance arrangememegitace their risk of loss. The reinsurance arrareggs do
not relieve the Captives from its obligation toipgholders. Failure of the reinsurers to honorttiedligations could
result in losses to the Captives. The Captivesuatalthe financial condition of its reinsurers amshitor
concentrations of credit risk to minimize their egpre to significant losses from reinsurer insobies and to
establish allowances for amounts deemed non-citilect

Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about MakRisk

Market Risks

We are exposed to market risk through commercidiferancial operations. Our financial market riglsists
principally of exposure to currency exchange ratesyest rates and commodity prices. Exchangeanadeinterest
rate risks are managed with a variety of technigunetuding use of derivatives. We have in placégies of
hedging against changes in currency exchange iategest rates and commodity prices as describéxhvb
Contracts to hedge exposures are primarily accdunteunder SFAS No. 132ccounting for Derivative
Instruments and Hedging Activiti(*“SFAS No. 133") amended by SFAS No. 12&counting for Certain
Derivative Instruments and Certain Hedging Actegand SFAS No. 148 mendment of Statement 133 on
Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activiti

Interest Rate Risk Management

We use interest rate swap agreements to managméhest rate risk of our total debt portfolio aethted
overall cost of borrowing. To reduce the inter@sé risk inherent in our variable rate debt, wéadtiinterest rate
swap agreements to convert a portion of our vagigdtle debt to a fixed rate obligation. These egerate swap
agreements are designated as cash flow hedges.

As of December 31, 2006, we had an interest rat@ greement in place with a notional value of
$300 million. On March 29, 2007, in connection wiltle April 2, 2007 debt refinancing, we terminatied interest
rate swap agreement and recognized a gain of $®miklated to amounts previously recorded in Analated
other comprehensive income (loss), net.

In March 2007, in anticipation of the April 2, 20@&bt refinancing, we entered into various US dallad Eurc
interest rate swap agreements, which became eféeati April 2, 2007, with notional amounts of $biBion and
€150 million, respectively. These swaps remainedtanting as of December 31, 2007. Effective JanRa2p08,
the notional amount of the $1.6 billion US dollarap will decrease by $400 million. On November 2807, we
entered into an additional US dollar interest satap with a notional amount of $400 million, whiskcame
effective on January 2, 2008.

As of December 31, 2007, we had approximately $#li®n, €525 million and CNY1.2 billion of variablrate
debt, of which $1.6 billion and €150 million is gl with interest rate swaps, which leaves us xpeadely
$692 million, €375 million and CNY1.2 billion of viable rate debt subject to interest rate exposAreordingly, a
1% increase in interest rates would increase anntakst expense by approximately $14 million.

See Note 23 to the consolidated financial statesnfentfurther discussion of our interest rate risknagement
and the related impact on our financial positiod essults of operations.
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Foreign Exchange Risk Managemel

The primary business objective of this hedging peagis to maintain an approximately balanced parsitin
foreign currencies so that exchange gains anddasselting from exchange rate changes, net dleetlax effects,
are minimized. It is our policy to minimize currgnexposures and to conduct operations either witlmational
currencies or using the protection of hedge stiased\ccordingly, we enter into foreign currencyvards and
swaps to minimize our exposure to foreign currefhagtuations. From time to time we may also hedgeaurrency
exposure related to forecasted earnings. Forwarttas that are hedging receivables and payablelssol in a
currency other than the functional currency of atitg are not designated as hedges under SFAS3®&. 1

Additionally, a portion of our assets, liabilitiegvenues and expenses are denominated in cursestbier than
the US dollar, principally the Euro. Fluctuationsthe value of these currencies against the U gharticularly
the value of the Euro, can have a direct and natenpact on the business and financial results.eample, a
decline in the value of the Euro versus the USadabsults in a decline in the US dollar value of sales and
earnings denominated in Euros due to translatifacesf. Likewise, an increase in the value of theoBugrsus the
US dollar would result in an opposite effect.

To protect the foreign currency exposure of a me¢stment in a foreign operation, we entered inhes
currency swaps with certain financial institution®2004. Under the terms of the cross currency savegngements,
we pay approximately €13 million in interest andeige approximately $16 million in interest on Jurteand
December 15 of each year. Upon maturity of theoosrency swap agreement in June 2008, we will pay
approximately €276 million and receive approximat®333 million. These cross currency swaps andseunior
Euro term loan are designated as a hedge of avesttment in a foreign operation. We dedesigndtedhét
investment hedge due to the debt refinancing irl 007 and redesignated the cross currency swagphsew
senior EURO term loan in July 2007. As a resultraerded approximately $26 million of mark-to-metrkosses
related to the cross currency swaps and the neierdearo term loan during this period.

See Note 23 to the consolidated financial statesnfentfurther discussion of our foreign exchangé ri
management and the related impact on our finapoisition and results of operations.

Commodity Risk Management

Inherent in our business is exposure to price chaufigr several commodities. We manage our exposure
primarily through the use of long-term supply agneats and multi-year purchasing and sales agresmant
addition, our policy allows us to enter into fondaswap and/or option contracts to mitigate shemtfluctuations
in market prices for certain raw materials and gpgprincipally natural gas. These contracts apécglly settled
through actual delivery of the physical commodity.

See Note 23 to the consolidated financial statesffantfurther discussion of our commodity risk mgement
and the related impact on our financial positiod essults of operations.
Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary D¢

Our consolidated financial statements and supplémgdata are included in pages F-2 through F-70isf
Annual Report on Form 10-K. See accompanying It&mrEkhibits and Financial Statement Schedules adex to
the consolidated financial statements on page F-1.
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Quarterly Financial Information
CELANESE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Three Months Ended
March 31,  June 30 September 3C December 31

2007 2007 2007 2007
(Unaudited)
(In $ millions, except for share and per share data
Net sales 1,55¢ 1,55¢ 1,57: 1,76(
Other (charges) gains, r D (105) 12 60
Operating profit 20¢ 71 147 324
Earnings (loss) from continuing operations befareand
minority interests 171 (16¢) 131 31z
Earnings (loss) from continuing operatic 122 (229 13C 20¢
Earnings (loss) from discontinued operati 79 7 2 6
Net earnings (loss 201 2179 12¢ 214
Earnings (loss) per sha— basic 1.2t (0.76) 0.8¢4 1.3¢
Earnings (loss) per sha— diluted 1.1t (0.76) 0.7¢ 1.27
Three Months Ended
March 31,  June 30 September 3C December 31
2006 2006 2006 2006
(Unaudited)
(In $ millions, except for share and per share date
Net sales 1,42( 1,457 1,471 1,43(
Other (charges) gains, r — 12 — 2
Operating profit 15€ 152 172 14C
Earnings from continuing operations before tax amigority
interests 117 134 15C 12&
Earnings from continuing operatio 87 95 88 49
Earnings from discontinued operatic 30 8 21 28
Net earning: 117 10z 10¢ 77
Earnings per sha— basic 0.72 0.64 0.67 0.47
Earnings per sha— diluted 0.67 0.6C 0.64 0.4t

For a discussion of material events affecting gentmce in each quarter, See Item 7. Managem@&iscussiol
and Analysis of Financial Condition and Result©gpkrations. All amounts in the table above havelpeeperly
adjusted for the effects of discontinued operations
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Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants orcégnting and Financial Disclosure

None.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedure

Under the supervision and with the participatiomof management, including the Chief Executive ¢ffiand
Chief Financial Officer, we have evaluated the @ffeeness of our disclosure controls and procedpuesuant to
Exchange Act Rule 13a-15(b) as of the end of thmgecovered by this report. Based on that evatumatihe Chief
Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer has@ncluded that these disclosure controls and proesdare
effective.

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

During the second half of 2007, we continued tineebur new SAP consolidation system for our firiahc
reporting, which was implemented during the seaquiter of 2007. This implementation has involvadaus
changes to internal processes and control procedwes financial reporting; however, the basicrimé controls
over financial reporting have not materially chashgkt the time of the filing of our Annual Repont o
Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 200Tetivere no changes in our internal control ovearitial
reporting that have materially affected, or aresoeably likely to materially affect, our internairdrol over financie
reporting.

REPORT OF MANAGEMENT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINAN CIAL REPORTING

Our management is responsible for establishingnaaidtaining adequate internal controls over finahci
reporting for the Company. Internal control overaficial reporting is a process to provide reas@nas$urance
regarding the reliability of our financial repouifior external purposes in accordance with accagnirinciples
generally accepted in the United States of Ametit@rnal control over financial reporting includesintaining
records that in reasonable detail accurately ainlg f&flect our transactions; providing reasonadssurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary for pregaddtour consolidated financial statements; pdowg reasonable
assurance that receipts and expenditures of congss®gts are made in accordance with managemeuwftization;
and providing reasonable assurance that unautlloaizguisition, use or disposition of company asthetscould
have a material effect on our consolidated findrst@Etements would be prevented or detected anelytibasis.
Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtver financial reporting is not intended to pdevabsolute
assurance that a misstatement of our consolidataddial statements would be prevented or detected.

Management conducted an evaluation of the effantise of our internal control over financial repagtbased
on the framework in Internal Control — Integratadirework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission. Basethisnevaluation, management concluded that the @oyip
internal control over financial reporting was etfee as of December 31, 2007. KPMG LLP has auditéed
assessment of our internal control over finan@gabrting; their report is included below.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board of Directors and Shareholders
Celanese Corporation:

We have audited Celanese Corporation and subsidigthe “Company”) internal control over financial
reporting as of December 31, 2007, based on aiestiablished itnternal Control — Integrated Framewoigsued
by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations offtteadway Commission (COSO). The Companyanagemeil
is responsible for maintaining effective internahtrol over financial reporting and for its asseeatrof the
effectiveness of internal control over financighoeting, included in the accompanying report of agament on
internal control over financial reporting. Our resgibility is to express an opinion on the Comparigternal
control over financial reporting based on our audit

We conducted our audit in accordance with the stadgdof the Public Company Accounting OversightriBoa
(United States). Those standards require that e g@hd perform the audit to obtain reasonable assarabout
whether effective internal control over financiaporting was maintained in all material respects. &udit included
obtaining an understanding of internal control dugincial reporting, assessing the risk that aemaltweakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design aedating effectiveness of internal control basedhenassessed
risk. Our audit also included performing such othiercedures as we considered necessary in thengstances. We
believe that our audit provides a reasonable Basisur opinion.

A company’s internal control over financial repogiis a process designed to provide reasonablesassu
regarding the reliability of financial reportingdthe preparation of financial statements for exdepurposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting ipieee A company’s internal control over finanaiaporting
includes those policies and procedures that (Itajpeto the maintenance of records that, in reasiendetail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions disghositions of the assets of the company; (2) ideweasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as nactsgarmit preparation of financial statementsd@gordance wit
generally accepted accounting principles, andréipts and expenditures of the company are breadg only in
accordance with authorizations of management anedtdirs of the company; and (3) provide reasonasdeirance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauitexd acquisition, use, or disposition of the comps assets that
could have a material effect on the financial stegsts.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtiver financial reporting may not prevent or déte
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluatibeffectiveness to future periods are subjecheorisk that
controls may become inadequate because of chamgesditions, or that the degree of compliance Withpolicies
or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, Celanese Corporation maintainedllimaterial respects, effective internal contreér
financial reporting as of December 31, 2007, basedriteria established imternal Control — Integrated
Frameworkissued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatifriee Treadway Commission.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stasd# the Public Company Accounting Oversight Boar
(United States), the consolidated balance shedglafnese Corporation and subsidiaries as of Deeefih 2007
and 2006, and the related consolidated stateménfsenations, shareholders’ equity and comprehenisiscome
(loss), and cash flows for each of the years irtlihee-year period ended December 31, 2007, anceport dated
February 29, 2008 expressed an unqualified opioiothose consolidated financial statements.

/sl KPMG LLP

Dallas, Texas
February 29, 2008
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Iltem 9B. Other Information
None.

PART IlI

Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Govente

The information required by this Item 10 is incargted herein by reference from the section captione
“Corporate Governance”, “Our Management Team,” ‘@gttion 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting
Compliance” of the Company'’s definitive proxy statnt for the 2008 annual meeting of stockholdeisetfiled
not later than April 14, 2008 with the Securitiesl&xchange Commission pursuant to Regulation lddeuthe
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (th@82®roxy Statement”).

Item 11. Executive Compensatio

The information required by this Item 11 is incorgied by reference from the section captioned “Hitee
Compensation” of the 2008 Proxy Statement.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners anbnagement and Related Stockholder Matt

The information required by this Iltem 12 is incargted by reference from the section captioned ‘1Stoc
Ownership Information” of the 2008 Proxy Statemditite information required by Item 201(d) of RegidatS-Kis
submitted in a separate section of this Form 1&de Item 5. —-Market for Registrant’'s Common Equity, Related
Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Ediatyurities above.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions aRitector Independenct

The information required by this Item 13 is incar@ed by reference from the section captioned ‘d@ert
Relationships and Related Party Transactions” ®2008 Proxy Statement.

Item 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Service

The information required by this Item 14 is incaqted by reference from the section captiorRditification o
Independent Auditors — Audit and Related Feeshef2008 Proxy Statement.

PART IV

Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedu

1. Financial StatementsThe reports of our independent registered publouacting firm and our consolidat
financial statements are listed below and begipage F-1 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Page Number
Report of Independent Registered Public Accourfing F-2
Consolidated Statements of Operati F-3
Consolidated Balance She F-4
Consolidated Statements of Sharehol’ Equity and Comprehensive Income (Lo F-5
Consolidated Statements of Cash Fl F-6
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statem F-7

2. Financial Statement Schedule.

The financial statement schedule required by this iare included as an Exhibit to this Annual Repar
Form 10-K.
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3. Exhibit List.

See Index to Exhibits following our consolidateddncial statements contained in this Annual Report
Form 10-K.

PLEASE NOTE: It is inappropriate for readers to assume ther@oy of, or rely upon any covenants,
representations or warranties that may be contamagdreements or other documents filed as Exhiibjter
incorporated by reference in, this Annual Reporty Auch covenants, representations or warrantigshanee been
qualified or superseded by disclosures containegparate schedules or exhibits not filed witmeprporated by
reference in this Annual Report, may reflect theipa' negotiated risk allocation in the particuleansaction, may
be qualified by materiality standards that diffiesrh those applicable for securities law purposed,raay not be
true as of the date of this Annual Report or ameptiate and may be subject to waivers by anyl of #he parties.
Where exhibits and schedules to agreements filégicorporated by reference as Exhibits hereto aténtluded in
these exhibits, such exhibits and schedules teeaggnats are not included or incorporated by referdmcein.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f{the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the regigthas
duly caused the report to be signed on its behlyathe undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

CELANESE CORPORATION

By: /s/ David N. Weidmai

Name: David N. Weidman

Title: Chairman of the Board (
Directors and Chief Executive
Officer

Date: February 29, 2008

POWER OF ATTORNEY

KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS, that each permsbose signature appears below constitutes

and appoints Steven M. Sterin, his true and laafidrney-in-fact with power of substitution andulstitution to
sign in his name, place and stead, in any ancaphdities, to do any and all things and executeazyall
instruments that such attorney may deem necessagvisable under the Securities Exchange Act 8#41&nd any
rules, regulations and requirements of the US Sesiand Exchange Commission in connection withAnnual
Report on Form 10-K and any and all amendmentgdeais fully for all intents and purposes as hehingg could
do in person, and hereby ratifies and confirms a#timtney-in-fact, acting alone, and his substituteubstitutes,
may lawfully do or cause to be done by virtue hereo

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934, this report has been signed by th
following persons in the capacities and on theslatdicated.

Signature Title Date

/s!/ David N. Weidmau
David N. Weidman

Chairman of the Board of Directors, Chief February 29, 20(C
Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer

/sl Steven M. Steri

Steven M. Sterii

/sl Miguel A. Desdir

Miguel A. Desdin

/sl James E. Barle

James E. Barle

/s/ Chinh E. Chi

Chinh E. Cht

/s!/ David F. Hoffmeiste

David F. Hoffmeiste

Officer (Principal Financial Officer)

Vice President, Controller
(Principal Accounting Officer)
Director

Director

Director
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February 29, 20C

February 29, 20C

February 29, 20C

February 29, 20C




Signature

Is/ Martin G. McGuinr

Martin G. McGuinn

/s/ Paul H. ¢ Neill

Paul H. C Neill

/sl Mark C. Roh

Mark C. Rohr

/s/ Daniel S. Sande

Daniel S. Sandel

/s/ Farah M. Walter

Farah M. Walter:

/s/ John K. Wulfi

John K. Wulff
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board of Directors and Shareholders
Celanese Corporation:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balsimeets of Celanese Corporation and subsidighies
“Company”) as of December 31, 2007 and 2006, aaddlated consolidated statements of operatiomsebblders’
equity and comprehensive income (loss), and castsffor each of the years in the three-year pegiutkbd
December 31, 2007. These consolidated financitdrsents are the responsibility of the Company’sagament.
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on ¢hesnsolidated financial statements based on alitsau

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstats of the Public Company Accounting Oversighargio
(United States). Those standards require that e g@hd perform the audit to obtain reasonable assarabout
whether the financial statements are free of materisstatement. An audit includes examining, ¢esa basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosurtrifinancial statements. An audit also includeessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimatade by management, as well as evaluating thalbfirancial
statement presentation. We believe that our apditgide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial stateteeaferred to above present fairly, in all matenéspects, the
financial position of Celanese Corporation and &liages as of December 31, 2007 and 2006, andethdts of
their operations and their cash flows for eachhefytears in the three-year period ended Decemh&0BT, in
conformity with US generally accepted accountiniggples.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stasd# the Public Company Accounting Oversight Boar
(United States), the Company’s internal controlrdireancial reporting as of December 31, 2007, Has®criteria
established imnternal Control — Integrated Framewoissued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatidns
the Treadway Commission (COSO), and our reportd&edruary 29, 2008 expressed an unqualified opiaiothe
effectiveness of the Company’s internal controlrdirancial reporting.

As discussed in Note 20 to the consolidated fir@ratatements, the Company adopted Financial Adgayn
Standards Board Interpretation No. A8counting for Uncertainty in Income Taxeduring the year ended
December 31, 2007.

As discussed in Note 21 to the consolidated fir@ratatements, the Company adopted Statement ahé&ied
Accounting Standards No. 123 (revised 20&are-Based Paymentluring the year ended December 31, 2006.

As discussed in Note 16 to the consolidated fireratatements, the Company adopted Statement ahé&ied
Accounting Standards No. 19Bmployers’ Accounting for Defined Benefit Pensiod ®&ther Postretirement
Plans, during the year ended December 31, 2006.

/s/ KPMG LLP

Dallas, Texas
February 29, 2008




CELANESE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Year Ended December 31,

2007 2006 2005
(In $ millions, except for share and per share date
Net sales 6,44¢ 5,77¢ 5,27(
Cost of sale: (4,999 (4,469 (4,069
Gross profit 1,44t 1,30¢ 1,20¢
Selling, general and administrative exper (51¢€) (53€) (512)
Amortization of intangible assets (primarily cusemmelated’ (72 (66) (52
Research and development exper (73) (65) (86)
Other (charges) gains, r (58) (20 (62)
Foreign exchange gain (loss), | 2 ©)] —
Gain (loss) on disposition of businesses and agset 20 9 (10
Operating profit 74¢€ 62C 48€
Equity in net earnings of affiliate 82 76 51
Interest expens (262) (293) (28%)
Refinancing expenst (25€) @ (102
Interest incomt 44 37 37
Dividend income— cost investment 11€ 79 a0
Other income (expense), r (25) 8 (1)
Earnings from continuing operations before tax amigority
interests 447 52€ 27€
Income tax provisiol (110 (209) (24)
Earnings from continuing operations before minoiritgrests 337 325 252
Minority interests (1) (4 (38)
Earnings from continuing operatio 33€ 31¢ 214
Earnings from discontinued operatio
Earnings from operation of discontinued operati 40 13C 96
Gain on disposal of discontinued operati 52 5 —
Income tax provisiol (2) (48) (33
Earnings from discontinued operatic 90 87 63
Net earning: 42¢€ 40¢€ 277
Cumulative preferred stock divide! (10 (10 (10
Net earnings available to common sharehol 41€ 39€ 267
Earnings per common shé— basic:
Continuing operation 2.11 1.9t 1.32
Discontinued operatior 0.5¢ 0.5t 0.41
Net earnings available to common sharehol 2.6¢ 2.5C 1.7¢
Earnings per common she— diluted:
Continuing operation 1.9¢ 1.8¢ 1.2¢
Discontinued operatior 0.5: 0.5C 0.3¢
Net earnings available to common sharehol 2.4¢ 2.3€ 1.67
Weighted average shar— basic: 154,475,02 158,597,42 154,402,57
Weighted average shar— diluted: 171,227,99 171,807,59 166,200,04

See the accompanying notes to the consolidateddialbstatements.
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CELANESE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

As of December 31,
2007 2006
(In $ millions, except
share amounts)

ASSETS
Current asset:
Cash and cash equivalel 82t 791
Restricted cas — 46
Receivables
Trade receivable— third party and affiliates, n 1,00¢ 1,001
Other receivable 437 47E
Inventories 63¢€ 652
Deferred income taxe 70 76
Other asset 86 69
Total current asse 3,06: 3,111
Investments 814 763
Property, plant and equipment, | 2,362 2,15¢
Deferred income taxe 10 22
Other asset 51¢€ 50¢
Goodwill 86¢€ 87t
Intangible assets, n 42E 463
Total asset 8,05¢ 7,89

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS ' EQUITY
Current liabilities:

Shor-term borrowings and current installments of l-term debt— third party and affiliate 272 30¢
Trade payable— third party and affiliate 81¢ 83C
Other current liabilitie: 88¢ 78C
Deferred income taxe 30 18
Income taxes payab 23 27¢
Total current liabilities 2,031 2,21¢
Long-term debi 3,28¢ 3,18¢
Deferred income taxe 26E 297
Income taxes payab 22C —
Benefit obligation:s 69¢€ 88¢
Other liabilities 49t 442
Minority interests 5 74

Commitments and contingencies Shareho’ equity:

Preferred stock, $0.01 par value, 100,000,000 starthorized and 9,600,000 issued and

outstanding as of December 31, 2007 and : — —
Series A common stock, $0.0001 par value, 400,000sbares authorized, 162,941,287 iss!

and 152,102,801 outstanding as of December 31, 2007.58,668,666 issued and

outstanding as of December 31, 2! — —
Series B common stock, $0.0001 par value, 100,0006ares authorized and 0 shares issued

and outstanding as of December 31, 2007 and — —
Treasury stock, at cost: 10,838,486 shares as adieer 31, 2007 and 0 shares a

December 31, 200 (402 —
Additional paic-in capital 46¢ 362
Retained earning 79¢ 394
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) 197 31

Total shareholde’ equity 1,062 787
Total liabilities and sharehold¢ equity 8,05¢ 7,89t

See the accompanying notes to the consolidateddialbstatements.
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CELANESE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

(LOSS)

2007

2006

2005

Shares
Outstanding

Amount

Shares
Outstanding  Amount

Shares
Outstanding  Amount

Common Stock

(In $ millions, except share data

Balance as of the beginning of the y 158,668,66 — 158,562,16 — 99,377,88 —
Conversion of Series B common stock to Series Amomstock — — — — (99,377,88) —
Issuance of Series A common stc 7,40( — — — 151,062,16 —
Issuance of Series A common stock related to sbptlon exercises, includir

related tax benefit 4,265,22: — 106,50! — — —
Purchases of treasury stock, including related (10,838,48) — — — — —
Common stock dividenc — — — — 7,500,001 —
Balance as of the end of the y 152,102,80 — 158,668,66 — 158,562,16 —
Preferred Stock
Balance as of the beginning of the y 9,600,001 — 9,600,001 — — —
Issuance of preferred sto — — — — 9,600,00! —
Balance as of the end of the y: 9,600,001 — 9,600,00! — 9,600,00! —
Treasury Stock
Balance as of the beginning of the y — — — — — —
Purchases of treasury stock, including related 10,838,48 (403) — — — —
Balance as of the end of the y: 10,838,48 (403) — — — —
Additional Paid-in Capital
Balance as of the beginning of the y 362 337 15€
Indemnification of demerger liabilit 4 3 5
Series A common stock dividen — — (13)
Preferred stock dividenc — — 8)
Net proceeds from issuance of common s 752
Net proceeds from issuance of preferred s — 233
Net proceeds from issuance of discounted commark — — 12
Stocl-based compensatic 15 20 2
Special cash dividend to Original Shareholc — — (804)
Issuance of Series A common stock related to sbptlon exercises, includir

related tax benefit 88 2 —
Balance as of the end of the y: 46¢ 362 337
Retained Earnings
Balance as of the beginning of the y 394 24 (2593
Net earning: 42€ 40€ 277
Series A common stock dividen (25) (26) —
Preferred stock dividenc (20) (20) —
Adoption of FIN 48 (see Note 2! 14 — —
Balance as of the end of the y: 79¢ 394 24
Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (Loss), N¢
Balance as of the beginning of the y 31 (12€) 17)
Unrealized gain on securiti 17 13 3
Additional minimum pension liabilit — — 117
Foreign currency translatic 70 5 5
Unrealized gain (loss) on derivative contre 41 2 —
Pension and postretirement benefits (revi: 12C 26¢ —
Adjustment to initially apply FASB Statement No.8l5iet of tax (revisec — (132) —
Balance as of the end of the y: 197 31 (12¢)
Total Shareholders’ Equity 1,062 787 23E
Comprehensive Income:
Net earning: 42€ 40€ 271
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of

Unrealized gain on securiti 17 13 3

Additional minimum pension liabilit — — (117)

Foreign currency translatic 70 5 5

Unrealized gain (loss) on derivative contre (41) 2 —

Pension and postretirement benefits (revi 12C 26¢ —
Total comprehensive incon 592 69t 16€

See the accompanying notes to the consolidateddialbstatements.
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Operating activities
Net earning:

CELANESE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Adjustments to reconcile net earnings to net cashiged by operating activitie
Other (charges) gains, net of amounts t
Depreciation, amortization and accret

Deferred income taxe

(Gain) loss on disposition of businesses and aaset
Loss on extinguishment of de

Other, ne

Discontinued operatior

Changes in operating assets and liabilit
Trade receivable— third party and affiliates, n

Inventories
Other asset

Trade payable— third party and affiliate

Other liabilities

Net cash provided by operating activit

Investing activities

Capital expenditures on property, plant and equigt
Acquisitions and related fees, net of cash acqt

Net proceeds from sale of businesses and &
Proceeds received for Ticona Kelsterbach plantegion
Costs incurred on Ticona Kelsterbach plant reloce
Proceeds from sale of marketable secur

Purchases of marketable securi

Changes in restricted ca

Discontinued operatior

Other, ne

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activi

Financing activities

Dividend to Original Shareholde

Proceeds from issuance of Series A common stocl
Proceeds from issuance of preferred stock
Shor-term borrowings (repayments), r

Proceeds from lor-term debt

Repayments of lor-term debr

Refinancing cost

Purchases of treasury stock, including related
Settlement of lease obligatio

Stock option exercise

Dividend payments on Series A common stock ancepred stocl

Other, ne

Net cash used in financing activiti
Exchange rate effects on cash and cash equivs

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equis
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of p¢

Cash and cash equivalents at end of pe
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Year Ended December 31

2007 2006 2005
(In $ millions)
42€  40¢€ 277
30 (39 30
311 32:¢ 32t
23 12t (85)
(68)  (8) 7
25¢€ — 10z
7 61 53
(84) 10 5
(69) 9 35
(27) 19 25
66 (5) (27)
1)) (22 9
(280) (11%) (61)
56€ 751 701
(28¢) (249 (209
(269) — (91¢)
71t 23 48
— 26 —
21) — —
69 95 221
(59) (65 (149
46 42 —
— (18) 87
(50) (43 7
14 (26§) (907)
— — (804
— — 764
— — 23%
30 13 22
2,90¢ 38 1,151
(3,059 (125 (1,379
(240 — (83
(403 — —
- = (31
69 2 —
(35 (36 (21
14 — —
(714) (10¢) (1449
39 26 (98)
34 401 (44¥)
791 39C 83¢€
82t 791 39C

See the accompanying notes to the consolidateddialbstatements.




CELANESE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Description of the Company

Celanese Corporation and its subsidiaries (collelstithe “Company”) is a leading global integratdgtmical
and advanced materials company. The Company'’s éssinvolves processing chemical raw materiald) asc
methanol, carbon monoxide and ethylene, and ngpuoalucts, including wood pulp, into value-addedrokcals,
thermoplastic polymers and other chemical-basedyuts.

Basis of Presentation

In this Annual Report on Form 10-K, the term “Cedae” refers to Celanese Corporation, a Delaware
corporation, and not its subsidiaries. The termldBese US” refers to the Company’s subsidiary, =da US
Holdings LLC, a Delaware limited liability comparfigrmerly known as BCP Crystal US Holdings Corp., a
Delaware corporation, and not its subsidiaries. fEnm “Purchaser” refers to the Company’s subsjdi@elanese
Europe Holding GmbH & Co. KG, formerly known as BCPRystal Acquisition GmbH & Co. KG, a German lindt
partnership, and not its subsidiaries, except wh#rerwise indicated. The term “Original Sharehottieefers,
collectively, to Blackstone Capital Partners (Cawiriatd. 1, Blackstone Capital Partners (Cayman) Rtd
Blackstone Capital Partners (Cayman) Ltd. 3 and@#ital Investors Sidecar Fund, L.P. The term “Advi refers
to Blackstone Management Partners, an affiliat€haf Blackstone Group. The term “CAG” refers to Qelse
GmbH, formerly known as Celanese AG, its consofidegubsidiaries, its non-consolidated subsidiaviestures
and other investments. With respect to CAG shadgrand similar matters where the context indigateaG”
only refers to Celanese GmbH.

The consolidated financial statements containgti;mAnnual Report were prepared in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in thetdéhStates of America (“US GAAP”) for all periodsepented.
The consolidated financial statements and othanfifal information included in this Annual Repamless
otherwise specified, have been presented to sehasitow the effects of discontinued operations.

2. Acquisition of CAG

Pursuant to a voluntary tender offer commencecebriary 2004, the Purchaser, an indirect wholly edvn
subsidiary of Celanese Corporation, on April 6,£208cquired approximately 84% of the ordinary shafeCAG,
excluding treasury shares, for a purchase pri&i @93 million, including direct acquisition costs$69 million
(the “Acquisition”).

On August 24, 2005, the Company acquired 5.9 millar approximately 12%, of the outstanding CAGreha
from two shareholders for €302 million ($369 milijo The Company also paid such shareholders €1@mil
($15 million) in consideration for the settlememtertain claims and for such shareholders agreingmong othe
things, (1) accept the shareholders’ resolutioss@d at the extraordinary general meeting of CAG twe July 30
and 31, 2004 and the annual general meeting of 8&l&on May 19 and 20, 2005, (2) acknowledge thalle
effectiveness of the domination and profit and koassfer agreement (the “Domination Agreement”),

(3) irrevocably withdraw and abandon all actiormplcations and appeals each brought or joinedgall
proceedings related to, among other things, chgiltgnthe effectiveness of the Domination Agreensard amount
of fair cash compensation offered by the Purchisttre mandatory offer required by Section 305fthe German
Stock Corporation Act, (4) refrain from acquiringyaCAG shares or any other investment in CAG, &)ddfrain
from taking any future legal action with respecskareholder resolutions or corporate actions o&ClBpon the
acquisition of the additional CAG shares duringgbeond half of 2005, the assets and liabilitie€AG were
adjusted in the consolidated financial statememtait value for the additional percentage acquired

On May 30, 2006, CAG’s shareholders approved astearto the Purchaser of all shares owned by ninori
shareholders against payment of cash compensatitie amount of €66.99 per share (the “Squeeze}Orie
Squeeze-Out was registered in the commercial exgistGermany on December 22, 2006, after sevavaduits by
minority shareholders challenging the shareholdesblution approving the Squeeze-Out were withdraw
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pursuant to a settlement agreement entered intzeket plaintiff shareholders, the Purchaser and ©@A@e same
day. An aggregate purchase price of approximaté®y/rillion was paid to minority shareholders in Jary 2007 a
fair cash compensation for the acquisition of tiskiares in CAG, excluding direct acquisition castapproximatel
€2 million. As a result of this acquisition, the Cpamy recorded an increase to Goodwill of approxéfyat

$5 million during the year ended December 31, 202 amount of the fair cash compensation of €6pe&9%hare
could increase based on the outcome of award pldowepending in German courts. As of Decembe80y, the
Company'’s ownership percentage in CAG was 100%.

Domination Agreement

On October 1, 2004, a Domination Agreement betwe&@ and the Purchaser became operative. When the
Domination Agreement became operative, the Purchesmme obligated to offer to acquire all outstagdCAG
shares from the minority shareholders of CAG inmefor payment of fair cash compensation. The arhotithis
fair cash compensation was determined to be €4deB2hare, plus interest, in accordance with agple&eGerman
law. Until the Squeeze-Out was registered in tharoercial register in Germany on December 22, 2809,
minority shareholder who elected not to sell itarsls to the Purchaser was entitled to remain @&kblater of CAG
and to receive from the Purchaser a gross guadhargeial payment on its shares of €3.27 per CAGdbas
certain corporate taxes in lieu of any dividend: the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and a0f&rge of
€0 million ($0 million), €3 million ($4 million) and&19 million ($22 million), respectively, was reded in Other
income (expense), net for the anticipated guardrdeaual payment.

On June 1, 2006, the guaranteed annual paymetitddiscal year ended September 30, 2005, whictuated
to €3 million, was paid. In addition, pursuant teadtlement agreement entered into with plaintiireholders in
March 2006, the Purchaser paitl @illion on June 30, 2006, the guaranteed annayinent for the fiscal year enc
September 30, 2006, to those shareholders whodsagiedter waiving any further rights with respersuch
guaranteed annual payment that ordinarily wouldberdue and payable after the 2007 annual genesetimg.
Between June 30, 2006, and January 17, 2007, tlohd&ser paid a total amount of less than €1 millmminority
shareholders who required early payment of theaquaed annual payment for the fiscal year endeteSdyer 30,
2006, by submitting such waiver letter after JuBeZD06.

On January 17, 2007, the Purchaser made, pursuargdttiement agreement entered into with plaintif
shareholders in December 2006, the following guaethannual payments: (i) a total amountbféllion was paic
to all minority shareholders who had not yet retgetearly payment of the guaranteed annual payfoetite fiscal
year ended on September 30, 2006, and (ii) aantalunt ot€1 million representing the pro rata share of the
guaranteed annual payment for the first five mooftttbe fiscal year ending September 30, 2007 vedd to all
minority shareholders.

The Domination Agreement cannot be terminated byPthirchaser in the ordinary course of business unti
September 30, 2009. The Company’s subsidiariesn@sk International Holdings Luxembourg S.a r@lii),
formerly Celanese Caylux Holdings Luxembourg S.Calnd Celanese US, have each agreed to provide the
Purchaser with financing to strengthen the Purafgasility to fulfill its obligations under, or isonnection with,
the Domination Agreement and to ensure that thelser will perform all of its obligations under,im connectiol
with, the Domination Agreement when such obligaibecome due, including, without limitation, thdigétion to
compensate CAG for any statutory annual loss ieclioy CAG during the term of the Domination Agreeméf
CIH and/or Celanese US are obligated to make patgnerder such guarantees or other security to thehBser,
the Company may not have sufficient funds for paytsien its indebtedness when due. The Companydidsad tc
compensate CAG for an annual loss for any perigthgwvhich the Domination Agreement has been ieaff

The Domination Agreement was challenged in eight &hd Void actions in the Frankfurt District Coufthes:
actions were seeking to have the shareholdersiutso approving the Domination Agreement declamad
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and void based on an alleged violation of formgluieements relating to the invitation for the Ma§03 CAG
shareholders’ meeting. In May 2007, the Frankfustiizt Court dismissed all Null and Void actions.

The amounts of the fair cash compensation andeofjtiaranteed annual payment offered under the Cedimim
Agreement are under court review in special awaodgedings (see Note 24). As a result of thesespdings,
either amount could be increased by the court abat former CAG shareholders, including those whwe alread
tendered their shares into the mandatory offerteave received the fair cash compensation coulddhée
respective higher amounts. Certain former CAG df@ders may initiate such proceedings also witpeesto the
Squeezédut compensation. In this case, former CAG shadshslwho ceased to be shareholders of CAG due
Squeeze-Out are entitled, pursuant to a settleaggrement between the Purchaser and certain f@mer
shareholders, to claim for their shares the higli¢he compensation amounts determined by the dotinese
different proceedings. Payments these sharehaddieady received as compensation for their shailebavoffset
so that those shareholders who ceased to be skdgehof CAG due to the Squeeze-Out are not edtiiemore
than the higher of the amount set in the two cproteedings.

3. Summary of Accounting Policies
 Consolidation principles

The consolidated financial statements have bequaped in accordance with US GAAP for all periods
presented and include the accounts of the Compathjt@majority owned subsidiaries over which tr@r@any
exercises control as well as variable interestieativhere the Company is deemed the primary baagfi when
applicable. All significant intercompany accountsldransactions have been eliminated in consotidati

« Estimates and assumptions

The preparation of consolidated financial statesi@ntonformity with US GAAP requires management to
make estimates and assumptions that affect thetegpamounts of assets and liabilities, disclosdrentingent
assets and liabilities at the date of the constitiéinancial statements and the reported amodnts/enues,
expenses and allocated charges during the repgréingd. Significant estimates pertain to impairitsesf goodwill,
intangible assets and other long-lived assetshaise price allocations, restructuring costs andrqtharges) gains,
net, income taxes, pension and other postretirebvemfits, asset retirement obligations, envirortaldiabilities
and loss contingencies, among others. Actual iesoltld differ from those estimates.

» Cash and cash equivalents
All highly liquid investments with original matuigts of three months or less are considered cashaeots.
* Restricted cash

As of December 31, 2006, the Company had $46 millibrestricted cash. The cash was paid in JarR@0y
to certain CAG shareholders pursuant to the terfntiseoSqueeze-Out as discussed in Note 2.

* Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or etai®ost for inventories is determined using thet-in, first-
out (“FIFO”) method. Cost includes raw materialgedt labor and manufacturing overhead. Storessapglies are
valued at cost or market, whichever is lower. Gosstores and supplies is primarily determinedh®yaverage cost
method.

* Investments in marketable securities

The Company classifies its investments in debteaqdty securities as “available-for-sale” and repdinose
investments at their fair market values in the hedasheet as Other assets. Unrealized gains eslasst of the
related tax effect on available-for-sale securjtige excluded from earnings and are reportedcasionent of
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Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss)ungtrealized. The cost of securities sold is deiaed by usin
the specific identification method.

A decline in the market value of any available-$ate security below cost that is deemed to be <tizer-
temporary results in a reduction in the carryingpan to fair value. The impairment is charged tme®s and a
new cost basis for the security is establishedd@termine whether an impairment is other-than-teanyothe
Company considers whether it has the ability atehinto hold the investment until a market priceorery and
evidence indicating the cost of the investmene&overable outweighs evidence to the contrary. éhdd
considered in this assessment includes the redsotie impairment, the severity and duration & fmpairment,
changes in value subsequent to year end, and &tegtperformance of the investee.

* Investments in affiliates

Accounting Principles Board (“APB”) Opinion No. 18he Equity Method of Accounting for Investments in
Common Stockstipulates that the equity method should be tsedcount for investments whereby an investor has
“the ability to exercise significant influence ow@perating and financial policies of an investdrit does not
exercise control. APB Opinion No. 18 generally édass an investor to have the ability to exercigaificant
influence when it owns 20% or more of the votingcktof an investee. Financial Accounting Stand&uolard
(“FASB") Interpretation No. 35Criteria for Applying the Equity Method of Accougfifor Investments in Common
Stock, which was issued to clarify the criteria for appt the equity method of accounting to 50% or lessed
companies, lists circumstances under which, de2pié ownership, an investor may not be able toaser
significant influence. Certain investments wheme @ompany owns greater than a 20% ownership ambtan
exercise significant influence or control are acted for under the cost method (see Note 9).

The Company assesses the recoverability of thgingrvalue of its investments whenever events anges in
circumstances indicate a loss in value that isrdthen a temporary decline. A loss in value of guity-method or
cost-method investment which is other than a tearyadecline will be recognized as the differencevieen the
carrying amount of the investment and its fair ealu

The Company’s estimates of fair value are deterchivesed on a discounted cash flow model. The Coynpan
periodically engages third-party valuation consutao assist with this process.
* Property, plant and equipment, net

Land is recorded at historical cost. Buildings, iaery and equipment, including capitalized intgraad
property under capital lease agreements, are red@tlcost less accumulated depreciation. Depieeisst
calculated on a straight-line basis over the foif@pestimated useful lives of depreciable assets:

Land Improvement 20 year
Buildings and Building Improvemen 30 year
Machinery and Equipmel 20 year

Leasehold improvements are amortized over ten y@atse remaining life of the respective lease,clvbver is
shorter.

Accelerated depreciation is recorded when the estichuseful life is shortened. Ordinary repair and
maintenance costs, including costs for planned f@a@nce turnarounds, that do not extend the ubkfuf the
asset are charged to earnings as incurred. Fyiisedimted assets are retained in property and defiten accounts
until sold or otherwise disposed. In the case sposals, assets and related depreciation are renfimre the
accounts, and the net amounts, less proceeds fspogal, are included in earnings.

Assets acquired in business combinations are redaatltheir fair values and depreciated over tsetas
remaining useful lives or the Company’s policy yahichever is shorter.
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The Company assesses the recoverability of thgingramount of its property, plant and equipmenendver
events or changes in circumstances indicate teatdtrying amount of an asset (or asset group)mtpe
recoverable. An impairment loss would be asses$athwestimated undiscounted future cash flows fifwen t
operation and disposition of the asset group a®tlean the carrying amount of the asset groupetAgsups have
identifiable cash flows and are largely independdmther asset groups. Measurement of an impairfosa would
be based on the excess of the carrying amouneadgket group over its fair value. Fair value iasneed using
discounted cash flows or independent appraisalgppopriate. Impairment losses are recorded inedégion
expense or Other (charges) gains, net dependitigediacts and circumstances.

» Goodwill and other intangible assets

Patents, customer related intangible assets amd inttangibles with finite lives are amortized osteight-line
basis over their estimated useful lives. The weidl@verage amortization period is 8 years. Thessxaéthe
purchase price over fair value of net identifialdsets and liabilities of an acquired businessadgell”) and other
indefinite-lived intangible assets are not amodijzgut rather tested for impairment, at least alinwighe Company
tests for goodwill and indefinite-lived intangildsset impairment during the third quarter of i&dil year using
June 30 balances.

The Company assesses the recoverability of thgingrvalue of goodwill at least annually or whenegeents
or changes in circumstances indicate that the iceyamount of the goodwill of a reporting unit magt be fully
recoverable. Recoverability is measured at thertgmpunit level based on the provisions of Statetrd Financial
Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 14@podwill and Other Intangible Asset$he Company’s estimates of fair
value are determined based on a discounted casinfludel. The Company periodically engages thirdypar
valuation consultants to assist with this prockapairment losses are recorded in other operatipgrese or Other
(charges) gains, net depending on the facts andmBstances.

The Company assesses recoverability of other inileflived intangible assets at least annually bemever
events or changes in circumstances indicate tleatdtlrying amount of the indefinite-lived intangitasset may not
be fully recoverable. Recoverability is measure@tmpmparison of the carrying value of the indedidived
intangible asset over its fair value. Any excesthefcarrying value of the indefinite-lived intablgi asset over its
fair value is recognized as an impairment loss. Chmpany’s estimates of fair value are determirgskt on a
discounted cash flow model. The Company periodicatigages third-party valuation consultants tosaggih this
process. Impairment losses are recorded in othenatipg expense or Other (charges) gains, net damgon the
facts and circumstances.

The Company assesses the recoverability of finiedlintangible assets in the same manner as éqepty,
plant and equipment as described above. Impairtossgés are recorded in amortization expense orr@tharges)
gains, net depending on the facts and circumstances

* Financial instruments

The Company manages its exposures to currency egehates, interest rates and commaodity pricesitfira
risk management program that includes the userdfatee financial instruments (see Note 23). Tre{pany does
not use derivative financial instruments for spativé trading purposes. The fair value of all dative instruments
are recorded as assets or liabilities at the balaheet date. Changes in the fair value of thesteuments are
reported in income or Accumulated other comprehenisicome (loss), net, depending on the use ofi¢hwative
and whether it qualifies for hedge accounting treatt under the provisions of SFAS No. 188counting for
Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activit, as amended (“SFAS No. 133").

Gains and losses on derivative instruments qualjfas cash flow hedges are recorded in Accumutzttest
comprehensive income (loss), net, to the extenhéuges are effective, until the underlying tratisas are
recognized in income. To the extent effective, gand losses on derivative and non-derivativeuns#nts used as
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hedges of the Company’s net investment in forejggrations are recorded in Accumulated other congursilie
income (loss), net as part of the cumulative ti@imh adjustment. The ineffective portions of cietv hedges and
hedges of net investment in foreign operationanif, are recognized in income immediately. Denixatnstruments
not designated as hedges are marked to market ahthof each accounting period with the chandeiirvalue
recorded in income.

» Concentrations of credit risk

The Company is exposed to credit risk in the eeémonpayment by customers and counterparties. The
creditworthiness of customers and counterpartissiligect to continuing review, including the useraster netting
agreements, where appropriate. The Company mingntiaecentrations of credit risk through its globaéntation
in diverse businesses with a large number of déveustomers and suppliers. In addition, creditsrestising from
derivative instruments is not significant becadmedounterparties to these contracts are primandjor
international financial institutions and, to a kxsextent, major chemical companies. Generallyjatatl is not
required from customers and counterparties anavatiees are provided for specific risks inherenmeeivables.

« Deferred financing costs

The Company capitalizes direct costs incurred taialdebt financings and amortizes these costgjusin
method that approximates the effective interest na¢thod over the terms of the related debt. Upen t
extinguishment of the related debt, any unamortcagatalized debt financing costs are immediat&lyemsed.

* Environmental liabilities

The Company manufactures and sells a diverse fioskamical products throughout the world. Accordinghe
Company’s operations are subject to various hazaoidental to the production of industrial chentscimcluding
the use, handling, processing, storage and tratadjmor of hazardous materials. The Company recegrizsses and
accrues liabilities relating to environmental migttié available information indicates that it isopable that a liabilit
has been incurred and the amount of loss is rehgoastimated. Depending on the nature of the giteCompany
accrues through fifteen years, unless the Compasyhvernment orders or other agreements thatakeyond
fifteen years. If the event of loss is neither @le nor reasonably estimable, but is reasonaldgiple, the
Company provides appropriate disclosure in themtmehe consolidated financial statements if ih&iagency is
considered material. The Company estimates envieotethliabilities on a case-by-case basis usingrbst current
status of available facts, existing technologysprely enacted laws and regulations and prior éapee in
remediation of contaminated sites. Recoveries virenmental costs from other parties are recordeassets when
their receipt is deemed probable.

An environmental reserve related to cleanup ofrdarainated site might include, for example, a psvri for
one or more of the following types of costs: sitedstigation and testing costs, cleanup costss cekited to soil
and water contamination resulting from tank rupsuaad post-remediation monitoring costs. Thesevesalo not
take into account any claims or recoveries fromuiasce. There are no pending insurance claimsifpr a
environmental liability that are expected to beenat. The measurement of environmental liabilitebased on the
Company’s periodic estimate of what it will costperform each of the elements of the remediatiéortefThe
Company utilizes third parties to assist in the agament and development of cost estimates foités. £hanges:
environmental regulations or other factors affeg@mvironmental liabilities are reflected in thensolidated
financial statements in the period in which thegwqsee Note 17).
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* Legal fees

The Company accrues for legal fees related todosngency matters when the costs associated with
defending these matters can be reasonably estiraatedre probable of occurring. All other legalsfeee expensed
as incurred.

* Revenue recognition

The Company recognizes revenue when title andofisdss have been transferred to the customer rgiyat
the time of shipment of products, and provided fhat basic criteria are met: (1) persuasive evigenf an
arrangement exists; (2) delivery has occurred niiges have been rendered; (3) the fee is fixedeterminable; ar
(4) collectibility is reasonably assured. Shouldmes in conditions cause the Company to deterreirenue
recognition criteria are not met for certain tragigms, revenue recognition would be delayed wutih time that th
transactions become realizable and fully earnegimieats received in advance of meeting the aboveniey
recognition criteria are recorded as deferred regen

« Stock-based compensation

Effective January 1, 2006, the Company adoptedainealue recognition provisions of SFAS No. 12B(R
Share-Based PaymefiSFAS No. 123(R)”). The Company elected the madifprospective transition method as
permitted by SFAS No. 123(R) and, accordingly,tear ended December 31, 2005 has not been restatefiect
the impact of SFAS No. 123(R). Under this transitimethod, compensation cost recognized includes:

(i) compensation cost for all stock-based paymgraated prior to, but not yet vested as of, Jantia®006 (based
on the grant-date fair value estimated in accordavith the original provisions of SFAS No. 123 gdviously
presented in the pro forma footnote disclosurey]),(d@) compensation cost for all stock-based paymgranted
subsequent to January 1, 2006 (based on the gatanfalr value estimated in accordance with the pewisions of
SFAS No. 123(R)).

As permitted by SFAS No. 1238ccounting for Stock-Based Compensafii@+AS No. 123"), the Company
accounted for employee stock-based compensatighdoyear ended December 31, 2005 in accordanbeARB
Opinion No. 25Accounting for Stock Issued to Employg@$B No. 25”), using an intrinsic value approach t
measure compensation expense, if any.

» Research and development
The costs of research and development are chasgad expense in the period in which they are imclrr
* Insurance loss reserves

The Company has two wholly owned insurance compga(tiiee “Captives”) that are used as a form of self
insurance for property, liability and workers comgation risks. One of the Captives also insureicethird-party
risks. The liabilities recorded by the Captivestelto the estimated risk of loss which is basethanagement
estimates and actuarial valuations, and unearrexdipms, which represent the portion of the thirdyppremiums
written applicable to the unexpired terms of thégies in-force. Liabilities are recognized for kmo claims when
sufficient information has been developed to in@tigavolvement of a specific policy and the Compaag
reasonably estimate its liability. In addition Hiities have been established to cover additiexplosure on both
known and unasserted claims. Estimates of thditiabiare reviewed and updated regularly. It isgible that actui
results could differ significantly from the recocdiabilities. Premiums written are recognized egenue based on
the terms of the policies. Capitalization of thep@aes is determined by regulatory guidelines. Tatsets and
liabilities for the Captives after elimination df entercompany activity was $300 million and $22@lion,
respectively, as of December 31, 2007 and $33%amidnd $171 million, respectively, as of Decembir2006.
Included in total liabilities are thirdarty reserves of $23 million and $24 million adafcember 31, 2007 and 20
respectively. Third-party premiums were $2 milli&22 million and $23 million for the years endedcBmber 31,
2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively.
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* Reinsurance receivables

The Captives enter into reinsurance arrangememeitece their risk of loss. The reinsurance arrareggs do
not relieve the Captives from their obligationgptdicyholders. Failure of the reinsurers to horaitt obligations
could result in losses to the Captives. The Captexaluate the financial condition of their reiresgrand monitor
concentrations of credit risk to minimize their espre to significant losses from reinsurer insobves and to
establish allowances for amounts deemed non-citillect

* Income taxes

The provision for income taxes has been determirsat the asset and liability approach of accougnfim
income taxes. Under this approach, deferred indaxes reflect the net tax effects of temporaryetléhices betwe:
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilitiesfiftancial reporting purposes and the amounts useth€ome tax
purposes and net operating loss and tax credi éamwvards. The amount of deferred taxes on thessgorary
differences is determined using the tax ratesahaexpected to apply to the period when the @ssetlized or the
liability is settled, as applicable, based on t&bes and laws in the respective tax jurisdictioacted as of the
balance sheet date.

The Company reviews its deferred tax assets famverability and establishes a valuation allowaraseld on
historical taxable income, projected future taxab®me, applicable tax strategies, and the exgdateng of the
reversals of existing temporary differences. A atibhn allowance is provided when it is more likéian not that
some portion or all of the deferred tax assetsmdtlbe realized.

The Company adopted the provisions of FASB Integtien No. 48 Accounting for Uncertainty in Income
Taxes — an interpretation of FASB Statement No("FIf8l 48”) on January 1, 2007. The Company considers
factors when evaluating and estimating its taxfm®s and tax benefits, which may require periatigistments ar
which may not accurately anticipate actual outcari@s positions are recognized only when it is mikely than
not, (likelihood of greater than 50%), based ommézal merits, that the positions will be sustaingodn
examination. Tax positions that meet the more+yiktban-not threshold are measured using a prolabikighted
approach as the largest amount of tax benefitishgrieater than 50% likely of being realized upetilement.
Whether the more-likely-than-not recognition thr@shis met for a tax position is a matter of judginieased on the
individual facts and circumstances of that posigealuated in light of all available evidence.
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* Minority interests

Minority interests in the equity and results of mgi®ns of the entities consolidated by the Compameyshown
as a separate line item in the consolidated firrdistatements. The entities included in the codatdid financial
statements that have minority interests are asviwstl

Ownership Percentage

December 31 December 31
2007 2006
Celanese Gmbl®) 10(% 98%
InfraServ GmbH & Co. Oberhausen K2 0% 98%
Celanese Polisinteza d.c 76% 76%
Synthesegasanlage Ruhr Gm(3) 50% 50%

@) The Company acquired the remaining shares of Cega@enbH in conjunction with the Squeeze-Out, as
discussed in Note :

(@ This entity was sold as part of the Company’s shiés oxo products and derivatives businessedjsasissed
in Note 5.

(®  The Company has a 60% voting interest and the ta@gappoint a majority of the board of managemént o
Synthesegasanlage Ruhr GmbH, which results in tmepany controlling this entity and, accordinglye th
Company is consolidating this entity in its condated financial statemen

« Accounting for sorbates matters

On October 22, 1999, CAG was demerged from Hoek@sf*Hoechst"). In accordance with the demerger
agreement between Hoechst and CAG, CAG was asstgeaibligation related to the sorbates matters (se
Note 24). However, Hoechst agreed to indemnify GA80% of payments for such obligations. Expenséated
to this matter are recorded gross of any such m@wfrom Hoechst, and its legal successors grctimsolidated
statement of operations. Recoveries from Hoechsitjta legal successors, which represent 80% df eupenses,
are recorded directly to Shareholdexquity, net of tax, as a contribution of capitathe consolidated balance shi

« Accounting for purchasing agent agreements

CPO Celanese Aktiengesell Schaft & Co. Procurer®defin KG, Frankfurt Am Main (“CPO")a subsidiary o
the Company, acts as a purchasing agent on befithlé €ompany, as well as third parties. CPO amarsgle and
purchase agreements for raw materials on a conomigsisis. Accordingly, the commissions earned esdtthird-
party sales are classified as a reduction to $gltieneral and administrative expenses. Commissiorminted to
$4 million, $5 million and $9 million for the yeaemded December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, resplgctites raw
material sales volume commissioned by CPO for thadies amounted to $574 million, $937 million and
$880 million for the years ended December 31, 2@006 and 2005, respectively.

 Functional and reporting currencies

For the Company'’s international operations wheeeftimctional currency is other than the US dobasets and
liabilities are translated using period-end exclearages, while the statement of operations amaretsranslated
using the average exchange rates for the respegxtived. Differences arising from the translatidrassets and
liabilities in comparison with the translation bktprevious periods or from initial recognition ithgr the period are
included as a separate component of Accumulatest otmprehensive income (loss), net.

* Reclassifications

The Company has reclassified certain prior perimdunts to conform to current year’s presentation.
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4. Recent accounting pronouncement

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. E&if,Value Measurement{8SFAS No. 157”), which
defines fair value, establishes guidelines for meag fair value and expands disclosures regartiimgralue
measurements. SFAS No. 157 establishes a fair Wédnarchy that prioritizes inputs to valuationheifjues used
for financial and non-financial assets and lialefit SFAS No. 157 does not require any new fameal
measurements but rather eliminates inconsistentiggidance found in various prior accounting pramgements.
In February 2008, the FASB issued FASB Staff Positlo. 157-2;'Partial Deferral of the Effective Date of
Statement 157{(“"FSP No. 157-2"), which defers the effective dat&SFAS No. 157 for certain non-financial assets
and liabilities. SFAS No. 157 became effectivetfer Company on January 1, 2008 for financial assads
liabilities. The impact of adoption on financiakass and liabilities other than pension assetsidichave a material
impact on the Companygfinancial position, results of operations or cigivs. SFAS No. 157 becomes effective
the Company on January 1, 2009 for non-financisdtssand liabilities. The impact of adoption of §Ko. 157 on
non-financial assets and liabilities and pensi@e®sis not expected to have a significant impadhe Company’s
financial position, results of operations and cialvs. However, the Company will continue to evatuds fair
value measurements for non-financial assets ahiliti@s and pension assets.

In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. T8®& Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Fical
Liabilities — Including an Amendment of FASB Statement No(“8FAS No. 159”). This standard permits
companies to choose to measure many financialsaaedtliabilities and certain other items at failue. A compan
will report unrealized gains and losses on itermsvioich the fair value option has been electedaimimgs at each
subsequent reporting date. The fair value optiop beaapplied on an instrument-by-instrument basii several
exceptions, such as those investments accountdxy thve equity method, and once elected, the ojsiamevocable
unless a new election date occurs. The fair vafii®io can be applied only to entire instruments @oicto portions
thereof. SFAS No. 159 is effective for fiscal yebeginning after November 15, 2007. The Company thaé
expect the impact of adopting SFAS No. 159 to beena to the Companyg’financial position, results of operatic
and cash flows.

In May 2007, the FASB issued FASB Staff PositioR§P”) No. FIN 48-1Definition of Settlement in FIN 48
This FSP clarifies FIN 48 to provide guidance thabmpany may recognize a previously unrecogniaethénefit i
the tax position is effectively (as opposed toifoétely”) settled through examination, negotiatarlitigation. The
Company incorporated the guidance in this FSP du2007. See Note 20 for additional information regsg the
impact of adopting FIN 48.

In June 2007, the FASB Emerging Issues Task FOEI&E") reached a conclusion on EITF Issue
No. 0€-11, Accounting for Income Tax Benefits of DividendsSbare-Based Payment AwardgITF
No. 0€-11"). The scope of EITF No. 06-11 consists of dipplication to share-based payment arrangemertts wit
dividend protection features that entitle employteer®ceive (a) dividends on equity-classified vasted shares,
(b) dividend equivalents on equity-classified na@asted share units or (c) payments equal to theelns paid on
the underlying shares while an equity-classifiegrsloption is outstanding, when those dividendsivaidend
equivalents are charged to retained earnings usiE&S No. 123(R) and result in an income tax deduadir the
employer. EITF No. 06-11 should be applied prospebt to the income tax benefits of dividends omigg
classified employee share-based payment awardarhaleclared in fiscal years beginning after Septr 15,
2007. The Company does not expect the impact gftadpEITF No. 06-11 to be material to the Company’
financial position, results of operations and ciahs.

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. Naf-controlling Interests in Consolidated Financial
Statement§'SFAS No. 1607). SFAS No. 160 amends Accounting&sch Bulletin 51 to establish accounting and
reporting standards for the non-controlling intéiesa subsidiary and for the deconsolidation etibsidiary. It
clarifies that a non-controlling interest in a sdiEy is an ownership interest in the consolidatatity that should
be reported as equity in the consolidated finarstetements and establishes a single method ofiating for
changes in a parent’s ownership interest in a didygithat does not result in deconsolidation. SIS 160 is
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effective for fiscal years beginning on or aftercBmber 15, 2008. The Company is currently evalgdtie impact
of adopting SFAS No. 160 on the Company’s finanp@ition, results of operations and cash flows.

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 141R3jness Combinatiorf§SFAS No. 141(R)").
SFAS No. 141(R) establishes principles and requérgmfor how an acquirer recognizes and measuiies in
financial statements the identifiable assets aequihe liabilities assumed, the goodwill acquiaed any non-
controlling interest in the acquiree. This stateh@so establishes disclosure requirements to erthblevaluation
of the nature of the financial effect of the busmeombination. SFAS No. 141(R) is effective fohailsiness
combinations for which the acquisition date is omfber the beginning of the first fiscal year affiecember 15,
2008, with the exception of the accounting for @dilon allowances on deferred taxes and acquired tax
contingencies. SFAS No. 141(R) amends SFAS No. A@&unting for Income Taxgesuch that adjustments made
to valuation allowances on deferred taxes and aeduax contingencies associated with acquisitibasclosed
prior to the effective date of SFAS No. 141(R) wbalso apply the provisions of SFAS No. 141(R). Twenpany
is currently evaluating the impact of adopting SFA& 141(R) on the Company’s financial positiorsulés of
operations and cash flows.

5. Acquisitions, ventures and divestitures
Acquisitions:

On January 31, 2007, the Company completed thasitiqn of the cellulose acetate flake, tow andhfil
business of Acetate Products Limited (“APL"), a sidliary of Corsadi B.V. The purchase price for titemsaction
was approximately £57 million ($112 million), inditlon to direct acquisition costs of approximatél million
($7 million). Pro forma financial information hastrbeen provided as the acquisition did not hareaterial impact
on the Company’s results of operations. As contatepl prior to the closing of the acquisition, iptenber 2007,
the Company closed the acquired tow productiontgahittle Heath, United Kingdom. In accordancehithe
Company’s sponsor services agreement dated JaR6aPP05, as amended, the Company paid the Advisor
$1 million in connection with the acquisition. Taequired business is included in the Company’s Guies
Specialties segment (see Note 26 for additionakimétion on the Company’s reportable segments).

The following table presents the allocation of #ltguisition costs to the assets acquired anditiasibssumed,
based on their fair values:

(In $ millions)

Accounts receivabl 34
Inventories 28
Property, plant, and equipme 97
Goodwill 18
Intangible asset 1
Other current assets/liabilities, t (46)
Non-current liabilities (13)
Net assets acquire 11¢

On April 6, 2004, the Company acquired 84% of CA@ring 2005, the Company acquired an additional 14%
of CAG. As a result of the effective registratiditloe Squeeze-Out in the commercial register im@zery in
December 2006, the Company acquired the remairlii@f2CAG in January 2007 (see Note 2 for additional
information on the acquisition of CAG).

In February 2005, the Company acquired VinamulNbgh American and European emulsion polymer
business of Imperial Chemical Industries PLC (“ICftsr $208 million, in addition to direct acquisiti costs of
$9 million. Vinamul operates manufacturing facdgiin the United States, Canada, the United Kingdodthe
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Netherlands. As part of the agreement, ICI willtirune to supply Vinamul with starch, dextrin antiext specialty
ingredients following the acquisition. The Companill supply ICI with vinyl acetate monomer and pwoiyy!
alcohols. The supply agreements are for fifteemsyaad the pricing is based on market and otheotretgd terms.
The fair value of the supply contract was approxetya$11 million and was recorded as deferred raedo be
amortized over the fifteen year life of the agreame

In July 2005, the Company acquired Acetex CorponaffAcetex”) for $270 million, in addition to dic¢
acquisition costs of $16 million and assumed Acet8247 million of debt, which is net of cash acedi of
$54 million. Acetex has two primary businesses s-Aitetyls business and its Specialty Polymers ainasF
businesses (see divestitures below for discusditmecsale of the Films business). The Acetyls mess is operated
in Europe and the Polymers and Film businessesmeeated in North America.

Ventures:

In March 2007, the Company entered into a strategithership with Accsys Technologies PLC (“Accgys”
and its subsidiary, Titan Wood, to become the estekisupplier of acetyl products to Titan Wood'shieology
licensees for use in wood acetylation. In connectiith this partnership, in May 2007, the Compaogared
8,115,883 shares of Accsys’ common stock reprasgiaipproximately 5.45% of the total voting shareAasys
for €22 million ($30 million). The investment isstited as an available-for-sale security (see Noaa is included
as a component of current Other assets on the Qorigpeonsolidated balance sheet. On November 207 20 e
Company and Accsys announced that they agreedaaditheir business arrangements so that each comaplian
have a nonexclusive “at-will” trading and supplat®nship to give both companies greater flexipilAs part of
this amendment, the Company has the ability toitseliommon stock ownership in Accsys through atedy
placement of the Company’s Accsys shares. As oeBéer 31, 2007, the Company sold 1,238,016 shéres o
Accsys’ common stock for approximately €4 millig6(million), which resulted in a gain of approxireigt
$1 million.

In August 2005, the Company and Hatco Corporatgmeed to wind up Estech GmbH, its venture for
neopropyl esters. The Company recorded an impairoterge of $10 million, included in Equity in resrnings of
affiliates, related to this matter during the yeaded December 31, 2005.

In April 2004, the Company and a group of investedsby Conduit Ventures Ltd. entered into a vestwhich
was named Pemeas GmbH. This venture was formedi@n to advance the commercialization of the Comjzan
fuel cell technology. Pemeas GmbH was considenatiable interest entity as defined under FIN Na(R),
Consolidation of Variable Interest Entiti€$-IN No. 46(R)"). The Company was deemed the priyrtzeneficiary of
this variable interest entity and, accordingly, saidated this entity in its consolidated finanagttements. In the
period the Company adopted FIN No. 46(R), the clishsiion of this entity did not have a material iagp on the
Company'’s financial position or results of operai@and cash flows. In December 2005, the Compalyitso
common stock interest in Pemeas GmbH, which raedift¢he Company no longer being the primary beieafy.
The Company recognized a gain of less than $1anilielated to this sale. In December 2006, the Gomgold its
preferred interest in Pemeas GmbH to BASF AG, kexknet proceeds from the sale of €9 million arbgaized a
gain of €8 million ($11 million). This amount isdluded in Other income (expense), net in the cadatad
statement of operations.

Divestitures:

On August 20, 2007, the Company sold its Filmstess of AT Plastics, located in Edmonton and Wektlo
Alberta, Canada, to British Polythene Industrie€RBPI”) for $12 million. The Films business maaafures
products for the agricultural, horticultural anchstruction industries. The Company recorded adosthe sale of
approximately $7 million during the year ended Deber 31, 2007. The Company maintained ownershtheof
Polymers business of AT Plastics, which concerdratethe development and supply of specialty resins
compounds. AT Plastics is included in the Compaihyiistrial Specialties segment. The Company caledithat
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the sale of the Films business of AT Plastics isandiscontinued operation due to the level of iomihg cash flows
between the Films business and AT Plastics’ Polgrhasiness subsequent to the sale. Under the tdriing
purchase agreement, the Company entered into gdamsales agreement to continue selling produBftiathrougt
August 2009.

In connection with the Company’s strategy to opienits portfolio and divest non-core operations, th
Company announced on December 13, 2006 its agreemsell its Acetyl Intermediates segment’s oxodurcts
and derivatives businesses, including European@xbH (“EOXQ”), a%%/ soventure between CAG and Degussa
AG (“Degussa”), to Advent International, for a poase price of €480 million ($636 million) subjestfinal
agreement adjustments and the successful exefdise @ompany’s option to purchase Degussa’s 5aédst in
EOXO. On February 23, 2007, the option was exedcisel the Company acquired Degussa’s intereseinehture
for a purchase price of €30 million ($39 milliom),addition to €22 million ($29 million) paid to #xguish EOXO5s
debt upon closing of the transaction. The Compamypteted the sale of its oxo products and derieativusinesse
including the acquired 50% interest in EOXO, onraeby 28, 2007. The sale included the oxo and dévigs
businesses at the Oberhausen, Germany, and BayT€kgs facilities as well as portions of its Biphdexas
facility. Also included were EOXQ's facilities wiith the Oberhausen and Marl, Germany plants. Thadoioxo
products and derivatives businesses acquired beitdnternational was renamed Oxea. Taking int@actagree
deductions by the buyer for pension and other eyggdoenefits and various costs for separationitiesythe
Company received proceeds of approximately €44Bomi($585 million) at closing. The transactionuked in the
recognition of a $47 million preax gain, which includes certain working capitatiather adjustments, in 2007. C
to certain lease-back arrangements between the &ogmrgnd the buyer and related environmental olitigatof the
Company, approximately $51 million of the transactproceeds attributable to the fair value of thdarlying land
at Bay City ($1 million) and Oberhausen (€36 millidgs included in deferred proceeds in Iadegn Other liabilities
and divested land with a book value of $14 mill{10 million at Oberhausen and $1 million at BagyCremains
on the Company’s consolidated balance sheet.

Subsequent to closing, the Company and Oxea hatagrcsite service and product supply arrangemditis.
site services include, but are not limited to, adstrative, utilities, health and safety, wasteavateatment and
maintenance activities for terms which range frare o fifteen years. Product supply agreementsagoiitial
terms of up to fifteen years. The Company has maraotual ability through these agreements or dahgro
arrangements to significantly influence the opebr financial policies of Oxea. The Company caded, based
on the nature and limited projected magnitude efdbntinuing business relationship between the Gowypnd
Oxea, that the divestiture of the oxo products @erivatives businesses should be accounted fodaxantinued
operation.

Third-party sales include $5 million, $35 million&$33 million for the years ended December 31722006
and 2005, respectively, that would have been elteith upon consolidation were the divestiture nobanted for a
a discontinued operation. These amounts relatalés $rom the continuing operations of the Comparthe
divested businesses.

F-19




CELANESE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Conti nued)

The following table presents the major classessséts and liabilities of the oxo products and deives
businesses divested:

(In $ millions)

Trade receivable— third party and affiliates, n« 14t
Inventories 75
Other asset— current 8
Investment«(d) 12t
Property, plant and equipme 13¢
Other asset 21
Goodwill 42
Intangible assets, n 10

Total asset 56&
Current liabilities 4
Other liabilities 19

Total liabilities 23

@ Includes the Company’s 50% investment in EOXO &red50% interest in EOXO purchased from Degussa in
February 2007

In accordance with the Company’s sponsor servigeseanent dated January 26, 2005, as amended, the
Company paid the Advisor $6 million in connectioithathe sale of the oxo products and derivativesrimsses.

During the third quarter of 2006, the Company didtmed its Pentaerythritol (“PE”) operations, whigere
included in the Acetyl Intermediates segment. Dyitine second quarter of 2007, the Company discoedirits
Edmonton, Canada methanol operations, which wetaded in the Acetyl Intermediates segment. Assaltethe
earnings (loss) from operations related to the Bammomethanol and PE operations are reflected mpaoents of
discontinued operations in the consolidated statésn& operations.

In December 2005, the Company sold its Cyclo-oefiopolymer (“COC”) business to a venture of Japan’
Daicel Chemical Industries Ltd. (“Daicel”) and Pplsgstics Co. Ltd. (“Polyplastics”). Daicel holdsrejority stake
in the venture with 55% interest and Polyplastidsich itself is a venture between the Company aaté, owns
the remaining 45%. The transaction resulted irsa tf approximately $35 million.

In October 2004, the Company announced plans teemmgnt a strategic restructuring of its acetaterass to
increase efficiency, reduce overcapacity in cersa@as and to focus on products and markets thaidar long-term
value. As part of this restructuring, the Compangaunced its plans to discontinue its filament afiens, which
were included in the Consumer Specialties segnpeiot, to December 31, 2005 and to consolidated&tate flake
and tow manufacturing operations. During the fougptlarter of 2005, the Company discontinued itsiféat
operations. As a result, the earnings (loss) frperations related to the filament operations dfteated as a
component of discontinued operations in the codatdid statements of operations.

In July 2005, in connection with the Vinamul tracisan, the Company agreed to sell its emulsion pred
business to ICI for approximately $25 million. Thiansaction included a supply agreement wherebyttimpany
supplies product to ICI for a period of up to féteyears. In connection with the sale, the Compadyced goodwi
related to the acquisition of Vinamul by $6 milliofhe transaction closed in September 2005.
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The following tables summarize the results of tiseahtinued operations for the years ended DeceBther
2007, 2006 and 2005:

Year Ended
December 31,
2007@) 2006 2005
(In $ millions)

Net Sale: 197 891 84t
Cost of sale: (152) (759 (742)
Gross profit 45 13z 10:%
Operating profit 40 13C 96
Gain on disposal of discontinued operati 52 5 —
Income tax provision from operation of discontinugmbrations (13) (46) (33
Income tax benefit (provision) from gain on disdagfadiscontinued operatior 112 2 —
Earnings from discontinued operatic a0 87 63

(1) The year ended December 31, 2007 includes onlyntevaths of operations for the oxo products and
derivatives businesses as these businesses werersbebruary 28, 200

(@ Income tax benefit on gain from disposal of disowred operations of $11 million is comprised of $2#lion
tax expense related to the divestiture of facgifiethe US, offset by $40 million tax benefit ¢ tivestiture
of facilities and investments in Germal

Asset Sales:

In December 2007, the Company sold the assets Btiinonton, Alberta, Canada facility to a realtesta
developer for approximately $35 million. As parttbé agreement, the Company will retain certainrenmental
liabilities associated with the site. The Compasayedognized approximately $16 million of asseteatient
obligations which were transferred to the buyeraAesult of the sale, the Company recorded aafain
approximately $37 million for the year ended Decentil, 2007.

On July 31, 2007, the Company reached an agreamignBabcock & Brown, a worldwide investment firm,
which specializes in real estate and utilities dgwment, to sell its Pampa, Texas, facility. Thar@any will
maintain its chemical operations at the site wattleast 2009. Proceeds received upon certain tmilegvents are
treated as deferred proceeds and included interrg-Other liabilities until the transaction is qolete, as defined |
the sales agreement.

In October 2005, the Company sold its Rock Hill, @&@nufacturing facility for $4 million in cash. Asresult
the Company derecognized $12 million of assetemtént obligations and $7 million of environmeniabilities
which were legally transferred to the buyer, armbrded a gain of $23 million.

6. Securities Available for Sale

As of December 31, 2007 and 2006, the Company B&d fhillion and $265 million, respectively, of seties
available for sale, which were included as a conepbf current and long-term Other assets. The Goyip
captive insurance companies and pension relatststhold these securities for capitalization andifing
requirements, respectively. The Companshares of Accsys are also included as a componheeturities availabl
for sale (see Note 5). The Company recorded agadized gain (loss) of less than $1 million, $(d)ion and
$(2) million for the years ended December 31, 2@0D6 and 2005, respectively.
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The amortized cost, gross unrealized gain, grossalined loss and fair values for available-foressécurities
by major security type as of December 31, 20072006, were as follows:

Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair
Cost Gain Loss Value
(In $ millions)

As of December 31, 200
Debt securitie:

US governmen 67 5 — 72
US corporate 33 — (1) 32
Total debt securitie 10C 5 @ 104
Bank certificates of depos 7 — — 7
Equity securitie: 78 26 — 104
Mortgage-backed securitie 46 — — 46
Total 231 31 (1) 261
As of December 31, 200
Debt securitie:
US governmen 69 1 1) 69
US corporate 54 — (D) 53
Total debt securitie 122 1 2 122
Bank certificates of depos 10 — — 10
Equity securitie: 59 11 — 70
Mortgagebacked securitie 58 — @ 57
Money markets deposits and other secur 6 — — 6
Total 25€ 12 (3) 26F

Fixed maturities as of December 31, 2007 by cotuedenaturity are shown below. Actual maturitiesiico
differ from contractual maturities because borravmay have the right to call or prepay obligatiomith or without
call or prepayment penalties.

Amortized Fair

Cost Value

(In $ millions)
Within one yea 18 18
From one to five yeat 42 42
From six to ten yeal 26 26
Greater than ten yea 67 71
153 157

Proceeds received from fixed maturities that matvithin one year are expected to be reinvestedadttitiona
securities upon such maturity.
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7. Receivables, Ne

As of
December 31,
2007 2006
(In $ millions)

Trade receivable— third party and affiliate 1,027 1,01%
Allowance for doubtful accoun— third party and affiliate (18 (16
Subtotal 1,00¢ 1,001
Reinsurance receivabl 35 85
Other 402 39C
Net receivable 1,44¢ 1,47¢

As of December 31, 2007 and 2006, the Company bagiigmificant concentrations of credit risk sinbe t
Company’s customer base is dispersed across mHagedt industries and geographies.

8. Inventories

As of

December 31,
2007 2006

(In $ millions)
Finished good 50C 50C
Work-in-process 29 33
Raw materials and suppli 107 12C
Total inventories 63€ 652
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9. Investments
Equity Method

The Company’s equity investments and ownershipeasts are as follows:

Ownership
Percentage Carrying Value Share of Earnings (Loss
As of December 31 As of December 31  Year Ended December 31
Segment 2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 200€ 2005
(In percent) (In $ millions)
Estech GmbH & Co. K@ Acetyl Intermediate 51.C 51.C — —_ - = (a0
European Oxo Gmbl@ Acetyl Intermediate — 50.C — 26 2 10 1C
Erfei, A.lLE Acetyl Intermediate 45.C 45.C 1 1 Q — —
Advanced Engineere
Fortron Industrie: Materials 50.C 50.C 73 63 16 14 11
Korea Engineerin Advanced Engineere
Plastics Co., Ltd Materials 50.C 50.C 17C 16C 14 13 14
Advanced Engineere
Polyplastics Co., Ltd Materials 45.C 45.C 17C 13€ 25 26 24
InfraServ GmbH & Co. Gendorf Ki Other Activities 39.C 39.C 3C 26 5 4 4
InfraServ GmbH & Co. Hochst Ki Other Activities 31.z 31.z2 154 13€ 18 14 7
InfraServ GmbH & Co. Knapsack K Other Activities 28.2 28.2 23 18 4 1 1
Sherbrooke Capital Health and
Wellness, L.P®) Consumer Specialtie 10.C 100 _ 4 4 — 1 —
Total 62¢ 57C 83 83 61

@ In August 2005, the Company and Hatco Corporatgmeed to wind up this investme

@ The Company divested this investment in Februafj728ee Note 5). The share of earnings (losshier t
investment is included in Earnings (loss) from diginued operations on the consolidated statenuénts
operations

®  The Company accounts for its 10% ownership intereSherbrooke Capital Health and Wellness, L.FRleun
the equity method of accounting because the Comisaalyle to exercise significant influen:

Year Ended December 31
2007 2006 2005
(In $ millions)

Affiliates totals:

Net earningt 204 197 13¢
Compan’s share

Net earning®) 83 83 61

Dividends and other distributiol 57 10¢ 66

@O Amount does not include a $1 million and a $3 milliiquidating dividend from Clear Lake MethanoktPar:
for the years ended December 31, 2007 and 20Qtecteely.
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The total assets and liabilities associated withGompany’s equity method investments are as fallow

As of December 31,

2007 2006

(In $ millions)
Total asset 2,91¢ 2,50¢
Total liabilities 1,57¢ 1,411

Cost Investments

The Company’s investments accounted for underalseroethod of accounting as of December 31 are as
follows:

Carrying Value as of

Ownership Percentage December 31
Segment 2007 2006 2007 2006
(In percent) (In $ millions)

National Methanol Company (lbn Sir Acetyl Intermediate 25 25 54 54
Kunming Cellulose Fibers Co. Ltc Consumer Specialtie 30 30 15 15
Nantong Cellulose Fibers Co. Lt Consumer Specialtie 31 31 77 77
Zhuhai Cellulose Fibers Co. Lt Consumer Specialtie 30 30 15 15
InfraServ GmbH & Co. Wiesbaden K Other Activities 8 8 6 6
Other 22 26
Total 18¢ 19:

Certain cost investments where the Company owretgréhan a 20% ownership interest are accounted fo
under the cost method of accounting because thep@ayncannot exercise significant influence oves¢hentities.
The Company determined that it cannot exercisafgignt influence over these entities due to lapaernment
investment in and influence over these entitiesitdtions on the Company'’s involvement in the dayday
operations and the present inability of the erttit@eprovide timely financial information preparnedaccordance
with US GAAP.

During 2007, the Company wrote-off its remainirigrillion ($1 million) cost investment in EuropeRipeline
Development Company B.V. (“EPDC”) and expensed €liam ($9 million), included in Other income (expse),
net, associated with contingent liabilities thatdme payable due to the Company’s decision taleipipeline
development project. The investment in EPDC relédetie construction of a pipeline system, solelgidated to
the transportation of propylene, which was to catfotterdam via Antwerp, Netherlands, with the @amy’s
Oberhausen and Marl production facilities in Germatowever, on February 15, 2007, EPDC shareholdzted tc

cease the pipeline project as originally envisag@aigo into liquidation. The Company was a 12.5%elolder of
EPDC.

During 2007, the Company fully impaired its $5 moifi cost investment in Elemica Corporation (“Eleafijc
Elemica is a network for the global chemical industeveloped by 22 of the leading chemical compaini¢he
world for the benefit of the entire industry. Ther@pany is a 1.83% shareholder of Elemica througprigferred
share holdings. As part of Elemica’s planned chp#arganization in 2007, its board of directors paoposed to
convert all outstanding preferred stock into shafesSlemica’s common stock. Based on the Compaayéysis of
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Elemica’s proposed capital reorganization, pastiags performance and business prospects, the Ggmpa
concluded that its cost investment in Elemica wagsaired. The impairment was included in Other ineom
(expense), net.

10. Property, Plant and Equipment, Net

As of
December 31,
2007 2006
(In $ millions)
Land 69 64
Land improvement 45 51
Buildings 353 353
Machinery and equipme 2,40¢  2,08¢
Construction in progres 32¢ 28¢
Property, plant and equipment, gr 3,20C 2,84z
Less: accumulated depreciati (83¢) (687)
Property, plant and equipment, | 2,36z 2,15¢

Assets under capital leases, net of accumulatedtiation, amounted to approximately $105 milliorda
$26 million as of December 31, 2007 and 2006, retbydy.

Interest costs capitalized were $9 million, $6 imilland $4 million during the years ended Decen3der2007,
2006 and 2005, respectively.

Depreciation expense was $209 million, $191 milkow $201 million during the years ended Decemlier 3
2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively.
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11. Goodwill

Carrying value of goodwill as of December 31, 21
Acquisition of Acete>— adjustment:

Acquisition of CAG®)

Exchange rate chang

Carrying value of goodwill as of December 31, 2(2)
Acquisition of CAG®)

Acquisition of APL

Sale of oxo products and derivatives busine

Sale of AT Plastic Films busines:

Adoption of FIN 484

Goodwill impairment®)

Exchange rate chang

Carrying value of goodwill as of December 31, 2!

Advanced
Engineerec Consumer Industrial

Acetyl

Materials Specialtiec  Specialties Intermediates  Total
(In $ millions)
28t 267 59 33¢€ 94¢
— — (6) 17 11
(26) (33 @) (26) (86
(©) 6 — ) 1
25€ 24C 52 327 87t
(11) (14) — (17) (36)
— 18 — — 18
— — — 42 (42
— — 1) — 1)
15 6 (1) (22) 2)
— — (6) — (6)
17 14 3 26 60
277 264 47 27¢ 86¢€

@ Amounts have been reallocated based on the resegdents as discussed in Note

@ The adjustments recorded during the year endedriteee31, 2006 consist primarily of reversals otaier
pre-acquisition tax valuation allowances and resolutibancertainties

() The adjustments recorded during the year endedrbte®e31, 2007 consist primarily of goodwill recadde
related to the purchase of the remaining outstan@AG shares during the Squeeze-Out of $5 milliised
by reversals of certain f-acquisition tax valuation allowances of $41 milli

(4)  See Note 20 for additional discussion of FIN

®)  In connection with the Company’s annual goodwilpmirment test, the Company recorded an impairmient o

approximately $6 million in the polyvinyl alcohdiRVOH”) reporting unit. The PVOH reporting unit is

included in the Industrial Specialties segm:
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12. Intangible Assets

Gross Asset Value
As of December 31, 20(
Acquisitions
Divestitures
Impairment
Exchange rate chang
As of December 31, 20(
Acquisitions
Divestitures
Exchange rate chang
As of December 31, 20(
Accumulated Amortization
As of December 31, 20(
Current period amortizatic
Divestitures
Exchange rate chang
As of December 31, 20(
Current period amortizatic
Divestitures
Exchange rate chang

As of December 31, 20(C

Net Book Value as of December 31, 2(

Estimated amortization expense for the succeedieditcal years is approximately $63 million inGH)

Customer Covenants
Trademarks Related not to
and Intangible Developed Compete
Tradenames Assets Technology and Other  Total
(In $ millions)

73 474 12 11 57C

2 14 — 1 17
— 8 — — (8)
2 — — — (2

6 43 1 — 50

79 522 13 12 627

2 10 — — 12
(1) 17 1) — 9

5 46 — — 51

85 562 12 12 671
(1) (80) () 3 (89
— (65) 3 ()

- 8 = == 8
— (12) — — _(12
(1) (149 8 (6) (169
— (68) 1) @ (72

1 5 — — 6
— (16) — — (16)
— (228) (9 (9) (24¢€)

85 334 3 3 42t

$61 million in 2009, $52 million in 2010, $48 mdh in 2011 and $36 million in 2012. The Companyaslemarks
and tradenames have an indefinite life. Accordipgtyamortization is recorded on these intangibiets. As a

result of the Company’s annual impairment testrmiefinite-lived intangible assets, the Company méed an

impairment loss of $2 million for the year endedcBber 31, 2006.
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13. Other Current Liabilities

Salaries and benefi
Environmental (see Note 1
Restructuring (see Note 1
Insurance

Sorbates litigatiol

Asset retirement obligatior
Derivatives

Other

Total Other current liabilitie

14. Other Liabilities

Environmental (see Note 1
Insurance

Deferred revenu

Deferred proceeds (see Notes 5 and
Asset retirement obligatior
Derivatives

Other

Total lon¢-term Other liabilities

Changes in asset retirement obligations are relemhas follows:

Balance at beginning of ye
Additions

Accretion

Payment:

Divestitures(1)

Purchase accounting adjustme
Revisions to cash flow estimat
Exchange rate chang

Balance at end of ye(@

As of
December 31,
2007 2006
(In $ millions)

16¢ 19¢
19 26
40 34
41 68
17C 14¢
16 12
12¢ 7
308 287
88 _78C
As of
__December 31,
2007 2006
(In $ millions)
96 88
78 86
71 72
93 26
31 47
37 34
89 90
49t 443
Year Ended

December 31,

2007 2006 2005

(In $ millions)

59 54 52
— 10 9
5 3 4
® @ 9
1 — @12
3 — 9
@ 0 —
4 1 1
47 59 54

@) The amount in 2007 relates to the sale of the Edomoplant and the amount in 2005 relates to the sihe

Rock Hill plant (see Note 5

@ Included in the liability for each of the years edd>ecember 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005 is approxiynatel
$10 million related to a business acquired in 200% Company has a corresponding receivable fer thi

amount included in Other receivables for each es¢hrespective yeal
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The Company has identified but not recognized assiegement obligations related to certain of k&tng
operating facilities. Examples of these types digaltions include demolition, decommissioning, aisal and
restoration activities. Legal obligations existimnnection with the retirement of these assets gpmsure of the
facilities or abandonment of the existing operatiddowever, the Company currently plans on contiguiperation
at these facilities indefinitely and therefore asenable estimate of fair value cannot be deteané¢his time. In
the event the Company considers plans to abandosase operations at these sites, an asset ratiretvigyation
will be reassessed at that time. If certain opegdfiacilities were to close, the related assetewtént obligations
could significantly affect the Company’s resultsopierations and cash flows.

15. Debt

As of
December 31,
2007 2006
(In $ millions)

Short-term borrowings and current installments of lon¢-term debt — third party and
affiliates

Current installments of loi-term debt 44 127
Shor-term borrowings, principally comprised of amounte do affiliates 22¢ 182

Total short-term borrowings and current installnsewitlong-term debt — third party and

affiliates 272 30¢

Long-term debt
Senior Credit Facilities: Term Loan facility due12a(® — 1,62
Senior Credit Facilities: Term Loan facility duel2( 2,85¢ —
Senior Subordinated Notes 9.625%, due z() — 79¢
Senior Subordinated Notes 10.375%, due z(1) — 171
Senior Discount Notes 10.5%, due 2(1) — 33¢
Senior Discount Notes 10%, due 2(®) — 81
Term notes 7.125%, due 20 14 14
Pollution control and industrial revenue bondsgiiest rates ranging from 5.7% to 6.7%, due ¢

various dates through 20: 181 191
Obligations under capital leases and other seduwa@wings due at various dates through 2 11C 30
Other bank obligations, interest rates ranging f655% to 7.05%, due at various dates throu:

2014 16€ 69
Subtotal 3,32¢  3,31¢

Less: Current installments of lo-term debt 44 127

Total lon¢-term debt 3,284 3,18¢

) These facilities were repaid in full in conjunctiaiith the debt refinancing discussed bel:

As of December 31, 2006, the amended and restdgmdigry 2005) senior credit facilities consisted térm
loan facility, a revolving credit facility and aedit-linked revolving facility. The $600 million velving credit
facility provided for the availability of letterd aredit in US dollars and Euros and for borrowilogs
same-day notice. As of December 31, 2006, there weiletters of credit issued or outstanding boimge under
the revolving credit facility; accordingly, $600 liran remained available for borrowing. The Compdrag an
approximate $228 million credit-linked revolvingcflity available for the issuance of letters ofditeAs of
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December 31, 2006, there were $218 million of tette credit issued under the credit-linked revodvfacility and
$10 million remained available for borrowing.

Debt Refinancing

In March 2007, the Company announced a comprehensoapitalization plan to refinance its debt and
repurchase shares. On April 2, 2007, the Compangugh certain of its subsidiaries, entered int@a senior
credit agreement. The new senior credit agreenmgists of $2,280 million of US dollar denominatedi
€400 million of Euro denominated term loans due 2@14650 million revolving credit facility termiriag in 2013
and a $228 million credit-linked revolving facilitgrminating in 2014. Borrowings under the new senredit
agreement bear interest at a variable interestiaed on LIBOR (for US dollars) or EURIBOR (forrks), as
applicable, or, for US dollar denominated loansarr@brtain circumstances, a base rate, in eachphasan
applicable margin. The applicable margin for threntéoans and any loans under the credit-linked Ixéng facility
is 1.75%, subject to potential reductions as definghe new senior credit agreement. The termdearder the new
senior credit agreement are subject to amortizatidi9o of the initial principal amount per annurayable
quarterly. The remaining principal amount of thertéoans is due on April 2, 2014.

As of December 31, 2007, there were $129 millioketiErs of credit issued under the credit-linkedalving
facility and $99 million remained available for bowing. As of December 31, 2007, there were notanoting
borrowings or letters of credit issued under thehang credit facility; accordingly $650 millioremained available
for borrowing.

The new senior credit agreement is guaranteed lan€se Holdings LLC and certain domestic subsielsaof
Celanese US, and is secured by a lien on subdta@ticassets of Celanese US and such guarargobgect to
certain agreed exceptions, pursuant to the Guarame Collateral Agreement, dated as of April H72®y and
among Celanese Holdings LLC, Celanese US, cerntdigidiaries of Celanese US and Deutsche Bank A@, Ne
York Branch, as Administrative Agent and as Colalté.gent.

The new senior credit agreement contains a nunfb@wenants that, subject to certain exceptiorstricg,
among other things, the ability of Celanese HoldibC and its subsidiaries to incur new debt, repase shares,
make certain investments, acquire new entitieasskts and pay dividends in excess of amountsfigakin the
agreement. Additionally, the revolving credit fitgilrequires Celanese Holdings LLC and its subsiegato
maintain a maximum First-Lien Senior Secured LegerRatio, as defined in the agreement, when tlsere i
outstanding credit exposure under the revolver. Cbmpany is in compliance with all of the covenastated to it
debt agreements as of December 31, 2007.

Proceeds from the new senior credit agreementtiegwith available cash, were used to retire thenany’s
$2,454 million amended and restated (January 28&%pr credit facilities, which consisted of $1,68#lion in
term loans due 2011, a $600 million revolving créaigility terminating in 2009 and an approximag28 million
credit-linked revolving facility terminating in 200and to retire all of the Company’s Senior Subwttd Notes
and Senior Discount Notes as discussed below.

On March 6, 2007, the Company commenced cash tefiges (the “Tender Offers”) with respect to amda
all of the outstanding 10% senior discount notes 2014 and 10.5% senior discount notes due 20&4 §bnior
Discount Notes”)and any and all of the outstanding 9.625% seniboslinated notes due 2014 and 10.375% s
subordinated notes due 2014 (the “Senior Suborelinidbtes”). The Tender Offers expired on April Q02.
Substantially all of the Senior Discount Notes &sahior Subordinated Notes were tendered in coripmatith the
Tender Offers. The remaining outstanding Senioc@ist Notes and Senior Subordinated Notes not tedde
conjunction with the Tender Offers were redeemethieyCompany in May 2007 through optional redenmptio
allowed in the indentures.
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As a result of the refinancing, the Company inadipeemiums paid on early redemption of debt, acatde
amortization and other refinancing expenses. Thepoments of refinancing expenses are as follows:

Year Ended
December 31,
2007 2006 2008
(In $ millions)

Premium paid on early redemption of d 207 — 74
Accelerated amortization of premiums and defernealicing costs on early redemption and
prepayment of del 33 1 28
Debt issuance costs and ot o
Total refinancing expens 25€ 1 10z

In connection with the refinancing, the Companyorded deferred financing costs of $39 million rethto the
new senior credit agreement, which are includddng-term Other assets on the accompanying coraelid
balance sheet as of December 31, 2007 and wilifzetezed over the term of the new senior credieagrent. The
deferred financing costs consist of $23 milliorcosts incurred to acquire the new senior credi¢ement and
$16 million of debt issue costs existing priorhe refinancing which will be retained and amortipedr the term ¢
the new senior credit agreement.

For the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 arts] #Company recorded amortization of deferred
financing costs, which is classified in Interespense, of $8 million, $13 million and $11 milliarspectively. As
of December 31, 2007 and 2006, the Company hadrien and $58 million of net deferred financingsts.

Principal payments scheduled to be made on the @oy'gpdebt, including short-term borrowings, are as
follows:

(In $ millions)

2008 272
2009 73
2010 69
2011 76
2012 51
Thereaftel 3,01¢

Total 3,55¢

16. Benefit Obligations

Pension obligations.Pension obligations are established for benpéit@ble in the form of retirement,
disability and surviving dependent pensions. Theefis offered vary according to the legal, fisaatl economic
conditions of each country. The commitments refsath participation in defined contribution and def benefit
plans, primarily in the US. Benefits are dependenyears of service and the employee’s compensation
Supplemental retirement benefits provided to certanployees are nonqualified for US tax purposepagte trus!
have been established for some nonqualified plans.

The Company sponsors defined benefit pension teNsrth America, Europe and Asia. As of Decembkr 3
2007, the Company’s US qualified pension plan regméed greater than 83% and 75% of Celanese’sqrepksin
assets and liabilities, respectively. Independersts$ or insurance companies administer the mgjofithese plans.
Pension costs under the Company’s retirement @lemactuarially determined.
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The Company sponsors various defined contributlangin North America, Europe and Asia coveringaiar
employees. Employees may contribute to these pladghe Company will match these contributionsarying
amounts. The Company’s matching contribution todéfned contribution plans are based on specg@mdentages
of employee contributions and aggregated $12 millgl1 million and $12 million for the years ended
December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

The Company participates in multiemployer defineddfit pension plans in Europe covering certain
employees. The Company’s contributions to the remdployer defined benefit pension plans are basespeaified
percentages of employee contributions and aggrégatenillion, $7 million and $6 million for the yeaended
December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

Other postretirement obligationsCertain retired employees receive postretirerheatthcare and life
insurance benefits under plans sponsored by thep&oyn which has the right to modify or terminatesth plans at
any time. The cost for coverage is shared betwseCbmpany and the employee. The cost of providiticgee
health care and life insurance benefits is actliadetermined and accrued over the service pesfdtie active
employee group. The Compasypolicy is to fund benefits as claims and premiamespaid. The US plan was clo
to new participants effective January 1, 2006.
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The following tables set forth the benefit obligais, the fair value of the plan assets and theddrséatus of tf
Company'’s pension and postretirement benefit pland;the amounts recognized in the Company'’s cifatet
financial statements:

Postretirement

Pension Benefit: Benefits
As of
December 31, _As of December 31
2007 2006 2007 2006

(In $ millions)
Change in projected benefit obligatior

Projected benefit obligation at beginning of per 3,34: 3,407 34< 377
Service cos 38 40 2 2
Interest cos 187  18¢ 19 20
Participant contribution 1 1 17 18
Plan amendmen 4 1 — Q)
Actuarial gains@) (123 (@115 (@19 (14)
Special termination benefi — 3 — —
Divestitures — @O — —
Settlement: (40) 9 — —
Benefits paic (215) (20%) (66) (59
Federal subsidy on Medicare Par — — 6 —
Curtailments Q) — (@) Q)
Foreign currency exchange rate char 69 32 4 1
Other 1 6 — —
Projected benefit obligation at end of per 3,264 3,34: 30¢€ 343
Change in plan asset
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of pe 2,80z 2,60: — —
Actual return on plan asse 20¢ 332 — —
Employer contribution 48 53 43 41
Participant contribution 1 1 17 18
Settlement: (28) 9 — —
Benefits paic (215) (20%) (66) (59
Federal subsidy on Medicare Par — — 6 —
Foreign currency exchange rate char 57 20 — —
Other 1 7 — —
Fair value of plan assets at end of pel 2,87t 2,80z — —
Funded status and net amounts recognize
Plan assets less than benefit obliga (389) (541) (30€) (343
Unrecognized prior service cc 3 Q) Q) Q)
Unrecognized actuarial (gain) lo 53y 64 (7)) (44)
Net amount recognized in the consolidated balaheets (439) (47 (379 (389)
Amounts recognized in the accompanying consolidatduhlance sheets consist ¢
Non-current assel 7 4 — —
Current liabilities 1)) (22 (39 (38)
Non-current liabilities (375) (523 (272 (305)
Accrued benefit liability (38%) (541) (306 (343
Net actuarial loss (gair (53 64 (7)) (44)
Prior service cost (benefi 3 (1) (1) (1)
Other comprehensive (income) 12 (500 63 (72 (45)
Net amount recognized in the consolidated balaheets (439) (47¢) (379 (389)

@
@

Primarily relates to change in discount ra

Amount shown net of tax in the consolidated statgmef shareholdergquity. See Note 20 for the related

associated with the pension and postretirementfiveddigations.
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The projected benefit obligation, accumulated bigoéligation and fair value of plan assets fordafined
benefit pension plans with accumulated benefitgations in excess of plan assets at the end of 2002006 were
as follows:

As of
December 31,
2007 2006
(In $ millions)
Projected benefit obligatic 63¢ 3,26/
Accumulated benefit obligatic 61€ 3,12«
Fair value of plan asse 30€ 2,72

The accumulated benefit obligation for all defirmezhefit pension plans was $3,147 million and $318Ron
as of December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively.

The following table sets forth the Company’s netigmic pension cost:

Pension Benefits Postretirement Benefits
Year Ended
Year Ended December 31 December 31,

2007 2006 2005 2007 2006 2005
(In $ millions)

Components of net periodic benefit cos

Service cos 38 40 40 2 2 3
Interest cos 187 182 181 19 20 23
Expected return on plan ass (21€) (207 (2000 — — —
Amortization of prior service co: — 1 — — — —
Recognized actuarial (gain) lo 1 2 1 2 — —
Curtailment (gain) los @ 1 2 (@D} (D) @
Settlement (gain) los (12 — 1 — — —
Special termination benefi — 3 1 = = =

Net periodic benefit cot (3 23 26 18 21 25

Other changes in plan assets and benefit obligatisn
recognized in other comprehensive income

Net actuarial loss (gair (52 66 — (713) @44 —
Prior service cost (benefi 3 — — Q) @ —
Amortization of net actuarial loss (gai @ 2 — 2 — —
Amortization of prior service cost (benef — @ — — — —
Other changes in plan assets and benefit obliga (8) (19 _18¢ — — (49
Total recognized in other comprehensive (incoms3® (58) 52 18C (72 (45 (49
Total recognized in net periodic cost and other p@hensive
(income) los<d) (61) 76 206 (549 (29 (19

@) Amounts shown net of tax in the consolidated stat@mof shareholders’ equity and comprehensiveniigco
(loss).

Amortization of the actuarial (gains)/loss into petiodic cost in 2008 is expected to be $1 milkorl
$(4) million for pension benefits and postretiremieenefits, respectively.

Included in the pension obligations above are aatitiabilities relating to supplemental retiremplans for
certain employees amounting to $230 million and2s2@lion as of December 31, 2007 and 2006, resysigt
Pension expense relating to these plans includedtiperiodic benefit cost totaled $14 million, $hblion and
$15 million for the years ended December 31, 2@006 and 2005, respectively. To fund these obbgati
nonqualified trusts were established, included witton-current Other assets, which held marketsbderrities
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valued at $180 million and $183 million as of Det®m31, 2007 and 2006, respectively, and recogriresime
(loss), excluding appreciation of insurance congaaf $5 million, $5 million and $6 million for ghyears ended
December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectivelgdtfition to holding marketable securities, the natified trust
holds investments in insurance contracts of $68aniand $66 million as of December 31, 2007 and&20

respectively.

Valuation

The Company uses the corridor approach in the tialuaf the defined benefit plans and other posaetent
benefits. The corridor approach defers all actligains and losses resulting from variances betveetunal results
and economic estimates or actuarial assumptionsgdéfmed benefit pension plans, these unrecogrgaats and
losses are amortized when the net gains and lessegd 10% of the greater of the market-relatedevaf plan
assets or the projected benefit obligation at #girining of the year. For other postretirement ene@mortization
occurs when the net gains and losses exceed 1@8é atcumulated postretirement benefit obligatinthe
beginning of the year. The amount in excess ottrddor is amortized over the average remainingise period tc
retirement date for active plan participants or régired participants, the average remainingdifpectancy.

The following tables set forth the principal weigtitaverage assumptions used:

Pension Benefits Postretirement Benefits
As of As of
December 31 December 31
2007 2006 2007 2006
Weighted-average assumptions used to determir

benefit obligations
Discount rate
US plans 6.3(% 5.88% 6.0(% 5.8&%
International plan 5.42% 4.7(% 5.31% 4.8(%

Combined 6.1€% 5.6&% 5.9%% 5.7%
Rate of compensation increa
US plans 4.0(% 4.0(% 4.0(% 4.0(%
International plan 3.15% 3.1&% 3.4&% 3.52%

Combined 3.6€% 3.7%% 3.92% 3.92%
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Pension Benefits Postretirement Benefits

Year Ended December 31 Year Ended December 31
2007 2006 2005 2007 2006 2005

Weighted-average assumptions used to determine net cc
Discount rate

US plans 5.86% 5.65% 5.88% 5.88% 5.6%% 5.8t%
International plan 4.7(% 4.54% 5.5(% 4.8(% 4.97% 5.68%
Combinec 5.6€% 5.4€% 5.85% 5.7<% 5.57% 5.8€%
Expected return on plan asse¢
US plans 8.5(% 8.5(% 8.5(% N/A N/A N/A
International plan 6.5¢% 6.3(% 6.25% N/A  N/A N/A
Combined 8.2(% 8.17% 8.19% N/A  N/A N/A
Rate of compensation increa
US plans 4.00% 4.0(% 4.00% N/A  N/A N/A
International plan 3.18% 3.2€% 3.25% N/A  N/A N/A
Combinec 3.75% 3.81% 3.8(% N/A N/A N/A

The expected rate of return assumptions for plaatasire based mainly on historical performanceaet
over a long period of time (15 to 20 years) encosnjpey many business and economic cycles. Adjussnaptvard
and downward, may be made to those historical metto reflect future capital market expectatiohsse
expectations are typically derived from expert advrom the investment community and surveys of pempany
assumptions.

The Company determines its assumption for the disttates to be used for the purposes of compatimgial
service and interest costs for its US plans basdat@yields of high quality corporate/governmeonds with a
duration appropriate to the duration of the plaligaiions.

The Company determines its discount rates in thhe Eone using the iBoxx Euro Corporate AA Bond aedi
with appropriate adjustments for the duration ef ftan obligations. In other International locatipthe Company
determines its discount rates based on the yidligh quality government bonds with a duration rapiate to the
duration of the plan obligations.

On January 1, 2007, the Company'’s health caretiast assumption for US postretirement medical’plaat
periodic benefit cost was 8.5% for the first twasgegrading down 1% per year to an ultimate ratef On
January 1, 2006, the health care cost trend rase9¥%aper year grading down 1% per year to an ulémate of 5%.

Assumed health care cost trend rates have a signifeffect on the amounts reported for the health plans.
A one-percentage-point increase or decrease iagb@med health care cost trend rate would impatigivement
obligations by $4 million and $(3) million, respeelly. The effect of a one percent increase orekse in the
assumed health care cost trend rate would hawesdHan $1 million impact on service and interest.c

Impact of Remeasuremet

As a result of the sale of the oxo products andvdtives businesses in February 2007 (see Noth&)e was a
reduction of approximately 1,076 employees trigggia settlement and remeasurement of the affeetesign plan
due to certain changes in actuarial valuation aptioms. The settlement and remeasurement resultedhéet
increase in the projected benefit obligation of $#ilion with an offset to Accumulated other comipeasive
income (loss), net (net of tax of $1 million) andedtlement gain of $11 million (included in Gaim disposal of
discontinued operations) for the pension plan dytie year ended December 31, 2007.
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During the second quarter of 2007, the Companyified the shutdown of its Edmonton, Canada methanol
operations. This resulted in the reduction of apjpnately 175 employees triggering a final settletgain of less
than $1 million during the year ended December2BD;7. The settlement and remeasurement resulidéh
decrease in the projected benefit obligation ofrapmately $3 million. The final cash payout dueswva
approximately CDN $30 million ($29 million) and wpaid during the third quarter of 2007.

Plan Assets

The following tables set forth the target assetcation for the Company’s pension plans and thetass
allocation as of December 31, 2007 and 2006:

Weighted
Average Percentage of
Target Plan Assets as of
Allocation December 31
Asset Category— US 2008 2007 2006
Equity securitie: 69% 68% 69%
Debt securitie: 30% 3% 31%
Real estate and oth 1% 2% 0%
Total 100% 10(% 100%
Weighted
Average Percentage o
Target Plan Assets as ¢
Allocation December 31
Asset Category— International 2008 2007 2006
Equity securitie: 23% 3% 50%
Debt securitie! 71% 48% 49%
Real estate and oth 6% 13% 1%
Total 10(% 10(% 10(%

The financial objectives of the qualified pensidans are established in conjunction with a compnsive
review of each plan’s liability structure. The Caang’s asset allocation policy is based on a detakset/liability
analysis. In developing investment policy and fitiahgoals, consideration is given to the plan'mdgraphics, the
returns and risks associated with alternative itnaeat strategies, and the current and projectdu expense and
funding ratios of the plan. The investment policysialso comply with local statutory requiremergslatermined
by each country. A formal asset/liability mix studfythe plan is undertaken every 3 to 5 years aneler there he
been a material change in plan demographics, hestefcture or funding status and investment markias
Company has adopted a long-term investment hosmeh that the risk and duration of investment Issse
weighed against the long-term potential for apftan of assets. Although there cannot be compls$errance that
these objectives will be realized, it is believidttthe likelihood for their realization is reasblyahigh, based upon
the asset allocation chosen and the historicakapécted performance of the asset classes utiizede plans. The
intent is for investments to be broadly diversifamtoss asset classes, investment styles, investnaragers,
developed and emerging markets, business sectdrsegarities in order to moderate portfolio voigtiand risk.
Investments may be in separate accounts, commimglsts, mutual funds and other pooled asset gms$fprovidec
they all conform to fiduciary standards.

External investment managers are hired to managpehsion assets. An investment consultant asgtstshe
screening process for each new manager hired. iBgdong-term, the investment portfolio is expedizéarn
returns that exceed a composite of market inditasare weighted to match each plan’s target aflseation.
Long-term is considered 3 to 5 years; howeverdmoces of underperformance are analyzed. The forntéiurn
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should also (over the long term) meet or exceedahen used for actuarial calculations in ordemiaimize future
pension contributions and escalation in pensiorepge.

Employer contributions for pension benefits andtisement benefits are expected to be $40 mikind
$34 million, respectively, in 2008. The table belmflects pension benefits expected to be paid ftwmplan or
from the Company’s assets. The postretirement ismepresent the Company’s share of the benedit co

Postretirement

Benefit
Pension Expectec
Benefit Federal

Payments)  Payments Subsidy
(In $ millions)

2008 214 34 7
2009 21C 31 6
2010 20¢ 28 7
2011 21z 25 7
2012 211 23 8
201:-2017 1,117 121 8
@) Payments are expected to be made primarily from gésets
Other Obligations
The following table represents additional benddibilities and other similar obligations:
As of
December 31,
2007 2006
(In $ millions)
Long-term disability 36 40
Other _ 13 21
Total _49 61

17. Environmental

General — The Company is subject to environmental laws agdlegions worldwide which impose limitatio
on the discharge of pollutants into the air andawanhd establish standards for the treatment,gtcaad disposal of
solid and hazardous wastes. The Company belieatd ik in substantial compliance with all appbta
environmental laws and regulations. The Compaiysis subject to retained environmental obligatspecified in
various contractual agreements arising from thedtiture of certain businesses by the Company embits
predecessor companies.

For the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 arisl #8Company’s expenditures, including expendgur
for legal compliance, internal environmental irtititas and remediation of active, orphan, divestadl dS
Superfund sites (as defined below) were $83 mill®%1L million and $84 million, respectively. The@pany’s
capital project related environmental expenditdoeshe years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 ansl \2éfe
$14 million, $5 million and $8 million, respectiyelEnvironmental reserves for remediation mattezsew
$115 million and $114 million as of December 3102@nd 2006, respectively, which represents thep2oryis
best estimate of its liability.

Remediation— Due to its industrial history and through retadrcontractual and legal obligations, the
Company has the obligation to remediate specifiagon its own sites as well as on divested, orph&is
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Superfund sites. In addition, as part of the deereagreement between the Company and HoechstcHisgpe
portion of the responsibility for environmentaldilities from a number of Hoechst divestitures wrasisferred to tt
Company. The Company provides for such obligatishen the event of loss is probable and reasonatiypable.

For the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 arfs] f#@®total remediation efforts charged to costadés
were $4 million, $6 million and $4 million, respaely. The Company believes that environmental rdiatéon
costs will not have a material adverse effect @fithancial position of the Company, but may haveaderial
adverse effect on the results of operations or fiasls in any given accounting period.

The Company did not record any insurance recoveglased to these matters for the reported peribldsre ar
no receivables for insurance recoveries as of Dbeedil, 2007 and 2006, however, as of Decembe2®X7, there
is a $13 million receivable from a former owneraof acquired business.

German InfraServs— On January 1, 1997, coinciding with a reorgatimreof the Hoechst businesses in
Germany, real estate service companies (“InfraSewere created to own directly the land and propand to
provide various technical and administrative sesiat each of the manufacturing locations. The Gomyhas
manufacturing operations at two InfraServ location&ermany: Frankfurt am Main-Hoechst and Kelstet and
holds interests in the companies which own andaipehe former Hoechst sites in Gendorf, Knapsack a
Wiesbaden.

InfraServs are liable for any residual contaminaaod other pollution because they own the reakesin
which the individual facilities operate. In additidcHoechst, and its legal successors, as the refp@party under
German public law, is liable to third parties fdremvironmental damage that occurred while it wtisthe owner ¢
the plants and real estate. The contribution agee¢srentered into in 1997 between Hoechst andedpective
operating companies, as part of the divestituthese companies, provide that the operating corapanil
indemnify Hoechst, and its legal successors, agamsronmental liabilities resulting from the tedarred
businesses. Additionally, the InfraServs have apteendemnify Hoechst, and its legal successaainst any
environmental liability arising out of or in conrien with environmental pollution of any site. Likese, in certain
circumstances the Company could be responsiblééoelimination of residual contamination on a fetes that
were not transferred to InfraServ companies, inctvliase Hoechst, and its legal successors, mosbuese the
Company for two-thirds of any costs so incurred.

The InfraServ partnership agreements provide #sabetween the partners, each partner is resperisitéiny
contamination caused predominantly by such partaey.liability, which cannot be attributed to arfriaServ
partner and for which no third party is responsildeequired to be borne by the InfraServ Partriprdn view of
this potential obligation to eliminate residual tamination, the InfraServs, primarily relating wuéy and cost
affiliates which are not consolidated by the Comypdrave reserves of $88 million and $78 millioroés
December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively.

If an InfraServ partner defaults on its respecingemnification obligations to eliminate residuahtamination
the owners of the remaining participation in thidBerv companies have agreed to fund such lissilisubject to a
number of limitations. To the extent that any lidiais are not satisfied by either the InfraServsheir owners, thes
liabilities are to be borne by the Company in adeoce with the demerger agreement. However, Hoehdgtits
legal successors, will reimburse the Company fartiwrds of any such costs. Likewise, in certain einstances tt
Company could be responsible for the eliminationesidual contamination on several sites that wetdransferre:
to InfraServ companies, in which case Hoechst,i@ndgal successors, must also reimburse the Coyrijoa two-
thirds of any costs so incurred. The German InfreSare owned partially by the Company, as notéavipeand the
remaining ownership is held by various other conggan
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The Company’s ownership interest and environméiataility participation percentages for such liatéls which
cannot be attributed to an InfraServ partner werbows as of December 31, 2007:

Company Ownership % Liability %

InfraServ GmbH & Co. Gendorf K 39.(% 10.(%
InfraServ GmbH & Co. Knapsack K 28.2% 22.(%
InfraServ GmbH & Co. Kelsterbach K 100.(% 100.(%
InfraServ GmbH & Co. Hochst K 31.2% 40.(%
InfraServ GmbH & Co. Wiesbaden K 7.9% 0.C%
InfraServ Verwaltungs Gmb| 100.(% 0.C%

US Superfund Sites- In the US, the Company may be subject to subiatartaims brought by US federal or
state regulatory agencies or private individualspant to statutory authority or common law. Intigatar, the
Company has a potential liability under the US FaldEomprehensive Environmental Response, Compensatd
Liability Act of 1980, as amended, and relatedestatvs (collectively referred to as “Superfund”) fovestigation
and cleanup costs at approximately 50 sites. At wiothese sites, numerous companies, includingicer
companies comprising the Company, or one of itdgressor companies, have been notified that thedbmvental
Protection Agency, state governing bodies or peiatlividuals consider such companies to be paliynti
responsible parties (“PRP”) under Superfund orteeldaws. The proceedings relating to these siefmavarious
stages. The cleanup process has not been comptetsast sites and the status of the insurance agedor most of
these proceedings is uncertain. Consequently, ¢imep@ny cannot determine accurately its ultimataillts for
investigation or cleanup costs at these sites.fAaember 31, 2007 and 2006, the Company had gioms
totaling $13 million and $15 million, respectivefgr US Superfund sites and utilized $1 million, iéillion and
$2 million of these reserves during the years ermderember 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectivelgitiddal
provisions and adjustments recorded during thesyeaded December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005 appr@dinaifse
these expenditures.

As events progress at each site for which it has Imamed a PRP, the Company accrues, as appropriate
liability for site cleanup. Such liabilities incladll costs that are probable and can be reasoerabiyated. In
establishing these liabilities, the Company considts shipment of waste to a site, its percentddetal waste
shipped to the site, the types of wastes involtkeg conclusions of any studies, the magnitude gpiramedial
actions that may be necessary and the number abdityi of other PRPs. Often the Company will jewth other
PRPs to sign joint defense agreements that wilks@mong PRPs, each party’s percentage allocafionsts at the
site. Although the ultimate liability may differdm the estimate, the Company routinely reviewdittglities and
revises the estimate, as appropriate, based andbkecurrent information available.

Hoechst Liabilities— In connection with the Hoechst demerger, the @amy agreed to indemnify Hoechst,
and its legal successors, for the first €250 nmillid future remediation liabilities for environmahtiamages arising
from 19 specified divested Hoechst entities. ABetember 31, 2007 and 2006, reserves of $27 mairah
$33 million, respectively, for these matters auded as a component of the total environmentares. As of
December 31, 2007 and 2006, the Company, has mtdetimulative payments of $46 million and $44liwril,
respectively. If such future liabilities excee260 million, Hoechst, and its legal successord, lvear such excess |
to an additional €500 million. Thereafter, the Camyp will bear oneghird and Hoechst, and its legal successors,
bear two-thirds of any further environmental rena¢idn liabilities. Where the Company is unablegasonably
determine the probability of loss or estimate slosls under this indemnification, the Company has@cognized
any liabilities relative to this indemnification.

F-41




CELANESE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Conti nued)

18. Shareholders Equity
Preferred Stock

The Company has $240 million aggregate liquidafi;eference of outstanding preferred stock. Holdétee
preferred stock are entitled to receive, when rakifa declared by the Company’s Board of Directonst of funds
legally available, cash dividends at the rate 86% per annum of liquidation preference, payabkerguly in
arrears, commencing on May 1, 2005. Dividends emiieferred stock are cumulative from the datenitifa
issuance. Accumulated but unpaid dividends accumalzan annual rate of 4.25%. The preferred stck
convertible, at the option of the holder, at amyetinto approximately 1.25 shares of Series A comstock, subje:
to adjustments, per $25.00 liquidation prefererfagreferred stock and upon conversion will be rdedrin
Shareholders’ equity.

During 2007 and 2006, the Company declared and$iidnmillion of cash dividends in each period an it
4.25% convertible perpetual preferred stock.

Initial Public Offering

In January 2005, the Company completed an initiédlip offering of 50,000,000 shares of Series A otm
stock and received net proceeds of $752 millioaerafeducting underwriters’ discounts and offeringenses of
$48 million. Concurrently, the Company received pretceeds of $233 million from the offering of @snvertible
perpetual preferred stock.

On March 9, 2005, the Company issued a 7,500,068sS& common stock dividend to the Original
Shareholders (see Note 18) of its Series B comromk s

On April 7, 2005, the Company used the remainirg@eds of the initial public offering and concutren
financings to pay a special cash dividend declaretflarch 8, 2005 to holders of the Company’s SéBiesmmon
stock of $804 million. Upon payment of the $804limil dividend, all of the outstanding shares ofi&B common
stock converted automatically to shares of Seriesmon stock.

Original Shareholders Sale of Series A Common Stock

On May 9, 2006, the Company registered shares &dties A common stock, shares of its prefermecksind
depository shares pursuant to the Company’s uraVetelf registration statement on Form S-3 filéthhe
Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) on Ma30®6. On May 9, 2006, the Original Shareholdeld s
35,000,000 shares of Series A common stock thrauglblic secondary offering and granted to the omdesr an
over-allotment option to purchase up to an additié,250,000 shares of the Company’s Series A camstack.
The underwriter did not exercise the over-allotmastion. The Company did not receive any of thecpeals from
the offering. The transaction closed on May 15,&20the Company incurred and expensed approximately
$2 million of fees related to this transaction.

On November 7, 2006, the Original Shareholders anlddditional 30,000,000 shares of Series A common
stock in a registered public secondary offeringspant to the universal shelf registration staternant
Form S-3 filed with the SEC on May 9, 2006. The @amy did not receive any of the proceeds from ffexiag.
The Company incurred and expensed less than $ibmdf fees related to this transaction.

On May 14, 2007, the Original Shareholders sold tteenaining 22,106,597 shares of Series A comntocks
in a registered public secondary offering pursuairthe universal shelf registration statement om8-3 filed with
the SEC on May 9, 2006. The Company did not recaiyeof the proceeds from the offering. The Company
incurred and expensed less than $1 million of feled to this transaction. As of December 31,7268 Original
Shareholders have no remaining ownership intenetfiel Company.
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Additional Paid-in Capital

In connection with the demerger and pursuant tdbmerger Agreement executed and delivered by the
Company and Hoechst, the Company assumed certélnaxthst's businesses as well as certain contriadiiis,
including indemnifications. For the years endedé@weber 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, the Company recorded
$4 million, $3 million and $5 million, respectivelyncreases in Additional paid-in capital relatedeécoveries due
from Hoechst, and its legal successors, for thitrastt matters in the sorbates industry (see Ndje 2

Dividends

During 2005, the Company’s Board of Directors add policy of declaring, subject to legally avhiéa
funds, a quarterly cash dividend on each shareeo€ompany’s Series A common stock at an annualofe$0.16
per share unless the Company’s Board of Directoris sole discretion, determines otherwise. Femteuch
dividends payable to holders of the Company’s Sekieommon stock cannot be declared or paid noacgrfunds
be set aside for the payment thereof, unless timep@ny has paid or set aside funds for the paynfeadt o
accumulated and unpaid dividends with respectdcstiares of the Company’s preferred stock, as ilescabove.

During 2007 and 2006, the Company declared and$bdnmillion and $26 million, respectively, of cash
dividends to holders of its Series A common shares.

On March 8, 2005, the Company declared a specsil davidend to holders of the Company’s Series B
common stock of $804 million, which was paid on ifgr 2005. Upon payment of the $804 million dividk all of
the outstanding shares of Series B common stockected automatically to shares of Series A comntooks

Treasury Stock

In conjunction with the April 2007 debt refinancidgcussed in Note 15, the Company, through itsliywho
owned subsidiary CIH, repurchased 2,021,775 shadnés outstanding Series A common stock in a medifDutch
Auction” tender offer from public shareholders, ahiexpired on April 3, 2007, at a purchase pric83.50 per
share. The total price paid for these shares waaimately $62 million. The number of shares pas#d in the
tender offer represented approximately 1.3% ofGbmpany’s outstanding Series A common stock attiimet. The
Company also separately purchased, through itslybalned subsidiary CIH, 329,011 shares of the Camyfs
Series A common stock at $30.50 per share fronmtrestment funds associated with The Blackstonei®ioP.
The total price paid for these shares was apprdrim&10 million. The number of shares purchasedhfr
Blackstone represented approximately 0.2% of theamy’s outstanding Series A common stock at thed.t

Additionally, on June 4, 2007, the Company’s Boafr®Directors authorized the repurchase of up to
$330 million of its Series A common stock. Durin@g0Z, the Company repurchased 8,487,700 shares $éites A
common stock at an average purchase price of $3®@88hare for a total of approximately $330 milljgursuant to
this authorization. The Company completed repuiidgeshares related to this authorization during 2007.

These purchases reduced the number of sharesralitgjaand the repurchased shares may be used by the
Company for compensation programs utilizing the @any’s stock and other corporate purposes. The @oynp
accounts for treasury stock using the cost methadrecludes treasury stock as a component of Shitets’
equity.

Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (Loss), Net

Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss),wigth is displayed in the consolidated statemént o
shareholders’ equity, represents net earnings)(fas the results of certain shareholders’ eqeiiignges not
reflected in the consolidated statements of opamatiSuch items include unrealized gains/lossenanketable
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securities, foreign currency translation, certangion and postretirement benefit obligations améalized
gains/losses on derivative contracts.

The after-tax components of Accumulated other c@m@nsive income (loss), net are as follows:

Accumulated

Unrealized Unrealized Other
Gain (Loss) or Foreign Pension and Gain/(Loss) Comprehensive

Marketable Currency  Postretirement  on Derivative Income

Securities Translation Benefits Contracts (Loss), Net
(In $ millions)

Balance as of December 31, 2( (7) 7 (19 2 ()]
Curren-period chang: 3 5 (117) — (109
Balance as of December 31, 2( 4) 12 (136 2 (12€)
Curren-period chang: 13 5 137 2 157
Balance as of December 31, 2( 9 17 1 4 31
Curren-period chang: 17 70 12C (41) 16€
Balance as of December 31, 2( 26 87 121 (37) 197

19. Other (Charges) Gains, Ne:

Other (charges) gains, net includes provisionsdstructuring and other expenses and income intdwutside
the normal course of operations. Restructuring igions represent costs related to severance aed logmefit
programs related to major activities undertakefutmlamentally redesign the business operationseisas costs
incurred in connection with decisions to exit narategic businesses. These measures are basedvai fo
management decisions, establishment of agreemdhtemployees’ representatives or individual agreets with
affected employees, as well as the public annouanéof the restructuring plan. The related resergfisct certain
estimates, including those pertaining to separatasts, settlements of contractual obligationsa@hér closure
costs. The Company reassesses the reserve requisstmeomplete each individual plan under existing
restructuring programs at the end of each repoperipd. Actual experience may be different fromasth estimates.

The components of Other (charges) gains, net foy#ars ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005awere
follows:

Year Ended
December 31,
2007 2006 2005
(In $ millions)

Employee termination benefi (32 (12) (18
Plant/office closure (17) 1 4
Environmental related plant closul — — (12
Deferred compensation triggered by Exit Event (Sete 21) (74) — —
Insurance recoveries associated with plumbing ¢ 4 5 34
Insurance recoveries associated with Clear Lakead ésee Note 3( 40 — -
Resolution of commercial disputes with a vendoe (Sete 24 31 — -
Asset impairment 9O® — (25
Ticona Kelsterbach plant relocation (see Note 5) —_- =
Other 2 (4) (36)

Total Other (charges) gains, t (58) (10) (62)

@ Included in this amount is $6 million of goodwithpairment (see Note 11
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2007

Other (charges) gains, net for employee termindiemefits and plant/office closures include chargésted to
the Company’s plan to simplify and optimize its Hsions and PVOH businesses to become a leadechindéogy
and innovation and grow in both new and existingk®is. Other (charges) gains, net for employeeitextion
benefits and plant/office closures as also inclutesges related to the sale of the Company’s Palegas,
facility. In addition, the Company recorded an innpeent of long-lived assets of approximately $3limil during
the year ended December 31, 2007.

2006

Other (charges) gains, net includes charges retateeverance associated with the relocation giarate
offices of $4 million, severance payments in cotioecwith the lockout settlement at the Meredosanpof
$5 million and severance and relocation expendaterkto restructuring at AT Plastics of $4 million

These charges were offset by $5 million of incoelated to insurance recoveries associated with Ipitugn
cases.
2005

In connection with the completion of the initialtgic offering in January 2005, the parties amenaied
restated the transaction and monitoring fee agrattogerminate the monitoring services and allgdilons to pay
future monitoring fees and paid the Advisor $35liomil, which is included in Other (charges) gainst in the table
above. In addition, the Company also paid $10 arilo the Advisor for the 2005 monitoring fee, whis included
in Selling, general and administrative expensetherconsolidated statement of operations (see Rite

Asset impairments in 2005 primarily relate to tren@pany’s decision to divest its COC business (sate R).

Other (charges) gains, net also includes chardae®deto a change in environmental remediatiortesgsa
related to the closure of the Edmonton methanaitpkes well as severance primarily associated thigrsame
closure of $8 million and severance related toréthecation of corporate offices of $10 million.

These charges were offset by $34 million of incarlated to insurance recoveries associated witmipig
cases.

The changes in the restructuring reserves from Dbee 31, 2005 through December 31, 2007 are asnfsl|

(In $ millions)

Restructuring reserve as of December 31, - 65
Restructuring addition 17
Cash payment (43
Currency translation adjustme 2
Other (6

Restructuring reserve as of December 31, - 35
Restructuring addition(d) 46
Cash payment (40
Currency translation adjustme 4

Restructuring reserve as of December 31, - 45

@ Included in this amount is $33 million of employteemination benefits, of which $14 million relatesthe
Emulsions and PVOH restructuring discussed abolsa iacluded in this amount is $13 million of reses
recorded in conjunction with the closure of thetleiHeath, United Kingdom production plant acquinethe
APL acquisition,
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Included in the above restructuring reserve of Bdlson and $35 million as of December 31, 2007 2006,
respectively, are $5 million and $1 million, respely, of reserves included in long-term Otheblldies.

20. Income Taxes
Income from continuing operations before incomesaand minority interest by jurisdiction is as dalk:

Year Ended
December 31

2007 2006 2005
(In $ millions)

us (111 11 (99
Foreign 556  41C 37t
Total 447  52€  27€

The income tax provision consists of the following:

Year Ended
December 31
2007 2006 2005
(In $ millions)

Current:
us 9 38 (2
Foreign 165 28 65
Total current 154 67 63

Deferred:
us 17 80 7
Foreign (6) _56 _(49
Total deferrec (449 13 (39
Income tax provisiol 11C 208 24

F-46




CELANESE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Conti nued)

Deferred income taxes reflect the net tax effettemporary differences between the carrying ameont
assets and liabilities for financial reporting pagps and the amounts used for income tax purp8ggsficant
components of the consolidated deferred tax aasetdiabilities were as follows:

As of
December 31,
2007 2006

(In $ millions)
Pension and postretirement obligatis 22¢ 331
Accrued expense 92 95
Inventory 2 8
Net operating loss and tax credit carryforwe 214 27C
Other 33 10
Subtotal 57C 714
Valuation allowanc) (311 (460)
Deferred tax asse 25¢ 254
Depreciation and amortizatic 384 43€
Investment: 26 26
Interest 7 (39
Other 57 43
Deferred tax liabilities 474 471
Net deferred tax assets (liabilitie (219) (219

@ Includes deferred tax asset valuation allowanciesgily for the Company’s deferred tax assets &8,
Germany and certain Canadian entities, as welttaer doreign jurisdictions. These valuation allowas relat
to net operating loss carryforward benefits aneotiet deferred tax assets, all of which may naehézable

For the year ended December 31, 2007, the valuatiowance had a net decrease of $149 million pilgna
related to a decrease of $20 million allocated touinulated other comprehensive income, net; a dseref
$47 million related to new legislation in Mexicodiscussed below and a decrease of $62 millioneele the
US pre-acquisition deferred tax assets and netatipgrlosses.
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A reconciliation of the significant differences Ween the US federal statutory tax rate of 35% aecdeffective
income tax rate on income from continuing operaiisnas follows:

Year Ended
December 31,
2007 2006 2005
(In $ millions)

Income tax provision computed at US federal stayutax rate 15€ 184 97
Increase (decrease) in taxes resulting fr
Change in valuation allowan: 9 4 (8)
Equity income and dividenc 8 5 12
Expenses not resulting in tax bene 19 15 10
US tax effect of foreign earnings and divide! 27 28 12
Other foreign tax rate differentig(®) (98) (59) (107
Legislative change 21y — —
State income taxes and otl 10 26 8

Income tax provisiol 11C 20 24

(@ Includes impact of earnings from China and Singesoibject to tax holidays which expire between 2808
2013.

Federal and state income taxes have not been pawoid accumulated but undistributed earnings djiian
as of December 31, 2007, as such earnings havepeeeranently reinvested in the business. The datation of
the amount of the unrecognized deferred tax lighiélated to the undistributed earnings is notfpcable.

The effective tax rate for continuing operationstfee year ended December 31, 2007 was 25% compared
39% for the year ended December 31, 2006. Theteféetax rate for 2007 was favorably impacted bygi
increase in unrepatriated low-taxed earnings, dinlyitax holidays, and (2) the tax benefit relateGerman Tax
Reform recorded during the year ended Decembe2@®17. These benefits are partially offset by thepaating
treatment of recent tax law changes in Mexico.

The Company operates under tax holidays in vamoustries which are effective through December 2013
China, one of the Comparsyentities has a tax holiday that provides forra percent tax rate in 2007 and 2008.
2009 through 2011, the Company’s tax rate will B&%of the statutory rate, or 12.5% based on th@& 2@#tutory
rate of 25%. In Singapore, one of the Company’giesthas a tax holiday that provides for a zen@get tax rate
through 2010. For 2011 through 2013, the CompataxXsate will be 50% of the statutory rate, or 9&6dd on the
current statutory rate of 18%. The impact of theseholidays decreased foreign taxes $42 milliorttie year ende
December 31, 2007.

The Corporate Tax Reform Act of 2008 was signethieyGerman Federal President in August 2007. The Ac
reduced the Company’s combined corporate stattdoryate from 40% to 30% while imposing limitatioms the
deductibility of certain expenses, including instrexpense. The Company recognized a tax benedppmioximatel
$39 million related to the statutory rate reductionits German net deferred tax liabilities.

Mexico enacted the 2008 Fiscal Reform Bill on Oetob, 2007. Effective January 1, 2008, the billeadpd the
existing asset-based tax and established a du@hietax system consisting of a new minimum flat(tae “IETU”)
and the existing regular income tax system. ThelEystem taxes companies on cash basis net incamsisting
only of certain specified items of revenue and esgeat a rate of 16.5%, 17% and 17.5% for 20089 2hd 2010
forward, respectively. In general, companies mastthe higher of the income tax or the IETU, altipownlike the
previous asset tax, the IETU is not creditable regjduture income tax liabilities. The Company has
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determined that it will primarily be subject to tHeTU in future periods, and as such it has recdtde expense of
approximately $20 million in 2007 for the deferted effects of the new IETU system.

As of December 31, 2007, the Company had US fedettabperating loss carryforwards of approximately
$206 million which will begin to expire in 2023. @fis amount, $47 million relates to the @eguisition period an
is subject to limitation. The remaining $159 miflics subject to limitation as a result of the chamgstock
ownership in May 2006. This limitation is not expetto have a material impact on utilization of tie¢ operating
loss carryforwards.

The Company also had foreign net operating losyfmawards as of December 31, 2007 of approximately
$564 million for Canada, Germany, Mexico and offeeeign jurisdictions with various expiration datéket
operating losses in Canada have various carryfarwariods and began expiring in 2007. Net operdtiages in
Germany have no expiration date. Net operatingelogs Mexico have a ten year carryforward period laegin to
expire in 2009. However, these losses are notahlaifor use under the new IETU tax regulationsl@xico. As the
IETU is the primary system upon which the Compaiiy/lve subject to tax in future periods, no defdrtax asset
has been reflected in the balance sheet as of Dmredi, 2007 for these income tax loss carryforaiard

The Company adopted the provisions of FIN 48 effeclanuary 1, 2007. FIN 48 clarifies the accounfor
income taxes by prescribing a minimum recognittmeshold a tax benefit is required to meet befeiad
recognized in the financial statements. FIN 48 plswvides guidance on derecognition, measurembassification,
interest and penalties, accounting in interim m@sjalisclosure and transition. As a result of thplementation of
FIN 48, the Company increased Retained earning&lBymillion and decreased Goodwill by $2 million.dddition
certain tax liabilities for unrecognized tax betgfas well as related potential penalties andestewere
reclassified from current liabilities to long-tetiabilities. Liabilities for unrecognized tax beitsfas of
December 31, 2007 relate to various US and forgigsdictions.

A reconciliation of the beginning and ending amoofntinrecognized tax benefits is as follows:
Year Ended

December 31, 200
(In $ millions)

Balance as of January 1, 2C 19z
Increases in tax positions for the current y 2
Increases in tax positions for prior ye 28
Decreases in tax positions of prior ye (27)
Settlement: 2
Balance as of December 31, 2( 20C

Included in the unrecognized tax benefits of $20an as of December 31, 2007 is $56 million of taenefits
that, if recognized, would reduce the Company’sdiffie tax rate.

The Company recognizes interest and penaltieerktatunrecognized tax benefits in the provisiaririoome
taxes. As of December 31, 2007, the Company hasded a liability of approximately $36 million famterest and
penalties. This amount includes an increase ofcequmiately $13 million for the year ended Decembkr Z007.

The Company operates in the United States (inctudinltiple state jurisdictions), Germany and appraately
40 other foreign jurisdictions including Canadajr@h France, Mexico and Singapore. Examination®ag®ing in
a number of those jurisdictions including, moshgigantly, in Germany for the years 2001 to 20D4ring the
quarter ended March 31, 2007, the Company recdimatiassessments in Germany for the prior exantingteriod
1997 to 2000. The effective settlement of thoserémations resulted in a reduction to Goodwill opegximately
$42 million with a net expected cash outlay of $&fion. The Company’s
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US federal income tax returns for 2003 and beyagrdpen tax years not currently under examination.
Unrecognized tax benefits are not expected to ahaimgpificantly over the next 12 months.

The tax expense (benefit) amounts allocated tor @ivprehensive income (loss), net, was $10 million
$11 million and $(21) million for the years endedd@mber 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005 respectively. €eth
amounts, $10 million, $11 million and $(19) millievere attributable to the pension and postretir¢rbenefits
component of other comprehensive income (loss),Fatthe year ended December 31, 2005, the rengaini
$(2) million tax benefit was attributable to therealized gain (loss) on derivative contracts congmbrof other
comprehensive income (loss), net. The income tardfit) expense associated with Accumulated other
comprehensive income (loss), net is dependent tipotax jurisdiction in which the items arise awedadingly
could result in an effective tax rate that is difiet from the overall consolidated effective incotae rate on the
consolidated statement of operations.

21. Stock-Based and Other Management Compensation Plar

In December 2004, the Company approved a stockiiveeplan for executive officers, key employeed an
directors, a deferred compensation plan for exeewificers and key employees as well as other gemant
incentive programs.

The stock incentive plan allows for the issuancdadivery of up to 16,250,000 shares of the Comfgany
Series A common stock through the award of stotlongp, restricted stock units (“RSUs”) and other
stock-based awards as may be approved by the Cegrsganmpensation Committee of the Board of Direstor

Deferred compensation

The 2004 deferred compensation plan provides areggte maximum amount payable of $196 million. The
initial component of the deferred compensation plested in 2004 and was paid in the first quart@085. The
amount payable under the deferred compensationipkubject to downward adjustment if the priceéhef
Company’s Series A common stock falls below thgahpublic offering price of $16 per share andtgesibject to
both (1) continued employment or the achievememeofain performance criteria and (2) the dispositly three of
the four Original Shareholders of at least 90%hefrtequity interest in the Company with at lea2b& cash
internal rate of return on their equity interest {&xit Event”). In May 2007, the Original Sharefets sold their
remaining equity interest in the Company (see N@{etriggering an Exit Event. Cash compensation of
approximately $74 million, representing the papizits’ 2005 and 2006 contingent benefits, was teeitle
participants during the year ended December 317.2B8rticipants continuing in the 2004 deferred gensation
plan (see below for discussion regarding certaitigqpant’s decision to participate in a revisedgnam) will
continue to vest in their 2007, 2008 and 2009 trased and performance-based entitlements as défitiee
deferred compensation plan. During the years ebaagmber 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, the Companydedor
compensation expense of $84 million, $19 milliod &1 million, respectively, associated with thiapl The
maximum remaining amount payable to participants did not elect to participate in the revised paogras of
December 31, 2007 is $13 million, of which $9 roitliis accrued as of December 31, 2007.

On April 2, 2007, certain participants in the Comypa deferred compensation plan elected to pa#teijin a
revised program, which includes both cash awardsestricted stock units (see Restricted Stockdmitiow).
Under the revised program, participants relinquistieir cash awards of up to $30 million that wolidve
contingently accrued from 2007-2009 under the pabplan. In lieu of these awards, the revised mete
compensation program provides for a future cashrdwwaan amount equal to 90% of the maximum po&dpayou
under the original plan, plus growth pursuant te ofithree participant-selected notional investnveticles, as
defined in the associated agreements. Participanss remain employed through 2010 to vest in ttve amvard. The
Company will make award payments under the revisedram in the first quarter of 2011, unless paéints elect
to further defer the payment of their individualads. Based on current participation in the
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revised program, the awards, which will be expersstdieen April 2, 2007 and December 31, 2010, agdecto
approximately $27 million plus notional earninggeTCompany expensed approximately $6 million dutiregyear
ended December 31, 2007 related to the revisedamg

In December 2007, the Company adopted a deferneghensation plan whereby certain of the Company’s
senior employees and directors were offered th@mppity to defer a portion of their compensatinrekchange for
a future payment amount equal to their defermelots gr minus certain amounts based upon the market-
performance of specified measurement funds seldstele participant. Participants were requirethtike deferral
elections under the plan in December 2007, and dafdrrals will be withheld from their compensatiuring the
year ending December 31, 2008. This plan becameetefé on January 1, 20C

Long-term incentive plan

Effective January 1, 2004, the Company adoptethg-term incentive plan (the “LTIP Plan”) which caose
certain members of management and other key emgdayiethe Company. The LTIP Plan is a thyeas cash base
plan in which awards are based on annual and geaecumulative targets (as defined in the LTImMPI®nN
February 16, 2007, approximately $26 million waripga the LTIP plan participants. During the yeamsled
December 31, 2006 and 2005, the Company recordeeher of $19 million and $5 million, respectivelylated to
the LTIP Plan. There are no additional amountsuhger the LTIP Plan.

Stock-based compensation

The Company has a stock-based compensation plam#i@s awards of stock options to certain emplkyee
Prior to January 1, 2006, the Company accountedi@rds granted under this plan using the intriraloae method
of expense recognition, which follows the recogmtand measurement principles of APB No. 25 arated|
interpretations. Compensation cost, if any, wasngd based on the excess of the quoted market @irigrant date
over the amount an employee must pay to acquirsttak. Under the provisions of APB No. 25, thegswo
compensation expense resulting from the issuantieeddtock options as the exercise price was ebguitzéo the fail
market value at the date of grant.

Effective January 1, 2006, the Company adoptedainealue recognition provisions of SFAS No. 123(RRhe
Company elected the modified prospective transit@thod as permitted by SFAS No. 123(R) and, adcghd
prior periods have not been restated to reflecirttpact of SFAS No. 123(R). Under this transitioathod,
compensation cost recognized for the years endedrbiger 31, 2007 and 2006 includes: (i) compensatishfor
all stock-based payments granted prior to, butypbtzested as of, January 1, 2006 (based on time-gage fair valu
estimated in accordance with the original provisiohSFAS No. 123 and previously presented in toegfgrma
footnote disclosures), and (ii) compensation costfl stock-based payments granted subsequeantedy 1, 2006
(based on the grant-date fair value estimatedéoraence with the new provisions of SFAS No. 123(R)

It is the Company'’s current policy to grant optiavith an exercise price equal to the average ohibe and
low price of the Company’s Series A common stockhemngrant date. The options issued have a tentggarwith
vesting terms pursuant to a schedule, with allimggdb occur no later than the eighth anniversdithe date of the
grant. Accelerated vesting for certain awards ddp@m meeting specified performance targets. Ttimated value
of the Company’s stock-based awards less expeotéaittires is amortized over the awards’ respectesing
period on the applicable graded or straight-lingifasubject to acceleration as discussed above.
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The fair value of each option granted is estimatedhe date of grant using the Black-Scholes optideing
method. The weighted average assumptions use@ imtiniel are outlined in the following table:

Risk-free interest rat
Estimated life in year
Dividend yield
Volatility

Year Ended
December 31,
2007 2006

4.€% 5.C%
6.8 7.2
0.42% 0.81%
27.5% 31.2%

The computation of the expected volatility assupptised in the Black-Scholes calculations for neants is
based on historical volatilities and volatilitiekpeer companies. When establishing the expedieddisumptions,
the Company reviews annual historical employeeaserbehavior of option grants with similar vestpeyiods and
the expected life assumptions of peer companies.Cdmpany utilized the review of peer companiegtas its

own lack of extensive history.

A summary of changes in stock options outstandimind the year ended December 31, 2007 is presented

below:

Year Ended December 31, 200

Weighted- Weighted-
Average Average
Grant Remaining Aggregate
Number of Price in Contractual Intrinsic
Options $ Term Value
(In millions) (In $ millions)
Outstanding at beginning of ye 12.5 16.81 7.C 112
Granted 0.7 38.5:
Exercisec 4.3 16.11 84
Forfeited (0.9 19.4¢
Outstanding at end of ye 8.1 18.72 72 192
Options exercisable at end of y« 4.8 16.1: 6.7 12¢€

The weighted-average grant-date fair value of stqtions granted during the years ended Decemhet(RIlY
and 2006 was $14.42 and $8.19, respectively, p@sropAs of December 31, 2007, the Company had@aprately
$19 million of total unrecognized compensation ergeerelated to stock options, excluding estimateiitures, to
be recognized over the remaining vesting periodh®@bptions. Cash received from stock option égescwas
approximately $69 million during the year ended &aber 31, 2007. The tax benefit realized from stuution

exercises was $19 million during the year endedebsser 31, 2007.

Prior Period Pro Forma Presentations

Under the modified prospective transition metheguits for prior periods have not been restatadftect the
effects of implementing SFAS No. 123(R). The follog/pro forma information, as required by SFAS 1148,
Accounting for Sto-Based Compensation — Transition and Disclosurearaendment of FASB Statement
No. 123, is presented for comparative purposes and ifitestrthe pro forma effect on Net earnings and Bgsni
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per common share for each period presented as €dmpany had applied the fair value recognitiavisions of
SFAS No. 123 to stock-based employee compensationtp January 1, 2006:

Year Ended December 31, 200

Basic Diluted
Earnings Earnings
Net per Common per Common
Earnings Share Share
(In $ millions, except per share information)
Net earnings available to common shareholderg@Estec 267 1.7: 1.67
Add: stock-based employee compensation expensgdiedlin reported net
earnings, net of the related tax effe 1 0.01 0.01
Less: stock-based compensation under SFAS No.nE23f the related ta
effects (9) (0.0¢€) (0.05)
Pro forma net earnings available to common shadeins 25¢ 1.6¢ 1.6

Restricted Stock Units

Participants in the revised deferred compensatiogram also received an award of RSUs. The RSUghwh
were granted on April 2, 2007, generally cliff vestDecember 31, 2010 and have a fair value of6i28er unit.
The number of RSUs that ultimately vest dependsharket performance targets measured by comparisitie o
Company’s stock performance versus a defined peepg The ultimate award will range from zero t@ 280
RSUs, based on the market performance measureiribiet ciff vesting date. The market performancatdiee is
factored into the estimated fair value per unit] aampensation expense for the award is basedeomaximum
RSUs of 263,030. Dividends on RSUs are earneddardance with the Company’s common stock divideoiety
(see Note 18) and are reinvested in additional RSUs

In addition to the RSUs granted to participantthimrevised deferred compensation program, the @agnp
granted RSUs to certain employees during 2007 avitleighted average fair value of $21.30 per urtie RSUs
generally vest annually in equal tranches begin&iegtember 30, 2008 through September 30, 2011RBis
contain the same market performance criteria asetbescribed above, with an ultimate award thatraige from
zero to 947,361 RSUs. The awards include a catgbraygsion that provides for vesting on Septemtgr2012 of
previously unvested amounts, subject to certainimams.

The Company also granted 26,070 RSUs to its noragement Board of Directors with a fair value of $32
per unit, which was equal to the price of the Conyp& Series A common stock on the grant date. Duhiegsecon
quarter of 2007, two directors resigned from thardand forfeited a total of 5,214 RSUs. Duringttiied quarter
of 2007, the Company granted 2,126 RSUs with aviire of $39.99 per unit to a newly appointed merndj the
Board of Directors. The Director RSUs will vest April 26, 2008.

Fair value for the Company’s RSUs (excluding DieedSUs) was estimated at the grant date usingraévo
Carlo Simulation approach. Monte Carlo Simulaticaswatilized to randomly generate future stock reddor the
Company and each company in the peer group basednopany-specific dividend yields, volatilities astbck
return correlations. These returns were used tutzk future RSU vesting percentages and the abedivalues of
the vested RSUs were then discounted to presemt wsing a risk-free rate, yielding the expectddevaf these
RSUs.
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The range of assumptions used in the Monte Cantmfaition approach are outlined in the followingléab

Year Ended
December 31
2007
Risk-free interest rat 4.53— 4.55%
Dividend yield 0.00— 2.7¢%
Volatility 20.0— 45.(%

A summary of changes in RSUs (excluding DirectotJBSoutstanding during the year ended December 31,
2007 is presented below:

Weighted

Number of Average

Units Fair Value

Nonvested at beginning of ye — —
Granted 1,210,39: 21.81
Forfeited (91,439 21.3¢
Nonvested at end of ye 1,118,95 21.8¢

As of December 31, 2007, there was approximateBylion of unrecognized compensation cost reldted
RSUs, excluding estimated forfeitures, which wélémortized on a straight-line basis over the raingivesting
periods as discussed above.

22. Leases

Total rent expense charged to operations undepalating leases was $122 million, $109 million and
$93 million for the years ended December 31, 2@006 and 2005, respectively. Future minimum leasenents
under non-cancelable rental and lease agreemeitth Wave initial or remaining terms in excess o gear as of
December 31, 2007 are as follows:

Capital Operating
(In $ millions)

2008 19 64
2009 19 49
2010 19 36
2011 19 36
2012 18 26
Later year: 15¢ 92
Sublease incom — (40)

Minimum lease commitmen 252 262
Less amounts representing intel 142

Present value of net minimum lease obligati 11C

The Company expects that, in the normal coursausiniess, leases that expire will be renewed oroepl by
other leases.
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23. Financial Instruments
Interest Rate Risk Management

To reduce the interest rate risk inherent in then@any’s variable rate debt, the Company utilizésrest rate
swap agreements to convert a portion of the variedie debt to a fixed rate obligation. These @gtrate swap
agreements are designated as cash flow hedgesinfesest rate swap agreement is terminated fwits maturity,
the amount previously recorded in Accumulated otloenprehensive income (loss), net is recognizemléatnings
over the period that the hedged transaction impaantsings. If the hedging relationship is discamgith because it is
probable that the forecasted transaction will r@uo according to the original strategy, any relamounts
previously recorded in Accumulated other compreivenscome (loss), net are recognized into earnings
immediately.

As of December 31, 2006, the Company had an irtesitssswap agreement in place with a notionalevafu
$300 million. On March 29, 2007, in connection wiltle April 2, 2007 debt refinancing, the Companmynieated
this interest rate swap agreement and recognigaiheof $2 million related to amounts previouslgorled in
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss), net.

In March 2007, in anticipation of the April 2, 208&bt refinancing, the Company entered into varld8s
dollar and Euro interest rate swap agreements,hécame effective on April 2, 2007, with notioaalounts of
$1.6 billion and €150 million, respectively. Theseaps remained outstanding as of December 31, Hifettive
January 2, 2008, the notional amount of the $1ll®biUS dollar swap will decrease by $400 milliddn
November 16, 2007, the Company entered into artiaddl US dollar interest rate swap with a notioadount of
$400 million, which became effective on Januarg2@)8.

The Company recognized interest (expense) incoam fredging activities relating to interest rate gsvaf
$6 million, $1 million and $(3) million for the yemended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, regplgctihe
Company recorded a net loss of less than $1 milliddther income (expense), net for the ineffecfieetion of the
interest rate swap agreements for the year endednilzer 31, 2007. The Company recorded a net ldes®than
$1 million in Other income (expense), net for theffective portion of the interest rate swap agrests for each of
the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005. @itlealized gains and losses recorded in Accumutzttest
comprehensive income (loss), net, a net gain aftlesn $1 million is expected to be reclassifigd met income in
2008. However, if the three month US dollar LIBOR3amonth EURIBOR declines in 2008, the Company ldou
expect a net loss.

Foreign Exchange Risk Management

Certain entities have receivables and payablesmdierabed in currencies other than their respectivetional
currencies, which creates foreign exchange risk. Tampany enters into foreign currency forwards smaps to
minimize its exposure to foreign currency fluctoas. The currently outstanding foreign currencyti@mis are
hedging booked exposure, however the Company noay fime to time hedge its currency exposure releded
forecasted earnings.

To hedge these exposures arising from foreign nayr@ayables and receivables, the Company hagjforei
currency contracts with notional amounts totalipgraximately $1,856 million and $713 million as of
December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively, whiclperdominantly in Euro, US dollars, British pourtdring,
Japanese yen, Chinese Yuan and Canadian dollax<Cdimpany recognizes net foreign currency trarsagains
or losses on the underlying transactions, whictoffeet by losses and gains related to foreignenay forward
contracts.

To protect the foreign currency exposure of a meg$tment in a foreign operation, the Company edt@rto
cross currency swaps with certain financial ingititus in 2004. Under the terms of the cross cuyreswcap
arrangements, the Company pays approximately €lli®min interest and receives approximately $1diom in
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interest on June 15 and December 15 of each y@an bhaturity of the cross currency swap agreenmedtine
2008, the Company will pay approximately €276 roiiliand receive approximately $333 million. Thesessr
currency swaps and the Company’s senior Euro team &re designated as a hedge of a net investmarforeign
operation. The Company dedesignated the net inesdthedge due to the debt refinancing in April 266d
redesignated the cross currency swaps and new ¢8RO term loan in July 2007. As a result, the @any
recorded approximately $26 million of mark-to-marlasses related to the cross currency swaps andew senior
Euro term loan during this period.

The effective portion of the gain (loss) on theiwhgive (cross currency swaps) and the foreignesway gain
(loss) on the non-derivative financial instrumesteecorded in Accumulated other comprehensivernmedoss),
net. For the years ended December 31, 2007, 20D@@0b, the amount charged to Accumulated other
comprehensive income (loss), net was $(19) millg{23) million and $30 million, respectively. Thaig (loss)
related to items excluded from the assessmentdifeheffectiveness of the cross currency swap rded in Other
income (expense), net. For the years ended Dece3db@007, 2006 and 2005, the amount charged ter@Qtbhome
(expense), net was $(6) million, $5 million andréiilion, respectively.

Commodity Risk Management

The Company has exposure to the prices of comnagditiits procurement of certain raw materials. The
Company manages its exposure primarily throughugieeof long-term supply agreements and derivative
instruments. The Company regularly assesses itsiggaof purchasing a portion of its commaodity riggments
forward and utilization of other raw material hasginstruments, in addition to forward purchaseti@mts, in
accordance with changes in market conditions. Fahwarchases and swap contracts for raw maternials a
principally settled through actual delivery of fhieysical commodity. For qualifying contracts, thendpany has
elected to apply the normal purchases and norned saception of SFAS No. 133 as it was probabtbet
inception and throughout the term of the contrhat they would not settle net and would resulthggical delivery.
As such, realized gains and losses on these ctsaeeincluded in the cost of the commodity ugagettlement ¢
the contract.

In addition, the Company occasionally enters imaricial derivatives to hedge a component of anei#erial
or energy source. Typically, these types of tratisas do not qualify for hedge accounting. Thestriiments are
marked to market at each reporting period and g#isses) are included in Cost of sales. The Compagpgnized
less than $1 million from these types of contraktsng each of the years ended December 31, 2Q08, 2nd
2005. As of December 31, 2007 and 2006, the Comgahgot have any open commodity financial deriati
contracts.
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Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Summarized below are the carrying values and etgiirfair values of financial instruments as of Daber 31
2007 and 2006, respectively. For these purposedathvalue of a financial instrument is the amtainwhich the
instrument could be exchanged in a current traisabetween willing parties.

As of December 31

2007 2006
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
Amount Value Amount Value
(In $ millions)

Cost investment 18¢ 18¢ 192 192
Marketable securitie 261 261 26E 26E
Insurance contracts in Rabbi Tru 74 74 72 72
Long-term debt 3,28¢ 3,167 3,18¢  3,35¢
Cross currency swe (75) (75) (37 (37
Interest rate swa (37 (37 3 3
Foreign currency forward contracts, @) (25) (25) (5) (5)

®)  Amount includes a current receivable of $29 millad $2 million as of December 31, 2007 and 2006,
respectively

As of December 31, 2007 and 2006, the fair valdesish and cash equivalents, receivables, notexbfy
trade payables, short-term debt and the curretdlimgents of long-term debt approximate carryintpea due to the
short-term nature of these instruments. These iteawe been excluded from the table. Additionalbrtain long-
term receivables, principally insurance recoversjdee carried at net realizable value (see Note 24

Included in long-term Other assets are marketadgargies classified as available-for-sale. In gahehe cost
investments included in the table above are noligiyliraded and their fair values are not readigterminable;
however, the Company believes that the carryingevabproximates or is less than the fair value.

The fair value of long-term debt and debt-relaiedricial instruments is based upon the valuation third-
party banks and market quotations.

24. Commitments and Contingencies

The Company is involved in a number of legal praegs, lawsuits and claims incidental to the normal
conduct of business, relating to such matters aguat liability, antitrust, past waste disposalqties and release
chemicals into the environment. While it is impaésiat this time to determine with certainty thémiate outcome
of these proceedings, lawsuits and claims, the Gompelieves, based on the advice of legal coutisal adequate
provisions have been made and that the ultimaeomes will not have a material adverse effect efitmancial
position of the Company, but may have a materiaéesk effect on the results of operations or clsisfin any
given accounting period.

Plumbing Actions

CNA Holdings, Inc. (“CNA Holdings”), a US subsidjaof the Company, which included the US businesg no
conducted by the Ticona business and which is dedun the Advanced Engineered Materials segméartgavith
Shell Oil Company (“Shell”), E.l. DuPont de Nemoarsd Company (“DuPont’and others, has been a defenda
a series of lawsuits, including a number of clag®as, alleging that plastics manufactured by ¢hesmpanies that
were utilized in the production of plumbing systefmsresidential property were defective or causech plumbing
systems to fail. Based on, among other thingsfitltings of outside experts and the successfubfise
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Ticona'’s acetal copolymer in similar applicatio@&A Holdings does not believe Ticona’s acetal cgpwr was
defective or caused the plumbing systems to faimany cases CNA Holdings’ exposure may be limiited
invocation of the statute of limitations since CKildings ceased selling the resin for use in thenbing systems
in site-built homes during 1986 and in manufacturedhes during 1990.

CNA Holdings has been named a defendant in tertipatalass actions, as well as a defendant in atber
class actions filed in ten states, the US Virglarids and Canada. In these actions, the plaityifisally have
sought recovery for alleged property damages anshine cases, additional damages under the Texape
Trade Practices Act or similar type statutes. Dagr@gounts have not been specified.

In November 1995, CNA Holdings, DuPont and Sheleesd into national class action settlements, whinbe
been approved by the courts. The settlementsarahé replacement of plumbing systems of claimaitits have
had qualifying leaks, as well as reimbursementséotain leak damage. Furthermore, the three coimpdiad
agreed to fund these replacements and reimbursemprid $950 million. As of December 31, 2007,ahgregate
funding is $1,103 million due to additional contritons and funding commitments made primarily Hyeotparties.
There are additional pending lawsuits in approxétyaten jurisdictions, not covered by this settlam&owever,
these cases do not involve (either individuallynothe aggregate) a large number of homes, an@dinepany does
not expect the obligations arising from these latsso have a material adverse effect on its fimammosition,
results of operations or cash flows.

In addition, a lawsuit filed in November 1989 inlB&are Chancery Court, between CNA Holdings anibuai
of its insurance companies relating to all claimsuired and to be incurred for the product liapidikposure led to a
partial declaratory judgment in CNA Holdings’ favor

CNA Holdings has accrued its best estimate oftitges of the plumbing actions. As of December 3D;72and
2006, the Company has remaining accruals of $6ftomiind $66 million, respectively, of which $3 tich and
$4 million, respectively, is included in Other cemt liabilities. The Company believes that the ghing actions are
adequately provided for in the Company’s consoéiddinancial statements and that the plumbing astwill not
have a material adverse effect on its financialtjpss However, if the Company were to incur anitiddal charge
for this matter, such a charge would not be expgeittdhave a material adverse effect on its findrmmaition, but
may have a material adverse effect on the Compaagldts of operations or cash flows in any givecoanting
period. The Company continuously monitors this eradind assesses the adequacy of this reserve.

The Company reached settlements with CNA Holdimgslirers specifying their responsibility for thedaims.
During the year ended December 31, 2007, the Coynneived $23 million of insurance proceeds framaus
CNA Holdings’ insurers as full satisfaction for theesponsibility for these claims.

Plumbing Insurance Indemnifications

CAG entered into agreements with insurance compaeiated to product liability settlements assedatith
Celcon® plumbing claims. These agreements, except tho$eimablvent insurance companies, require the
Company to indemnify and/alefend these insurance companies in the eventhiihdiparties seek additional mor
for matters released in these agreements. The mfleations in these agreements do not providdifoe
limitations.

In certain of the agreements, CAG received a fs@itliement amount. The indemnities under thesecamnts
generally are limited to, but in some cases aratgréhan, the amount received in settlement filwarinisurance
company. The maximum exposure under these inderatidns is $95 million. Other settlement agreembatse no
stated limits.

There are other agreements whereby the settlingénagreed to pay a fixed percentage of claimsréfate to
that insurer’s policies. The Company has providgetbmnifications to the insurers for amounts paiexoess of the
settlement percentage. These indemnifications dpnowide for monetary or time limitations.
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The Company has reserves associated with thesagirombility claims.

Sorbates Antitrust Actions

In May 2002, the European Commission informed Hetohits intent to investigate officially the satbs
industry. In early January 2003, the European Casioi served Hoechst, Nutrinova, Inc., a US suasidif
Nutrinova Nutrition Specialties & Food Ingredie@smbH, previously a wholly owned subsidiary of Hogtgland ¢
number of competitors with a statement of objecialeging unlawful, anticompetitive behavior affag the
European sorbates market. In October 2003, thepearoCommission ruled that Hoechst, Chisso Corjoorat
Daicel, The Nippon Synthetic Chemical Industry Cl. and Ueno Fine Chemicals Industry Ltd. operategrtel
in the European sorbates market between 1979 &t T®e European Commission imposed a total fine of
€138 million, of which €99 million was assessed agaHoechst, and its legal successors. The caggeshga
Nutrinova was closed. The fine against Hoechst,isneégal successors, is based on the Europeamisior's
finding that Hoechst does not qualify under thedeay policy, is a repeat violator and, togethathvibaicel, was a
co-conspirator. In Hoechst's favor, the Europeam@dssion gave a discount for cooperating in thegtigation.
Hoechst appealed the European Commission’s dedisiDecember 2003, and that appeal is still pending

In addition, several civil antitrust actions by Isates customers, seeking monetary damages andrelieéfor
alleged conduct involving the sorbates industryehiaeen filed in US state and federal courts narhiogchst,
Nutrinova, and the Compa'’s other subsidiaries, as well as other sorbatewufaaturers, as defendants. These
actions have all been either settled or dismistkd.only other private action previously pendiRggeman v. Daice
et al., had been dismissed. The plaintiffs lost theiregbpo the Supreme Court of Tennessee in Augusi 264
have since filed a motion for leave.

In July 2001, Hoechst and Nutrinova entered intagreement with the Attorneys General of 33 states,
pursuant to which the statutes of limitations wetked pending the states’ investigations. Thissagnent expired in
July 2003. Since October 2002, the Attorneys GérierdNew York, lllinois, Ohio, Nevada, Utah andalado filed
suit on behalf of indirect purchasers in their extjve states. The Utah, Nevada and Idaho actians been
dismissed as to Hoechst, Nutrinova and the Compamyotion for reconsideration is pending in Nevatlae Ohio
and lllinois actions have been settled and theddattion was dismissed in February 2005. The Nevk dotion,
New York v. Daicel Chemical Industries Ltd., etwhich was pending in the New York State SupremertCdlew
York County was dismissed in August 2005. The NewkYAttorney General appealed the decision to disrthie
case, which is currently pending.

Based on the advice of external counsel and awesighe existing facts and circumstances relatinthe
sorbates antitrust matters, including the statugogrnment investigations, as well as civil clafited and settled,
the Company has remaining accruals as of Decenih&@®7 of $170 million, included in Other currdiabilities.
As of December 31, 2006, the accrual was $148anillThe change in the accrual amounts is primdrily to
fluctuations in the currency exchange rate betwkerS dollar and the Euro. Although the outcoméhisf matter
cannot be predicted with certainty, the Compang'st lestimate of the range of possible additionalréulosses and
fines (in excess of amounts already accrued), distuany that may result from the above noted guvental
proceedings, as of December 31, 2007 is betweenilion and $9 million. The estimated range of spdssible
future losses is based on the advice of externals®l taking into consideration potential fines ataims, both civil
and criminal that may be imposed or made in otlgsdlictions.

Pursuant to the Demerger Agreement with HoechsG @/s assigned the obligation related to the sesbat
antitrust matter. However, Hoechst, and its legatessors, agreed to indemnify CAG for 80% of aystsCAG
may incur relative to this matter. Accordingly, CA@s recognized a receivable from Hoechst andrasjmonding
contribution of capital, net of tax, from this imdgification. As of December 31, 2007 and 2006,Goenpany has
receivables, recorded within current Other asselating to the sorbates indemnification from Haetdbtaling
$137 million and $118 million, respectively. Ther@oany believes that any resulting liabilities, aBamounts
recoverable from Hoechst, and its legal succesadltjot, in the aggregate, have a material advef§ect on its
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financial position, but may have a material advexfect on the results of operations or cash flowany given
period.

Acetic Acid Patent Infringement Matters

Celanese International Corporation v. China Petregtical Development Corporation — Taiwan Kaohsiung
District Court. On May 9, 1999, Celanese International Corpondiled a private criminal action for patent
infringement against China Petrochemical Develogn@amporation, or CPDC, alleging that CPDC infridge
Celanese International Corporation’s patent coggttie manufacture of acetic acid. Celanese Intiemalt
Corporation also filed a supplementary civil bréfich, in view of changes in Taiwanese patent lavas
subsequently converted to a civil action allegiaghdges against CPDC based on a period of infringeafeen
years,1991-2000, and based on CPDC’s own data and agedpo the Taiwanese securities and exchange
commission. Celanese International Corporationteavas held valid by the Taiwanese patent offie.

August 31, 2005 a Taiwanese court held that CPB@ged Celanese International Corporat®matetic acid pate
and awarded Celanese International Corporationoappately $28 million (plus interest of $10 millipfor the
period of 1995 through 1999. The judgment has lagpraled. The Company will not record income assediwith
this favorable judgment until cash is received. CPRias recently filed three patent cancellationoastiseeking
decisions to revoke the patents that are at isstheeilitigation. The Company believes that theg®as are without
merit and intends to vigorously oppose such actions

Shareholder Litigation

The amounts of the fair cash compensation andeoftiaranteed annual payment offered under the Cadioim
Agreement may be increased in special award praegechitiated by minority shareholders, which niasther
reduce the funds the Purchaser can otherwise nvalialae to the Company. As of March 30, 2005, salve
minority shareholders of CAG had initiated speaiabrd proceedings seeking the court’s review oftheunts of
the fair cash compensation and of the guaranteedadipayment offered under the Domination Agreemésta
result of these proceedings, the amount of thecksh consideration and the guaranteed annual peyfiered
under the Domination Agreement could be increasetthé court so that all minority shareholders, inlihg those
who have already tendered their shares into thalatary offer and have received the fair cash corsgigon could
claim the respective higher amounts. The court idised all of these proceedings in March 2005 orgtbands of
inadmissibility. Thirty-three plaintiffs appealéddet dismissal, and in January 2006, twenty-threbexde appeals
were granted by the court. They were remanded tmattle court of first instance, where the valuatiat be further
reviewed. On December 12, 2006, the court of iirstance appointed an expert to help determingahes of CAG

The Company received applications for the commeecemf award proceedings filed by 79 shareholders
against the Purchaser with the Frankfurt Districti@ requesting the court to set a higher amounttf® Squeeze-
Out compensation. The motions are based on vaaiteged shortcomings and mistakes in the valuatfddAG
done for purposes of the Squeeze-Out. On May 107,28e court of first instance appointed a common
representative for those shareholders that havBledtan application on their own.

The shareholders’ resolution approving the Squ&aztepassed at the shareholders’ meeting on Mag(Bl6
was challenged in June 2006 by seventeen actioset taside such resolution. In addition, a null aoid action wa:
served upon CAG in November 2006. The Squeezereutjred registration in the commercial registet anch
registration was not possible while the lawsuitseygending. Therefore, CAG initiated fast tracleesle
proceedings asking the court to find that the latsslid not prevent registration of the Squeeze-Ohe court of
first instance granted the motion regarding th@astto set aside the shareholders’ resolutionririag dated
October 10, 2006 that was appealed by plaintiffefalders. In a ruling dated November 30, 2006 cthet of first
instance also granted the motion with respecteathil and void action.

On December 22, 2006, the Purchaser and CAG sigisettiement agreement with the plaintiff sharedisd
challenging the shareholders’ resolution approviregSqueeze-Out (“Settlement Agreement I”). Purst@n
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Settlement Agreement |, the plaintiffs agreed tthdiiaw their actions and to drop their complaintexchange for
the Purchaser agreeing to pay the guaranteed apayalent for the fiscal year ended on Septembe?@T6 to
those minority shareholders who had not yet regaesarly payment of such dividend and to pay a@tashare of
the guaranteed annual payment for the first fivatih® of the fiscal year ending on September 307 20l
minority shareholders. The Purchaser further agteedake a donation in the amount of €0.5 millioratcharity, to
introduce, upon request by plaintiffs, into the advaroceedings regarding the cash compensatiothenguarantee
annual payment under the Domination Agreement thepectus governing the January 20, 2005, listmthe
NYSE of the shares of the Company and to accorddheeze-out minority shareholders preferential treatmént i
within three years after effectiveness of the Sgee@ut, the shares of CAG were to be listed omekstxchange
again. As a result of the effective registrationttaf Squeeze-Out in the commercial register in Gegnin
December 2006, the Company acquired the remairflin@2CAG in January 2007.

Guarantees

The Company has agreed to guarantee or indemnity ghrties for environmental and other liabilitisrsuant
to a variety of agreements, including asset anthbas divestiture agreements, leases, settlemesg@mgnts, and
various agreements with affiliated companies. Aligio many of these obligations contain monetaryartithe
limitations, others do not provide such limitations

The Company has accrued for all probable and redspestimable losses associated with all knowrtergbr
claims that have been brought to its attention é&se Note 17).

These known obligations include the following:

Demerger Obligations

The Company has obligations to indemnify Hoechsd, its legal successors, for various liabilitiesl@nthe
Demerger Agreement as follows:

» The Company agreed to indemnify Hoechst, and gallsuccessors, for environmental liabilities aisged
with contamination arising under 19 divestitureesgnents entered into by Hoechst prior to the deens

The Company’s obligation to indemnify Hoechst, @&sdegal successors, is subject to the followhrgsholds:

« The Company will indemnify Hoechst, and its legatsessors, against those liabilities ug€250 million;

» Hoechst, and its legal successors, will bear thiabdities exceeding €250 million, however the Quany
will reimburse Hoechst, and its legal successarspfie-third of those liabilities for amounts teateed
€750 million in the aggregat

The aggregate maximum amount of environmental imdérations under the remaining divestiture agreetsne
that provide for monetary limits is approximately50 million. Three of the divested agreements dgonavide for
monetary limits.

Based on the estimate of the probability of losdaurthis indemnification, the Company had reseofes
$27 million and $33 million as of December 31, 2@®id 2006, respectively, for this contingency. Véhibie
Company is unable to reasonably determine the pifityaof loss or estimate such loss under an indiication,
the Company has not recognized any related lisgsliisee Note 17).

The Company has also undertaken in the Demergerehgent to indemnify Hoechst, and its legal suceesso
to the extent that Hoechst is required to dischladpdities, including tax liabilities, associatedth businesses that
were included in the demerger where such lialbditieere not demerged, due to legal restrictionseriransfers of
such items. These indemnities do not provide fgrrannetary or time limitations. The Company hasprovided
for any reserves associated with this indemnifisatirhe Company has not made any payments to Hpectsits
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legal successors, during the years ended Decenib20@7, 2006 and 2005, respectively, in conneatiibh this
indemnification.

Divestiture Obligations

The Company and its predecessor companies agréedetmnify third-party purchasers of former bussess
and assets for various pre-closing conditions, elsag for breaches of representations, warraatiglscovenants.
Such liabilities also include environmental liatyiJiproduct liability, antitrust and other liabiés. These
indemnifications and guarantees represent starmentlactual terms associated with typical divestitagreements
and, other than environmental liabilities, the Campdoes not believe that they expose the Compaapyt
significant risk.

The Company has divested numerous businessestrimemts and facilities, through agreements contginin
indemnifications or guarantees to the purchaseey\f the obligations contain monetary and/or tiimétations,
ranging from one year to thirty years. The aggregabount of guarantees provided for under thesseaggnts is
approximately $2.5 billion as of December 31, 20Dther agreements do not provide for any monetatyree
limitations.

Based on historical claims experience and its kedge of the sites and businesses involved, the @oynp
believes that it is adequately reserved for theaars. As of December 31, 2007 and 2006, the Coynpas
reserves in the aggregate of $27 million and $30amj respectively, for these matters.

Polyester Staple Antitrust Litigation

CNA Holdings, the successor in interest to Hoe€latnese Corporation (“HCC”), Celanese Americas
Corporation and CAG (collectively, the “Celanesdiies”) and Hoechst, the former parent of HCC, eveamed as
defendants in two actions (involving 25 individpalrticipants) filed in September 2006 by US purehasf
polyester staple fibers manufactured and sold b Hlhe actions allege that the defendants partieipim a
conspiracy to fix prices, rig bids and allocatetouasers of polyester staple sold in the United Staféese actions
have been consolidated for pre-trial discovery bjudti-District Litigation Panel in the United St District Court
for the Western District of North Carolina and at@edIn re Polyester Staple Antitrust LitigatigtMDL 1516.
Already pending in that consolidated proceedingfieeother actions commenced by five other allegé&d
purchasers of polyester staple fibers manufactanedsold by the Celanese Entities, which also altefendants’
participation in the conspiracy.

In 1998, HCC sold its polyester staple businegsaaisof its sale of its Film & Fibers Division toosa, Inc. In i
complaint now pending against the Celanese EntiesHoechst in the United States District Courtfie Souther
District of New York, Koch Industries, Inc., KoSa\B (“KoSa”), Arteva Specialties, S.A.R.L. (“Arteva
Specialties”) and Arteva Services, S.A.R.L. seeko@g other things, indemnification under the apsethase
agreement pursuant to which KoSa and Arteva Spmsalgreed to purchase defendants’ polyester essifor all
damages related to the defendants’ participatipand failure to disclose, the alleged conspiraclternatively,
rescission of the agreement.

The Company does not believe that the Celanes@dsngingaged in any conduct that should resulability in
these actions. However, the outcome of the forggaaiions cannot be predicted with certainty. ThenGany
believes that any resulting liabilities from an atse result will not, in the aggregate, have a ristadverse effect
on the Company financial position, but may have a material aggexffect on its results of operations or cashdl
in any given period.

Other Obligations

The Company is secondarily liable under a leaseeagent which the Company assigned to a third pahsg.
lease expires on April 30, 2012. The lease ligbitir the period from January 1, 2008 to April 2012 is estimated
to be approximately $34 million.

F-62




CELANESE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Conti nued)

The Company has agreed to indemnify various ing@raarriers, for amounts not in excess of theesatthts
received, from claims made against these carridysegjuent to the settlement. The aggregate ambgohoantees
under these settlements, which is unlimited in tesnapproximately $10 million.

As indemnification obligations often depend on dliceurrence of unpredictable future events, theréutosts
associated with them cannot be determined atithis However, if the Company were to incur addigibcharges
for these matters, such charges may have a maaerialse effect on the financial position, resofteperations or
cash flows of the Company in any given accountiegaal.

Other Matters

In the normal course of business, the Company &iriey commitments to purchase goods and servioesao
fixed period of time. The Company maintains a nundfe€take-or-pay” contracts for the purchase ofi raaterials
and utilities. As of December 31, 2007, there warstanding future commitments of approximately1$8, million
under take-or-pay contracts. The Company doesxpaat to incur any losses under these contracttahgements
and historically has not incurred any material ésseelated to these contracts. Additionally, aBetember 31,
2007, there were outstanding commitments relabnzapital projects of approximately $49 million.

As of December 31, 2007, Celanese Ltd. and/or CNddidgs, Inc., both US subsidiaries of the Compag,
defendants in approximately 626 asbestos casemditine year ended December 31, 2007, 92 new ea=resfiled
against the Company, 80 cases were resolved ands&3 were revised after further analysis by oaitsidinsel.
Because many of these cases involve numerousiffiaitite Company is subject to claims significgritl excess of
the number of actual cases. The Company has resfnvdefense costs related to claims arising frloese matters.
The Company believes that there is not signifieauosure related to these matters.

In December 2007, the Company received a one tagepnt in resolution of commercial disputes with a
vendor. See Note 19 for additional information.

During the year ended December 31, 2005, the Coynmganorded a gain of $36 million from the settletnahn
transportation-related antitrust matters. This amb@uas recorded against Cost of sales.

25. Supplemental Cash Flow Information

Year Ended
December 31,
2007 2006 2008
(In $ millions)

Cash paid for

Taxes, net of refunc 181 101 65
Interest, net of amounts capitaliz(?) 414 23¢ 30¢
Noncash investing and financing activiti
Fair value adjustment to securities avail-for-sale, net of ta 17 13 3
Capital lease obligatior 80 5 17
Accrued capital expenditur 18 — —
Asset retirement obligatior 4 10 11
Accrued Ticona Kelsterbach plant relocation ci 19 - —

@) Amount includes premiums paid on early redemptibdedt and related issuance costs, net of amounts
capitalized, of $217 million, $0 million and $74llin for the years ended December 31, 2007, 20@b6 a
2005, respectively
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26. Business and Geographical Segmen

During 2007, the Company revised its reportablerseys to reflect a change in how the Company isageah.
This change was made to drive strategic growthtamuloup businesses with similar dynamics and gnowt
opportunities. The Company also changed its intéraasfer pricing methodology to generally refletarket-based
pricing which the Company believes will make itsukts more comparable to its peer companies. Thepa@ay has
restated its reportable segments for all priorqusripresented to conform to the 2007 presentation.

The revised segments are as follows:

Advanced Engineered Materials

This business segment develops, produces and ssgpliroad portfolio of high performance technical
polymers for application in automotive and elecicsrproducts and in other consumer and industpplieations.
The primary products of Advanced Engineered Maledee polyacetal products (“POM”) and UHMW-PE
(“GUR"), an ultra-high molecular weight polyethylenPOM is used in a broad range of products inotdi
automotive components, electronics and appliar@E® is used in battery separators, conveyor bfdttsition
equipment, coatings and medical devices.

Consumer Specialties

This business segment consists of the Company’tafecroducts and Nutrinova businesses. The Acetate
Products business primarily produces and supptietate tow and acetate flake, which is used imptbduction of
filter products. The Nutrinova business produces sells Sunet?, a high intensity sweetener, and food protection
ingredients, such as sorbates, for the food, bgeesiad pharmaceuticals industries.

Industrial Specialties

This business segment includes the Emulsions, PE@HAT Plastics businesses. The Company’s emulsions
and PVOH products are used in a wide array of agftins including paints and coatings, adhesivesdibg and
construction, glass fiber, textiles and paper. Adstcs offers a complete line of low-density pahydene and
specialty, ethylene vinyl acetate resins and com@gsuAT Plastics’ products are used in many apiitina
including flexible packaging, lamination produdtst melt adhesive, medical tubing and automotiwspa

Acetyl Intermediates

This business segment produces and supplies greticts, including acetic acid, vinyl acetate mueo,
acetic anhydride and acetate esters. Acetic a@ikey intermediate chemical used in the produatiorinyl acetate
monomer (“VAM”), purified terephthalic acid and diceanhydride. VAM is a key intermediate chemicaéd in
emulsions, polyvinyl alcohol, and other acetyl datives. These products are generally used ainsgtaniaterials fo
colorants, paints, adhesives, coatings, medicindsyare. Other chemicals produced in this segnrendi@anic
solvents and intermediates for pharmaceuticalcaljural and chemical products.

Other Activities

Other Activities primarily consists of corporatenter costs, including financing and administratwetivities
such as legal, accounting and treasury functiodsraerest income or expense associated with fingractivities
of the Company, and the captive insurance companies

The segment management reporting and controllisesys are based on the same accounting policibeses
described in the summary of significant accounpoticies in Note 3. The Company evaluates perfocadrased ¢
operating profit, net earnings (loss), cash flowd ather measures of financial performance repantedcordance
with US GAAP.
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Sales and revenues related to transactions betseggnents are generally recorded at values thavsippaite
third-party selling prices. Capital expendituregresent the purchase of property, plant and equipme

Advanced
Engineerec Consumel Industrial Acetyl Total Other
Materials ~ Specialtie: Specialties Intermediates Segment Activities Eliminations  Consolidatec
(In $ millions)
As of and for the year endec
December 31, 2007:
Sales to external custome 1,03C 1,111 1,34¢ 2,955 6,44 2 — 6,44¢
Inter-segment revenue — — — 66C 66C — (660) —
Earnings (loss) from continuing
operations before tax and minol
interests 18¢ 23t 28 694 1,14¢ (699 — 447
Depreciation and Amortizatic 69 51 59 10€ 28t 6 — 291
Capital expenditure® 58 43 63 13C 29t 11 — 30¢€
Other charges (gains), r 4 4 23 (72)  (4)) 64 35 58
Goodwill and intangible asse 44% 33¢ 97 41C 1,291 — — 1,291
Total asset 1,751 1,157 99t 2,53( 6,43t 1,62¢ — 8,05¢
As of and for the year ended
December 31, 2006:
Sales to external custome 91t 87¢ 1,281 2,68¢ 5,75¢ 22 — 5,77¢
Inter-segment revenue — — — 667 667 — (667) —
Earnings (loss) from continuing
operations before tax and minol
interests 201 18t 43 51¢ 94  (422) — 52€
Depreciation and Amortizatic 65 39 59 101 264 5 — 26¢
Capital expenditure 27 75 30 10t 237 7 — 244
Other charges (gains), r (6) — 11 — 5 5 — 10
Goodwill and intangible asse 43C 322 11C 47¢ 1,33¢ — — 1,33¢
Total asset 1,582 1,071 908 2,76¢ 6,32¢ 1,56¢ — 7,89¢
As of and for the year endec
December 31, 2005:
Sales to external custome 887 83¢ 1,061 2,451 5,23¢ 32 — 5,27(
Inter-segment revenue — — — 46( 46C — (460) —
Earnings (loss) from continuing
operations before tax and minol
interests 11€ 127 4) 55& 794  (51¢) — 27¢€
Depreciation and Amortizatic 60 41 47 11C 25¢ 9 — 267
Capital expenditure 54 38 21 83 19¢€ 7 — 203
Other charges (gains), r (8) 9 7 9 17 44 — 61
Goodwill and intangible asse 46€ 35¢ 12t 481 1,43( — — 1,43(
Total asset 1,587 1,064 851 2,651 6,15¢ 1,292 — 7,44k

@) Includes no-cash accrued capital expenditures of $18 milli@e (Sote 25)

@  Represents insurance recoveries received from dngp@nys captive insurance companies related to the
Lake, Texas facility (see Note 30) that eliminatesonsolidation
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Geographical Segments

Revenues and long-term assets are presented badleel location of the business. The following tgiresents
financial information based on the geographic limrabf the Company’s facilities:

For the Year Ended
December 31,
2007 2006 2005
(In $ millions)

Net sales

United State: 1,75¢ 1,80 1,76¢
Non-United States 4,69C 3,97 3,507
Total 6,44¢ 577¢ 5,27(

SignificantNon-United States net sales sources inclt
Germany 2,348 1974/ 1,66:
Singapore 762 771 69¢€
Canade 26€ 27¢ 187
Mexico 34¢ 302 30¢€
China 182 14 20

As of

__December 31,
2007 2006

(In $ millions)
Property, plant and equipment, net

United State: 78¢€ 861
Non-United States 1,57¢ 1,29¢
Total 2,36z 2,15t
SignificantNon-United States property, plant and equipment, net sounmtsde:
Germany 49¢ 53C
Singapore 91 98
Canade 12¢ 14¢
Mexico 138 13C
China 38¢ 137
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27. Transactions and Relationships with Affiliates andRelated Parties

The Company is a party to various transactions afitiated companies. Companies in which the Conypaa:
an investment accounted for under the cost or gquétthod of accounting, are considered affiliatas transactior
or balances with such companies are considerdihtdftransactions. The following tables represkatCompany’s
transactions with affiliates for the periods prdsdn

Year Ended
December 31,
2007 2006 2005

_(In $
millions)
Statements of Operations
Purchases from affiliate® 12€ 15¢ 182
Sales to affiliate(l) 12€ 29C 232
Interest income from affiliate 1 1 1
Interest expense to affiliat 7 5 3

(M Purchases and sales from/to affiliates are accdunteat prices which, in the opinion of the Compan
approximate those charged to tl-party customers for similar goods or servic

Refer to Note 9 for additional information relateddividends received from affiliates.

As of
December 31,
2007 2006
(In $ millions)

Balance Sheet:

Trade and other receivables from affilia 15 43
Current notes receivable (including interest) fraffiliates 15 41
Long-term notes receivable (including interest) froniliaties 7 =

Total receivables from affiliate _ 37 _ 84
Accounts payable and other liabilities due afféis 22 24
Shor-term borrowings from affiliates (see Note : _22¢ 182

Total due affiliates _25C _20¢€

The Company has agreements with certain affiligggmarily Infraserv entities, whereby excess &ffé cash i
lent to and managed by the Company, at variabéednt rates governed by those agreements.

Upon closing of the Acquisition, the Company endergo a transaction and monitoring fee agreemeétfi thie
Advisor. Under the agreement, the Advisor agreqatd@ide monitoring services to the Company foRayéar
period. Also, the Advisor was entitled to receidgiional compensation for providing investmentkiag or other
advisory services provided to the Company by theigat or any of its affiliates, and reimbursemeortdertain
expenses, in connection with any acquisition, ditig®, refinancing, recapitalization or similaatisaction. In
connection with the completion of the initial pubbffering, the parties amended and restated #émsaction and
monitoring fee agreement to terminate the monigpservices and all obligations to pay future mamigp fees and
paid the Advisor $35 million. The Company also pdid million to the Advisor for the 2005 monitorifee. In
connection with the Original Shareholder’s sal@®femaining shares of Series A common stock iy RI207 (see
Note 18), the transaction based agreement wasrtateai.
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In connection with the debt refinancing (see Nd@g tertain Blackstone managed funds that market
collateralized loan obligations to institutional@stors invested an aggregate of $50 million inGbenpany’s term
loan under the new senior credit agreement. Atithe of the debt refinancing, Blackstone was cosrgd an
affiliate of the Company. As a result of the Orajishareholders’ sale of its remaining shares aBSé& common
stock in May 2007, Blackstone is no longer an iatfd of the Company.

In connection with the acquisition of Vinamul, tBiempany paid the Advisor a fee of $2 million, whighs
included in the computation of the purchase prizelie acquisition. In connection with the acquasitof Acetex,
the Company paid the Advisor an initial fee of $ilion. Additional fees of $3 million were paid iugust 2005 to
the Advisor upon the successful completion of #uguisition. In addition, the Company has paidAdgisor
aggregate fees of approximately €3 million (appmeadely $4 million) in connection with the Compasigcquisitiot
of 5.9 million additional CAG shares in August 20@8®8e Note 2).

For the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006 dimpany made payments to the Advisor of $7 million
and $0 million, respectively, in accordance with #ponsor services agreement dated January 26, 0@fende:
These payments were related primarily to the siileeooxo products and derivatives businessestanddquisition
of APL (see Note 5).

Commencing in September 2005, the Company fileégid®ation Statement on Form S-1 and amendments to
that Registration Statement with the SEC on bedfalfie Original Shareholders (the “Resale Offer)qglirsuant to
the terms of the Amended and Restated RegistrRigints Agreement (“Registration Rights Agreemengjed as
of January 26, 2005, between the Company and tiggn@r Shareholders. Pursuant to the terms of thgisration
Rights Agreement, the Company paid certain feessapénses incurred in connection with the Resalering,
which amounted to approximately $1 million.
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28. Earnings (Loss) Per Share

Year Ended December 31
2007 2006 2005
Basic Diluted Basic Diluted Basic Diluted
(In $ millions, except for share and per share dafe

Income from continuing

operations 33€ 33€ 31¢ 31¢ 214 214
Income from discontinued

operations 90 90 87 87 63 63
Net earning: 42€ 42€ 40€ 40€ 277 277

Less: cumulative undeclared
and declared preferred st

dividends (10) — (10) — (10 —
Earnings available to comm

shareholder 41€ 42€ 39¢€ 40¢€ 267 271
Weighted-average shares —

basic 154,475,02 154,475,02 158,597,42 158,597,42 154,402,57 154,402,57
Dilutive stock option: —  4,344,64. — 1,205,41. — 645,65!
Dilutive restricted stoc — 362,13( — — — —
Assumed conversion of

preferred stocl — 12,046,20 — 12,004,76 — 11,151,81
Weighted-average shares —

diluted 154,475,02 171,227,99 158,597,42 171,807,59 154,402,57 166,200,04
Per share
Income from continuing

operations 2.11 1.9¢ 1.9t 1.8¢ 1.32 1.2¢
Income from discontinued

operations 0.5¢ 0.5: 0.5t 0.5(C 0.41 0.3¢
Net earning: 2.6¢ 2.4¢ 2.5C 2.3€ 1.7¢ 1.67

Prior to the completion of the initial public offieg of the Company’s Series A common stock in Jan@2805,
the Company effected a 152.772947 for 1 stock spliutstanding shares of Series A common stockoAtingly,
basic and diluted shares for the year ended DeaeBih@005 have been calculated based on the vegigivierage
shares outstanding, adjusted for the stock split.

29. Relocation of Ticona Plant in Kelsterbach

On November 29, 2006, the Company reached a settliewith the Frankfurt, Germany, Airport (“Frapgrtd
relocate its Kelsterbach, Germany, business, regpbeveral years of legal disputes related tgpthened Frankfui
airport expansion. The final settlement agreemexst approved by the Fraport supervisory board on 81&p07 at
an extraordinary board meeting. The final settlenagmeement was signed on June 12, 2007. As & oddhke
settlement, the Company will transition Ticona'mgtions from Kelsterbach to another location imn@ny by
mid-2011. In July 2007, the Company announcedithveduld relocate the Kelsterbach, Germany, busineshe
Hoechst Industrial Park in the Rhine Main area.Gvfve-year period, Fraport will pay Ticona aalobf
€670 million to offset the costs associated withttia@sition of the business from its current looatand the closure
of the Kelsterbach plant. The payment amount waased by €20 million to €670 million in
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consideration of the Company’s agreement to wagregam obligations of Fraport set forth in the lesttent
agreement. These obligations related to the hofnicona employees in the event the Ticona Plaloicated out of
the Rhine Main area. From the settlement date gir@@ecember 31, 2007, Fraport has paid the Comaaotal of
€20 million (approximately $26 million) towards thrnsition and the Company has incurred approxilpate

€33 million (approximately $45 million) of costs asfated with the relocation, of which €4 million5(#illion) is
included in 2007 Other (charges) gains, net é2firfiillion ($40 million) was capitalized. The amadueaceived fron
Fraport has been accounted for as deferred proegetlis included in long-term Other liabilitiestire consolidated
balance sheet as of December 31, 2007.

30. Clear Lake, Texas Outage

In May 2007, the Company announced that it hadrgatamned outage at its Clear Lake, Texas acetit aci
facility. At that time, the Company originally exgied the outage to last until the end of May. Upestart of the
facility, additional operating issues were idetifiwhich necessitated an extension of the outageriner, more
extensive repairs. In July 2007, the Company ancedithat the further repairs were unsuccessfuestart of the
unit. All repairs were completed in early Augus0Z@nd normal production capacity resumed. Dutiregfourth
quarter of 2007, the Company recorded approxim&4@/million of insurance recoveries from its reires in
partial satisfaction of claims that the Company enkdsed on losses resulting from the outage. Tiheseances
recoveries are included in Other (charges) gaiessimthe consolidated income statement.

31. Subsequent Events

On January 4, 2008, the Company declared a cagtediy on its 4.25% convertible perpetual prefesttk
amounting to $3 million and a cash dividend of &Qp@r share on its Series A common stock amouiding
$6 million. Both cash dividends are for the peridolvember 1, 2007 to January 31, 2008 and wereqraid
February 1, 2008 to holders of record as of JanL&r2008.

In January 2008, the Company sold an additional3,5¥ 3 shares of Accsys’ common stock for approtefga
€3 million ($5 million) (see Note 5).

On February 8, 2008, the Company’s Board of Dinectuthorized the repurchase of up to $400 miltibthe
Company’s Series A common stock. The authorizagigas management discretion in determining the itimmd
under which shares may be repurchased. As of Fgb2%a 2008, the Company has repurchased 64,408ssbéaits
Series A common stock at an average purchase q@ir689.86 per share for a total of approximatelyn$Bion in
connection with this authorization.
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Purpose

The purpose of this Plan is to provide speditienefits to Directors and a select group of mament or highly compensated Employees
who contribute materially to the continued growtbyelopment and future business success of Cel@wperation, a Delaware corporation,
and its subsidiaries, if any, that sponsor thisiPTdis Plan shall be unfunded for tax purposesfangurposes of Title | of ERISA.

This Plan is intended to comply with all apphle law, including Code Section 409A and reldteshsury guidance and Regulations, and
shall be operated and interpreted in accordandethiss intention.

ARTICLE 1
Definitions

For the purposes of this Plan, unless otheralisarly apparent from the context, the followpigases or terms shall have the following
indicated meanings:

1.1 “2004 Equity Pla” shall mean the Celanese Corporation 2004 StocktiveePlan or any successor pl.

1.2 “Account Balance” shall mean, with respect tcaatiéipant, an entry on the records of the Compaguyal to the sum of the Participant’s
Annual Accounts. The Account Balance shall be akeeping entry only and shall be utilized solelyaadevice for the measurement
determination of the amounts to be paid to a Hpait, or his or her designated Beneficiary, punsta this Plan

If a Participant is both an Employee and a @oeand participates in the Plan in each capattign separate Account Balances (and
separate Annual Accounts, if applicable) shall étaldished for such Participant as a device fonteasurement and determination of
(a) amounts deferred under the Plan that are atittfitte to the Participant’s status as an Emplogeé ,(b) amounts deferred under the
Plan that are attributable to the Partici|'s status as a Directc

1.3 “Annual Account” shall mean, with respect to atR#gant, an entry on the records of the Compaqyaéto (a) the sum of the
Participant’s Annual Deferral Amount, Company Cidnition Amount, Company Restoration Matching Amoantl Restricted Stock
Unit Amount for any one Plan Year, plus (b) amouwmnedited or debited to such amounts pursuantisdan, less (c) all distributions
made to the Participant or his or her Beneficiarngspant to this Plan that relate to the Annual Aitdor such Plan Year. The Annual
Account shall be a bookkeeping entry only and dhalltilized solely as a device for the measurerardtdetermination of the amounts
to be paid to a Participant, or his or her desigsh&@eneficiary, pursuant to this Pl

1.4 “Annual Deferral Amount” shall mean that portioha Participant Base Salary, Bonus, and Director Fees and tRatticipant defers |
accordance with Article 3 for any one Plan Yeathwit regard to whether such amounts are withhedidcaedited during such Plan
Year.
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15

1.6

1.7

18

1.9

1.1C

1.11

1.1Z

“Annual Installment Method” shall mean thethoel used to determine the amount of each paymentala Participant who has elected
to receive a benefit over a period of years in edt@mace with the applicable provisions of the PTEme amount of each annual payment
due to the Participant shall be calculated by mlylitng the balance of the Participant’s benefitabiyaction, the numerator of which is
one and the denominator of which is the remainimgimer of annual payments due to the Participarg.arhount of the first annual
payment shall be calculated as of the close ofnlegsi on or around the Participant’s Benefit Distidn Date, and the amount of each
subsequent annual payment shall be calculated aroand each anniversary of such Benefit Distrdoudate. For purposes of this
Plan, the right to receive a benefit payment inuahimstallments shall be treated as the entitlérttea single paymen

“Base Salary” shall mean the annual cash emsgttion relating to services performed during @algndar year, excluding distributions
from nonqualified deferred compensation plans, sesucommissions, overtime, fringe benefits, styations, relocation expenses,
incentive payments, non-monetary awards, direeies find other fees, and automobile and other alloygapaid to a Participant for
employment services rendered (whether or not slloivances are included in the Employee’s grossrimep Base Salary shall be
calculated before reduction for compensation valtityt deferred or contributed by the Participantsuant to all qualified or
nonqualified plans of any Employer and shall bewatted to include amounts not otherwise includgethé Participant’s gross income
under Code Sections 125, 402(e)(3), 402(h), orl#Qq3grsuant to plans established by any Employerniged, however, that all such
amounts will be included in compensation only t® éxtent that had there been no such plan, thermauld have been payable in
cash to the Employe

“Beneficiary” shall mean one or more persansts, estates or other entities, designateddordance with Article 10, that are entitled
to receive benefits under this Plan upon the dethParticipant

“Beneficiary Designation Form” shall mean tham established from time to time by the Comneittieat a Participant completes, signs
and returns to the Committee to designate one oe Beneficiaries

“Benefit Distribution Date” shall mean thet@apon which all or an objectively determinabletipm of a Participant’s vested benefits
will become eligible for distribution. Except adetwise provided in the Plan, a Participant’s Bingitribution Date shall be
determined based on the earliest to occur of anterescheduled date set forth in Articles 4 thio@gas applicable

“Boarc” shall mean the board of directors of the Comp

“Bonus” shall mean any compensation, in additmBase Salary, earned by a Participant under amgl&er’'s annual bonus and cash
incentive plans

“Change in Control” shall mean the occurrenca téhange in the ownership,” a “change in the éiffeccontrol” or a “change in the
ownership of a substantial portion of the a<s” of a corporation, as determined in accordance thithSection

In order for an event described below to comgtia Change in Control with respect to a Pawitipexcept as otherwise provided in part
(b)(ii) of this Section, the applicable event migdate to the Company or the Employer of the Pigditt, as identified by the Committ
in
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accordance with Treas. Reg. 81.409A-3(i)(5A0j§2), or such other corporation identified by thiemmittee in accordance with Treas.
Reg. 81.409:-3(i)(5)(ii)(A)(3).

In determining whether an event shall be careid a “change in the ownership,” a “change iretifiective control” or a “change in the
ownership of a substantial portion of the a<” of a corporation, the following provisions shalpap

(@)

(b)

(©

A “change in the ownership” of the appliaborporation shall occur on the date on which @mg person, or more than one person
acting as a group, acquires ownership of stockich €orporation that, together with stock held bgtsperson or group, constitutes
more than 50% of the total fair market value oatebting power of the stock of such corporationdatermined in accordance with
Treas. Reg. 81.409A-3(i)(5)(v). If a person or grasiconsidered either to own more than 50% otaked fair market value or total
voting power of the stock of such corporation,@mhave effective control of such corporation witthie meaning of part (b) of this
Section, and such person or group acquires addltginck of such corporation, the acquisition aditidnal stock by such person or
group shall not be considered to cauchange in the ownerst” of such corporatior

A “change in the effective cont” of the applicable corporation shall occur on eithiethe following dates

(i) The date on which any one person, or mioa@ tbne person acting as a group, acquires (cadtpsred during the 12-month
period ending on the date of the most recent aitiquidy such person or persons) ownership of stdcduch corporation
possessing 30% or more of the total voting powehefstock of such corporation, as determined ao@ance with Treas. Reg.
81.409A-3(i)(5)(vi). If a person or group is coraidd to possess 30% or more of the total votinggpafithe stock of a
corporation, and such person or group acquirediaddl stock of such corporation, the acquisitiémdditional stock by such
person or group shall not be considered to cai“change in the effective cont” of such corporation; ¢

(i) The date on which a majority of the mensbef the applicable corporation’s board of direstisrreplaced during any 12-month
period by directors whose appointment or electiondt endorsed by a majority of the members of sochoration’s board of
directors before the date of the appointment artiele, as determined in accordance with Treas. Beg09A-3(i)(5)(vi). In
determining whether the event described in theqaliag sentence has occurred, the applicable cdipoert@ which the event
must relate shall only include a corporation idiédiin accordance with Treas. Reg. 81.409A-3({){Bhor which no other
corporation is a majority sharehold

A “change in the ownership of a substam@tion of the assets” of the applicable corporaghall occur on the date on which any
one person, or more than one person acting asugpgaaquires (or has acquired during the 12-moattod ending on the date of the
most recent acquisition by such person or persassgts from the corporation that have a total gesssnarket value equal to or
more than 40% of the total gross fair market valfiall of the assets of the corporation immediatejore such acquisition |
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1.1¢
1.14
1.1%

1.1¢
1.17
1.1¢
1.1¢

1.2C

1.21

1.2Z
1.2¢

(@)

(b)

acquisitions, as determined in accordanck Wieas. Reg. §1.409A-3(i)(5)(vii). A transfer afsats shall not be treated as a “change
in the ownership of a substantial portion of thees’ when such transfer is made to an entityithedntrolled by the shareholders of
the transferor corporation, as determined in acuued with Treas. Reg. 8§1.40-3(i)(5)(vii)(B).

“Code¢” shall mean the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, maytbe amended from time to tin
“Committe’ shall mean the committee described in Article

“Company” shall mean Celanese Corporation, a\Rala corporation, and any successor to all or antistly all of the Company’s
assets or busines

“Company Contribution Amou” shall mean, for any one Plan Year, the amount ahéexd in accordance with Section &
“Company Restoration Matching Amo” shall mean, for any one Plan Year, the amount aéed in accordance with Section &
“Director” shall mean any member of the board of directo@ngfEmployer

“Director Fees” shall mean the annual fees payabtash that are earned by a Director from anplByer, including retainer fees and
meetings fees, as compensation for serving ondhedof directors

“Disability” or “Disabled” shall mean that a Piafpant is either (a) unable to engage in any sutiitl gainful activity by reason of any
medically determinable physical or mental impairtrteat can be expected to result in death or cagxpected to last for a continuous
period of not less than 12 months, or (b) by reafany medically determinable physical or mentgbairment that can be expected to
result in death or can be expected to last fomdiwoous period of not less than 12 months, rengiuicome replacement benefits for a
period of not less than 3 months under an accigietithealth plan covering employees of the Partitip&Employer. For purposes of
this Plan, a Participant shall be deemed Disalflddtermined to be totally disabled by the SocedBity Administration. A Participant
shall also be deemed Disabled if determined toisshted in accordance with the applicable disahitisurance program of such
Participant’s Employer, provided that the definitiof “disability” applied under such disability im@nce program complies with the
requirements of this Sectio

“Election Form” shall mean the form, which mayibelectronic format, established from time toditvy the Committee that a
Participant completes, signs and returns to the r@itiee to make an election under the P

“Employe¢ shall mean a person who is an employee of an Erapl
“Employer(s” shall be defined as follow

Except as otherwise provided in part (bthag Section, the term “Employer” shall mean ttmrpany and/or any of its subsidiaries
(now in existence or hereafter formed or acquitbd) have been selected by the Board to participatee Plan and have adopted the
Plan as a sponsc

For the purpose of determining whether a Partidipas experienced a Separation from Service, the* Employe” shall mean
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(i) The entity for which the Participant perftg services and with respect to which the legaltging right to compensation
deferred or contributed under this Plan arises;

(i)  All other entities with which the entityedcribed above would be aggregated and treatediagla employer under Code
Section 414(b) (controlled group of corporations)l £ode Section 414(c) (a group of trades or basiese whether or not
incorporated, under common control), as applicdblerder to identify the group of entities desedhkn the preceding senten
the Committee shall use an ownership threshold lglaast 50% as a substitute for the 80% minimumeramip threshold that
appears in, and otherwise must be used when agplyia applicable provisions of (A) Code SectioB3 %or determining a
controlled group of corporations under Code Sedtibf(b), and (B) Treas. Reg. §1.414(c)-2 for deteimg the trades or
businesses that are under common control under Sedon 414(c)

1.24 “ERISA” shall mean the Employee Retirement Income SecAdtyf 1974, as it may be amended from time to fi

1.2t “401(k) Plan” shall mean, with respect to an Eoypl, a plan qualified under Code Section 401(aj tontains a cash or deferral
arrangement described in Code Section 401(k), addpt the Employer, as it may be amended from tortene, or any successor
thereto.

1.2€ “Participant” shall mean any Employee or Diredtmywho is selected to participate in the Plahwbose executed Plan Agreement,
Election Form and Beneficiary Designation Formaceepted by the Committee, and (c) whose Plan Aggaehas not terminate

1.27 “Performance-Based Compensation” shall mean casgi®n the entitlement to or amount of which istaggent on the satisfaction of
pre-established organizational or individual parfance criteria relating to a performance periodtdéast 12 consecutive months, as
determined by the Committee in accordance with §rB&g. §1.409-1(e).

1.2¢ “Plan” shall mean the Celanese Corporation Dete@ompensation Plan, which shall be evidencedhibyiristrument, as it may be
amended from time to time, and by any other docusmat together with this instrument define a itguant’s rights to amounts
credited to his or her Account Balan

1.2¢ “Plan Agreement” shall mean a written agreemertihhé form prescribed by or acceptable to the Cdtamthat evidences a Participant’
agreement to the terms of the Plan and which mi@pksh additional terms or conditions of Plan jg@pation for a Participant. Unless
otherwise determined by the Committee, the mostreBlan Agreement accepted with respect to adiatit shall supersede any prior
Plan Agreements for such Participant. Plan Agreesneay vary among Participants and may provideteaxhdil benefits not set forth
the Plan or limit the benefits otherwise providedier the Plar

1.3C “Plan Year” shall mean a period beginning on dayd of each calendar year and continuing thrddgtember 31 of such calendar
year.

1.31 “Restricted Stock Unit Amount” shall mean, withkspect to a Participant for any one Plan Yearatheunt of Restricted Stock Units
deferred in accordance with this Plan, calculasdgithe
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1.32

1.3¢

1.34

closing price of Stock at the end of the busén#ay closest to the date such Restricted Stoik Would otherwise vest (and/or all
restrictions on such Restricted Stock Units wowddehlapsed), but for the election to defer. Indgtient of a Participant’s Separation
from Service, Disability, or death prior to the esfca Plan Year, such year’'s Restricted Stock Bnibunt shall be the actual amount
withheld prior to such event provided that if atiRgpant’s deferral election applies to any RestidcStock Units that vest on or after
such event, such Restricted Stock Unit Amount dbalvithheld and credited to the Participant’'s ActtcBalance if necessary to
comply with Code Section 409A. The portion of ategrant’s Account Balance attributable to Res&itStock Unit Amounts, and the
number of additional units credited to a ParticifsmAccount Balance as a result of the deemed esitneent of dividends in accordance
with this Plan, shall only be distributable in aadtahares of Stocl

“Restricted Stock Units” shall mean rights grahte a Participant to receive shares of Stock, (&) are awarded to the Participant
under, and are subject to the terms and conditfres Celanese Corporation stock incentive pladir@ctor compensation program, and
(b) have been designated as eligible for defemdkuthis Plan by the Committe

“Retirement,” “Retire(s)” or “Retiredshall mean with respect to a Participant who i€amployee, a Separation from Service on or
the attainment of age 55 with 5 Years of Serviog, shall mean with respect to a Participant whe rector, a Separation from
Service. If a Participant is both an Employee amiractor and participates in the Plan in each cidpa(a) the determination of whett
the Participant qualifies for Retirement as an Eyeé shall be made when the Participant experiem&sparation from Service as an
Employee and such determination shall only applyréoapplicable Account Balance established in mtzwe with Section 1.2 for
amounts deferred under the Plan as an Employedpatioe determination of whether the Participamdliies for Retirement as a
Director shall be made at the time the Particigapieriences a Separation from Service as a Diracibisuch determination shall only
apply to the applicable Account Balance establishextcordance with Section 1.2 for amounts defeareder the Plan as a Direct

“Separation from Service” shall mean a termirmatié the services provided by a Participant todniser Employer, whether voluntarily
or involuntarily, other than by reason of deattb@ability, as determined by the Committee in adeoice with Treas. Reg. §1.409A-1
(h). For a Participant who provides services t&arployer as an Employee, a Separation from Sesfia# occur when such Particip:
has experienced a termination of employment witthdEmployer. A Participant shall be consideredaeehexperienced a termination
of employment when the facts and circumstancesatéithat the Participant and his or her Emplogasonably anticipate that either
(i) no further services will be performed for thmployer after a certain date, or (ii) that the lesfebona fide services the Participant
will perform for the Employer after such date (wWiatas an Employee or as an independent contragiibpermanently decrease to no
more than 20% of the average level of bona fideises performed by such Participant (whether aBraployee or an independent
contractor) over the immediately preceding 36-mauetiod (or the full period of services to the Eoydr if the Participant has been
providing services to the Employer less than 36 thme)n If a Participant is on military leave, sigabe, or other bona fide leave of
absence, the employment relationship between theipant and the Employer shall be treated asioaintg intact, provided that the
period of such leave does not exceed 6 month§|amger, so long as the Participant retains atrigl
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1.3t

1.3¢€
1.37

1.3¢

2.1

2.2

reemployment with the Employer under an applieatatute or by contract. If the period of a taily leave, sick leave, or other bona
fide leave of absence exceeds 6 months and thieifart does not retain a right to reemploymentasrath applicable statute or by
contract, the employment relationship shall be wared to be terminated for purposes of this Ptaofdhe first day immediately
following the end of such 6ionth period. In applying the provisions of thisggraph, a leave of absence shall be consideredafie
leave of absence only if there is a reasonableatapen that the Participant will return to perfoservices for the Employe

Notwithstanding the foregoing provisions, if a Rapant provides services for an Employer as baotfEmployee and as a Director,

the extent permitted by Treas. Reg. §1.409A-1(h}{B)services provided by such Participant as adior shall not be taken into
account in determining whether the Participantéygmerienced a Separation from Service as an Emg|ayel the services provided by
such Participant as an Employee shall not be takeraccount in determining whether the Particigzag experienced a Separation
from Service as a Directc

“Stock” shall mean Celanese Corporation Serieo#mon stock, $0.0001 par value, or any other gaeiturities of the Company
designated by the Committe

“Trus” shall mean one or more trusts established by tmep@ay in accordance with Article 1

“Unforeseeable Emergency” shall mean a seveanfiial hardship of the Participant resulting frapdn illness or accident of the
Participant, the Participant’s spouse, the Paditijs Beneficiary or the Participant's dependestdefined in Code Section 152 without
regard to paragraphs (b)(1), (b)(2) and (d)(1)ieyeof), (b) a loss of the Participant’s propette o casualty, or (c) such other similar
extraordinary and unforeseeable circumstancesigras a result of events beyond the control oPtwicipant, all as determined by the
Committee based on the relevant facts and circuroste

“Years of Service” shall mean the total numbefutifyears in which a Participant has been empiidyge one or more Employers. For
purposes of this definition, a year of employmératlisbe a 365 day period (or 366 day period indage of a leap year) that, for the first
year of employment, commences on the Empl’s date of hiring and that, for any subsequent yeammences on an anniversary of
that hiring date. A partial year of employment $hak be treated as a Year of Servi

ARTICLE 2
Selection, Enrollment, Eligibility

Selection by Committee Participation in the Plan shall be limited to Di@s and, as determined by the Committee in its digcretior

a select group of management or highly compendatgaloyees. From that group, the Committee shadicsein its sole discretion, those
individuals who may actually participate in thigaPRI

Enroliment and Eligibility Requirements; Commencemsent of Participation .

(@) As a condition to participation, each Diceor selected Employee shall complete, execuferaturn to the Committee a Plan

Agreement, an Election Form and a Beneficiary Desiign Form by the deadline(s) established by the@ittee in accordance wi
the applicable provisions of this Plan. In additibtte Committee sha
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establish from time to time such other enrolimemfuirements as it determines, in its sole disanetioe necessar

(b) Each Director or selected Employee whdigilde to participate in the Plan shall commeneetigipation in the Plan on the date that
the Committee determines that the Director or Erygrchas met all enrollment requirements set forthis Plan and required by the
Committee, including returning all required docutseio the Committee within the specified time pér

(c) If a Director or an Employee fails to ma#itrequirements established by the Committee withé period required, that Director or
Employee shall not be eligible to participate ia flan during such Plan Ye

ARTICLE 3
Deferral Commitments/Restricted Stock Unit AmountsCompany Contribution Amounts/
Company Restoration Matching Amounts/Vesting/Crediing/Taxes

3.1 Maximum Deferral .

(@ Annual Deferral Amount . For each Plan Year, a Participant may elect tordagehis or her Annual Deferral Amount, Base Salar
Bonus and/or Director Fees up to the following maxin percentages for each deferral elec

Deferral Maximum Percentage
Base Salar 75%
Bonus 10C%
Director Fee: 10C%

(b) Restricted Stock Unit Amount. For each Plan Year, a Participant may elect tordagehis or her Restricted Stock Unit Amount, up
to the following maximum percentage of Restrictéoc® Units:

Deferral Maximum Percentage
Restricted Stock Unit 100%

(c) Short Plan Year. Notwithstanding the foregoing, if a Participansfibecomes a Participant after the first day ofea Fear, then to
the extent required by Section 3.2 and Code Sedli®A and related Treasury Regulations, the maxiragrount of the Participast’
Base Salary, Bonus or Director Fees that may beraf by the Participant for the Plan Year shaliiéermined by applying the
percentages set forth in Section 3.1(a) to thé@odf such compensation attributable to servier$opmed after the date that the
Participan’'s deferral election is mad
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3.2 Timing of Deferral Elections; Effect of Election Fam .

(@)

(b)

(©

General Timing Rule for Deferral Elections. Except as otherwise provided in this Section :iayrder for a Participant to make a
valid election to defer Base Salary, Bonus andfoeddor Fees, the Participant must submit an Ededdorm on or before the
deadline established by the Committee, which iewvent shall be later than the DecembeptBieceding the Plan Year in which such
compensation will be earned; provided that for Aadrideferral Amounts relating to certain compensagarned in the years ended
December 31, 2007 and December 31, 2008, the Cdemmitay establish other deadlines in accordandethét requirements of
Code Section 409A and related Treasury Regulat

Any deferral election made in accordance Witk Section 3.2(a) shall be irrevocable; provideavever, that if the Committee
permits or requires Participants to make a defelsdtion by the deadline described above for aoumtthat qualifies as
Performance-Based Compensation, the Committee erawipa Participant to subsequently change hissodkferral election for
such compensation by submitting a new Election Haraccordance with Section 3.2(d) belc

Timing of Deferral Elections for Restricted Stock Lhits . For an election to defer Restricted Stock Unitbeovalid, an Election
Form must be completed and signed by the Partitiph respect to such Restricted Stock Units byater than (i) the end of the
calendar year preceding the Plan Year during whigth Restricted Stock Units may be initially grante the Participant under the
terms of the applicable Celanese Corporation siwentive plan or director compensation progran{jipsuch other deadline
established by the Committee in accordance withiéggirements of Code Section 409A and relatedstmgaRegulations, including,
without limitation, such other deadline(s) as mayapplicable under this Section 3.2. All such ébect to defer Restricted Stock
Units shall be deemed to be modifications of theting terms of the Restricted Stock Units beingeded.

Timing of Deferral Elections for Newly Eligible Plan Participants . A Director or selected Employee who first becomeaslde to
participate in the Plan on or after the beginnihg Blan Year, as determined in accordance witg.rReg. §1.409A-2(a)(7)(ii) and
the “plan aggregation” rules provided in Treas. REQ409A-1(c)(2), may be permitted to make antelado defer the portion of
Base Salary, Bonus, Director Fees and/or Restristeck Units attributable to services to be perfedrafter such election, provided
that the Participant submits an Election Form ohedore the deadline established by the Committé&h in no event shall be later
than 30 days after the Participant first becomiggbdé to participate in the Pla

If a deferral election made in accordancénhis Section 3.2(c) relates to compensation eblpased upon a specified performance
period, the amount eligible for deferral shall lopgi@ to (i) the total amount of compensation fa pgerformance period, multiplied
(i) a fraction, the numerator of which is the nuenlof days remaining in the service period afterParticipant’s deferral election is
made, and the denominator of which is the total Imemof days in the performance peri
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(d)

(€)

Any deferral election made in accordance whth Section 3.2(c) shall become irrevocable nerlthan the 3@ day after the date the
Director or selected Employee becomes eligibleatigipate in the Plar

Timing of Deferral Elections for Performance-Based Compensatiol. Subject to the limitations described below, the Gotiee

may determine that an irrevocable deferral eledibioran amount that qualifies as Performance-B&mdpensation may be made by
submitting an Election Form on or before the desdéstablished by the Committee, which in no eshatl be later than 6 months
before the end of the performance per

In order for a Participant to be eligibleniake a deferral election for Performance-Based @msgttion in accordance with the
deadline established pursuant to this Section B.&{d Participant must have performed servicesimoously from the later of (i) the
beginning of the performance period for such corspéan, or (ii) the date upon which the performatiieeria for such
compensation are established, through the date whant the Participant makes the deferral electiwrsuch compensation. In no
event shall a deferral election submitted undey Sgction 3.2(d) be permitted to apply to any amo@iPerformance-Based
Compensation that has become readily ascertair

Timing Rule for Deferral of Compensation Subject toRisk of Forfeiture . With respect to compensation (i) to which a Pgptait

has a legally binding right to payment in a subseqiyear, and (i) that is subject to a forfeitaomdition requiring the Participant’s
continued services for a period of at least 12 im®fitom the date the Participant obtains the Igdafiding right, the Committee mi
determine that an irrevocable deferral electiorsfarh compensation may be made by timely delivaeaimglection Form to the
Committee in accordance with its rules and prooesiumo later than the 30day after the Participant obtains the legally higdiight
to the compensation, provided that the electianasle at least 12 months in advance of the eadatstat which the forfeiture
condition could lapse, as determined in accordantdeTreas. Reg. §1.40¢2(a)(5).

Any deferral election(s) made in accordanih this Section 3.2(e) shall become irrevocabldater than the 3% day after the
Participant obtains the legally binding right te@ tompensation subject to such deferral electio

3.2 Withholding and Crediting of Annual Deferral Amount s. For each Plan Year, the Base Salary portion oAtireual Deferral Amount

shall be withheld from each regularly scheduledeBaalary payroll in equal amounts, as adjusted fiora to time for increases and
decreases in Base Salary. The Bonus and/or DirEetes portion of the Annual Deferral Amount shalMithheld at the time the Bonus
or Director Fees are or otherwise would be paithéoParticipant, whether or not this occurs duthrgPlan Year itself. Annual Deferral
Amounts shall be credited to the Participant’s Aadniccount for such Plan Year at the time such amt®would otherwise have been
paid to the Participant. Annual Deferral Amountalshe withheld by the Participant's Employer, whighall contribute such withheld
amounts (less any required withholding for emplogitrtexes made pursuant to Section 3.9) to the Con,

3.4 Restricted Stock Unit Amounts. Subject to any terms and conditions imposed byCii@mittee, a Participant may elect to defer

Restricted Stock Units under the Plan, which am:
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shall be for that Participant the Restricted Stdoit Amount for that Plan Year. Any Restricted $tdénits deferred shall, at the time 1
Restricted Stock Units would otherwise vest (andlbrestrictions on such Restricted Stock Unitsilddhave lapsed) under the terms of
the applicable Celanese Corporation stock incemtiae or director compensation program, but foreteetion to defer, be reflected on
the books of the Company as an unfunded, unsequosdise to deliver to the Participant a specifimber of actual shares of
Stock in the future

3.5 Company Contribution Amount .

(@) For each Plan Year, the Company may benedjto credit amounts to a Participant’s Annuatéent in accordance with
employment or other agreements entered into betiteeRarticipant and the Employer, which amounédl &fe part of the
Participant’s Company Contribution Amount for tidan Year. Such amounts shall be credited to thigcR@ant's Annual Account
for the applicable Plan Year on the date or datesqgpibed by such agreemer

(b) For each Plan Year, the Company, in ite siidcretion, may, but is not required to, credift amount it desires to any Participant’s
Annual Account under this Plan, which amount shalpart of the Participant's Company Contributian@unt for that Plan Year.
The amount so credited to a Participant may belemal larger than the amount credited to any oBreeticipant, and the amount
credited to any Participant for a Plan Year maygdm®, even though one or more other Participactive a Company Contribution
Amount for that Plan Year. The Company Contributfomount described in this Section 3.5(b), if artyaltbe credited to the
Participan’s Annual Account for the applicable Plan Year atate or dates to be determined by the Commi

(c) If not otherwise specified in the Partiaiga employment or other agreement entered intavderh the Participant and the Employer,
the amount (or the method or formula for deterngrtime amount) of a Participant’'s Company ContridoutAmount shall be set forth
in writing in one or more documents, which shalldeemed to be incorporated into this Plan in acowed with Section 1.28, no later
than the date on which such Company Contributiorodnt is credited to the applicable Annual Accouthe Participant

3.€ Company Restoration Matching Amount. For each Plan Year, the Committee, in its solerdigm, may, but is not required to, credit
to a Participant’s Annual Account under this Plaramount determined by the Committee to make upddain limits applicable to the
401(k) Plan or other qualified plan for such PlagaY, as identified by the Committee, or for sudieopurposes as determined by the
Committee in its sole discretion, which amount kbhalthe Participant's Company Restoration Matctngount for that Plan Year. The
amount so credited to a Participant under this Rlaany Plan Year (2) may be smaller or largenttiee amount credited to any other
Participant, (b) may differ from the amount credite such Participant in the preceding Plan Ye=d, (@) may be zero, even though one
or more other Participants receive a Company Ratsbor Matching Amount for that Plan Year. The Raptint's Company Restoration
Matching Amount, if any, shall be credited to thetizipant’s Annual Account for the applicable PM@ar on a date or dates to be
determined by the Committee. The amount (or théotkor formula for determining the amount) of atlegrant’'s Company Restoratic
Matching Amount shall be set forth in writing ineor more documents, which shall be deemed todmporated into this Plan in
accordance with Sectic
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1.28, no later than the date on which such GomRestoration Matching Amount is credited todpelicable Annual Account of the
Participant.

3.7 Vesting.

(@)

(b)

A Participant shall at all times be 100%ted in the portion of his or her Account Balanttatautable to Annual Deferral Amounts
and Restricted Stock Unit Amounts, plus amountdited or debited on such amounts pursuant to Sesti®.

A Participant shall be vested in the portad his or her Account Balance attributable to @oympany Contribution Amounts, plus
amounts credited or debited on such amounts pursu&ection 3.8, in accordance with the vestirgedale(s) set forth in his or her
Plan Agreement, employment agreement or any otifreeaent entered into between the Participant endrther Employer. If not
addressed in any such agreement, a Participathtvasain each Company Contribution Amount on theigersary of the date on
which such Company Contribution Amount was creditethe Participant’s Account Balance, in accoréanih the following
scheduleprovided, howeve, that the Participant must be in the service ef@mpany on such anniversary to receive vestieditc

Time Elapsed Following Crediting of Company Contritution Amount Vested Percentagt

Less than 1 ye: 0%
1 year or more, but less than 2 ye 33%
2 years or more, but less than 3 ye 67%

(©

(d)

()

3 years or mor 10C%
A new vesting schedule shall apply to each Comgzmmytribution Amount credited to the Particig’s Account Balance

A Participant shall be vested in the portion ofdridier Account Balance attributable to any CompRagtoration Matching Amoun
plus amounts credited or debited on such amoumisipaot to Section 3.8, only to the extent thatRbdicipant would be vested in
such amounts under the provisions of the 401(k),Rla determined by the Committee in its sole digam.

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contaiirethis Section 3.7, in the event of a Change int@d, or upon a Participe’s
Disability, Separation from Service on or after lifyang for Retirement, or death prior to Separatfoom Service, any amounts that
are not vested in accordance with Sections 3.#(B)#&c) above, shall immediately become 100% e

Notwithstanding subsection 3.7(d) above, the vgsithedules described in Sections 3.7(b) or 3at{oye shall not be accelera
upon a Change in Control to the extent that the @ittae determines that such acceleration wouldecthus deduction limitations of
Section 280G of the Code to become effective. énethent of such a determination, the Participart request independent
verification of the Committeeg’calculations with respect to the application eftibn 280G. In such case, the Committee must ge
to the Participant within 90 days of such a reqaesbpinion from a nationally recogniz
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(f)

accounting firm selected by the Participané (‘Accounting Firm”). The opinion shall state thecounting Firm’s opinion that any
limitation in the vested percentage hereunder éesgary to avoid the limits of Section 280G andaarsupporting calculations. The
cost of such opinion shall be paid for by the Conyp

Section 3.7(e) shall not prevent the aaegien of the vesting schedules described in Sest®7(b) and 3.7(c) if such Participant is
entitled to a “gross-up” payment, to eliminate éfifect of the Code section 4999 excise tax, puitsieanis or her employment
agreement or other agreement entered into betwedmParticipant and the Employ

3.8 Crediting/Debiting of Account Balances. In accordance with, and subject to, the rules andquures that are established from time to

time by the Committee, in its sole discretion, amteishall be credited or debited to a Participaitsount Balance in accordance with
the following rules

(@)

(b)

Measurement Funds. Subject to the restrictions found in Section 3.8lpw, the Participant may elect one or more ef th

measurement funds selected by the Committee, golésdiscretion, which are based on certain mdtuals (the “Measurement
Funds”), for the purpose of crediting or debitirtglédional amounts to his or her Account Balances TGommittee may, but is not
required to, maintain a Participant’'s Account Baam accordance with such Participant’'s Measuréiend elections. As
necessary, the Committee may, in its sole diseretiscontinue, substitute or add a Measuremend Haach such action will take
effect as of the first day of the first calendaadar that begins at least 30 days after the dayloch the Committee gives
Participants advance written notice of such cha

Election of Measurement Funds. Subject to the restrictions found in Section 3.&@lpow, a Participant, in connection with his or

her initial deferral election in accordance witlcts@n 3.2 above, shall elect, on the Election Fasnge or more Measurement Fund(s)
(as described in Section 3.8(a) above) to be wsddtermine the amounts to be credited or debitddstor her Account Balance. If a
Participant does not elect any of the Measurementl& as described in the previous sentence, thieipant's Account Balance shi
automatically be allocated into the lowest-risk Bl@@ment Fund, as determined by the Committe¢s Boie discretion. Subject to
the restrictions found in Section 3.8(c) below, Beaticipant may (but is not required to) electshipmitting an Election Form to the
Committee that is accepted by the Committee, tocadtklete one or more Measurement Fund(s) to &@ tesdetermine the amounts
to be credited or debited to his or her AccountBeg, or to change the portion of his or her Act@ailance allocated to each
previously or newly elected Measurement Fund. Iéetion is made in accordance with the previamence, it shall apply as of
the first business day deemed reasonably practidabthe Committee, in its sole discretion, andlstumtinue thereafter for each
subsequent day in which the Participant particpatehe Plan, unless changed in accordance wétiprvious sentence.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Committee, fgble discretion, may impose limitations on tkegérency with which one or mo
of the Measurement Funds elected in accordancethigtSection 3.8(b) may be added or deleted bl Raaticipant; furthermore,
the Committee, in its sole discretion, may impasgtations on the frequency with which the Partisip
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(©

(d)

may change the portion of his or her Account Batazitocated to each previously or newly elected $deament Func

Celanese Corporation Stock Unit Fund

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

v)

A Participants Restricted Stock Unit Amounts will be automaticalind irrevocably allocated to the Celanese Caton Stocl
Unit Fund Measurement Fund. Participants may netsany other Measurement Fund to be used tordaterthe amounts to
be credited or debited to the portion of their AacbBalance attributable to Restricted Stock Unit@Aints. Such unit amounts
allocated to the Celanese Corporation Stock UnitdFshall only be distributable in actual shareStoick. All shares so
distributed shall be deemed issued under the 2Q0dhyEPIan.

Subject to the discretion of the Plan Coitt@e, the non-Restricted Stock Unit portion ofatRipant’s Account Balance may
be allocated in and out of the Celanese Corpor&tonk Unit Fund Measurement Fund in accordandce thi rules determine
by the Plan Committee from time to time. Distrilouis from this fund will be paid in cas

Any cash dividends that would have been payablthe Stock credited to a Participant’'s AccountaBak shall be credited to
the Participans Account Balance in the form of additional shaeStock and shall automatically and irrevocablydeemed t
be re-invested in the Celanese Corporation StodkRdmd until such amounts are distributed to theiBipant, in the case of
Restricted Stock Units, or reallocated out of tinedf, in the case of the other portion of the Pigaict's Account Balance. The
Participant shall be entitled to be credited witidend equivalents, calculated as follows: on edate that a cash dividend is
paid by the Company, the Participant shall be teddiith an additional number of shares of Stoakaétp the number of
Shares (whole or fractional) using the closing @€ the Stock on such date with the aggregatadathount of the cash
dividend that would have been pa

The number of shares of Stock creditethtoParticipant’s Account Balance may be adjustethb Committee, in its sole
discretion, to prevent dilution or enlargement aftigipants’ rights with respect to the portionhig or her Account Balance
allocated to the Celanese Corporation Stock UniidHn the event of any reorganization, reclasdifica stock split, or other
unusual corporate transaction or event which affdwt value of the Stock, provided that any sughsaahent shall be made
taking into account any crediting of shares of Btimcthe Participant under Section &

For purposes of this Section 3.8(c), the closingepof the Stock shall be determined by the Conemith its sole discretiol

Proportionate Allocation . In making any election described in Section 3.8five, the Participant shall specify on the Electio

Form, in increments of one percent (1%), the peegenof his or her Account Balance or MeasuremantfFas applicable, to be
allocated/reallocatet
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()

(f)

Crediting or Debiting Method . The performance of each Measurement Fund (eith&tiy® or negative) will be determined on a
daily basis based on the manner in which suchdhaatit's Account Balance has been hypotheticalycated among the
Measurement Funds by the Particip:

No Actual Investment. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Plaattmay be interpreted to the contrary, the Measan¢m
Funds are to be used for measurement purposesamulyg Participant’s election of any such MeasurgrRand, the allocation of his
or her Account Balance thereto, the calculatioadtditional amounts and the crediting or debitingwth amounts to a Participant’s
Account Balance shall not be considered or condtime@ny manner as an actual investment of hisoAltcount Balance in any st
Measurement Fund. In the event that the Compatiyeofrustee (as that term is defined in the Trustlts own discretion, decides
invest funds in any or all of the investments oncliithe Measurement Funds are based, no Particspatithave any rights in or to
such investments themselves. Without limiting theoing, a Participars#’Account Balance shall at all times be a bookkegpntry
only and shall not represent any investment made®or her behalf by the Company or the Trust;Rhgicipant shall at all times
remain an unsecured creditor of the Compi

3.¢ FICA and Other Taxes.

(@)

(b)

(©

Annual Deferral Amounts . For each Plan Year in which an Annual Deferral Amtas being withheld from a Participant, the
Participant’s Employer(s) shall withhold from thmttrtion of the Participard’ Base Salary and/or Bonus that is not being defemn ¢
manner determined by the Employer(s), the Partitipahare of FICA and other employment taxes aistnnual Deferral
Amount. If necessary, the Committee may reducétireual Deferral Amount for FICA taxes pursuant t@ds. Reg. § 1.409A-3(j)
(4)(vi) in order to comply with this Section 3

Company Restoration Matching Amounts and Company Caotribution Amounts . When a Participant becomes vested in a po
of his or her Account Balance attributable to amympany Restoration Matching Amounts and/or Comp@omtribution Amounts,
the Participant’s Employer(s) shall withhold frohat portion of the Participant's Base Salary an&8fnus that is not deferred, in a
manner determined by the Employer(s), the Partitipahare of FICA and other employment taxes ah&mounts. If necessary,
the Committee may reduce the vested portion oPtdmticipant’s Company Restoration Matching Amoun€ompany Contribution
Amount, as applicable, for FICA taxes pursuantiteak. Reg. 8 1.40¢-3(j)(4)(vi) in order to comply with this Section®

Restricted Stock Unit Amounts. For each Plan Year in which a Restricted Stock Bnibunt is being first withheld from an
Employee Participant, the Participant’s Employes{gll withhold from that portion of the Particif@ancompensation that is not
being deferred, in a manner determined by the Eyap{s), the Participant’s share of FICA and othraplyment taxes on such
Restricted Stock Unit Amount. If necessary, the @utiee may reduce the Restricted Stock Unit AmdanEICA taxes pursuant to
Treas. Reg. § 1.40¢-3(j)(4)(vi) in order to comply with this Section®B
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(d) Distributions . The Participant’s Employer(s), or the trustee ef Thust, shall withhold from any payments made Ragicipant
under this Plan all federal, state and local incoemeployment and other taxes required to be withbglthe Employer(s), or the
trustee of the Trust, in connection with such pagtsein amounts and in a manner to be determingétkisole discretion of the
Employer(s) and the trustee of the Tn

ARTICLE 4
Scheduled Distribution; Unforeseeable Emergencies

4.1 Scheduled Distributions. In connection with each election to defer an Anridederral Amount and/or Restricted Stock Unit Ambun
Participant may elect to receive from the Compdhgraa portion of such Annual Deferral Amount amdRestricted Stock Unit Amour
plus amounts credited or debited on that amourgyaunt to Section 3.8, in the form of a lump sumnpent, calculated as of the close of
business on or around the Benefit Distribution Dsignated by the Participant in accordance with$ection (a “Scheduled
Distribution”). The Benefit Distribution Date foh¢ amount subject to a Scheduled Distribution electhall be the first day of any Plan
Year designated by the Participant, which may beaumer than 2 Plan Years after the end of the YPéam to which the Participant’s
deferral election relates, unless otherwise praVinie an Election Form approved by the Commit

Subject to the other terms and conditions isfftian, each Scheduled Distribution elected sf@lpaid out during a 60 day period
commencing immediately after the Benefit DistribatDate. By way of example, if a Scheduled Distiitnuis elected for the Annual
Deferral Amount that is earned in the Plan Yearwamcing January 1, 2008, the earliest Benefit igtion Date that may be
designated by a Participant would be January 11,281dd the Scheduled Distribution would be paidduring the 60 day period
commencing immediately after such Benefit DistribntDate.

4.2 Postponing Scheduled Distributions. A Participant may make a ottiene election to postpone a Scheduled Distribution desdrin
Section 4.1 above, and have such amount paid oingda 60 day period commencing immediately afteabowable alternative Benefit
Distribution Date designated in accordance witk Bection 4.2. In order to make such an electi@Participant must submit an
Election Form to the Committee in accordance withfollowing criteria;

(@) The election of the new Benefit DistributiDate shall have no effect until at least 12 memitter the date on which the election is
made;

(b) The new Benefit Distribution Date seleckgtthe Participant for such Scheduled Distributiomst be the first day of a Plan Year that
is no sooner than 5 years after the previouslygiesed Benefit Distribution Date; a

(c) The election must be made at least 12 nsgotior to the Participant’s previously designaBehefit Distribution Date for such
Scheduled Distributior

For purposes of applying the provisions @ thection 4.2, a Participant’s election to posgparscheduled Distribution shall not be
considered to be made until the date on which ldxgtien becomes irrevocable. Such an election flealbme irrevocable no later
than the date that is :
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4.3

4.4
(@)

(b)

months prior to the Participé' s previously designated Benefit Distribution Daieguch Scheduled Distributia

Other Benefits Take Precedence Over Scheduled Digtutions . Should an event occur prior to any Benefit Disttibi Date
designated for a Scheduled Distribution that watiger a benefit under Section 4.4 or Articlehibugh 9, as applicable, all
amounts subject to a Scheduled Distribution elacdimall be paid in accordance with the other applie provisions of the Plan and
not in accordance with Section 4.1 or ¢

Unforeseeable Emergencie.

If a Participant experiences an Unforeskeemergency prior to the occurrence of a distidouevent described in Section 4.1 or 4.2
or in Articles 5 through 9, as applicable, the Ragant may petition the Committee to receive aipbor full payout from the Plan.
The payout, if any, from the Plan shall not excedlesser of (i) the Participant’s vested AccdBalance, calculated as of the close
of business on or around the Benefit Distributiatédfor such payout, as determined by the Comniittaecordance with provisiol
set forth below, or (ii) the amount necessary tisBathe Unforeseeable Emergency, plus amountsesseey to pay Federal, state, or
local income taxes or penalties reasonably antiegpas a result of the distribution. A Participsimall not be eligible to receive a
payout from the Plan to the extent that the Unfeeable Emergency is or may be relieved (A) thraeghbursement or
compensation by insurance or otherwise, (B) byidigtion of the Participant’s assets, to the extlketliquidation of such assets
would not itself cause severe financial hardshif@)rby cessation of deferrals under this P

If the Committee, in its sole discretion, epes a Participant’s petition for payout from #lan, the Participant’s Benefit
Distribution Date for such payout shall be the datevhich such Committee approval occurs and saglyt shall be distributed to
the Participant in a lump sum no later than 60 ddtes such Benefit Distribution Date. In additiamthe event of such approval the
Participan’s outstanding deferral elections under the Plal bbaancelled

A Participant’s deferral elections undasthlan shall also be cancelled to the extent ihmm@ittee determines that such action is
required for the Participant to obtain a hardshgbridution from an Employer’s 401(k) Plan pursutmiireas. Reg. §1.401(k)-1(d)

(3).

ARTICLE 5

Change in Control Benefit

5.1 Change in Control Benefit. A Participant, in connection with his or her commement of participation in the Plan, shall have an

opportunity to irrevocably elect to receive hisher Account Balance from the Company in the forma &fmp sum payment in the event
that a Change in Control occurs prior to the Piaditt's Separation from Service, Disability or de@the “Change in Control Benefit”).
The Benefit Distribution Date for the Change in @ohBenefit, if any, shall be the date on whick thhange in Control occul
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5.2

6.1

6.2

If a Participant elects not to receive a Changeontrol Benefit, or fails to make an electioncionnection with his or her commencement
of participation in the Plan, the Particip’s Account Balance shall be paid in accordance thighother applicable provisions of the Pl

Payment of Change in Control Benefi. The Change in Control Benefit, if any, shall becoédted as of the close of business on or

around the Participant’s Benefit Distribution Dads,determined by the Committee, and paid to tigcipant no later than 60 days after
the Participar s Benefit Distribution Date

ARTICLE 6
Retirement Benefit

Retirement Benefit. If a Participant experiences a Separation from iSerhat qualifies as a Retirement, the Particigdiall be eligible
to receive his or her vested Account Balance imegia lump sum or annual installment payments|easesl by the Participant in
accordance with Section 6.2 (*Retirement Benef”).

A Participant’s Retirement Benefit shall beccdhted as of the close of business on or aroum@piplicable Benefit Distribution Date for
such benefit, which shall b

(a) the first day after the end of the 6-mgmthiod immediately following the date on which tarticipant experiences such Separation

from Service, if the Participant initially electealreceive the Retirement Benefit in a lump sundg

(b) the later ofi) the first day after the end of the 6-month pdrimmediately following the date on which the Ra#pant experiences

such Separation from Service or (ii) the Januafglldbwing the date on which the Participant expecies such Separation from
Service, if the Participant initially elected taeéve the Retirement Benefit in annual installmgsments

(c) provided, howeverif a Participant changes the form of distributfonthe Retirement Benefit in accordance with ®ec6.2(b), the

Benefit Distribution Date for the Retirement Behshall be determined in accordance with Secti@(bj.

Payment of Retirement Benéefil.

(@) A Participant, in connection with his orlsemmencement of participation in the Plan, sbigtt on an Election Form to receive the

Retirement Benefit in a lump sum or pursuant té\anual Installment Method of up to 15 years. IfatiRipant does not make any
election with respect to the payment of the Reta@etBenefit, then such Participant shall be deetoédthve elected to receive the
Retirement Benefit as a lump su

(b) A Participant may make oekection to change the form of payment for the ieatent Benefit by submitting an Election Form te th

Committee in accordance with the following crite|
(i) The election shall not take effect until at leadiionths after the date on which the election ider
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7.1

7.2

8.1

(i) The new Benefit Distribution Date for tiarticipant’s Retirement Benefit shall be 5 yediarahe Benefit Distribution Date
that would otherwise have been applicable to sectefit; anc

(iii) The election must be made at least 12 months farittre Benefit Distribution Date that would otheseihave been applicable
the Participar's Retirement Benefi

For purposes of applying the provisions @ Bection 6.2(b), a Participant’s election to dethe form of payment for the
Retirement Benefit shall not be considered to bdemantil the date on which the election becomewvacable. Such an electi
shall become irrevocable no later than the datieish2 months prior to the Benefit DistributiontBahat would otherwise ha
been applicable to the Participant’s RetirementeierSubject to the requirements of this Sectidt(l§), the Election Form
most recently accepted by the Committee that hegrbe effective shall govern the form of payouthsf Participant’s
Retirement Benefit

() The lump sum payment shall be made, oalimsent payments shall commence, no later thana§8 dfter the Participant’s Benefit

Distribution Date. Remaining installments, if asiall be paid no later than 60 days after eachvarsary of the Participarst’Benefii
Distribution Date

ARTICLE 7
Termination Benefit

Termination Benefit . If a Participant experiences a Separation fromiSerthat does not qualify as a Retirement, thei¢aaint shall
receive his or her vested Account Balance in the fof a lump sum payment (the “Termination Bengfif Participant’s Termination
Benefit shall be calculated as of the close ofimess on or around the Benefit Distribution Datesfach benefit, which shall be the first

day after the end of the 6-month period immediafellpwing the date on which the Participant expades such Separation from
Service.

Payment of Termination Benefit. The Termination Benefit shall be paid to the Pgtint no later than 60 days after the Participant’s
Benefit Distribution Date

ARTICLE 8
Disability Benefit

Disability Benefit . If a Participant becomes Disabled prior to the o@nce of a distribution event described in Arsctethrough 7, as
applicable, the Participant shall receive his arAecount Balance in the form of a lump sum payn{ém “Disability Benefit”). The
Disability Benefit shall be calculated as of thesd of business on or around the Participant’s #dbistribution Date for such benefit,
which shall be the date on which the Committeéls &0 determine that the Participant is Disab
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8.2 Payment of Disability Benefit. The Disability Benefit shall be paid to the Pag#t no later than 60 days after the Participae'sefit
Distribution Date

ARTICLE 9
Death Benefit

9.1 Death Benefit. In the event of a Participant’s death prior to ¢benplete distribution of his or her Account Balantbee Participant’s
Beneficiary(ies) shall receive the Participant'gaid Account Balance in a lump sum payment (thedtbd&enefit”). The Death Benefit
shall be calculated as of the close of business @nound the Benefit Distribution Date for sucmé#, which shall be the date on whi
the Committee is provided with proof that is satt$bry to the Committee of the Particig’s death

9.2 Payment of Death Benefit The Death Benefit shall be paid to the ParticipaBg&neficiary(ies) no later than 60 days after the
Participan’'s Benefit Distribution Date

ARTICLE 10
Beneficiary Designation

10.1 Benéeficiary . Each Participant shall have the right, at any titoelesignate his or her Beneficiary(ies) (bottmarniy as well as
contingent) to receive any benefits payable unidePian to a beneficiary upon the death of a Rpatit. The Beneficiary designated
under this Plan may be the same as or different fte Beneficiary designation under any other plaan Employer in which the
Participant participate:

10.z Beneficiary Designation; Change; Spousal Conse. A Participant shall designate his or her Beneficlay completing and signing
the Beneficiary Designation Form, and returninig ithe Committee or its designated agent. A Padidi shall have the right to change
a Beneficiary by completing, signing and otherwdsenplying with the terms of the Beneficiary Desitioa Form and the Committee’s
rules and procedures, as in effect from time te@tiththe Participant names someone other thaorhier spouse as a Beneficiary, the
Committee may, in its sole discretion, determireg #pousal consent is required to be providedfamra designated by the Committee,
executed by such Participant’s spouse and retumttte Committee. Upon the acceptance by the Caieendtf a new Beneficiary
Designation Form, all Beneficiary designations jasly filed shall be canceled. The Committee shalkntitled to rely on the last
Beneficiary Designation Form filed by the Partigipand accepted by the Committee prior to his odeath.

10.2 Acknowledgment. No designation or change in designation of a Beraafi shall be effective until received and ackrexiged in
writing by the Committee or its designated ag

10.4 No Beneficiary Designatior. If a Participant fails to designate a Beneficiasypaovided in Sections 10.1, 10.2 and 10.3 aboy# alt
designated Beneficiaries predecease the Participatié prior to complete distribution of the Paigiant’s benefits, then the
Participant’s designated Beneficiary shall be dektoebe his or her surviving spouse. If the Pgrtiat has no surviving spouse, the
benefits remaining under the Plan to be paid teaeficiary shall be payable to the executor orqeakrepresentative of the
Participan’s estate
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10.5

10.€

11.1

11.2

12.1

Doubt as to Beneficiary. If the Committee has any doubt as to the propeeBeiary to receive payments pursuant to this Pllaa,

Committee shall have the right, exercisable imlisgretion, to cause the Participant’'s Employewitbhold such payments until this
matter is resolved to the Commit’s satisfaction

Discharge of Obligations. The payment of benefits under the Plan to a Beiagfichall fully and completely discharge all Emysos

and the Committee from all further obligations unttés Plan with respect to the Participant, arat articipant Plan Agreement shi
terminate upon such full payment of benel

ARTICLE 11
Leave of Absence

Paid Leave of Absencelf a Participant is authorized by the Participaiaployer to take a paid leave of absence from the

employment of the Employer, and such leave of al¥sdioes not constitute a Separation from Servéyehé Participant shall continue
to be considered eligible for the benefits provideder the Plan, and (b) the Annual Deferral Amalnal continue to be withheld
during such paid leave of absence in accordandeSeattion 3.2

Unpaid Leave of Absencc. If a Participant is authorized by the Participafifaployer to take an unpaid leave of absence fram t

employment of the Employer for any reason, and seabe of absence does not constitute a SeparfabionService, such Participant
shall continue to be eligible for the benefits pdad under the Plan. During the unpaid leave oéabs, the Participant shall not be
allowed to make any additional deferral electidiswever, if the Participant returns to employméimé, Participant may elect to defer
an Annual Deferral Amount and/or Restricted StocitAmount for the Plan Year following his or heturn to employment and for
every Plan Year thereafter while a Participantim Plan, provided such deferral elections are wiiserallowed and an Election Form
delivered to and accepted by the Committee for sach election in accordance with Section 3.2 ak

ARTICLE 12
Termination of Plan, Amendment or Modification

Termination of Plan . Although each Employer anticipates that it will tane the Plan for an indefinite period of timegt is no
guarantee that any Employer will continue the Rlawill not terminate the Plan at any time in théufe. Accordingly, each Employer
reserves the right to terminate the Plan with resgeall of its Participants. In the event of arfPtermination no new deferral elections
shall be permitted for the affected Participantd sunch Participants shall no longer be eligibleetteive new company contributions.
However, after the Plan termination the AccountaBaks of such Participants shall continue to baitere with Annual Deferral
Amounts and Restricted Stock Unit Amounts attribieédo any deferral election that was in effecoptd the Plan termination to the
extent deemed necessary to comply with Code Se408A and related Treasury Regulations, and additiamounts shall continue to
credited or debited to such Participants’ AccoualaBces pursuant to Section 3.8. The MeasuremertsFavailable to Participants
following the termination of the Plan shall be carable in number and type to those Measurementd-available to Participants in
the Plan Yea
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12.2

12.c

12.4

13.1

13.2

preceding the Plan Year in which the Plan taation is effective. In addition, following a Plggrmination, Participant Account
Balances shall remain in the Plan and shall natisteibuted until such amounts become eligibledistribution in accordance with the
other applicable provisions of the Plan. Notwithstiag the preceding sentence, to the extent pexnity Treas. Reg. §1.409A-3(j)(4)
(ix), the Company may provide that upon terminattbthe Plan by any Employer, all Account Balanckthe Participants shall be
distributed, subject to and in accordance with ramhgs established by the Company deemed necessaoyrply with the applicable
requirements and limitations of Treas. Reg. §1.43(j)(4)(ix).

Amendment. The Company may, at any time, amend or modify fhe i whole or in part with respect to any Employe
Notwithstanding the foregoing but subject to theniedliately following sentence, (a) no amendment adifrcation shall be effective t
decrease the value of a Participant’s vested AddBalance in existence at the time the amendmemtaglification is made, and (b) no
amendment or modification of this Section 12.2 ecti®n 13.2 of the Plan shall be effective. Inéwent any provision of the Plan
would cause the Plan to fail to satisfy Code Secdid9A or the related Treasury guidance or Reguratisuch provision shall have no
force and effect until amended by the Company taplg with such requirements (which amendment mayebt®active to the extent
permitted by Code Section 409A or the related Tugaguidance or Regulations and may be made b tmpany without the consent
of the affected Participants

Plan Agreement. Despite the provisions of Sections 12.1, if a Rgréint's Plan Agreement contains benefits or litiotes that are not
in this Plan document, the Company may only amerdrainate such benefits or limitations with thetten consent of the Participa

Effect of Payment. The full payment of the Participant’s vested AcdoBalance in accordance with the applicable prowvisiof the
Plan shall completely discharge all obligations t®articipant and his or her designated Benefasarnder this Plan, and the
Participan’s Plan Agreement shall termina

ARTICLE 13
Administration

Committee Duties. Except as otherwise provided in this Article 13s tRlan shall be administered by a Committee, whiddil consist
of the Board, or such committee as the Board stpgdbint. Members of the Committee may be Partid¢gpander this Plan. The
Committee shall also have the discretion and aitthtar (a) make, amend, interpret, and enforcepfiropriate rules and regulations for
the administration of this Plan, and (b) decideesolve any and all questions, including benefiitlement determinations and
interpretations of this Plan, as may arise in catiop with the Plan. Any individual serving on tBemmittee who is a Participant shall
not vote or act on any matter relating solely toself or herself. When making a determination deuation, the Committee shall be
entitled to rely on information furnished by a Rapant or the Compan

Administration Upon Change In Control . Within 120 days following a Change in Control, thdividuals who comprised the
Committee immediately prior to the Change in Cdnndether or not such individuals are membersef€ommittee following the
Change in Control) may, by written consent of thegarity of such individuals, appoint an independeaird party

-22-




Celanese Corporation
Deferred Compensation Plan
Master Plan Documer

13.c

13.4

13t

13.¢

14.1

15.1

administrator (the “Administrator”) to perforamy or all of the Committee’s duties described éctidn 13.1 above, including without
limitation, the power to determine any questionsiag in connection with the administration or iestation of the Plan, and the pov
to make benefit entitlement determinations. Upoa afiter the effective date of such appointmentti{a)Company must pay all
reasonable administrative expenses and fees dfahenistrator, and (b) the Administrator may onky terminated with the written
consent of the majority of Participants with an dgot Balance in the Plan as of the date of suchgsed terminatior

Agents. In the administration of this Plan, the Committe¢h® Administrator, as applicable, may, from titodime, employ agents a
delegate to them such administrative duties asei$ $it (including acting through a duly appointedresentative) and may from time to
time consult with counse

Binding Effect of Decisions. The decision or action of the Committee or Admiiir, as applicable, with respect to any question
arising out of or in connection with the adminisisa, interpretation and application of the Plax &ime rules and regulations
promulgated hereunder shall be final and concluahebinding upon all persons having any intereghé Plan

Indemnity of Committee . All Employers shall indemnify and hold harmless thembers of the Committee, any Employee to whom
the duties of the Committee may be delegated, lsmd\tministrator against any and all claims, losdasnages, expenses or liabilities
arising from any action or failure to act with respto this Plan, except in the case of willful coisduct by the Committee, any of its
members, any such Employee or the Administr:

Employer Information . To enable the Committee and/or Administrator tdgren its functions, the Company and each Employeils
supply full and timely information to the Committeard/or Administrator, as the case may be, on atters relating to the Plan, the
Trust, the Participants and their Beneficiaries, Atcount Balances of the Participants, the congtensof its Participants, the date ¢
circumstances of the Separation from Service, Dlisabr death of its Participants, and such otpertinent information as the
Committee or Administrator may reasonably reqt

ARTICLE 14
Other Benefits and Agreements

Coordination with Other Benefits . The benefits provided for a Participant and Paréint’'s Beneficiary under the Plan are in addition

to any other benefits available to such Participantter any other plan or program for employeesi@fRarticipans Employer. The Ple
shall supplement and shall not supersede, modifm@nd any other such plan or program except asothaywise be expressly
provided.

ARTICLE 15
Claims Procedures

Presentation of Claim. Any Participant or Beneficiary of a deceased Pigdiat (such Participant or Beneficiary being reddrto

below as a “Claimant”) may deliver to the Commitéeritten claim for a determination with respexthie amounts distributable to
such
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Claimant from the Plan. If such a claim reldtethe contents of a notice received by the Claimhe claim must be made within
60 days after such notice was received by the GlairmAll other claims must be made within 180 daf/the date on which the event
that caused the claim to arise occurred. The chaimt state with particularity the determinationidasby the Claiman

15.z Notification of Decision. The Committee shall consider a Claimant’s clairmhimita reasonable time, but no later than 90 dags af
receiving the claim. If the Committee determinest tpecial circumstances require an extensionraf for processing the claim, writt
notice of the extension shall be furnished to thertant prior to the termination of the initial @@y period. In no event shall such
extension exceed a period of 90 days from the étitedanitial period. The extension notice shatlizate the special circumstances

requiring an extension of time and the date by tviie Committee expects to render the benefit ohétetion. The Committee shall
notify the Claimant in writing

(a) thatthe Claimars requested determination has been made, andhéhelaim has been allowed in full;

(b) that the Committee has reached a conclusiatrary, in whole or in part, to the Claimanggjuested determination, and such notice
must set forth in a manner calculated to be undedsby the Claiman

(i) the specific reason(s) for the denial of the claamany part of it
(i) specific reference(s) to pertinent provisions & Bian upon which such denial was ba:

(iii) a description of any additional material or infotina necessary for the Claimant to perfect thentJ@nd an explanation of w
such material or information is necesst

(iv) an explanation of the claim review procedure sghfin Section 15.3 below; ar

(v) a statement of the Claimant’s right to brancivil action under ERISA Section 502(a) follogian adverse benefit
determination on reviev

15.2 Review of a Denied Claim On or before 60 days after receiving a notice ftbenCommittee that a claim has been denied, inevbol
in part, a Claimant (or the Claimant’s duly autked representative) may file with the Committeeréten request for a review of the
denial of the claim. The Claimant (or the Clain’s duly authorized representativ

(&) may, upon request and free of charge, heagonable access to, and copies of, all docunrects,ds and other information relevant
(as defined in applicable ERISA regulations) to ¢keem for benefits

(b) may submit written comments or other documents/at
() may request a hearing, which the Committee, indte discretion, may grar

15.4 Decision on Review. The Committee shall render its decision on reviesnmptly, and no later than 60 days after the Conemit
receives the Claimant’s written request for a revid the denial of the claim. If the Committee detees that special circumstances
require an extension of time for processing thenglavritten notice of the extension shall be fuhad to the
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Claimant prior to the termination of the initial 8@y period. In no event shall such extension exeggeriod of 60 days from the end of
initial period. The extension notice shall indictiie special circumstances requiring an extensidime and the date by which the
Committee expects to render the benefit determinatn rendering its decision, the Committee staé into account all comments,
documents, records and other information submbtethe Claimant relating to the claim, without reygo whether such information was
submitted or considered in the initial benefit det@ation. The decision must be written in a margaculated to be understood by the
Claimant, and it must contai

(&) specific reasons for the decisic
(b) specific reference(s) to the pertinent Plan provisiupon which the decision was bas

(c) astatement that the Claimant is entitteceteive, upon request and free of charge, reafoaacess to and copies of, all documents,
records and other information relevant (as defineapplicable ERISA regulations) to the Clain’s claim for benefits; an

(d) a statement of the Claimis right to bring a civil action under ERISA Sectod2(a).

15.5 Legal Action . A Claimant’s compliance with the foregoing provissoof this Article 15 is a mandatory prerequisitatClaimant’s
right to commence any legal action with respecrty claim for benefits under this Plz

ARTICLE 16
Trust

16.1 Establishment of the Trust. In order to provide assets from which to fulfi ibbligations to the Participants and their Berfies
under the Plan, the Company may establish a tyuatthust agreement with a third party, the trusteevhich the Company and each
Employer may, in their discretion, contribute caslother property, including securities issuedlxyy €ompany, to provide for the
benefit payments under the Plan (“ Trus™).

16.z Interrelationship of the Plan and the Trust. The provisions of the Plan and the Plan Agreemieailt govern the rights of a Particip¢
to receive distributions pursuant to the Plan. ptwvisions of the Trust shall govern the rightstef Employers, Participants and the
creditors of the Employers to the assets transido¢he Trust. Each Employer shall at all timesaén liable to carry out its obligations
under the Plar

16.2 Distributions From the Trust . The Company’s obligations under the Plan may hisfeat with Trust assets distributed pursuant ® th
terms of the Trust, and any such distribution stedlice the Compa’s obligations under this Pla

ARTICLE 17
Miscellaneous

17.1 Status of Plan. The Plan is intended to be a plan that is not adlivithin the meaning of Code Section 401(a) #rad “is unfunded
and is maintained by an employer primarily for fugpose of providing deferred compensation forlactgroup of management or
highly compensated employ¢’ within the meaning of ERISA Sections 201(2), 30aand
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17.2

17.:

17.4

17.5

17.€

17.7

17.¢

401(a)(1). The Plan shall be administered atetpreted (a) to the extent possible in a manoesistent with the intent described in the
preceding sentence, and (b) in accordance with Geddon 409A and related Treasury guidance andlggons.

Unsecured General Creditor. Participants and their Beneficiaries, heirs, susmessand assigns shall have no legal or equitadiésy

interests or claims in any property or assets ®CQbmpany or any Employer. For purposes of the paywf benefits under this Plan,
any and all of the Company’s assets shall be, améin, the general, unpledged unrestricted asé#ie €ompany. The Company’s
obligation under the Plan shall be merely thatrofiafunded and unsecured promise to pay moneyeifutare.

Employer’s Liability . The Companys liability for the payment of benefits shall befided only by the Plan and the Plan Agreemer

entered into between the Company and a ParticipfietCompany shall have no obligation to a Paicipunder the Plan except as
expressly provided in the Plan and his or her Rigreement. Employers under the Plan shall havebtigations to pay any amounts
under the Plar

Nonassignability. Neither a Participant nor any other person shaletey right to commute, sell, assign, transfadge, anticipate,

mortgage or otherwise encumber, transfer, hypotbeatienate or convey in advance of actual rectiptamounts, if any, payable
hereunder, or any part thereof, which are, andgtits to which are expressly declared to be, tigaable and non-transferable. No part
of the amounts payable shall, prior to actual paytrge subject to seizure, attachment, garnishimrestquestration for the payment of
any debts, judgments, alimony or separate maintenawed by a Participant or any other person,diesferable by operation of law in
the event of a Participant’s or any other persbaiskruptcy or insolvency or be transferable to@usp as a result of a property
settlement or otherwis

Not a Contract of Employment. The terms and conditions of this Plan shall notlbemed to constitute a contract of employment
between the Company or any Employer and the Pgati¢i Such employment is hereby acknowledged embat will” employment
relationship that can be terminated at any timeafgr reason, or no reason, with or without cause vaith or without notice, unless
expressly provided in a written employment agreetmeathing in this Plan shall be deemed to giveadiBipant the right to be retained
in the service of any Employer, either as an Emgéogr a Director, or to interfere with the rightasfy Employer to discipline or
discharge the Participant at any tir

Furnishing Information . A Participant or his or her Beneficiary will coopé with the Committee by furnishing any and all
information requested by the Committee and také stiter actions as may be requested in order tiitdide the administration of the
Plan and the payments of benefits hereunder, imgjuout not limited to taking such physical exantimas as the Committee may deem
necessary

Terms . Whenever any words are used herein in the mascultiag shall be construed as though they weredridminine in all cases
where they would so apply; and whenever any wordsiged herein in the singular or in the pluradytbhall be construed as though
they were used in the plural or the singular, ascise may be, in all cases where they would dly.¢

Captions . The captions of the articles, sections and par&grapthis Plan are for convenience only and giwtlicontrol or affect the
meaning or construction of any of its provisio

-26-




Celanese Corporation
Deferred Compensation Plan
Master Plan Documer

17.9

17.1C

17.11

17.12

17.1¢

17.14

17.1¢

Governing Law . Subject to ERISA, the provisions of this Plan sballconstrued and interpreted according to theriatéaws of the
State of Delaware without regard to its conflictdasvs principles

Notice . Any notice or filing required or permitted to bevgh to the Committee under this Plan shall be aiefitt if in writing and
hanc-delivered, or sent by registered or certified mailthe address belo

Celanese Corporation

Attn: General Counsel

1601 West Lyndon B. Johnson Freeway
Dallas, Texas 75234

Such notice shall be deemed given as of the dadelnfery or, if delivery is made by mail, as oéttlate shown on the postmark on
receipt for registration or certificatio

Any notice or filing required or permitted te Qiven to a Participant under this Plan shallufécsent if in writing and handdelivered
or sent by mail, to the last known address of taiétpant.

Successors The provisions of this Plan shall bind and inuréhte benefit of the Participant’s Employer andsitscessors and assigns
and the Participant and the Particif' s designated Beneficiarie

Spous¢s Interest. The interest in the benefits hereunder of a spofiseParticipant who has predeceased the Particgbeati
automatically pass to the Participant and shalbeotransferable by such spouse in any manneundimg but not limited to such
spous’s will, nor shall such interest pass under the lafistestate successic

Validity . In case any provision of this Plan shall be illegainvalid for any reason, said illegality or ifigity shall not affect the
remaining parts hereof, but this Plan shall be taad and enforced as if such illegal or invalidyision had never been inserted
herein.

Incompetent. If the Committee determines in its discretion thdenefit under this Plan is to be paid to a miagrerson declared
incompetent or to a person incapable of handliegdiBposition of that person’s property, the Corteritmay direct payment of such
benefit to the guardian, legal representative esgehaving the care and custody of such minogrimgetent or incapable person. The
Committee may require proof of minority, incompetenincapacity or guardianship, as it may deemapjate prior to distribution of
the benefit. Any payment of a benefit shall be wnpent for the account of the Participant and thei¢tpant’s Beneficiary, as the case
may be, and shall be a complete discharge of abylity under the Plan for such payment amo

Domestic Relations Orders. Notwithstanding Section 17.4, if necessary to cgmyth a domestic relations order, as defined inl€o
Section 414(p)(1)(B), pursuant to which a court tiefermined that a spouse or former spouse ofteipant has an interest in the
Participant’s benefits under the Plan, the Commisteall have the right to immediately distribute #pouse’s or former spouse’s
interest in the Participant’s benefits under thenRb such spouse or former spouse. Such amouhbsthdistributed in a lump sum no
later than 60 days after the Committee approvels damestic relations orde
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17.1¢

17.15

Distribution in the Event of Income Inclusion Under Code Section 409¢. If any portion of a Participant's Account Balanaeder

this Plan is required to be included in incomehmy Participant prior to receipt due to a failuréha$ Plan to comply with the
requirements of Code Section 409A and related TrgaRegulations, the Committee may determine thah $articipant shall receive
a distribution from the Plan in an amount equahimlesser of (a) the portion of his or her AccaBalance required to be included in
income as a result of the failure of the Plan tmply with the requirements of Code Section 409A eeldted Treasury Regulations,
(b) the unpaid vested Account Balan

Deduction Limitation on Benefit Payments. If an Employer reasonably anticipates that the Bygf's deduction with respect to any
distribution from this Plan would be limited orreinated by application of Code Section 162(m), tteethe extent permitted by Tre:
Reg. 81.409A-2(b)(7)(i), payment shall be delayedi@emed necessary to ensure that the entire ambamy distribution from this
Plan is deductible. Any amounts for which distribntis delayed pursuant to this Section shall carito be credited/debited with
additional amounts in accordance with Section Bt delayed amounts (and any amounts creditedaheshall be distributed to the
Participant (or his or her Beneficiary in the evehthe Participant’s death) at the earliest daeeEmployer reasonably anticipates that
the deduction of the payment of the amount will Im@timited or eliminated by application of Codectan 162(m). To the extent
deemed necessary to comply with Treas. Reg. §1.8{D), in the event that such date is determiteelde after a Participant’s
Separation from Service the delayed payment salbe made before the end of the six-month pedidfing such Participant’s
Separation from Servic

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Company has signed this Blacument as of December 7, 20

“Company”

Celanese Corporation,
a Delaware corporation

By: Kevin J. Rogan
Title: Senior Vice President, Human Resources

-28-






Exhibit 10.31
March 27, 2007

Mr. James S. Alder
606 Chandon Court
Southlake, Texas 76092

Dear Jim:

Due to your outstanding and continued contribut@elanese Corporation (the “Company”), we areraff you the following retention
package to retain your services through Decembge2@I0. Our offer is contingent upon you accepthig proposal and the Replacement
Program that was previously presented to you rew than April 2, 2007 and approval by our CompansaCommittee.

Salary Level and Annual Bonus
You will be promoted to Salary Level 1 effectiverAfl, 2007. Salary Level 1 includes an annual Isopportunity at target of 80% of your
annual salary (the “Target”).

Base Salary and Annual Salary Increase
Your base salary will increase to $350,000 per yeféective April 1, 2007, payable in accordancéwthe Company’s normal payroll
practice. On April 1, 2008, April 1, 2009 and Aptil 2010, your base salary will be increased by d®%e prior year's salary.

Retention Bonuses
You will be entitled to a retention bonus of $5@M(ayable on or about January 1, 2010, and $000(ayable on or about January 1,
2011.

Jim, we are most enthusiastic about your contiramegloyment with the Company. If these provisioresagreeable to you, please sign the
enclosed copy of this letter and return it to mgaatr earliest convenience.

Sincerely,

/s/ T. Denny lker
T. Denny Iker
Senior Vice President, Human Resources

Agreed to this 2nd day of April, 2007

/s/ James S. Alder
James S. Alder

cc: Dave Weidman
Tom Curriel






List of Subsidiaries of Celanese Corporation

Name of Compan)

1776461 Canada Inc

2028569 Ontario Ltd

3083829 Canada Inc

Acetex B.V.

Acetex Chemicals Limite

Acetex Chemie Gmbl

Acetex Chimica S.r.l.

Acetex Chimie S.A.

Acetex Corporatiot

Acetex Derivatives, SA!

Acetex Intermediates, SA

Acetex LLC

Alberta Ag— Industries Ltd.

Amcel International Co., Inc

AT Plastics Corporatio

AT Plastics Inc.

AT Plastics Manufacturing Partnerst
BCP Acquisition GmbH & Co. K(
BCP Crystal (Cayman) Ltd.

BCP Crystal US 2 LLC

Celanese US Holdings LL

BCP Holdings Gmbt

CAPE Holding Gmbt

Celanese (China) Holding Co., L
Celanese (Nanjing) Acetyl Derivatives Co., |
Celanese (Nanjing) Chemicals Co., |
Celanese (Nanjing) Diversified Chemical Co.,

Celanese (Shanghai) International Trading Co., |

Celanese (Shanghai) Trading Co.,
Celanese Acetate Limite
Celanese Acetate LL

Celanese Advanced Materials Ir
Celanese Americas Corporati
Celanese S.A

Celanese Canada In

Celanese Caylux Holdings Lt
Celanese Chemicals Europe Gm
Celanese Chemicals Iberica S.
Celanese Chemicals In

Celanese Chemicals India Private Ltd (f/k/a Celariadia Operation Private Limite:

Celanese Chemicals Netherlands B
Celanese Chemicals S.A. (Pty) Lt

Exhibit 21.1

Jurisdiction

Canad
Canad
Canad
Netherland
Great Britair
German'
Italy

France
Canad
France
France
Delawart
Canad
Delawart
North Carolin:i
Canad
Canad
German'
Cayman Islanc
Delawart
Delawart
German'
German'
Chine

Chine

Chine

Chine

Chine

Chine
Great Britait
Delawart
Delawart
Delawart
Argenting
Canad
Caymail
German'
Spair
Delawart
India
Netherland
South Africe




Name of Compan)

Celanese Chemicls UK Ltc
Celanese do Brasil Ltc
Celanese Emulsions B.\
Celanese Emulsions Gmk
Celanese Emulsions Ltc
Celanese Emulsions Norden /

Celanese Europe Holding GmbH & Co. t

Celanese Europe Management Grr
Celanese Far East Lt

Celanese Fibers Operations L
Celanese Global Relocation L1
Celanese Gmbl

Celanese Holding Gmb

Celanese Holdings B.V

Celanese Holdings LLt¢

Celanese Hungary Kf

Celanese International Corporati

Celanese International Holdings Luxembourg S.3a

Celanese Japan Limite

Celanese Korea Chusik Hoe
Celanese Ltd

Celanese Mexico Holdings LL
Celanese Polisinteza d.o.
Celanese Pte. Ltc

Celanese S/

Celanese Singapore Pte. Li
Celanese Singapore VAM Pte., Lt
Celanese US Holdings LL
Celtran Inc.

Celwood Insurance Compa

CNA Funding LLC

CNA Holdings Inc.

Crystal US Holding 3 L.L.C.
Crystal US Sub 3 Corg

Derivados Macroquimicos S.A. de C.'
Edmonton Methanol Compat
Elwood Insurance Limite

FKAT LLC

Grupo Celanese, S. de R.L. de C
HNA Acquisition Inc.

InfraServ Verwaltungs Gmb|

KEP Americas Engineering Plastics, LI
KEP Europe Gmbt

Majoriva GmbH

NutriCapital Inc.

Nutrinova (Australasia) Pty. Ltd

Jurisdiction

Great Britait
Brazil
Netherland
German'
Great Britair
Swedel
German'
German'
China/Hong Kon
Delawart
Delawart
German'
German'
Netherland
Delawart
Hungarny
Delawart
Luxembourg
Japal
Koree
Texas
Delawart
Slovenic:
Singapor
Belgiumr
Singapor
Japal
Delawart
Delawart
Vermon
Delawart
Delawart
Delawart
Delawart
Mexicao
Canad
Bermud:
Delawart
Mexica
Canad
German'
Delawart
German'
German'
Delawart
Australie




Name of Compan)

Nutrinova Argentina S.A
Nutrinova Benelux S.A./N.V.
Nutrinova France S.ar.
Nutrinova Inc.

Nutrinova Japan Ltd

Nutrinova Nutrition Specialties & Food Ingredie@sbH

Nutrition Specialties Mexico S. de R.L. de C.
Riomava Gmb}

Servicios Corporativos Celanese S. de R.L. de (

Synthesegasanlage Ruhr GmbH i
Tenedora Tercera de Toluca S. de R.L. de (
Ticona Austria Gmbt

Ticona Benelux S/— NV

Ticona CR s.r.o.

Ticona Fortron Inc.

Ticona France S.ar.

Ticona Gmbk

Ticona Hungaria Kift.

Ticona Iberica S.L.

Ticona Industrial Co. Ltd

Ticona ltalia S.r.L.

Ticona Japan Ltd

Ticona Korea Ltd.

Ticona LLC

Ticona Norden Denmark A/

Ticona Norden Finland C

Ticona Norden Sverige A

Ticona PBT Holding B.V.

Ticona Polymers Inc

Ticona Polymers Ltd

Ticona Services, Inc

Ticona Technische Polymere g/

Ticona UK Limited

Transatlantique Chimie S.A

Tydeus Erste Vermogensverwaltungs G
Tydeus Zweite Vermdgensverwaltungs G
US Pet Film Inc.

Varimajo GmbH

Zetes Zweite Vermoégensverwaltungs Grr

Jurisdiction

Argenting
Belgiurr
France
Delawart
Japal
German'
Mexicao
German'
Mexicao
German'
Mexica
Austrizc
Belgiumr
Czech Republi
Delawart
France
German'
Hungary
Spair
South Kore
Italy

Japal
Koree
Delawart
Denmarl
Finlanc
Swedel
Netherland
Delawart
Brazil
Delawart
Russii
Great Britair
France
German'
German'
Delawart
German'
German'






Exhibit 23.1

Report on Financial Statement Schedule and Consent
Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Shareholders
Celanese Corporation:

The audits referred to in our report dated Febr@&y2008 included the related consolidated firgratatemer
schedule of Celanese Corporation and subsidiahies‘Company”) for each of the years in the threasryperiod
ended December 31, 2007 included in the Decemhe2@®I7 annual report of Celanese Corporation on
Form 10-K. This consolidated financial statemeihestule is the responsibility of the Company’s mamagnt. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on thissmigated financial statement schedule based oauwdits. In our
opinion, such consolidated financial statement dales when considered in relation to the basic clideated
financial statements taken as a whole, presenty,fai all material respects, the information &&th therein.

We consent to the incorporation by reference irrélggstration statements on Form S-8 (Registration
Nos. 33-122789 and 333-128048) and on Form S-3 (Registratio. 333-133934) of Celanese Corporation of our
reports herein.

Our report dated February 29, 2008 contains exptapparagraphs related to the Company’s adoption o
Financial Accounting Standards Board Interpretabiion 48,Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxadich
was adopted during the year ended December 31, 20d7o the Company’s adoption of Statement cufdnal
Accounting Standards No. 123 (revised 20@Hare-Based Paymenand Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards No. 15&mployers’ Accounting for Defined Benefit Pensiad ®&ther Postretirement Plan®oth of
which were adopted during the year ended Decemhe2(®6.

/s/ KPMG LLP

Dallas, Texas
February 29, 200






Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION
PURSUANT TO 17 CFR 240.13a-14
PROMULGATED UNDER
SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, David N. Weidman, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 16fiCelanese Corporation;

2. Based on my knowledge, this annual report doésantain any untrue statement of a material dacmit to
state a material fact necessary to make the statemmeade, in light of the circumstances under wkioth
statements were made, not misleading with respetietperiod covered by this annual report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememis,other financial information included in thisnaal
report, fairly present in all material respectsfihancial condition, results of operations andhctisws of the
registrant as of, and for, the periods presentedisnannual report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer andre responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure
controls and procedures (as defined in ExchangdrAitgs 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal cbotrer
financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Actddul 3a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant exgdhave:

(a) designed such disclosure controls and procedareaused such disclosure controls and procsdare
be designed under our supervision, to ensure thggmal information relating to the registrant,lirding its
consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to ustbgre within those entities, particularly during tberiod in
which this annual report is being prepared;

(b) designed such internal control over finanoggdarting, or caused such internal control overrfaial
reporting to be designed under our supervisiopytwide reasonable assurance regarding the rétjabil
financial reporting and the preparation of finahsiatements for external purposes in accordantiegeinerall
accepted accounting principles;

(c) evaluated the effectiveness of the registratisslosure controls and procedures and presenteisi
annual report our conclusions about the effectigsrd the disclosure controls and procedures, teeafnd of
the period covered by this report based on sucluatian; and

(d) disclosed in this report any change in thestegnt’s internal control over financial reporting (asidet
in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) thaturred during the registrant’s most recent figcarter
(the registrans fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annuabrg that has materially affected, or is reason
likely to materially affect, the registrant’s inted control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer anddve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatimernal
control over financial reporting, to the registrarguditors and the audit committee of registrmbard of Director
(or persons performing the equivalent functions):

(a) all significant deficiencies and material weesses in the design or operation of internal cootrer
financial reporting which are reasonably likelyatdversely affect the registrant’s ability to recqtbcess,
summarize and report financial information; and

(b) any fraud, whether or not material, that inses\management or other employees who have a sim
role in the registrant’s internal control over fircéal reporting.

/s!/ David N. Weidmau
David N. Weidman
Chairman of the Board of Directors and

Chief Executive Officer
Date: February 29, 20(







Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATION
PURSUANT TO 17 CFR 240.13a-14
PROMULGATED UNDER
SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Steven M. Sterin, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 16fiCelanese Corporation;

2. Based on my knowledge, this annual report doésantain any untrue statement of a material dacmit to
state a material fact necessary to make the statemmeade, in light of the circumstances under wkioth
statements were made, not misleading with respetietperiod covered by this annual report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememis,other financial information included in thisnaal
report, fairly present in all material respectsfihancial condition, results of operations andhctisws of the
registrant as of, and for, the periods presentedisnannual report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer andre responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure
controls and procedures (as defined in ExchangdrAitgs 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal cbotrer
financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Actddul 3a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant exgdhave:

(a) designed such disclosure controls and procedareaused such disclosure controls and procsdare
be designed under our supervision, to ensure thggmal information relating to the registrant,lirding its
consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to ustbgre within those entities, particularly during tberiod in
which this annual report is being prepared;

(b) designed such internal control over finanoggdarting, or caused such internal control overrfaial
reporting to be designed under our supervisiopytwide reasonable assurance regarding the rétjabil
financial reporting and the preparation of finahsiatements for external purposes in accordantiegeinerall
accepted accounting principles;

(c) evaluated the effectiveness of the registratisslosure controls and procedures and presenteisi
annual report our conclusions about the effectigsrd the disclosure controls and procedures, teeafnd of
the period covered by this report based on sucluatian; and

(d) disclosed in this report any change in thestegnt’s internal control over financial reporting (asidet
in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) thaturred during the registrant’s most recent figcarter
(the registrans fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annuabrg that has materially affected, or is reason
likely to materially affect, the registrant’s inted control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer anddve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatimernal
control over financial reporting, to the registrarguditors and the audit committee of registrmbard of Director
(or persons performing the equivalent functions):

(a) all significant deficiencies and material weesses in the design or operation of internal cootrer
financial reporting which are reasonably likelyatdversely affect the registrant’s ability to recqtbcess,
summarize and report financial information; and

(b) any fraud, whether or not material, that inses\management or other employees who have a sim
role in the registrant’s internal control over fircéal reporting.

/sl Steven M. Steri

Steven M. Sterin

Senior Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer
Date: February 29, 20(







Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of CelanesepBmtion (the “Company”) on Form 10-K for the eti
ending December 31, 2007 as filed with the Seagritind Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the
“Report”), I, David N. Weidman, Chief Executive @#r of the Company, hereby certify, pursuant tdJ18.C.
Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 90&dbarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

1. The Report fully complies with the requiremeaftsection 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities ExcleaAgt
of 1934; and

2. The information contained in the Report fairhegents, in all material respects, the financialdition
and results of operations of the Company.

/s!/ David N. Weidmau

David N. Weidman

Chairman of the Board of Directors and
Chief Executive Officer

Date: February 29, 2008

A signed original of this written statement reqdit®y Section 906 has been provided to CelaneseoCaiipn

and will be retained by Celanese Corporation andighed to the Securities and Exchange Commissids etaff
upon reques







Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of CelanesepBmtion (the “Company”) on Form 10-K for the eti
ending December 31, 2007 as filed with the Seagritind Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the

“Report”), |, Steven M. Sterin, Senior Vice Presitland Chief Financial Officer of the Company, lsreertify,
pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adoptedipot$o Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act @22@hat:

1. The Report fully complies with the requiremeaftsection 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities ExcleaAgt
of 1934; and

2. The information contained in the Report fairhegents, in all material respects, the financialdition
and results of operations of the Company.

/sl Steven M. Steri

Steven M. Sterin

Senior Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer
Date: February 29, 2008

A signed original of this written statement reqdit®y Section 906 has been provided to CelaneseoCaiipn

and will be retained by Celanese Corporation andighed to the Securities and Exchange Commissids etaff
upon reques







CELANESE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
SCHEDULE Il — VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS

Year Ended December 31, 200
Deducted from asset accour

Allowance for Doubtful Account
Valuation allowance for deferred tax ass
Year Ended December 31, 200
Deducted from asset accour

Allowance for Doubtful Account
Valuation allowance for deferred tax ass
Year Ended December 31, 200
Deducted from asset accour

Allowance for Doubtful Account
Valuation allowance for deferred tax ass

Exhibit 99.3

Additions
Charged tc Charged tc
Balance at Costs and other Balance at
Beginning of Year Expenses  Accounts Deductions End of Year
{(In $ millions)
22 2 - (8) @ 16
64¢€ 20 730b) (31) © 71C
16 1 — 1) @ 16
71C 8 1() (25€) XA 46(
16 6 - (4) @ 18
46C 27 33() (209) b)d; 311

@ Includes foreign currency translation effects andallected accounts written off, net of recove

(®)  Represents amount charged to goodwill as a resplirehase accounting and Accumulated other

comprehensive income (loss), |

©  Represents reversal of valuation allowance on Gemheferred tax assets, primarily net operating loss

carryforwards

@ Includes reductions to valuation allowances assedi@ith reductions in net deferred tax assetgemilting ir

net expense or bene



